Public Document Pack

Penallta House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mynach, c A E R P H' .'. LY

Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG SO BWRDEISTIREE SIRGL
f}f RFFILY

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Jo Thomas
(Tel: 07714600912 Email: thomaj8@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Date: 20th July 2023
To Whom It May Concern,

A multi-locational meeting of the Cabinet will be held in Penallta House, and via Microsoft Teams on
Wednesday, 26th July, 2023 at 1.00 pm to consider the matters contained in the following agenda. You
are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a minimum notice period of 3 working days is required should
you wishto do so. A simultaneous translation will be provided on request.

Members of the public or Press may attend in person at Penallta House or may view the meeting live via
the following link: https://civico.net/caerphilly

This meeting will be live-streamed and a recording made available to view via the Council’s website,
except for discussions involving confidential or exempt items. Therefore, the images/audio of those
individuals present and/or speaking will be publicly available to all via the recording on the Council
website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk

Yours faithfully,

Christina Harrhy
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA

Pages

1 To receive apologies for absence.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

(LI

= “-®

| = &
)

<, o= )
oL



https://civico.net/caerphilly
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/

2 Declarations of Interest.

Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on the agenda in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council's Constitution and the Code of Conduct for
both Councillors and Officers.

To approve and sign the following minutes: -

3 Cabinet Held on 12th July 2023.

1-8
To note the Cabinet Forward Work Programme.
4 Cabinet Forward Work Programme.
9-12
To receive and consider the following reports on which executive decisions are required: -
5 Day Opportunities.
13-62
6 Caerphilly County Borough Council Speed Limits Traffic Regulation Order 2023.
63 - 164
7 A Routemap to Inform Our Resource And Waste Strategy.
165 - 262
8 Covid 19, Economic Recovery Framework - Monitoring Report.
263 - 304
9 Scrap Metal Dealers, Dog Breeders, And Licensing Of Activities Involving Animals Licensing
Fees 2023/24 And Future Fee Setting Determination.
305 - 312
10 Provisional Revenue Budget Outturn for 2022/23.
313 - 328

Circulation:
Councillors C. Andrews, S. Cook, E. Forehead, N. George, P. Leonard, S. Morgan, C. Morgan,
J. Pritchard and E. Stenner

And Appropriate Officers

HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION

Those individuals thatattend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes ofthat meeting,
sometimes this will include their place ofemploymentor business and opinions expressed. Minutes of Meetings including details
of speakers will be publiclyavailable to all via the Council website atwww.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussionsinvolving
confidential orexemptitems.

You have a number ofrights in relation to your information, including the rights ofaccess to information we hold aboutyou and
the right of complaintifyou are unhappywith the way your information is being processed.

For further information on how we process yourinformation and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy
Notice on our website or contact Legal Services by email griffd2 @caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028.



http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROW OUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>
CABINET

MINUTES OF THE MULTI-LOCATIONAL MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE
AND VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON
WEDNESDAY 12™ JULY 2023 AT 1PM

PRESENT:
Councillor S. Morgan — Chair
Councillors:

C. Andrews (Cabinet Member for Education and Communities), J. Pritchard (Cabinet Member
for Prosperity, Regeneration and Climate Change), N. George (Cabinet Member for Corporate
Services and Property, Highways), S. Cook (Cabinet Member for Housing), P. Leonard
(Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection) and C. Morgan (Cabinet Member for
Waste, Leisure and Green Spaces).

Together with:

R. Edmunds (Corporate Director of Education and Corporate Services) and D. Street (Deputy
Chief Executive).

Also in Attendance:

S. Harris (Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer), R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services
and Monitoring Officer), S. Pugh (Communications Manager), S. Richards, (Head of
Education Planning and Strategy), M. Lloyd (Head of Infrastructure), C. Rogers (Business
Development Manager), C. Campbell (Transportation Engineering Manager), G. Jenkins
(Assistant Director - Head of Children's Services), F. Wilkins (Housing Services Manager), N.
Challenger (Principal Housing Officer (Technical)), C. Adams (Highway Engineering Group
Manager) and L. Lucas (Head of Customer and Digital Services).

RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Leader reminded those present that the meeting was being live streamed, and a
recording would be made available to view via the Council’s website, except for discussions
involving confidential or exempt items. Click Here To View.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor E. Stenner (Cabinet Member for
Finance and Performance) and Councillor E. Forehead (Cabinet Member for Social Care) also
C. Harrhy (Chief Executive), M.S. Williams (Corporate Director of Economy and Environment)
and K. Cole (Chief Education Officer).

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received.

Page 1


https://civico.net/caerphilly

MINUTES -28™ JUNE 2023

RESOLVED the minutes of the meeting held on the 28"June 2023 be approved as a correct
record.

MINUTES - CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE - 28" June
2023.

RESOLVED the minutes of the meeting held on the 28""June 2023 be approved as a correct
record.

CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME -TONOTE

Cabinet was provided with the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, which detailed the
scheduled reports until 18" October 2023.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the Forward Work
Programme be noted. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

COURT HOUSE CAR PARK, BLACKWOOD - VARIATION OF PARKING CHARGES

Consideration was given to a report that sought Cabinet approval to vary the parking charges
in Courthouse Car Park, Blackwood to allow up to 1 hour parking free of charge for all users.

Cabinet noted that there is a new play area adjacent to Blackwood Road which has been
constructed to support the Chartist Gardens development and enhance play provision in the
Pontllanfraith area. The Officer advised Cabinet that in considering how better to facilitate use
of the new play area a review of the parking charges for Courthouse Car Park has been carried
out.

Cabinet were pleased to support the recommendation within the report as it aligns with the
Council’s strategic Active Recreation Strategy and encourages outside play.

Following a query from Cabinet, the Officer confirmed that there are other car parks adjacent to
play areas throughout the Borough. However, none currently charge.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for reasons contained in the Officers report Cabinet approved the
variation of parking charges in Courthouse Car Park, Blackwood to allow up to 1 hour
parking free of charge for all users.

REVISIONS TO THE SOUTH EAST WALES EDUCATION ACHIEVEMENT SERVICE
COLLABORATION AND MEMBERS AGREEMENT (THE CAMA)

Consideration was given to a report which sought Cabinet’s approval to revise the South East
Wales Education Achievement Service Collaboration and Members Agreement (the CAMA).

Cabinet noted that all four partnering Local Authorities of the Gwent Region which share the
same EAS have already signed. The Officer explained that the CAMA aims to make any

Page 2



additional funding contributions required more straightforward by aligning them to the existing
core contributions being made.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for reasons contained within the Officers report the revised wording in
paragraph 5.16 of the Officer’s report be agreed and the EAS be allowed to retain fifty
percent of their balances to protect their liquidity be agreed.

CAERPHILLY INTERCHANGE FUNDING

Consideration was given to a report which sought Cabinet approval for the virement of
£520k from the Regeneration Project Board Development Reserve towards the overall cost of
completing the RIBA (Royal Institute of British Architects) Stage 4 design and WelTAG (Welsh
Transport Appraisal Guidance) Stage 3 study/business case for the Caerphilly Interchange
project.

Cabinet noted that to fully meet the funding requirement for this stage of work, up to £580k is
also required from an alternative funding source and it is proposed that this is funded from the
Council’s Placeshaping Earmarked Reserve in the event that alternative external funding
cannot be identified.

The Deputy Leader was pleased to move this report and acknowledged the importance of
supporting projects such as this.

The Officer informed Cabinet that in terms of the regeneration the Caerphilly Interchange is the
gateway to the Caerphilly 2035 PlaceShaping Agenda and is a critical piece of infrastructure
and catalystto all other works that are due to be carried out within Caerphilly in the future.

Cabinet noted that three public consultations had taken place in relation to the project. The first
two were healthy engagement regarding potential issues and how the Council are approaching
the design.

The Officer advised Cabinet that, as the project has progressed, and the community has began
to understand the design approach and have less concerns in regards to the interchange the
responses received have reduced.

Cabinet were pleased to note that the concept design was revealed online and also a model
was on display for two weeks in the library.

The Officer advised Cabinet that the Caerphilly Conversation site had received 291 visits and
there had been 18 specific responses to the interchange consultation.

The library held a specific day in which residents were able to go and staff were available to
answer questions and give out hard copies of the survey. It was reported that around 40
residents attended through the day and healthy conversations took place.

Cabinet noted at the end of the third consultation process 35 responses have been received
with a high level of support for the project.

Clarification was sought as to how Park and Ride Schemes will be affected in the future as the

Regeneration Project Board Development Reserve funding was previously allocated to Park
and Ride Schemes.

Page 3



The Officer advised Cabinet that Ystrad Mynach Park and Ride Scheme will continue and has
received alternative funding mechanisms. The Officer further advised Cabinet the TFW review
of the Strategic Park and Ride is not in support of the Llanbradach scheme at this point in time,
this has been deferred whilst TFW workout the usage profiles going forward.

Clarification was sought as to the current balance of the Regeneration Project Board
Development Reserve and what impact the proposed virement of funding would this have on
any proposed earmarked funding for future projects.

The Officer advised that Cabinet has previously approved total funding of £3.5 million, that has
been allocated to a wide range of schemes. The Officer explained that the report is seeking
approval for the Park and Ride Schemes funding to be vired into the Interchange as the funding
is no longer needed for its intended purpose.

In response to a query raised by Cabinet, The Officer advised Cabinet, Caerphilly has a
current Active Travel Network Map that shows the ambitions or the County Borough and the
indicative routes that have previously been identified. A number of studies have been
progressed to develop concept designs for some of these proposals as part of the 15 year
delivery programme for the county borough. Development of the routes for the Rudry,
Machen, Trethomas and Bedwas areas will be progressed as part of this delivery programme
when resources are available.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for reasons contained within the Officers report;

1. The virement of £520k from the Regeneration Project Board Development
Reserve for the delivery of RIBA Stage 4 for the Caerphilly Interchange
proposal be approved.

2. A further allocation of up to £580k from the Council’s Placeshaping Earmarked
Reserve to cover the residual shortfall in funding in the event that further
external funding cannot be identified be approved.

ANNUAL CORPORATE SAFEGUARDING REPORTS 2022 - 2023

Consideration was given to a report which presented Cabinet with the 2022-23 Annual
Corporate Safeguarding Report, Forward Work Programme and Safeguarding Key Activity
Data for information.

Cabinet noted the report has been approved by the Corporate Safeguarding Board on the 22"
May 2023 and had been presented to the Social Services Scrutiny Committee as an
information item on 11" July 2023. Team Together reports provide a strategic overview of
Corporate Safeguarding activity during the year and identify progress made in areas for
favouring development during 2023-2024.

In response from a query raised by Cabinet, the Officer explained that there is a revised
timetable from WG in regards Safeguarding Training which is due to start in November 2023.
However, this was due to take place earlier in the year so there is a possibility that this date
may be pushed back further.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for reasons contained within the Officers report Cabinet noted the

Page 4



10.

content of the Annual Reports and the progress made in implementing the Forward
Work Programme.

MOBILISING TEAM CAERPHILLY

Consideration was given to a report which sought Cabinet approval to access additional
external capability from time to time to ensure the successful delivery of the Council’'s Team
Caerphilly Transformation Programme.

The Deputy Leader stated that Cabinet are acutely aware of the financial pressures the
Authority is facing over the next two financial years and have taken into consideration the high
levels of inflation, the current economic outlook and the range of temporary measures
proposed for the 2023 — 2024 financial year. The Authority needs to identify potential savings
of nearly £48.5 million over the next two years, which will be a colossal task. Without
additional support the Authority will struggle to find these savings whilst putting the delivery of
core services at risk. Using external capacity will enable core services to be maintained whilst
also implementing the necessary changes to ensure these services remain sustainable over
the long-term. The report includes details of two specific pieces of work delivered by two
separate organisations that will work with the Authority for between six to twelve weeks to
assist the Authority in building up pace and explicit programme change. The programme will
be designed to drive out significant costs over the next two years and the outcomes and
proposals will be available to share with the Council this Autumn. The one-off cost associated
with this work will be met by the Council’s existing Invest to Save Reserve.

Cabinet acknowledged that this report was presented to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny
Committee, where it was debated in full.

Cabinet further noted that Scrutiny requested that recommendation 3.1(4) be removed.
However, Cabinet have discussed this request, and it is felt that the recommendation cannot
be removed due to the need to maintain pace and the time restrictions in brining any spending
proposals back to Scrutiny. If this were to be carried out then the savings would not come
forward and this would jeopardise the setting of a balanced budget for 2024-25, taking into
consideration the gap is £48 million and not being able to present a balanced budget is not
lawful.

This is by no means ignoring scrutiny and the reasons are as laid out by the Deputy Leader.

In response to concerns raised the Officer informed Cabinet that this approach has been
successful in other Local Authorities and is not out of the ordinary. As well as external
capacity it also brings in leading edge skills and capabilities to help challenge approaches and
to assistin shaping an already challenging agenda.

The Officer advised Cabinet that the process of the project would be to develop proposals
which will be brought back to Members for their approval. If, however, Members are not
satisfied that these proposals are appropriate for Caerphilly they do not have to be agreed.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for reasons contained within the Officers report;
1. The need for additional resources to be engaged in various aspects of the
Council's Transformation programme as set out within the body of this report

was noted.

2. The specific proposals for support set out in 5.28 and 5.29-5.34 at a cost of

Page 5



11.

£221k be approved.

3. The residual balance of £641k within the Council’s Invest to Save Reserve be
repurposed to provide additional one-off support to the ongoing
transformation programme be agreed.

4. Delegated authority on the use of the Invest to Save Reserve be granted to
the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader, relevant Cabinet Member
and Section 151 Officer be approved.

5. The outcome and findings of the external support be shared with a meeting of
all Scrutiny Committees in the Autumn be agreed.

FREE SCHOOL MEAL HOLIDAY PAYMENTS - SUMMER HOLIDAY 2023

Consideration was given to a report which informed Cabinet that Welsh Government have
recently made a decision to cease Free School Meal Holiday payments with immediate effect.
The report sought Cabinet approval to allocate one-off funding to continue the Free School
Meal Holiday payments to eligible families across Caerphilly during the Summer Holiday
period 2023.

It is proposed that the Council provides a one-off payment of £19.50 per week, per child, to
eligible families for the school holiday period commencing Friday 21 July 2023 and ending on
Thursday 31 August 2023.

The Deputy Leader thanked Officers for compiling the report so quickly following the Leader’s
statement at Council that the Authority would be making provision for the Free School Meal
scheme to run throughout the summer.

Cabinet are aware that it is very important that the Authority continue a rapid response to the
cost of living crisis by adapting to change wherever possible, despite the future financial
pressures the Authority is facing.

In response to a query raised by Cabinet the Deputy Chief Executive provided Cabinet with an
update on the support offered to local residents in relation to the current cost of living crisis.

Cabinet were pleased to note there has been excellent work carried out within the Welfare
Benefits, Tenancy Support and Cost of Living teams to maximise residents’ income. This
assistance has not only been offered to Council tenants but also extended to non-Council
tenants. It has been a partnership approach working with the Citizen Advice Bureau and the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).

Cabinet were further pleased to note that the ‘Welcome Space’ scheme which ran through the
winter has been a great success with almost 50 operating within the Borough. These spaces
have also remained open throughout the summer months.

The Deputy Chief Executive also informed Cabinet work is currently being undertaken to
explore what practical support can be provided to residents.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for reason contained within the Officers report a one-off funding in
the sum of £900,000 from uncommitted Capital Earmarked Reserves to enable the
extension of the free school meal holiday payments for the period as outlined in 2.2 of
the report be approved.

Page 6



12.

13.

14.

PUBLICINTEREST TESTS

Members considered the Public Interest Tests and concluded that on balance the public interest
in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interests in disclosing the information and
it was: -

RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100(4) of the Local Government Act 1972
the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 14 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

GEORGE STREET, CWMCARN —REAR WALLS SCHEME

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOVED that for reasons contained within the Officers report the recommendations
at 3.1-3.3 be approved.

PROPOSED MINERAL WORKING AND RESTORATION OF BEDWAS TIPS — EXTENSION
OF EXCLUSIVITY AGREEMENT

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report be approved and by way of Microsoft Forms this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for reasons contained within the Officers report the recommendation
at 3.1 be approved.

The meeting closed at 13.55 p.m.

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the meeting held
on 26" July 2023.

CHAIR

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



6 obed

Cabinet Forward Work Programme — 19th July 2023

Meetingdate: Reporttitle: Keyissue: Reportauthor: Cabinet Member:
26/07/2023 | Day Services For Cabinet to consider the new proposed | Jo Williams CllIr. Elaine Forehead
Day Services Model.
26/07/2023 | Covid 19 - Economic Recovery | To provide Cabinet with an update on Rhian Kyte/Allan Clir. James Pritchard

13:00 | Framework, Monitoring report | progress in respect of the Council’s Dallimore
economic recovery framework.
26/07/2023 | Default speed limit To review proposed 30mph exemptions Marcus Lloyd ClIr. Nigel George
consultation on restricted within the County Borough as a result of
roads across the county the change in the default restricted road
borough from 30mph to 20mph | speed limit to 20mph.
26/07/2023 | Review of Licensing fees for To seek approval of licensing fees Lee Morgan/Rob ClIr. Philippa Leonard
Dog Breeders, Scrap Metal following the funding review. Hartshorn
Dealers and Activities involving
Animals (Pet sales) 2023.
26/07/2023 | Provisional Revenue and To provide Cabinet with details of the Stephen Harris Clir. Eluned Stenner
Capital Budget Outturn for provisional revenue and capital budget
2022/23 outturns for the 2022/23 financial year
prior to the completion of the external
audit by Audit Wales.
26/07/2023 | Waste Route Map To agree the waste route map which will Marcus Lloyd Clir. Chris Morgan
inform the development of the Council's
Waste Strategy.
20/09/2023 | Natural Resources Wales To allow Cabinet to review the outcome of | Antony Bolter/Allan CllIr. James Pritchard
13:00 | (NRW) CCBC Collaboration the 2-year pilot in respect of the CCBC Dallimore

Agreement - Cwmcarn Forest
Drive

management of the Cwmcarn Forest
Drive and consider whether or not to
extend the collaboration agreement for
the continued management of the drive
with Natural Resources Wales for a
further 5 year period.

7 Wwal| epuaby



0T abed

Cabinet Forward Work Programme — 19th July 2023

Meeting date:

Reporttitle:

Keyissue:

Reportauthor:

Cabinet Member:

20/09/2023

Development and Governance
Strategy - Housing

For Cabinet to consider the establishment
of the development strategy which details
the principles, practices and governance
arrangements which are needed to
facilitate enable and support the new build
objectives of Caerphilly Homes now and
in the future.

Nick Taylor-Williams/
Jane Roberts-Waite

ClIr. Shayne Cook

20/09/2023

Winter Service Plan Update

To provide an update to Cabinet on key
winter service activities and priorities in
relation to winter maintenance and
flooding and to seek Cabinet
endorsement of the updated Winter
Service Plan.

Marcus Lloyd

ClIr. Nigel George

20/09/2023

Corporate Performance
Assessment

To provide Cabinet with an update with
the Corporate Performance Assessment.

Sue Richards/Ros
Roberts

Clir. Eluned Stenner

20/09/2023

Public Protection Enforcement
Annual report for 2022/23

For Cabinet to agree progress and
performance.

Rob Hartshorn

ClIr. Philippa Leonard

20/09/2023

Proposal for the closure of
Cwm Glas Infants School

For Cabinet to give approval to consult
following the Statutory process as
prescribed by the ‘School Organisation
Code 2018..

Sue Richards, Andrea
West

Clir Carol Andrews

20/09/2023

Proposal for the Federation of
Cwmaber Infants School and
Cwmaber Junior School

For Cabinet to give approval to consult
following the process as prescribed by the
‘Federation process of maintained
schools’in Wales guidance.

Sue Richards, Andrea
West

ClIr Carol Andrews

20/09/2023

Risca Comprehensive School /
Leisure Centre Options for
New Artificial Pitch Provision

To present Cabinet with options for new
artificial pitch provision at Risca
Comprehensive School/ Leisure Centre

Jared Lougher

Clir Chris Morgan/ CliIr
Carol Andrews

04/10/2023
13:00

Caerphilly Homes — Re-
development of the Former
Oakdale Comprehensive
School

To seek Cabinet approval for the signing
of a delivery agreement (DA) via SCAPE
with Willmott Dixon to deliver an 85 new
home mixed tenure scheme.

Jane Roberts-Waite

ClIr. Shayne Cook




TT obed

Cabinet Forward Work Programme — 19th July 2023

Meeting date:

Reporttitle:

Keyissue:

Reportauthor:

Cabinet Member:

04/10/2023

Caerphilly Homes — Re-
development of the Former Ty
Darran Care Home, Risca

To seek Cabinet approval for the signing
of a delivery agreement (DA) via SCAPE
with Willmott Dixon to deliver a 46 new,
affordable home later living scheme which
will set the ambition for the future of later
living accommodation in the county
borough.

Jane Roberts-Waite

ClIr. Shayne Cook

04/10/2023

Corporate Plan (including
Well-Being Objectives) 2023 to
2028

To consider the Council’s Corporate Plan
and Well-being Objectives 2023 to 2028

Christina Harrhy/Sue
Richards/Jo Pearce

Leader/Clir. Eluned
Stenner

18/10/2023 | Support for pupils unable to To seek Cabinet approval for proposals Keri Cole Clir. C. Andrews
13:00 | attend school (formerly for revising the model of support for pupils
“Tuition” report). accessing tuition.
18/10/2023 | Exempt item - Ness Tar Exempt item subjectto Public Interest Rhian Kyte Clir. James Pritchard

Test




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



4

Agenda Iltem 5

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY

CABINET - 26™ JULY 2023

SUBJECT: DAY OPPORTUNITIES

REPORTBY: DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1.

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The report is to seek Cabinet approval on the Implementation Plan (Appendix 1) to
embed the model of day opportunities identified by Hugh Irwin Associates (HICO)

(Appendix 2) which was presented to the Social Services Scrutiny on the 11" July
2023.

SUMMARY

The report identifies the progress made in embedding the model of day opportunities
which is based on best practice in achieving outcomes for individuals. It is
acknowledged that progress has taken longer than would be ideal however it was
important to commission an independent organisation to hear the views of
stakeholders and research best practice to inform the model.

The report details the current level of service provision in day bases, community
sessions and employment.

Equity is a very important principle thus the report recommends an alternative
depiction of the model which is represented as a circle where everyone’s outcomes
are equal regardless of how they are met which would shift the emphasis from
location to outcomes.

The report acknowledges the model could impact on some families/unpaid
carers/parents who previously had a higher level of service which focused on respite
as opposed to outcomes for individuals who attend. The Bridging the Gap project
described later in the report will hopefully go some way to addressing that.

The implementation plan will set out actions and identify progress made to inform
practice to ensure the model is fully implemented.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members provide comments on the implementation plan.

Page 13



3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

Individuals can within local communities, with
move between bespoke support building on their

depending on self-directed. Activities change as
their outcomes required to meet personal

Members endorse the extension of the day bases core hours at Brooklands from 9:30-
3:30 to enable individuals to have their outcomes the bi product of which could be seen
as respite for some families.

Members endorse the alternative pictorial representation of the model for day
opportunities.
REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The implementation plan reflects the actions required to fully embed the model for day
opportunities.

The model actively promotes individuals abilities and offers adults a range of
opportunities that promote independence that focus on strengths and outcomes.

The alternative depiction of the model is more equitable it sees everyone’s outcomes
as equal regardless of how or where they are being met.

THE REPORT

HICO presented their proposed model for day opportunities to scrutiny committee in
January 2023. The model was represented as a triangle which can be interpreted as
hierarchy;

Individuals have needs met
primarily within resource centres
but can also go out into the
community during their sessions.
Individuals require specialist
support and equipment to ensure
their personal needs are met.

Individuals have outcomes met

levels strengths. Provision is flexible and

outcomes.

Individuals’ needs are met
primarily by the third sector and
existing community provision. It

includes voluntary and paid
employment and help with the
development of life skills.

Whereas the above model has its merits it is felt that the model depicted as a circle
below would be more equitable. There are no changes to the wording of the model,
and it still allows people to move between services as their outcomes change.

Page 14



Preventative Support

Individual’s needs are met
primarilybythe thirdsectorand
existingcommunity provision. It
includes voluntaryand paid

employmentandhelpwith the
development of life skills.

5.3

54

55

Specialist Provision

Individualshave needs met
primarily within resource centres
butcanalso gooutintothe
community during their sessions.
Individualsrequire specialist
supportandequipmentto ensure
theirpersonalneeds are met.

Underpinning the model is the notion that support is allocated to individuals by
matching the offer with identified individual outcomes, through a Day Opportunities
‘hub’ This includes promotion of the use of Direct Payments where appropriate.
Direct payments is a means of an individual receiving an ongoing payment to employ
a personal assistant to assistthem in meeting their outcomes.

In respect of direct payments these are being promoted by Social Workers especially
at transition for children’s to adult services to give individuals choice and control to
meet their own outcomes. A fixed term regional post has been agreed and a
candidate appointed and a start date is awaited. The aim of this post is to provide
consistency across authorities, simplify the process, provide promotional material
and look how we can support people to recruit personal assistants.

The development of a hub is in its infancy and discussions have been held with
Pembrokeshire who have developed this way of working. It is proposed a short task
and finish group is established. Members to include, an individual who uses services,
carer/family member, Assessment Care Management, and the third sector. The remit
of the hub will be to see a person as an individual and look at requests received to
match outcomes to opportunities available. The hub will be multi agency, will be able
to identify outcomes that can’t be met under themes and then impact on future
developments both in house and in the third sector. For example if there were
several requests coming through for people who like to play board games/cards then
appropriate groups could be established which could be run by volunteers A key
principle of the hub will be optimising existing resources in the community and
working with partners to increase opportunities across the County Borough.

Page 15



5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

511

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

The principle of care closer to home will enable individuals to become active
participants in their communities. Activities outside communities do occur when that
is what is required to meet someone’s outcome and can include one off trips to
specific locations or events.

Current Provision

Currently 23 staff provide support to 136 individuals accessing our Community
Service. Of these 136 people 65 (47%) have only ever received their service in the
community.

Community activities include walks in local parks/areas of interest, cycling, visits to
coffee shops, journeys on trains, community classes such as craft, woodwork,
cookery, gentle exercise, dementia groups and men’s shed groups.

Daytime opportunities has expanded the well-established Windy Ridge garden
project model which is based in Blackwood, and developed garden projects within 3
residential homes and one day base. Collectively these garden projects are known
as ‘Gardenscape’. Individuals access the project and are supported to actively
participate in grounds work, growing and nurturing of plants from seed and obtain a
vast general understanding of horticulture. The outcomes for individuals having such
opportunities in an environment which offers freedom to learn and express
themselves reinforced the need to introduce additional opportunities within similar
environments. Individuals also regularly attend plant sales and agricultural shows.

The introduction of the garden project within the Residential Homes has created an
environment which offers further opportunities for individuals which also benefit our
residents who reside within the homes. Plant sales and Garden open days give
additional experiences to individuals and are an excellent way of promoting such
developments. Feedback from CIW on these projects have been very positive.

Having bases accessible 5 days per week offers further scope to expand future
referrals and increase opportunities. There are currently 52 Individuals accessing
our Garden Projects and 27 accessing Windy Ridge.

The Craft and Woodcraft projects are based in Woodfieldside and were reopened
towards the end of 2020/beginning of 2021, providing sessions for individuals to
enjoy vocational opportunities. There are currently 31 Individuals accessing these
projects.

Out of the 136 Individuals currently accessing the Community Service 65 did not
access any day service support prior to August 2020 and all now receive service in
the community.

Islwyn Park Coffee Shop sits within the heart of the community in Pontllanfraith and
serves the public 5 days per week. The Coffee Shop is run by individuals with a

learning disability some of whom used to access a day base. Since the coffee Shop
has opened this has had an incredibly positive response from the public and visiting
parties. Footfall has increased week by week with regular groups returning and

benefiting from the venue and high standard of service they receive. Feedback from
members of the public is exceptional in terms of service and friendliness of the staff.

Although the coffee shopis now generating a healthy turnover, one of the biggest

Page 16



5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

achievements that has come from this venture is that 5 individuals are now paid
employees. There are another 5 Individuals who work at the venue who have chosen
to remain voluntary but continue to benefit from the experience and opportunity this
brings. There are currently 12 Individuals attending Islwyn Catering. Of these 12, we
are progressing paid employment for 4, with 8 choosing to remain working in a
voluntary capacity at this time.

Base provision currently offers 72 individuals support across 7 bases. Which are
Brondeg, Brooklands, Ystrad Mynach, Oaklands, The Links, Windy Ridge and
Markham. Individuals can access the community from their base however they need
a base to meet their personal care outcomes or require specialist staff skills.

As part of our ongoing development and service review, we have acknowledged a
need to extend the core hours within one of our bases (Brooklands). We consider
offering individuals the opportunity to receive support from 9:30 -15:30 a positive
development for individual's outcomes.

Incorporated within our base provision is The Links. The Links is a service for
individuals who have autism and behaviours that can challenge. The service
operates from a base in Wyllie and supports individuals to access opportunities
within their local communities. The Links also operates from a former resource base
in Markham on a daily basis to offer a range of activities for individuals who need a
specific type of environment. There are 10 Individuals currently accessing The Links.

Unpaid Carers

The need to support all unpaid carers to continue in their role is paramount. The
provision of carers assessments is a statutory function and Social Workers will
continue to offer carers assessments in their own right.

All carers will be offered the opportunity to have their details passed to the carers
team, who are responsible for supporting carers in a wide range of ways from access
to small grants, carers meetings, activities and opportunities to socialise and have
their outcomes met. Carers week this year provided a wide range of activities and
opportunities for people, full details can be found in Appendix 3.

Regionally a successful business case has been agreed and funded to implement
Bridging the Gap, this is an award project in North Wales. It is a tool kit for
implementing respite for unpaid carers, which we are seeking to replicate. Bridging
the Gap in North Wales has over 50 providers signed up to the scheme to offer
different forms of support to carers. These are presented to carers in a brochure so
they can choose what they would like to receive. A carer receives a code which is
worth up to an agreed value to use over 6 months. Carers can look through the
brochure and book as and when they need support. When consultation for this
scheme was taking place, families said they struggled with traditional forms of respite
care for things such as needing to go for a haircut or attend a family wedding. This
scheme allows carers to have the choice.

Other services that support unpaid carers include overnight respite, one off sitting
requests, carers coffee mornings which take place across the borough, access to
small grants and carers rights information.

HICO'’s report clearly indicated a training need for staff, as a result specialist training
has been commissioned on collaborative conversations for social work staff which

Page 17



5.24

5.25

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

reflects the Social Services and Well-Being Act. This consists of two days initial
training with a further follow up day to ensure practice continues to be developed.
There are also sessions for senior managers. Sessions commenced on the 6™ June
and are scheduled into the autumn. Following this it is hoped mentors will be
identified to continue to ensure practice reflects collaborative conversations to reflect
individual outcomes.

Community mapping of activities, groups events etc is now standard practice, new
activities are identified regularly and communicated to all staff to enable individuals to
have their outcomes met.

Conclusion

Day opportunities is a vehicle for enable individuals to achieve their outcomes,

become active citizens in their communities and can offer employment opportunities
both voluntary and paid.

ASSUMPTIONS

No assumptions have been made in relation to this report.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The integrated impact assessment has identified no negative impacts in people with
protected characteristics all individuals are treated equitably
Link to full Integrated Impact Assessment

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The 2023/24 original budget for day care provision amounts to a net total of

£5,220,346 and included provision for a total of 103.01 full time equivalent staff.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

HICO'’s report recommended Day opportunities are outcome focussed and provided
7 days a week.

The job description has been revised to reflect the intention to move to 7 day working
although this hasn’t been implemented to date. However the 16 staff that have been
recruited since August 2020 to work in the community, which is 69% of the team,
have been advised of the intention to move to 7 day working with extended hours.

Trade Unions have requested formal consultation is not commenced until the report
has been to Cabinet.

CONSULTATIONS

The Day Opportunities report was considered by the Social Services Scrutiny
Committee on Tuesday 11" July 2023. Following agreement from the Chair the
UNISON Branch Secretary for Caerphilly addressed Committee Members. Ms.

Page 18


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/adult-day-opportunities-iia

Dallimore outlined how the move to a 7-day service should be carefully managed.
Members heard how all staff should be fully consulted on the new model and
consideration and flexibility shown to those staff who cannot work weekends. Ms.
Dallimore highlighted that UNISON had not seen the revised job description
mentioned in the report and would like to be consulted on it. The Corporate Director
for Social Services and Housing provided assurances that consultation would be
forthcoming on both issues raised by the trade union.

One Member sought assurances on tailoring services for the individual needs of
users, ensuring that there is a smooth transition to a 7-day service and the support
available to carers. The Assistant Director Adult Services advised that currently 26
people were supported into volunteering opportunities and the mileage policy had
been reviewed in order to support the travelling demands of carers. Members heard
how care would focus on personal outcomes for service users and that this was
reflected in the training programme for the Assessment Care management. It was
also outlined to the Committee that the transition to a 7-day service would be done
incrementally and involve significant negotiation and planning.

A Member asked about the planned roster system and the method of communication
for community activities. The Assistant Director Adult Services highlighted that the
rostering system would be the same as is currently used in domiciliary care and she
outlined how it worked to Members. The Committee then heard how community
activities were updated and communicated by quality assurance staff.

On staffing one Member enquired about the loss of staff due to redeploying them
from day care to residential care during the pandemic and asked if a change in roles
risked further losses. The Assistant Director Adult Services highlighted that whilst
some staff found redeployment challenging at first a lot of staff had decided to stay in
their new role once Covid-19 restrictions were lifted. It was reiterated that
consultation would take place with staff on where they worked in terms of client
group. The Member expressed concerns about a perceived move from respite to
outcomes in the report, and also asked about the support to voluntary organisations
for providing opportunities in community settings. The Assistant Director Adult
Services advised that both outcomes and respite were equally important. The Bridge
the Gap project was highlighted as one way unpaid carers were supported in terms
of respite. Members then heard about the ways voluntary organisations were being
supported in terms of accessing grants available.

A Committee Member requested more information on Direct Payments and working
with other Councils on Hubs, the Member also asked if timescales were met for
Carer Assessments. The Assistant Director Adult Services outlined to Members that
there was a statutory requirement to promote Direct Payments and advised that ways
of simplifying the process on a regional basis were taking place. Help available on
managing finances was also explained to Members. Members heard how the Council
would be part of a learning improvement network so that best practice could be
developed and shared with other Local Authorities. It was then outlined that there
was a statutory duty to offer Carer Assessments and that these were completed in a
timely manner by the care assessment team.

One Member asked if any pre-Covid service users would not be part of the new
programmes. The Assistant Director Adult Services advised that there were a small
number of users who had decided to make their own arrangements and not return to
Day Services.

Page 19



11.

111

Author:

A Member wished to know about the provision of social group activity for people with
Autism and also asked if support was offered to the Third Sector so that they could
access specific training for client groups. The Assistant Director Adult Services gave
information on a specialist service for people with Autism called The Links. Detail on
future training funded by the Welsh Government was also provided to Committee
Members.

One Member commented on the provision of services for people with poor mental
health. The Assistant Director Adult Services gave information on the work of the in-
house support team which included help with budgeting and maintaining their
tenancies. Members also heard about a scheme funded through the Regional
Partnership for people with low level mental health needs.

A Member sought assurances on effective communication with service users and
that proper assessment of their needs had taken place. The Assistant Director Adult
Services advised that user assessments and reviews had been completed. Whilst
recognising previous challenges with communicating with service users, Members
heard that the situation was improving in this area. Conversations were ongoing and
the better use of social media platforms were also being considered.

One Member enquired if there was provision within the proposed model for an
increase in demand for services. The Assistant Director Adult Services outlined how
there was no additional capacity built-in to the proposed model but that regular
discussions were taking place with partners such as the Health Board on the best
way to meet the challenge of increased demand in the future.

The Chair requested information on skills that can be provided by the Third Sector.
The Assistant Director Adult Services gave information on groups run by the Third
Sector on such skills as IT, budget monitoring and cookery.

Having noted the content of the report, it was moved and seconded that the

recommendations are supported and should be forwarded to Cabinet for approval.
By way of Microsoft Forms (and in noting there were 13 for, 0 against and 1

abstention) this was agreed by the majority present.
STATUTORY POWER

Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014

Paul Evans, Service Manager Provider Services
Evansp5@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees: David Street, Deputy Chief Executive - streed@caerphilly.gov.uk

Jo Williams, Assistant Director for Adult Services - willijd@caerphilly.gov.uk
Mike Jones Finance Services Manager - jonesmj@caerphilly.gov.uk
Steve Harris Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer -
harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Tranter Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer -
trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Lynne Donovan Head of People Services - donovi@caerphily.gov.uk
Nikki Chapman HR Services Manager - chapmn@caerphilly.gov.uk
Clir. Elaine Forehead, Cabinet Member for Social Services -
forehe@caerphilly.gov.uk

CllIr. Donna Cushing, Chair - cushid@caerphilly.gov.uk

CllIr. Marina Chacon-Dawson, Vice-Chair- chacom@caerphilly.gov.uk

Page 20


mailto:Evansp5@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:jonesmj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:chapmn@caerphilly.gov.uk

Appendices:

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3

Implementation Plan
HICO Report
Carers Week information

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



ez abed

Day Opportunities Implementation Plan

Action

Plan

Actions Completed to
date

Progress update June
2023

Consider access to other
funding opportunities

Link with the successful
levelling up fund bid to
develop a new leisure
centre in Caerphilly basin

The success of the
existing Coffee Shop
supports the potential to
expand the venture into
other areas.

Proposal within the new
Leisure facility to be
considered.

Review charging policy

Implement equitable
charging policy

Members task and finish
group previously
established with
recommendations for
increases to day service
charging

Regional group
established with other
LA’s and finance officers

Regional team
establishing terms of
reference for Learning
Information Network.

Currently no individual is
being financially assessed
for attending day
opportunities, awaiting
cabinet response.

Promote independence
choice and control for
individuals

Promote the uptake of
direct payments
particularly at transition

Regional post established
to review direct payment
standardise recruitment
and promotional material

Regional post agreed
appointment made start
date to be agreed

Appendix 1



vz abed

Work programme to be
agreed

Provide service over 7
day and extended hours

Consult with staff and
trade unions regarding
changes to contracts

New Job description to be
used for all future
recruitment which reflects
7 day working

All newly recruited staff
have been advised of the
intention to move to 7
days service including
evenings

Request from trade
unions not to commence
discussion until report has
been to cabinet

Learning from best
practice Establish a hub
to manage all requests for
day opportunities

Establish a short task and
finish group to establish
the hub, identify clear
remit and membership

Representatives have met
with colleagues from
Pembroke Council. Areas
of good practice have
been identified in relation
to a central hub referral
model.

Meetings have been
arranged with Provider
representatives within
CCBC and a plan for
introducing a similar
model presented.

Opportunities to include a
voluntary carer/family
representative on the
group to be explored.




Gz obed

Recent discussions have
also included Rhondda
Cynon Taff, Day
opportunities model to be
shared for good practice
recommendations.

Work with the health
board to look at joint
commissioning and
funding of day
opportunities

To discuss at the Gwent
regional commissioning
board

Workforce/Staff
Development —

Ensure that all staff
involved in the future of
daytime opportunities are
enabled and supported to
work in a person-centred
way.

That further progress will
be based on a person led
response rather than a
service led response

Ensure staff have skills
and knowledge to support
a number of individuals
and staff are rotated
regularly

Ensure staff are trained in
having the “what matters
conversations” and
identifying personal
outcomes

Funding approved for
rostering system which
will address this and
match staff to individuals

Dedicated post
established for planning
work.

Further discussion with
Workforce Development
about person centred
thinking, person centred

Contracts have been
agreed and meetings
arranged for the
implementation of
Cygnum system.

Planning post has been
successfully recruited,
Staff in post since
16/5/23

Training arranged for SW
staff on outcomes/
collaborative
conversations 6 x 2 days
session with a further




9z abed

Ensure individuals don’t
become dependent on a
single member of staff

planning and person
centred reviews.

New staff being
introduced to
individuals

follow up day
Commenced 6% June .

Sessions arranged for
feedback to senior
managers

Mentors to be identified
and developed

We currently have 26 staff
and are recruiting two
peri-staff who cover
sickness and holiday
absences.

Action completed

22/06/2023Regularly
review and update
events/activities that are
going on in the
community

To establish a data base
of activities/ events/ that
is regularly reviewed and
updated

Community mapping
undertaken and shared
with staff, this will be
regularly updated.

This action is complete
and will transfer to normal
practice

Meetings have been
reinstated with People
First where progressing
the mapping work will be
discussed. Further
engagement has also
taking place with Valley
Daffodils and My Mates to
look at expanding
opportunities for
individuals.Action
completed




/¢ abed

Review length of sessions
at day bases

Analyse the feasibility and
any additional
requirements to expand
length of session ina day
base for those who have
the more complex needs

Option included in
scrutiny report

Opportunities have been
considered in response to
extending session
lengths.

Discussions with ACM
and staff teams to be
scheduled in order to
agree implementation
dates. Option included in
scrutiny report

Action completed

HICO model

Review pictorial
representation of the
model and consult on
alternative presentation
Establish a small task and
finish group to undertake
this work

Feedback to HICO had
suggested a circle rather
than a triangle to reflect

equity

Pictorial has been revised
to reflect a circle for
consideration by scrutiny
and cabinet

Action completed

Increase opportunities in
the community

Work with the third sector
and Caerphilly Cares to
influence  developments
in the community
including use of
volunteers

This is no normal practice

Quarterly meetings
reinstated with People
First/Person to Person

Engagement with other
third party providers
including Valley daffodils
and My Mates have also
begun. Action completed

Review mileage limits
whilst supporting

Focus remains on care
and support closer to
home, to enable people to

Meetings held on 30/01
with day services staff -
advised they can go out of

Action completed




gz obed

individuals in the
community

become part of their
communities and develop
their independence

county in areas that
border with other local
authorities.

Reminded staff there has
always been the
opportunity for individuals
to go to specific events
etc to meet their personal
outcomes - this remains
in place

Communication plan to
be developed in order to
keep all stakeholders up
to date with
implementation and
progress

Establish and agree clear
communication plan with
dates for updates for all
stakeholders

Ensure HICO report is in
an accessible format

Letter sent to all
stakeholders following
presentation at Scrutiny
Meetings held with day
service staff and social
workers to feedback on
presentation to scrutiny
committee

Meeting held with trade
unions

Response to report to be
presented to Scrutiny July
2023

Action completed

Action completed




Passionate about public sector

Appendix 2

Caerphilly Day Opportunities:
Implementing a future model

January 2023

Page 29



Passionate about public sector

Contents
Executive summary
1. Introduction & Background
Day opportunities in Caerphilly
An evolving approach to day opportunities
Day opportunities then and now
2. Reviewing Caerphilly’s approach
What we were asked to do
Stakeholder engagement
3. Policy context
Strategic context
4 What is happening elsewhere
Rhondda Cynon Taf
Blaenau Gwent
Monmouthshire
Pembrokeshire
Cardiff
5. What stakeholders told us
Feedback from individuals, staff and unpaid carers
Relationships and networks
Types of support available and logistics
6 Summary of our findings
7 Recommendations
8 Making it happen
The future and the process of getting there
Emerging Day Opportunities model
Underpinning principles for the model
Taking forward implementation

9 Acknowledgements

Page 30




Passionate aboutpublic sector h

1ICO

Executive summary

Caerphilly County Borough Council (the Council) provides a range of day opportunities for
older people and adults with learning disabilities. These services are discretionary and are
aimed at supporting the health and wellbeing of individuals, providing meaningful
opportunities in the community, promoting social networks and as a result provide respite
for families and carers.

Changes were made to day opportunities over the course of the Covid-19 pandemic, in
response to Welsh Government legislation and guidance. Over the course of the pandemic,
significant changes were made to the model which saw a shift from a focus on resource
centres to a more community-based approach. By early 2022 the majority of people
accessing day opportunities were receiving support in the community or in ‘vocational’
settings. Those with more intense or complex needs continue to receive support in resource
centres. Support is provided on a more individualised basis, and the number of sessions has
typically reduced to between one and three sessions a week. The number of people accessing
day opportunities is currently 294, whilst the budget remains largely unchanged.

Individuals and their carers were informed of the evolving changes to the model and were
asked about their future preferences. There were strong views from some parents/carers in
favour of a return to previous arrangements.

In response the Council committed to the appointment of an external organisation to co-
produce a model of day opportunities for the future. HICO were appointed in May 2022 with
a brief 'to engage equitably with stakeholders, explore best practice and advise the Council on
alternative delivery models, which would support people to achieve their outcomes, by
promoting independence and with an emphasis on active community presence and
involvement'.

Alongside a review of relevant policy, strategy and delivery models in other parts of Wales,
such as Social Services and Future Generations legislation, A Healthier Wales, the Learning
Disability Improving Lives Programme and Strategic Action Plan, regional population needs
and wellbeing assessments and the Caerphilly Corporate Plan, we also looked at how other
nearby councils are delivering day opportunities and how any change to provision is being
managed. The majority have either gone through or are going through a similar
transformation or are intending to modernise day opportunities in the future in line with a
community focussed approach.

Page 31



Passionate aboutpublic sector h.

1ICO

day opportunities, their carers, senior and operational staff in the Council, elected Members

We engaged with a range of stakeholders during our review, including

and representatives of partner agencies.

We spoke with approximately one fifth of individuals currently accessing day opportunities
and our conversations suggest a broad consensus on current arrangements and desired
future direction.

Several key messages emerged from our conversations. We found that some individuals are
clearly benefitting from the changes, and equally, some staff report improved job satisfaction
and motivation. Although largely accepting the case for change, a significant number of
parent/carers reported that specific adjustments and the process of change itself had had a
negative impact. Some carers reported that the reduction in time that their family member
received has resulted in increased pressure and stress on them and their families. Generally,
carers are keen to work with the Council and other stakeholders to further develop and
implement a new model for day opportunities.

Some individuals clearly benefit from more individualised support and there is evidence of
meaningful and valued relationships developing. Those accessing volunteering and work
opportunities are gaining valuable life skills and we saw a tangible sense of pride and
achievement among the individuals concerned. We also heard instances of social networks
developed within resource centres being lost. There is a potential risk of individuals
becoming dependent on specific members of staff, which could be addressed by introducing
shared rotas.

The perceived quality and range of community-based support may be compromised by the
perception of a lack of resources within given localities. Some staff told us they couldn’t
broaden the range of activities for the people they supported because facilities weren't
available or weren’t open at the time sessions take place. The Council is beginning to address
this by ensuring staff are better informed of what is available within different parts of the
County Borough, and complementary provision by third sector groups such as ‘My Mates'
further broadens potential. Developing further community opportunities to expand the range
available for individuals receiving community support needs further development. Increasing
travel limits and session duration, may assist with this.

Further work is needed to ensure that key partners such as the NHS, Advocacy organisations

are fully involved in the development of opportunities and provision of individualised
support.

Page 32



Passionate about public sector h.

1ICO

We make three recommendations for the future, which are as follows:

1. The Council should issue a broad but comprehensive statement of future intent to all
stakeholders acknowledging the findings of this exercise and setting out how a new
model (which is suggested on the next page), based on its adopted approach, will be
progressed in collaboration with stakeholders.

2. Where reviews have not yet been undertaken for individuals with highest level of need
and their carers, these should be prioritised.

3. medium-term plan for full implementation of the emerging Day Opportunities model
should be developed and implemented. This needs to be co-produced and actively
involve relevant stakeholders.

The emerging day opportunities model would deliver support across three categories,
depending on individual outcomes. The model is depicted opposite.

We suggest a series of short and medium-term actions to be taken collectively by
stakeholders to deliver the model over the coming period. A structured, co-productive
approach will be critical to this.

As arrangements are being put in place, work needs to being to reassess the needs of
individuals with the most intensive needs and adjust care accordingly. New flexibilities within
community-based support will also help ensure the best experience for individuals. A
comprehensive learning and development programme for staff should be developed and
implemented to shape the change.

Page 33



Passionate about public sector

The future

Individuals have needs met
primarily within resource centres
but can also go out into the
community during their sessions.
Individuals require specialist
support and equipment to ensure
their personal needs are met.

Individuals have outcomes met

Individuals can within local communities, with

move between bespoke support building on their
levels strengths. Provision is flexible and

depending on self-directed. Activities change as

their outcomes required to meet personal
outcomes.

Individuals’ needs are met
primarily by the third sector and
existing community provision. It

includes voluntary and paid
employment and help with the
development of life skills.

Page 34



Passionate about public sector h

1ICO

1. Introduction & Background

Day opportunities in Caerphilly

Caerphilly County Borough Council (the Council) provides a range of day opportunities for
older people and adults with learning disabilities. These services are discretionary and are
subject to an assessment process.

Day Opportunities aim to:

e Enable people to have access both to meaningful community activities and
appropriate supported environments

e Meet health and social care needs of individuals

e Provide respite for families and carers

e Support and maintain friendships and help people access community activities and
services

An evolving approachto day opportunities

The Council made changes to their approach during the pandemic. They issued a series of
letters to users and carers along with a survey asking for views on changes that had been
made and on future provision. The responses received were mainly from parents who
expressed a strong view for areturn to the previous arrangements.

In February 2022 users and carers were informed that the Council intended to implement a
new approach whereby it would ‘continue providing support through a blended system of
building-based care and within the community’. This letter also committed to the
appointment of an external organisation to co-produce a model of day opportunities for the
future.

Day opportunities then and now

A number of changes have been made to day opportunities during and coming out of the
Covid-19 pandemic. These are summarised below.
Pre-pandemic:

e The budget for day opportunities was £5,554,574

e 195 older people and 444 adults with learning disabilities were supported

e Support was provided predominantly in Resource Centres

e Many adults with learning disabilities had 4 or 5 full day sessions every week, with

Page 35



Passionate about public sector

hico

e Older people and adults with learning disabilities were supported separately

varied activities

e Community-based support was provided for individuals within their localities

e Adults with learning disabilities accessed sessional activities including vocational and
independent living skills training, gardening and horticulture, woodwork, craft and
ceramics and catering

During the pandemic:

e Resource centres closed in March 2021

e A verysmall number of the most vulnerable users continued to receive socially
distanced, community-based support

e Reduced, community-based and garden project sessions commenced in August 2020
for individuals prioritised by assessment care management

e Resource Centres reopened in June 2021 for users with high levels of need whose
outcomes could not be met in the community, with a reduction in the number and
duration of sessions

Post pandemic:

e The budget stands at £6,005,266

e 94 older people and 187 adults with learning disabilities are supported (it should be
noted that pre-Covid the Council was also supporting 104 Individuals who were living
in accommodation services, including residential and supported living)

e These individuals are no longer supported directly but are receiving help from their
house staff to access alternative daytime opportunities

e Hours of provision for individuals have been reduced compared with pre-pandemic
levels, with unintended negative impact on particular carers, notably those caring for
individuals with more intensive or complex needs

e Community-based sessions are provided on an individual basis

e Half day sessions are held jointly for older people and adults with complex physical
and learning disabilities

e Sessions provided in gardening, craft and ceramics, catering and the Islwyn Park
Coffee Shop are longer, with the aim to progress to employment of individuals

2. Reviewing Caerphilly’s approach

Page 36



Passionate about public sector

hico

What we were asked to do

HICO was appointed in May 2022 to review the Council’'s approach to day opportunities.
Our brief was:

‘to engage equitably with stakeholders, explore best practice and advise the Council
on alternative delivery models which would support people to achieve their outcomes,

by promoting independence and with an emphasis on active community presence and
involvement’

In the course of our work we:

e Undertook a desk top review of recent changes to day opportunities and current
arrangements in Caerphilly

e Considered the legislative and policy context in which day opportunities need to
operate

e Looked at day opportunities in other parts of Wales and further afield to identify
notable practice

We asked people to share their views on recent changes and what they wanted to see in the
future. People using services and carers were asked what was important to them, and the
kinds of day opportunities that would help them achieve their personal outcomes.

Other stakeholders were invited to share their perspectives on recent changes, their
perceived impact on individuals and how they had affected their own practice.

Page 37



Passionate about public sector h

Stakeholder engagement

We engaged with the following stakeholders:

e 57 people who use day services, through voluntary, informal conversations and a

written survey
e 43 carers, through facilitated group sessions and a written survey

e 40 day services staff, some whilst delivering sessions and others in group discussions

e The Cabinet Member for Social Services, Chair of the Social Services Scrutiny

Committee, senior and middle managers and the carers’ lead in facilitated group

discussions

e Members of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee at one of their formal meetings

e 16 social workers in online workshops

e Clinicians and managers from Aneurin Bevan University Health Board in an online

workshop
e Independent Supported Living providers in an online discussion
e Advocacy organisations in an online discussion

e Representatives from other local authorities via email and telephone conversations

1ICO

We offered all users of day opportunities, and their carers, the chance to engage with us. We
spoke with all those who said they wanted to, equating to approximately one fifth of current

individuals accessing day opportunities.

Participation was considerably higher among adults with learning disabilities and their carers

than it was among older people. Moving forward, ensuring the ongoing engagement of older

people will be crucial in ensuring that opportunities meet needs across the different
communities.

Whilst we cannot gauge the views of those who didn’t want to meet, views expressed by

those with whom we did engage suggest there is a broad consensus regarding current
arrangements and desired future direction.

Page 38

10



Passionate about public sector h

1ICO

3. Policy context

Strategic context

We reviewed material from across the UK and explored arrangements in several Welsh Local
Authority areas, to identify innovative practice in the provision of day opportunities and set
the changes being progressed in Caerphilly within a broader context.

In Wales there are various drivers for change aimed at supporting the transformation of
support. These include generic objectives within the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales)
and Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Acts and principles enshrined in A Healthier
Wales — the national plan for health and care, alongside more specific priorities set out in a
range of strategies for older people and people with learning disabilities. It is important that
the ongoing changes in Caerphilly align with the strategic objectives within these drivers.

These drivers are summarised below.

&

ééj Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act
£ -\

e Cohesive communities — ensuring people are active doing things that matter to them
e A more equal Wales — enabling all people to fulfil their potential
e A Healthier Wales - supporting the wellbeing of people and communities

Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales)

Care and support in Wales is changing o)
From RG2S,y wil e e sy c s 20

gl 2006,y
Vit gonwles areandsupport

e Voice and Control: putting the individual and their needs at the centre of their care
e Prevention and early intervention
e Wellbeing: supporting people to achieve their own wellbeing

A Healthier Wales

Page 39

11



Passionate about public sector h

1ICO

e Prevention and early intervention
e Independence

e Voice — empowering people with the information and support needed

e Personalised — health and care services which are tailored to individual needs

Learning Disability Improving Lives Programme and Strategic Action Plan

e Equal access to non-specialist services

e Right to career paths, employment opportunities and access to education

e Reducing loneliness and isolation

e Promoting recovery and new approaches to day centres, respite care and short breaks

Locked Out: Liberating Disabled People’s Lives and Rights in Wales

e Action to improve involvement of disabled people in decision-making

Page 40

12



Passionate about public sector

e Encourage innovation

e Ensure reasonable adjustments to ensure people have access to services in the

e same way as others

e Develop strategic and operational teams which include autistic people to inform
service development

Strategy for Older Peoplein Wales 2013-23 and Ageing Well in Wales Programme

e Access for older people to services that support their needs and promote
independence
e Developing age friendly and dementia supportive communities

National Dementia Action Plan 2018-22

e Rights of people with dementia to feel valued and live as independently as possible in
their communities

In addition, Commissioning Guidance for People With a Learning Disability issued by
the Welsh Local Government Association and National Commissioning Board in 2017
includes, among a range of elements of high-quality support, the following principles:

e Person-centred — ensuring that individuals receiving care and important people in
their lives identify what is important to them in achieving their ambitions and have
person-centred plans reflecting their views, goals and needs

e Voice, choice and control — assisting people to express their views and opinions and
ensuring these are listened to and acted upon in the care and support provided

Page 41

13



Pas

sionate about public sector

hico

participate in a wide range of activities at home and in the community

Active support — providing people with the right level of person

Progression and independence — supporting people to learn new skills, try new
experiences and take more personal responsibility

Consistent support and environments — using person-centred routines to maximise
understanding and familiarity for those receiving care and support

Positive risk-taking - balancing benefits with risks and developing plans that maximise
outcomes whilst minimising risk to the individual

Positive social interactions and support in developing relationships — maintaining and
enriching existing relationships and development of new ones

Personal care and health — maintaining the dignity of individuals and promoting good
health through care and support provided

Positive Behavioural Support — optimising outcomes and independence for those with
more complex needs

Similar drivers exist at regional and local level, and these should also be reflected in changes

being

made in Caerphilly. They are summarised below.

X

Y \e
’ .‘.(.yndm"hmm Gwent Fwyaf

Greater Gwent Health, Social Care & :
WellbeingPrnersip Gwent Population Needs Assessment 2022-27

Partneriagth Lles, lechyd a Gofal

The pandemic has disrupted routine for older people and people with learning
disabilities, affecting mental health and leading to isolation

Need for person-centred care for autistic people

Remaining independent and being able to go out are important for older people
Reducing loneliness and isolation for older people through early intervention is key
Improving life outcomes for people with dementia needs to remain a priority

Gt Pubc SevicesBowrd
Executive
summary

Gt Welk being s

Gwent Wellbeing Assessment 2022

Rich culture and heritage across the region supports wellbeing by bringing people
together; this has been strengthened through Covid

Page 42

14



Passionate about public sector

e Ageing population presents future challenges

Caerphilly Corporate Plan

e Protecting services for the most vulnerable

e Introducing new and more innovative ways of working through emerging technologies

e Engaging with communities to understand their needs and explore opportunities for
delivering services through collaboration

e Wellbeing objectives include supporting active, healthy lifestyles, helping people
identify ‘'what matters’ to them and providing support to reduce the need for higher
statutory interventions

Age Friendly Communities

e Multi-agency work in train to join World Health Organisation’s Age Friendly Cities and
Communities Network

Page 43

15



Passionate about public sector h.

1ICO

4 What is happening elsewhere

We found that many local authorities in Wales and across the UK have been reviewing and
changing their day opportunities both for people with learning disabilities and older people.

Some predate Covid-19, although clearly the pandemic has accelerated the pace of change in
some areas. Several of the changes we identified in other areas resonate with those being
taken forward in Caerphilly. These examples from neighbouring areas and others further
afield provide potential pointers in terms of how care needs to look and how change is best
implemented.

A more detailed summary of relevant practice across the UK has been prepared and
accompanies this report.

Rhondda Cynon Taf

In the wake of the pandemic, and building on a model of day opportunities that had been in
place for a number of years, the Council undertook an engagement exercise — My Day, My
Way' — involving people over 16 with a learning disability, parents and carers and staff in the
sector. People were invited to engage in a variety of ways between August and November
2021, letting the Council know what they would like to see in terms day and evening
opportunities. Working with Cwm Taf people First, a charity run by and for people with
learning disabilities, the Council ran surveys and engagement events asking them to say what
they liked about current services, where they thought there were gaps and what could be
done to improve support. They also partnered with the Innovate Trust to provide
opportunities for online engagement, including by those with intense communication needs,
and promote the change programme. A range of services, including education, health and
community development, also participated, enabling consideration of a wide range of
possibilities moving forward.

A task group was established to consider the findings of the engagement exercise. Resulting
actions, which are being progressed across the County Borough include:

e Reviewing assessments and care plans, moving away from support 5 days a week at
day centres where appropriate

e Looking for opportunities for users to pool Direct Payments to organise shared
activities

e A commitment to be driven by what people want rather than what's available in

Page 44

16



Passionate about public sector h.

1ICO

e A short-term offer for those in crisis, including support within day centres, over the

providing services
period of the transition

Blaenau Gwent

The Council operates a mixed model of day support, which comprises a day centre for people
with complex and multiple disabilities, a separate centre for those unable to access
community support, a community outreach service and vocational training delivered in
partnership with the third sector.

As in Caerphilly, Covid-19 led to significant changes in provision, as centres were forced to
close. This resulted in some individuals withdrawing from services or accessing options such
as Direct Payments. People living in Supported Accommodation now get enhanced support
from their staff team to access opportunities and achieve desired outcomes.

Moving forward, the Council is looking to respond to these changes and develop models of
care and support that:

e Are less centre based

e Provide a more person-centred approach — this is now possible even in centre settings
as the numbers of attendees has declined

e Are available to individuals outside traditional hours and in community settings

e Use technology to enable access to virtual activities online

e Support individuals in connecting with friendship groups, supported by partners such
as '‘My Mates’, which operates across the Gwent area

User and carer engagement has been key and will continue to be so as changes are
progressed. Individuals and their families were contacted throughout the period of the
pandemic and further intervention was arranged where distress and/ or risk of family
breakdown were identified. Whilst general support for changes has been evident through
user and carer surveys, people have been able to provide feedback on the forward model
being developed by the Council.

Monmouthshire

Monmouthshire County Council has an established model of daytime support for people with
learning disabilities known as ‘My Day. My Life". Implemented from 2014, the approach has
seen the Council move away from traditional buildings-based day services to more bespoke

Page 45

17



Passionate about public sector h.

1ICO

day and community settings. Key to the approach has been a highly personalised focus,

support tailored to meet the identified needs of individuals. Support is

working with individuals to review and develop their support within the broad principles of
the model, rather than enforcing a 'top down’ model of care. Ongoing engagement with
individuals and their carers has also been key. The Council has been careful to consider the
needs of individuals and carers and ensure that the support provided addresses both as far
as possible. Resulting changes have included a 'holiday’ respite scheme in place of a care
home-based model.

Coming out of the pandemic, during which remaining centres were temporarily closed,
further opportunities have been taken to increase community options, such as the ‘Growing
Spaces’ gardening and produce project delivered in partnership with the third sector.

The Council recently commissioned a review of the arrangements with a view to embedding
the approach and building further on the established model.

Pembrokeshire

To inform development of a new model of care and support for people with learning
disabilities, Pembrokeshire County Council partnered with a local third sector organisation,
People Too, in undertaking a comprehensive, co-productive engagement exercise with
individuals and their carers, social care staff, health, education and third sector colleagues

to identify how things could be improved. As a result, they identified the following themes
which people said were important to them:

e Greater flexibility and variety of opportunities

e Support that is close and accessible for individuals
e Personalised opportunities

e Fair access for all

In response the County Council is developing a Day Opportunities Gateway Service, whereby
a central bureau assesses individuals and matches them with activities of their choice that
deliver identified outcomes. More specialised services are provided at a central hub, with
other services delivered through local ‘spokes’ across the County. Although delayed by
Covid-19, the Council is now progressing full implementation of this model.

Cardiff

Page 46

18



Passionate about public sector h.

1ICO

In line with national policy and recognised good practice, Cardiff Cou
tiers of day opportunities for older people as follows:

e Providing information, advice and assistance to encourage independent access to
social activities and engagement opportunities for this with low level needs

e Providing those who need it with assistance to access community services and activity
through targeted intervention and support

e Supporting those with the most complex needs through high quality, specialist day
services

Principles underpinning Cardiff's approach include:

e A focus on the outcomes that individuals and carers want to achieve

e A reablement approach at the heart of service delivery
e A focus on prevention, wellbeing and delivery of services in convenient settings
e Flexibility to address projected rise in demand for care and support

Page 47

19



Passionate about public sector h

1ICO

5. What stakeholders told us

Feedbackfromindividuals, staffand unpaid carers

Some people are clearly benefitting from the change: Changes are benefitting some
individuals — we saw evidence of individuals flourishing, growing in confidence and some
acquiring new skills (e.g. in gardening, catering and craft). This can induce pride and a sense
of achievement for those involved.

Some staff report improved job satisfaction and motivation: Some staff report that their
jobs are more rewarding as a result; they are motivated by seeing the progress of individuals
leading to improved outcomes. Some employees are relishing the opportunity to work with
new client groups and develop new skills, for example horticulture and relaxation or music
therapy.

The process of change has affected some users negatively: Some unpaid carers and
NHS staff felt that the Pandemic and resulting changes in day services had had a negative
impact on some individuals and on their carers linked to a reduced service provision

A perception exists that community activities provided currently are not always varied
enough: We saw evidence of some individuals partaking in varied activities. Some unpaid
carers felt there was an over reliance within community-based support on visits to cafes,
which they perceived as resulting in a boredom for some individuals and reported weight
gain in some cases.

Some carers say they have been adversely affected: Day opportunities primary focus is
on positive outcomes for individuals.. For carers the unintended impact of reduced sessions
on them needs to be taken into account when transforming services. Carers have commented
it has impacted upon their ability to continue in their caring role. Some carers expressed fear
that this added pressure and the impact on their own health could in time lead to them not
being able to provide any care and their family member needing full time support.

Support for carers: Some carers felt their needs needed a greater focus. Some told us they
had not had carers’ assessments; some who had been assessed said they had not received
appropriate support as a result. The need to improve the range of support available for all
carers was also highlighted by social workers and senior managers.

Transport to and from opportunities: Some carers were unhappy with arrangements, for

Page 48

20



Passionate about public sector

hico

in some carers having to drop off and collect their loved ones, further reducing time away

transport, and did not understand the Council’s transport criteria. App
from their caring responsibilities.

Relationships and networks

Some individuals are clearly benefitting from more person-centred approaches: We
saw compelling evidence of more meaningful relationships being built as individual/staff
ratios have been reduced and one to one support becomes the norm. This bodes well for
improved personal outcomes. Individuals spoke affectionately about day service staff and
carers also praised the attentiveness of individual staff.

New relationships through volunteering and work opportunities are being formed:
New and developing volunteering and work opportunities are having a positive impact on
individuals with the capacity to benefit from them. An example is the excellent facility at the
Islwyn Coffee Shop. Wider social networks and relationships are also being developed which
includes My Mates, People First etc.

Dependency on individual members of staff needs to be avoided: Notwithstanding the
advantages of one-to-one support, we saw that some individuals using day services are
becoming dependent on individual staff members and feeling uncomfortable about being
supported by anyone else. In some cases individuals are currently missing out on support
when their member of staff takes leave or is unwell.

Lost social networks: We heard that individuals have lost valued social networks which they
enjoyed when attending larger sessions in resource centres. When asked if there was
anything they missed about centre-based support, many mentioned not seeing their friends;
we heard that this had resulted in a loss of confidence among some individuals.

Typesofsupportavailable and logistics

The shift from resource-based support has opened up new opportunities: Many of the
individuals we spoke with clearly welcome the opportunity to do new things in a variety of
settings which weren't available to them in resource centres. New opportunities include visits
to parks and shopping centres.

There is a mixed economy of provision within the County Borough: Council services are
complemented by some third sector support, e.g. People First, Person to Person and 'My
Mates’, which operates across the County Borough and provides support to individuals with a

Page 49

21



Passionate aboutpublic sector h.

1ICO

learning disability to develop and sustain friendships and more perso
are opportunities for greater alignment of these services in the future.

Changes introduced by the Council have encouraged new approaches by other
partners, leading to more varied opportunities for individuals: Partner agencies have
responded to the changes by diversifying their own provision. Advocacy organisations are
providing increased opportunities as gardening projects and supported living providers have
enhanced the support they provide within the community.

Restrictions on community-based support reduce options for individuals: The duration
of community sessions and limitations on travel may diminish the options available to those

receiving them. There is a perception individuals can only be taken to attractions outside the
County Borough on an exceptional basis. Some staff express frustration at not being able to

be more creative when planning community activities, due to these constraints.

Access to community activities is inequitable across the County Borough: The
perception of a lack of community activities available within certain localities, or facilities not
being accessible at the time when community sessions take place, was mentioned by some
staff.

This suggests that more needs to be done to ensure that staff are advised of available
opportunities and supported in accessing them. We noted the Council has begun to address
this by compiling community profiles for staff. Longer term, a community development
approach will be key in ensuring that place-based, low level provision increases across
Caerphilly’'s communities. Ensuring a person centred service is provided on evenings and
weekends going forward is also important.

Concern and lack of clarity over some of the changes and their perceived impact on
individuals: Some staff reported not being able to adequately explain changes to individuals
and their carers and feeling that they could not always match individuals with the care and
support they feel would be beneficial under the new arrangements.

There is alack of evidence of joint planning or commissioning between the NHS and
the Council in relation to day opportunities: The needs of individuals who use day
opportunities vary significantly from moderate to those with profound and multiple learning
and physical disabilities. There are clear opportunities for more effective joint working
between the NHS and the Council in supporting those with more profound needs. This needs

Page 50

22



Passionate about public sector

to start at the level of strategic planning and feed down into integrates hl

funding for the delivery of seamless support for individuals. Regional and local partnership
arrangements provide appropriate forums for this to be taken forward. The duty for better
planning sits with both the Health Board and the Council.

Page 51

23



Passionate about public sector h

1ICO

6 Summary of our findings

There is acceptance amongst many stakeholders of the need to modernise day opportunities
and that a return to pre-pandemic arrangements is neither feasible nor desirable.
Stakeholders recognise the potential benefits of a more person-centred approach, and some
have become less reticent as they see benefits. They appreciate the financial constraints in
which the Council is operating and agree that opportunities provided need to be
proportionate and affordable.

The new arrangements are in their infancy and are not yet delivering benefits some carers
and staff associate with resource centres, such as a greater range of activities and more
robust social networks.

Whilst day opportunities need to be focused on delivering positive outcomes for individuals
accessing those opportunities, the impact on carers, in particular those caring for people with
more intensive or complex needs, needs to be taken into account and their needs addressed
as a priority alongside implementation of any new model.

Communication around the rationale for and implementation of changes to date, including
feedback on previous consultation and engagement and later decisions on support for
individuals, is seen as inconsistent. This has resulted in a lack of buy-in and distrust from
some carers and other stakeholders.

There remains a need to ensure internal staff (including those working in day opportunities
and social workers) and partners such as the NHS are fully appraised of the rationale for
change and details of the new arrangements.

There is evidence that, by building on the changes that have been made and by working
collaboratively to address the perceived and actual challenges associated with new model, it
can be further developed to deliver genuinely positive outcomes for people accessing those
opportunities. The model depicted later in the report attempts to summarise the shared
ambitions (including the council) of all stakeholders. The subsequent challenge will be in the

implementation.

Page 52

24



Passionate about public sector h.

1ICO

7 Recommendations

1. The Council should issue a broad but comprehensive statement of future intent to all
stakeholders acknowledging the findings of this exercise and setting out how a new
model (which is suggested on the next page), based on its adopted approach, will be
progressed in collaboration with stakeholders and following co-production principles.

2. If not already undertaken, reviews should be undertaken for individuals and carers with
highest level of need and most impacted by the changes, and new flexibilities introduced
to community support, to help restore confidence and address any gaps in provision.

3. A medium-term plan for full implementation of the emerging Day Opportunities model
should be developed and implemented. This needs to be co-produced and actively
involve all relevant stakeholders and be supported by comprehensive learning and
development programme for staff.

4. The needs of all unpaid carers should be recognised and alternative options for delivery
of support for unpaid carers needs to be developed.

Page 53

25



Passionate about public sector

8 Making it happen

Thefutureandthe process of getting there

hico

Based on our discussions with stakeholders, this graphic summarises the day opportunities
offer now, the shared ambition for the future and the enablers they felt would take the

current model forward and lead to the shared ambition being realised. As the change

happens, support for those in most need will need to be reviewed and adjusted as necessary.

W Pre
Covid

offer

»

A genuinely co-produced approach to
implementation - working with individuals.
carers and other stakeholders on an
ongoing and inclusive basis

Understanding and responding to the
reality that some communities will have
stronger assets/opportunities than others

Recognising this is a service for a group
that has diverse needs, accommodating
different levels and intensities of offer

Providing learning and development for
Social Workers and Day Opportunities staff
to a support a responsive approach and

asset-based community development

Emerging Day Opportunities model

centred
support

Qutcome
focus

Developing
individuals®
life skills and
independence

Further
development
and use of
community
assets

Confidence
and skills to

help staff
deliver

We are proposing the following model building on current arrangements and taking the

expressed views of stakeholders fully into account. We explored a model incorporating three

categories of support provided depending on individual need. The following graphic depicts

the envisaged model.

Page 54

26



Passionate about public sector

Individuals have needs met
primarily within resource centres
but can also go out into the
community during their sessions.
Individuals require specialist
support and equipment to ensure
their personal needs are met.

Individuals have outcomes met

Individuals can within local communities, with

move between bespoke support building on their
levels strengths. Provision is flexible and

depending on self-directed. Activities change as

their outcomes required to meet personal
outcomes.

Individuals’ needs are met
primarily by the third sector and
existing community provision. It

includes voluntary and paid
employment and help with the
development of life skills.

Underpinning principles for the model

Underpinning principles for the recommended model are suggested as follows:
e Support is allocated to individuals by matching the offer with identified individual
needs and outcomes, through a Day Opportunities "hub’ This includes Direct Payments
where appropriate

e Day opportunities are outcome focussed and provided 7 days

e Friendship groups are developed, maintained and supported so that they flourish and
can continue outside day opportunities support

e Existing resources in the community are optimised, and opportunities sought to work
with partners in growing more opportunities across the County Borough

e Continued learning is provided, which may include the use of technology to deliver
and support activities

e There is a clear role for the NHS in integrated planning, commissioning, funding and
delivery of day opportunities

Takingforward implementation

Page 55

27



Passionate about public sector h

(@

Full delivery of the model will require short term actions followed by d
delivery of a medium-term implementation plan, co-produced with stakeholders.
Recommended actions are set out below.

MEDIUM TERM ACTIONS
SHORT TERM ACTIONS
. Review and refine delivery model
1. Reassess /review individuals . Develop joint delivery with
with the most intense levels of health
need and their carers . Review outcomes for individuals
2. Ensure appropriate levels of and refine model
support are in place for both

SHORT TERM ACTIONS MEDIUM TERM ACTIONS

. Lift [estrictions on mileage and duration of community . Place-based commissioning to
sessions "
Increase sessions or those st nneed T N

ocate more than one staff member to individuals e T Y s

receiving community-based support and implement a rota
system

. Synchronise community sessions to enable individuals to
meet with friends and share community activities MEDIUM TERM ACTIONS

. Review activity plans for individuals and optimise
community-based options . Develop plans for those
transitioning from Children's
services

. Place-based commissioning to
develop community resources

el .
Day Opportunities Hub in place to match individuals to support
opportunities

MEDIUM TERM ACTION
Develop alternative support for unpaid carers

Page 56

28



Passionate about public sector

hico

9 Acknowledgements

We would like to thank all those who contributed to our review. We are especially indebted
to individuals using day opportunities, carers and families and staff who allowed us to have
conversations in care settings and helped ensure all those who wanted to contribute were
able to do so in a meaningful way. We also valued regular engagement with senior managers
and elected members within the Council and colleagues from several partner agencies.

We are grateful for everyone's time and openness and their positive constructive approach to

our discussions.
This gives us confidence that our findings and recommendations reflect what people told us
about the positive elements of current arrangements and areas where change is still needed.

We believe this process of engagement, which has been pivotal to our work, provides a
robust foundation for the co-productive approach to future development that underpins our

recommendations.

W\

Martyn Hugh Irwin Kathy Graham Steve Inett
Palfreman

-

Page 57

29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Appendix 3 PS

Carers’ ¢
Week
2023

Do you look after or help
to look after someone?

This could be a family
member, friend or a child
with disabilities.

Please contact us on:

01443 864658
01495 233234 ©
01495 233218

email: carers@caerphilly.gov.uk
to let us know if you are coming
along and for further information ‘
about the event. Page



HUGHESJ
Highlight


Taflen ®
Wythnos
Gofalwyr

2023

Ydych chi'n gofalu am rywun
neu’n helpu gofalu am rywun?

Gallai fod yn aelod or
teulu, ffrind neu blentyn
ag anableddau.

Cysylltwch a ni ar:

01443 864658 ©
01495 233234
01495 233218

ebost: carers@caerphilly.gov.uk
i gadarnhau y byddwch chin
bresennol ac i gael rhagor o Page
wybodaeth am y digwyddiad.



Please come and join us for
Carers’ Week 2023 at the
following events / venues.

A
CAERPHILLY

YNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
5 4

Saturday 3rd June 2023, 1pm - 4:30pm

Spa day - with afternoon tea served afterwards at Bryn Meadows Golf & Spa
(8 carers only). Please contact us for more details and to request a place.

Monday 5th June 2023, 11am - 12:30pm

Drop in and meet the team at Murray’s Bargoed and have a breakfast roll
and hot drink. Please let us know if you would like to come.

Tuesday 6th June 2023, 2 - 4pm

Afternoon walk around Morgan Jones Park, Caerphilly - Come and meet with
the team and enjoy a cake and hot drink to reward yourself for your walk!

Thursday 8th June 2023, 12 - 1:30pm

Risca Carers’ Group - A chance to meet with us if you live in the Risca area
and enjoy a cake and hot drink.

Friday 9th June 2023, 10am - 3pm

Information day for carers. Come and speak to various organisations
at Newbridge Memo - Refreshments provided.

Sunday 11th June

2023, 12 - 6pm
“Care”philly Fest at Blackwood RFC

-Join the team for a family day WI g
bands, food stalls,a magician, face pamting,
bouncy castle, photo booth and more!




Ymunwch a ni ar gyfer Wythnos
Gofalwyr 2023 yn y digwyddiadau
/ lleoliadau canlynol.

4} ERPHILLY

YNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

‘CAERFFILI

Dydd Sadwrn 3 Mehefin 2023, 1pm - 4:30pm

Diwrnod sba - wedyn bydd te prynhawn yn cael ei weini. (8 o ofalwyr yn
unig). Cysylltwch a ni i gael rhagor o fanylion ac i drefnu le.

Dydd Llun 5§ Mehefin 2023, 11am - 12:30pm

Galwch heibio a chwrdd a'r tim yn Murray’s Bargod, a chael rhol frecwast
a diod boeth. Os hoffech chi ddod, rhowch wybod.

Dydd Mawrth 6 Mehefin 2023, 2 - 4pm

Taith gerdded prynhawn o amgylch Parc Morgan Jones, Caerffili. Dewch i
gwrdd a' tim a mwynhau cacen a diod boeth fel gwobr am eich taith gerdded!

Dydd lau 8 Mehefin 2023, 12 - 1:30pm

Grwp Gofalwyr Rhisga - Cyfle i gwrdd a ni os ydych chi'n byw yn ardal
Rhisga a mwynhau cacen a diod boeth.

Dydd Gwener 9 Mehefin 2023, 10am - 3pm

Diwrnod gwybodaeth i ofalwyr. Dewch i siarad ag amrywiol sefydliadau
yn Neuadd Goffa Trecelyn. Bydd lluniaeth yn cael ei darparu.

Dydd Sul 11 Mehefin

2023, 12 - 6pm

Gwyl Car-ffili yng Nghlwb Rygbi Coed Duon.

- Ymunwch a' tim am ddiwrnod |r|§§ yf
bandiau byw, stondinau bwyd, consuriwt, paentio
wynebau, castell neidio, bwth tynnu lluniau a mwy!




Agenda Iltem 6

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 26™ JULY 2023

SUBJECT: CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL SPEED LIMITS

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER 2023

REPORTBY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMY AND

ENVIRONMENT

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek Cabinet approval to implement the Caerphilly County Borough Council
Speed Limits Traffic Regulation Order 2023 as amended.

SUMMARY

In July 2022 the Welsh Government (WG) passed new legislation that will change the
default speed limit on restricted roads in Wales from 30mph to 20mph. The Council

has proposed to retain 30mph speed limits on a number of roads.

In addition to the above, it was also proposed to amend the existing speed limits to
40mph at four locations to improve road safety.

The report details recommendations for members to consider.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approves the making of the Caerphilly County Borough Council Speed
Limits Traffic Regulation Order 2023 as amended.

That Cabinet approves additional signage and road markings as detailed within the
report.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The proposed speed limit changes have been developed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s (WG’s) guidance and support WG’s proposed 20mph default speed limit

initiative. Details of the Council’s rationale for each location are provided in Appendix
1.

Page 63



51

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

THE REPORT

In July 2022 the Welsh Government (WG) passed new legislation that will change the
default speed limit on restricted roads in Wales from 30mph to 20mph. A restricted
road is defined by Section 82 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act (RTRA) 1984 as ‘a
road with a system of street lighting furnished by means of lamps placed not more
than 200 yards apart.’

The new national 20mph speed limit for restricted roads will come into effect on 17t
September 2023 and all 22 Welsh local authorities are committed to delivering the
transition of their speed limits on or as close to the prescribed date as practicable.

WG have developed an ‘Exceptions Criteria’ to ensure that local authorities adopt a
consistent approach when introducing 30mph Exceptions across Wales. This
approach has been applied when considering 30mph speed limits on roads within
Caerphilly County Borough where the lower 20mph speed limit is not deemed
appropriate.

Welsh Government’s ‘Setting Exceptions to the 20mph Default Speed Limit for
Restricted Roads’ is provided in Appendix 2. This guidance is intended for local
interpretation by highway authorities to make evidence-based decisions on setting
exceptions to the default speed limit of 20mph on restricted roads in Wales. It
provides a methodology to ensure a consistent approach to Exceptions across Wales
is taken; yet allowing for local factors and circumstances to be taken into account. It
was used as a basis to demonstrate reasoning for making any Exception to enable
the speed limit to remain at 30mph.

The guidance states that decisions on Exceptions should not be influenced by
existing traffic speeds and that highway authorities continue to have the flexibility to
set local speed limits that are right for individual roads, reflecting local needs and
considerations. However, where their decision deviates from this guidance highway
authorities should have a clear and reasoned case.

Exceptions have been applied across the Borough in accordance with this guidance.
Particular regard has been given to those roads that serve part of the strategic
highway network (‘A” and ‘B’ class roads) that meet the Exceptions Criteria and,
where deemed appropriate, it is recommended that these routes remain at 30mph. A
table detailing the location of the proposed 30mph speed limit Exceptions and the
Council’s rationale is provided in Appendix 1. It should be noted that any road
currently subject to a 30mph speed limit not highlighted as an ‘Exception’, will
become 20mph by default on 17" September 2023.

In light of the concerns raised during the consultation exercise, it is recommended
that additional speed management measures in the form of gateway treatments
(coloured surfacing, road markings and signs on yellow backing boards) and speed
limit repeater road marking roundels be provided at various locations. It is considered
that these additional measures will help to raise drivers’ awareness of the speed limit
and have a positive impact on vehicle speeds.

WG acknowledge that it may take some time for the new default speed limit to ‘bed
in” and for drivers to become accustomed to the changes throughout Wales. WG are
in the process of establishing a working group/task and finish group to develop a
common approach to address speeding concerns when the legislation comes into
force.

Page 64



5.9

5.10

6.1

7.1

8.1

These are some of the issues that they intend to consider:

. How to manage the public’s expectation about speeding concerns.

o What will GoSafe/Police/FRS do in terms of engagement, education and
enforcement.

o How can Highway Authorities request engagement/education/enforcement by
GoSafe.

o How can ‘softer’ engineering measures, like removing the centre line, reducing
carriageway width, using planters and parking lots be used as compared to
more traditional traffic calming.

. How can this be linked to funding for bus priority measures and active travel.

In view of this, it is recommended that the Council does not undertake any speed
surveys on roads that will be subject to the new default speed limit for a period of at
least six months following implementation. During this period, any concerns relating
to non-compliance should be directed to GoSafe/Gwent Police.

In addition to the Exceptions identified above, it is also recommended that the speed
limits be amended to improve road safety at the following locations:

A469 Bargoed to Brithdir — New 40mph speed limit between the existing 40mph
speed limits at Factory Road, Bargoed and Brithdir.

A4048 North of Hollybush — Reduction in length of existing 30mph speed limit and
introduction of a new 40mph speed limit buffer.

B4254 Gelligaer Road (between Gelligaer and Nelson) — New 40mph speed limit
between the existing 30mph speed limit at Gelligaer and the national speed limit to
the east of the Reed Beds.

AA472 Nelson to Tredomen — New 40mph speed limit between Nelson roundabout
(B4255 Caerphilly Road junction) and the existing 30mph speed limit at Tredomen.

ASSUMPTIONS

The assumption is that setting realistic speed limits will encourage a greater level of
compliance in all areas and have a positive impact on road safety.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

A full Integrated Impact Assessment has not been undertaken on this report however,
the implementation of all traffic regulation orders is undertaken following the
publication of the proper notices, allowing for objections to be made by local
residents. Any impacts identified on individuals or groups will be considered in the
final decision.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications for the authority as all costs associated with the
default 20mph speed limit changes and Exceptions are being funded by Welsh
Government. The total costis circa£1.1 Million.

Page 65



9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The legal and consultation processes and associated signage design works have
been managed by existing traffic management staff, but the amount of work involved
within the WG imposed timescale has been very challenging.

CONSULTATIONS

The proposals were consulted upon in accordance with the Councils approved
procedure.

e A Member seminar was held on 15" December 2022 during which details of the
proposed Exceptions were discussed. Details of the provisional Exceptions
Map were sentto all Councillors via email on 9" December 2022 for their initial
comment. No objections were received.

e All Councillors including Councillor Julian Simmonds (former Cabinet Member
for Infrastructure) were contacted by email on 19" April 2023. Details of the
comments/objections that have been received from Members and Officers’
responses are provided in Appendix 3.

e  Statutory Consultees including Town and Community Councils, the Chief
Constable of Gwent Police, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, Welsh
Ambulance Services NHS Trust, the Road Haulage Association, Freight
Transport Association and Green Lane Association were contacted by email on
19t April 2023. All Councillors including the Cabinet Member were sent a copy
of the email. Details of the comments/objections received, and Officers’
responses are provided in Appendix 3.

e A Statutory Consultation email was sentto all Public Transport companies that
operate in the Caerphilly County Borough area on 27" April 2023. No
comments were received.

A Notice detailing the above proposals was advertised for public consultation on
25" May 2023. A copy of the proposals, a statement of the Council’s reasons for
making the Order and Maps showing the affected lengths of road were placed on
deposit with CCBC Legal section for public scrutiny following advertising of the
Notice in the press. The Notice was advertised at the following locations for public
scrutiny.

o Notice advertised in the Western Mail newspaper.

o Approximately 350 Notices erected on lighting columns along the affected
lengths of road.

° Statutory Consultees, local ward members and Cabinet Member were sent
copy of the Notice via email.

o A copy of the Notice, Order, Plans and Statements of Reasons and General
Effect were placed on the Council’s website and links were posted on social
media.

o Plans showing the extent of the proposed 30mph Exceptions were published
on DataMapWales.

Following the public notice exercise, 23 objections were received relating to the

Page 66



10.4

104.1

10.4.2

10.4.3

10.4.4

10.5

10.6

proposed Exceptions, and 3 objections were received relating to the proposed
40mph speed limits. Details of the objections received, and Officers’ responses are
detailed in Appendix 4. In addition, 16 letters/emails of concern were received in
relation to the 20mph default speed limit changes for restricted roads. As these
relate to WG’s legislative changes and not the Council’s traffic regulation order, the
comments have not been included within this report.

As a result of the objections received, following further investigation, it is
recommended that the Order be made with the following amendments:

A468 Newport Road, Trethomas from the western side of Clos Pantglas to the
existing 30mph signs to the west of the village. In light of the concerns raised, it
is recommended that the proposed 30mph Exception be reduced in length by
approximately 60m at its Eastern end. This minor amendment to the extent of the
Exception will help to improve safety on the approach to the village.

B4254 Highfields Way from the roundabout to the west of the junction with
Montclaire Avenue. In order to improve safety, it is recommended that the
proposed 30mph Exception be amended to exclude the roundabout and the
approach roads. The default 20mph will therefore apply to the roundabout and the
following sections of road:

¢ Bryn Road — from the roundabout to a point approximately 25m north.
e Oak Terrace Bypass — from the roundabout to a point approximately 25m south.

e Highfields Way - from the roundabout to a point approximately 140m east (to
cover the access road to Tesco Express and Parc Plas).

A472 Caerphilly Road from west of its junction with Maes-y-coed Terrace to
west of its junction with Station Road (including Tredomen roundabout). In
light of concerns raised, further investigation has concluded that, due to significant
traffic flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and concerns about difficulty
for drivers turning in and out of Brynmynach Avenue, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-
Coed Terrace, it is recommended that the 30mph Exception be removed from the
Order. This section of road will therefore default to 20mph.

AA472 from east of Shappelles access to Ystrad Mynach Roundabout
(including the roundabout). In light of concerns raised, further investigation has
concluded that, due to significant traffic flows and concerns regarding visibility for
pedestrians and cyclists crossing the A469, it is recommended that the 30mph
Exception be removed from the Order. This short section of road will therefore
default to 20mph.

The tables shown in Appendices 3 and 4 were sent to Clir Nigel George, Cabinet
Member for Infrastructure, Property and Corporate Services, as well as each of the
ward members for which comments/objections had been received on 29" June
2023 and they were asked to consider the recommendations made by officers.

Details of the response received along with officers’ responses are provided below.

e  Councillor Nigel Dix (Blackwood Ward), 29/6/2023 - Are the proposed 20mph

residential, as 20mph on A and B roads would be unenforceable and negatively
affect business?

Page 67



11.

111

Officer response - As outlined above, details of the proposed 30mph Exceptions
have previously been sent to councillors for their comment. All restricted roads
have been assessed in accordance with the Welsh Government’s guidance. The
majority of the 20mph speed limits will apply to residential roads, however some
sections of the ‘A’ and ‘B’ class roads within the borough will be reduced to
20mph where Welsh Government’s Exception criteria is not met.

e  Councillor Tudor Davies (Aberbargoed and Bargoed Ward), 29/6/2023 -
Considering the concerns we have raised about the potential safety of the Angel
Way/Gilfach Street junction, please clarify if the 20 miles limit would apply to this
section of the highway?

Officer response - The junction of Angel Way and Gilfach Street will be subject to
the new default 20mph speed limit.

e  Councillor Walter Williams (Argoed Ward), 30/6/2023 - Thank you for the email
on 30 mph exceptions. Would it be ok to forward this email to the two residents
email address | have who emailed me regarding their objections?

Officer response — The information is for councillors’ review and comment at this
stage. Residents who formally responded to the public notice will receive a copy
of the final report after it has been approved by the Council’s Cabinet.

e  Councillor Colin Mann (Llanbradach Ward), 7/7/2023 - | am happy with the
Coedybrain Road, Llanbradach proposal.

Officer response — The comments are welcomed.

e  Councillor Chris Morgan (Machen and Rudry), 5/7/2023 — | am happy with the
recommendations of the Highways Department.

Officer response — The comments are welcomed.

e  Councillor Amanda McConnell (Machen and Rudry), 5/7/2023 — Iim in agreement
with the recommendations of the Highways Department.

Officer response — The comments are welcomed.

STATUTORY POWER

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.
Author: Dean Smith, Principal Engineer

Consultees: Councillor Tudor Davies Chair Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny
Committee
Councillor Adrian Hussey Vice Chair Environment and Sustainability
Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Nigel George, Cabinet Member for Infrastructure, Property
and Corporate Services
All Councillors
Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive Officer

Page 68



Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director Economy and Environment
Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Clive Campbell, Transportation Engineering Manager

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal and Monitoring Officer

Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer — Equalities and Welsh

Language

Background Papers:

None

Appendices:

Appendix 1
Appendix 2

Appendix 3
Appendix 4

Rationale for 30mph Exceptions
Welsh Government’s ‘Setting Exceptions to the 20mph Default Speed Limit

for Restricted Roads’
Councillor and Statutory Consultation Responses

Objections and Comments for 30mph Exceptions

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



Appendix 1 - Rationale for 30mph Exceptions

NB Camera surveys were undertaken during school termtime in April and May 2023. Pedestrian and cycle flows are based on the average hourly
flow over the 12-hour survey period (7:00am — 7:00pm).

Ward Road Rationale
Aberbargoed Angel Way Link Road from ¢ Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
and Bargoed Commercial Street, e No frontage development.

Aberbargoed to Morrisons traffic | ¢ Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

signals (including roundabout  No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

and A469 approach arms) e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be

significant.

Aberbargoed
and Bargoed

T/ obed

Angel Way Link Road between
Aberbargoed roundabout and
Britannia roundabout (including
both roundabouts)

Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
No frontage development.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Crossingroad — 1.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.1 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

Aberbargoed
and Bargoed
Cefn Fforest
and Pengam

A4049 Pengam Road from
Britannia roundabout to south of
Britannia Terrace

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Very limited frontage development.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Pedestrian crossing assessment recently carried out. Site does not have sufficient numbers of
pedestrians crossing the road to satisfy our criteria.

Warning signs to be installed to raise drivers’ awareness of playground.

Argoed

A4048 Hollybush

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Frontage development mainly limited to one side of the road.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Northern end




Crossing road — 2.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrian, 1.6 cycles per hour

Southern end
Crossing road — 2.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.4 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Argoed

¢/ abed

A4048 Argoed

‘A class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Frontage development mainly limited to one side of the road.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Northern end
Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.3 pedestrians, 1.9 cycles per hour

Near Village Hall
Crossing road — 0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road —no pedestrian data, 0.2 cycles per hour

Southern end
Crossing road — 1.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3 pedestrians, 1.8 cycles per hour

Bedwas and
Trethomas
Machen and
Rudry

A468 Newport Road, Trethomas
from east of its junction with
Ridgeway to a point west of the
fuel station

‘A class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Limited frontage development on one side only.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Pedestrian refuge is provided to aid crossing manoeuvres.

Provides a 30mph buffer zone between the 40mph speed limit section and the 20mph speed limit
within the village.

¢ Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 1 cycle per hour
Travelling along road — 11.2 pedestrians, 3.5 cycles per hour




Bedwas and

A468 Newport Road, Trethomas |e ‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Trethomas from the western side of Clos e Limited frontage development on one side only.
Pantglas to the existing 30mph  |e  Not within 200m walk of any hospital.
signs to the west of the village |4  \Within 100m walk of the Workman'’s Hall however this is set back from this road and are accessed
from Old Newport Road.
e Signalised pedestrian crossing is provided to aid crossing manoeuvres.
e Provides a 30mph buffer zone between the 40mph speed limit section and the 20mph speed limit
within the village.
e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.
Blackwood B4254 Highfields Way from the |e ‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
roundabout to the west of the e No frontage development.
junction with Montclaire Avenue |e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e Pedestrian refuge island is provided at the roundabout at the western end to aid crossing
manoeuvres.
U Highfields Way near St Andrews Drive junction
g Crossingroad — 1.2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
D Travelling along road — 9.4 pedestrians, 0.4 cycles per hour
\l
w

Highfields Way near Ash Grove junction
Crossing road — 6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 13.4 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Bryn Rd arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 6.9 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.6 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per hour

Highfields Way arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 7 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.7 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour

Oak Terrace BP arm of roundabout
Crossingroad — 6.1 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 12.3 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

Heol y Dderwen arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 4.6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour




Travelling along road — 26.3 pedestrians, 1 cycle per hour

Pontllanfraith

v/ abed

Signals and the Penmaen Road
Roundabout (including the
B4251 Penmaen Road
approach)

Blackwood B4251 High Street from the e ‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Chartist Bridge roundabout to a | e No frontage development.
point north of the accessroadto | ¢ Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
St Margaret's Church e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
¢ Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.
Crossing road — 0.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 11.1 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour
Blackwood B4254 Southern Cross Valley ‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Penmaen Link (between Libanus traffic Limited frontage development.

Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Pedestrian facilities are present within the traffic signals at the Libanus Road junction and
pedestrian refuge islands are provided at the eastern end to aid crossing manoeuvres.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Near Maes-yr-Afon junction
Crossing road — 10.8 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.8 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Cefn Fforest
and Pengam
Blackwood

Bryn Road from the Highfields
Way Roundabout to its junction
with Twyn Gardens

Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
Bryn Road has limited frontage development.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Pedestrian refuge island is provided at the roundabout at the western end to aid crossing
manoeuvres.

Bryn Rd arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 6.9 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.6 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per hour

Highfields Way arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 7 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.7 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour




Oak Terrace BP arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 6.1 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 12.3 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

Heol y Dderwen arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 4.6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 26.3 pedestrians, 1 cycles per hour

Cefn Fforest
and Pengam

G, abed

A4049 from south of Gellihaf
Road junction to a point south of
Fairview signals

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Very limited frontage development.

Not within 200m walk of any community centre, hospital.

A schoolis accessed from this section of road, however, the school building is in excess of 100m
walk from the road.

A signalised pedestrian crossingis provided and pedestrian facilities are also present within the
traffic signals at the Oak Terrace bypass junction to aid crossing manoeuvres. Pedestrian refuge
islands are also provided near the school entrance.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

South of Ysgol Cwm Rhymni entrance
Crossing road — 0.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.6 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour

North of Ysgol Cwm Rhymni entrance
Crossing road — 5.6 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 15.8 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

Near Plas Road junction
Crossing road — 1.3 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 6.8 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour

Cefn Fforest
and Pengam

B4254 from a point approx.
100m east of the school side
gate to the Highfields Way
roundabout

‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

No frontage development.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Pedestrian refuge island is provided at the roundabout at the eastern end to aid crossing
manoeuvres.




9,/ abed

End of southern footway
Crossing road — 2.3 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 6.2 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

Near access road to property on northern side
Crossing road — 1.7 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour

Bryn Rd arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 6.9 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.6 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per hour

Highfields Way arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 7 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.7 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour

Oak Terrace BP arm of roundabout
Crossingroad — 6.1 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 12.3 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

Heol y Dderwen arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 4.6 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 26.3 pedestrians, 1 cycle per hour

Crosskeys

B4591 Risca Road from the
A467 to the junction with High
Street

‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

No frontage development.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

7.5 tonnes maximum weight limit (except for access).

Segregated footway provision on one side only with no access to the carriageway for pedestrians
Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Crumlin

B4251 Kendon Road from a
point east of Ty Brachty Terrace
playground to its junction with
Woodview Terrace

‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Limited frontage development on one side only.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 100m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.




Crossing road — 0.2 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.3 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Crumlin B4251 Kendon Road from east | e
of Main Street junction to the e No frontage development on one side only.
A467 e No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
¢ Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e Segregated alternative route exists for pedestrians.
¢ Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.
Crossing road — 1.9 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.4 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour
Crumlin A467 from the junction with e ‘A’ classroad that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Crumlin Road to a point south of [e Limited frontage development on one side only.
the fuel station e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
Y e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
g e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
0] significant.
\l
Srumlin A472 Hafodyrynys Road from e ‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
the A467 junction to a point east | ¢ Limited frontage development on one side only.
of the newly demolished e Low numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.
properties e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
¢ Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e Pedestrian refuges are provided to aid crossing manoeuvres.
¢ Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered

significant.

Lawn Terrace junction
Crossing road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour

East of Lawn Terrace junction
Crossing road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour

Near junction with Gladstone Road




Crossing road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

East of recently demolished properties
Crossingroad — 0.1 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.6 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour

Crumlin

A472 Hafodyrynys Road from
west of the Swiffryd junction to a
point east of the former fuel
station.

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Limited frontage development.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

Within 100m walk of Community Centre however a signalised pedestrian crossing facility is provided
to aid crossing manoeuvres.

e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Common road between the

Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.

point approximately 150m west
of the Fiwrwm Road junction to
the existing 30mph signs to the
west of the village

Darran Valley o
cattle grid at the northern end of |e No frontage development.
Pentwyn Village to the cattle e No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
T grid south of Fochriw. e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
g e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
0] significant.
~l
Q@anbradach Coed-y-Brain Road from Coed- | ¢ Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
y-Brain roundabout for approx. e No frontage development.
250metres in a northerly  No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
direction. e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e Pedestrian refuge is provided to aid crossing manoeuvres.
e [Footway present on one side only.
¢ Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.
Crossing road — 5.6 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — O pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour
Machen and A468 Newport Road and ‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Rudry Wesley Hill, Machen from a Limited frontage development on one side only.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.




¢ Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

Crossing road — 0.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.9 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

‘A class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Pontllanfraith

Roundabout to a point east of
the new housing development

Maesycwmmer | A472 from east of Shappelles .
access to Ystrad Mynach e No frontage development.
Roundabout (including the e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
roundabout)  Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.
Crossing road — 0.6 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.8 pedestrians, 1.9 cycles per hour
Maesycwmmer | A472 from Ystrad Mynach e ‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Roundabout to east of Gellideg |e Frontage development on one side of the road only.
gLv) Heights ¢ Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
g e Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
D ¢ A signalised Toucan crossingis provided at the north-eastern end of the section, pedestrian facilities
~ are also present within the traffic signals at the centre of the village and the south-western end to aid
© crossing manoeuvres. A subway is also available for use at the Tabor Road junction.
o Existing off-highway active travel route running east-west.
e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered significant.
Near car sales at Western end
Crossing road — 0.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 2.2 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour
Near The Boot junction
Crossing road — 5.2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour
Maesycwmmer | A4049 from the Bryn Road ‘A class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Limited frontage development on one side of the road only.
No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
¢ Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.




Moriah and Carn-y-Tyla Terrace, e Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, limited frontage development on one side of the road only.
Pontlottyn Abertysswg from south-east of e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
IDS School access road to a e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital (note — 20mph will apply
point west of the primary phase around the two school access points).
access road e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.
At northern end
Crossing road — 2.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.8 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour
At southern end
Crossing road — 1.4 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 6.2 pedestrians, 1 cycle per hour
Moriah and A469 Merchant Street between |e ‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Pontlottyn access to Capital Valley Ind Est [e No frontage development.
and Heol Evan Wynne e No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
U e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
8 e Provides a 30mph buffer zone between the national speed limit section and the 20mph speed limit
@ within the village.
o e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
o -
significant.
Moriah and Fochriw Road between e Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
Pontlottyn Brynhyfryd, Pontlottyn and Heol- |« Very limited frontage development.
Darran Valley | y-Bryn, Fochriw  No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.
Nelson A472 Mafon Road west of the e ‘A’ classroad that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Railway Inn PH to the Nelson e Limited frontage development.
roundabout e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e A signalised Toucan crossing and a pedestrian refuge island are provided to aid access to

amenities.
Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.




Near Railway Public House
Crossing road — 3.4 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 2.9 pedestrians, 2.5 cycles per hour

New Tredegar

A4049 between A469 junction
and the Colliers Row junction

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Very limited frontage development.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Provides a 30mph buffer zone between the 40mph speed limit section and the 20mph speed limit
within the village.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

New Tredegar

A4049 White Rose Way
between the junction with St
David’s Park and the southern
end of the village.

‘A class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Very limited frontage development.

Section of road is within 100m of primary school and community centre, however, there is an
alternative provision to enable pedestrians and cyclists to cross the road without mixing with motor
traffic (DDA compliant footbridge).

;DU e Active travel route provided in the form of a shared use footway.
o) ¢ Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
@ significant.
2
Near The Winding House Museum
Crossingroad — 1.6 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — no pedestrian data, O cycles per hour
Penyrheol Hendredenny Drive from St Very limited frontage development.

Cenydd Road to a point east of
Chester Court

Very limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Pedestrian phase within traffic signals at St Cenydd Road to aid crossing manoeuvres.
Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

Near the junction with Groeswen
Crossing road — 5.8 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 7.1 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour




Risca West

B4591 Pontymister between the
Mill Street Roundabout and the
A467 Roundabout (including the
A467 Roundabout)

‘A and ‘B’ class roads that form part of the strategic highway network.

No frontage development.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

St Cattwg

28 abed

A469 New Road, Pengam
between Angel Way traffic
signals and north of the Aldi
junction in Tir-y-Berth

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Limited frontage development.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of a community centre, hospital.

Northern end is adjacent to the main vehicular entrance to Lewis School Pengam, however,
pedestrians do not mix with motor traffic as movements are controlled by extensive pedestrian
guardrail and a pedestrian phase within the traffic signals. School pupils also have the benefit of a
footbridge to gain access to the school.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

South of Pengam Traffic Signals
Crossing road — 0.7 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

North of Pengam Traffic Signals
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.5 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

Near Pwll yr Allt junction (including pedestrian refuge)
Crossing road — 2.3 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.9 pedestrians, 1.5 cycles per hour

St Cattwg
Hengoed

A469 New Road, Tir-y-Berth
from south of William Street to
southern end of village

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

No frontage development.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Pedestrian refuge island is present to aid crossing manoeuvres.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

St Cattwg

B4254 between Glyn-Gaer
Road and Castle Hill, Gelligaer

‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
No frontage development.




Low numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Signalised pedestrian crossings are provided at both ends of the section to aid crossing
manoeuvres.

e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

between Llechryd and approx.
100m north of Ael-y-Bryn
Community Centre.

St Cattwg B4254 Church Road, Gelligaer |e ‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
and Gelligaer Road betweenthe e Limited frontage development.
junction with Aneurin Bevan e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
Avenue and west of its junction |4  Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
with Penywrlod e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.
East of junction with Heol Adam
Crossing road — 0.4 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour
Ny
(gt Cattwg B4254 Gelligaer Road fromits |e ‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
D junction with Llancaiach Fawrto e No frontage development.
0 the county boundary e Low numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.
w e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.
Near junction with Llancaiach Fawr:
Crossing road — 0.2 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0 pedestrians, 1.5 cycles per hour
Twyn Carno Merthyr Road between Llechryd |e Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
and the Prince of Wales PH. e Limited frontage development.
e Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
Twyn Carno B4257 High Street Rhymney ‘B’ Class Road

e Very limited frontage development.
e No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.




Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered to be
significant.

Van

8 abed

Lansbury Park Distributor Road
from a point approx. 100m
south-east of Bedwas Bridge
Roundabout to north of the
junction with Pen-y-Cae.

Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
No frontage development.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Shared cycleway/footway alongside carriageway on part of the length.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

Partial prohibition of pedestrians along route

Near ramp leading to Pen-Y-Cae
Crossing road — 5.3 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

Refuge to north of Pen-Y-Cae
Crossing road — 0.4 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Van

Rudry Road from its junction
with Lansbury Park Distributor
Road to east of its junction with
Rudry Close

Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
No frontage development.

No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Footway present on one side only.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

East of junction with Lansbury Park Distributor Road
Crossing road — 2.3 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.3 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Van

Van Road from the roundabout
at the junction with Lansbury
Park Distributor Road to its
junction with Cefn Carnau Lane

Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
Very limited frontage development.

Very limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.




e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

West of Cwrt Ty Mawr
Crossing road — 4.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.2 pedestrians, 1.3 cycles per hour

East of Cwrt Ty Mawr
Crossing road — 5.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.9 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour

Near Wernddu Court
Crossing road — 0.8 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3 pedestrians, 1.3 cycles per hour

Ynysddu

Gg abed

B4251 Ynysddu from the
northern end of the village to the
northern end of Cwmfelinfach

‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
Limited frontage development.
Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

7.5 tonnes maximum weight limit (except for access)
Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

Northern end of village
Crossing road — 2.7 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.8 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour

North of High Street junction
Crossing road — 0.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.7 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

South of High Street junction
Crossing road — 0.8 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.4 pedestrians, 0.4 cycles per hour

Ynysddu

B4251 Wattsville from Full Moon
roundabout to the North
Blackvein Ind Est entrance

e ‘B’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.
e Limited frontage development on one side only.

¢ No roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

e Not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.
e 7.5tonnes maximum weight limit (except for access).

Signalised pedestrian crossing and pedestrian refuges are provided to aid crossing manoeuvres.




e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

Near Islwyn Road junction
Crossing road — 0.1 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Ystrad Mynach

98 abed

AA472 Caerphilly Road from west
of its junction with Maes-y-coed
Terrace to west of its junction
with Station Road (including
Tredomen roundabout)

‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic highway network.

Limited frontage development.

Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

A signalised pedestrian crossing is provided at the eastern end of the section to aid crossing
manoeuvres and a refuge island is available at Tredomen roundabout.

e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.

Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossingroad — 1.7 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour

Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, O cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossing road — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour

Ystrad Mynach

Penallta Link Road from
Tredomen roundabout to north
of Penallta House access road

Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.
No frontage development.

Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

Pedestrian refuge island is provided at Tredomen roundabout to aid crossing manoeuvres.
Off-road active travel route in underpass provided to facilitate east-west movements.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road are not considered
significant.




Penallta Link Road at entrance to Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 4.2 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 6 pedestrians, 1.4 cycles per hour

Ystrad Mynach

/g abed

Northern end of Penallta Link
Road and Penallta Road to Pen-
y-Bryn Terrace

¢ Not an ‘A’ or ‘B’ class road, however, does not only serve as access to residential properties.

¢ Very limited frontage development and continuous footway on one side of the road only.

¢ Limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. Refuge island provided to access
bus stop.

e Good standard of footway
Not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre, hospital.

e Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling across the road are not considered significant.

Near junction with Dragon Way
Crossingroad — 1.1 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 21.1 pedestrians, 2.7 cycles per hour

Near junction with Cwm Calon Road
Crossing road — 1.6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road 13.8 pedestrians, 1.4 cycles per hour

Near Penallta Park entrance
Crossing road — 3.3 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 12.9 pedestrians, 1.4 cycles per hour




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



Appendix 2

Ve

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest
version.

Go to https:/Igov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-
restricted-roads-html (https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-
restricted-roads-html) for the latest version.

Get information on copyright (https://gov.wales/copyright-statement).

PUBLICATION

Setting exceptions to the
20mph default speed limit for
restricted roads

How highway authorities can set exceptions to 20mph speed
limits on restricted roads in Wales.

First published: 8 November 2022

Last updated: 8 November 2022

Page 89


https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html
https://gov.wales/copyright-statement

Contents

1. Introduction (#section-105966)

2. Exceptions to the default 20mph limit for restricted roads
(#section-105968)

Page 90



1. Introduction

1.1 Status

1.1.1  This Welsh Government guidance document is an Addendum to Circular
No: 24/2009, Setting Local Speed Limits in Wales (SLSLW) (https://gov.wales/

setting-local-speed-limits).

1.1.2 This guidance is intended for local interpretation by highway authorities
to make evidence-based decisions on setting exceptions to the default speed
limit of 20mph on restricted roads in Wales, which will come into force on 17
September 2023.

1.1.3 This Guidance provides a methodology to ensure a consistent approach
to exceptions across Wales is taken; yet allowing for local factors and
circumstances to be taken into account.

1.1.4 Itis to be used as a basis to demonstrate reasoning for making any
exception from the default 20mph limit for restricted roads so that the speed limit
remains at 30mph.

1.1.5 Restricted roads are defined by section 82 (1) (a) of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 as roads with a system of street lighting furnished with
lamps not more than 200 yards apart. Most restricted roads are in built-up
areas.

1.1.6 Guidance in SLSLW which deals with speed limits on restricted roads
and 20mph limits and zones is superseded by this circular. A new version of
SLSLW is currently being prepared to reflect the change in the default speed
limit for restricted roads. When the updated SLSLW guidance is published

Page 91


https://gov.wales/setting-local-speed-limits
https://gov.wales/setting-local-speed-limits

(towards the end of 2022) it will supersede this addendum to circular no: 24/
2009.

1.2 Policy

1.2.1  The Senedd has approved legislation to lower the default national speed
limit on restricted roads from 30mph to 20mph to reduce the number and
severity of collisions and casualties, to enable more people to use active travel,
to reduce environmental impacts and to improve people’s quality of life in
communities across Wales.

1.2.2 This legislation supports the objectives set out in LIwybr Newydd: The
Wales Transport Strategy 2021 (https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-
strategy-2021), which prioritises walking and cycling above all other modes of
travel; and Future Wales, the national development framework which sets the
aim for people to live in places where travel has a low environmental impact.

1.2.3 In making this change Welsh Government is aspiring to meet the aims of
Article 11 of the United Nations’ Stockholm Declaration which states:

“ “Reiterating our strong commitment to achieving global goals by 2030 and
emphasizing our shared responsibility, we hereby resolve to [...]

“ Focus on speed management, including the strengthening of law
enforcement to prevent speeding and mandate a maximum road travel
speed of 30km/h in areas where vulnerable road users and vehicles mix in
a frequent and planned manner, except where strong evidence exists that
higher speeds are safe, noting that efforts to reduce speed in general will
have a beneficial impact on air quality and climate change as well as
being vital to reduce road traffic deaths and injuries.”

Page 92


https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021

1.3 Legislation

The Restricted Roads (20mph Speed Limit) (Wales) Order 2022

1.3.1 The Restricted Roads (20mph Speed Limit) (Wales) Order 2022 was
made by Welsh Ministers on 13 July 2022 following a resolution of Senedd
Cymru to approve a draft of the Order.

1.3.2 The Order reduces the general speed limit for restricted roads, set by
section 81(1) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, to 20mph.

1.3.3 It will come into force on 17 September 2023. From that date any
restricted road will have a speed limit of 20mph unless a different speed limit is
set by the highway authority by Order.

The Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2016

1.3.4 Changes to the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions are in
the course of preparation and will follow in 2023.

1.3.5 These changes will remove the requirement for and the ability of highway
authorities to place repeater signs on roads with street lighting where the speed
limit is 20mph. Highway authorities will have a saving period of 6 months after
the coming into force date to take down 20mph repeater signs.

1.3.6 Repeater signs will normally be required on lit 30mph roads. Guidance
on the provision of repeater signs is given in the Traffic Signs Manual: Chapter
3 (https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/traffic-signs-manual).

Page 93


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/traffic-signs-manual
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/traffic-signs-manual

2. Exceptions to the default 20mph limit for
restricted roads

2.1 Principles

2.1.1 Inline with the Welsh Government’s aspiration to meet the Stockholm
declaration (Para 1.2.3), a 20mph speed limit should be set where pedestrians
and/or cyclists and motor vehicles mix in a frequent manner, except where
strong evidence exists that higher speeds are safe.

2.1.2 Not all existing 30mph roads will meet this test, and highway authorities
should prepare Orders to retain the current speed limit for these roads. These
are termed ‘exceptions’ to the default speed limit for restricted roads.

2.1.3 Two principal questions, A and B below, should be considered by
highway authorities when deciding whether a 30mph exception should be made:

Question A: Are there significant numbers (or potential numbers, if
speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road?

+ If the answer to A is ‘no’ then an exception for a 30mph speed limit may be
appropriate.

Question B: If the answer to A is ‘yes’, are the pedestrians and
cyclists mixing with motor traffic?

+ If the answer to B is ‘'no’ then a 30mph speed limit exception may be

Page 94



appropriate.

* If the answer to B is ‘yes’ then a 20mph speed limit will be appropriate
unless the robust and evidenced application of local factors indicates
otherwise.

2.2.1 Decisions on exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic
speeds.

2.2.2 Inview of Liwybr Newydd: Wales Transport Strategy, the fact that a
section of road is on a bus route is not in itself a justification for making an
exception.

2.2 Process for setting exceptions

Consider existing 30mph roads only

2.2.3 To reduce the scale of the task, highway authorities should generally
consider only existing restricted roads when deciding whether to make
exceptions, prior to 17 September 2023. Roads that have been made 30mph by
Order can also be considered at this stage, if the highway authority consider it
appropriate. This will include where extensive lengths of lit roads have been
made 30mph by Order.

2.2.4 All existing 20mph roads, whether zones or limits, which have been
made by Order should retain their existing speed limit. Where roads are lit these
existing 20mph Orders should be revoked, unless roads in the area generally
have their limits set by Order.

2.2.5 Speed limits of 40mph and above should not generally be changed at
this stage, but their limits may need to be reviewed after 17 September 2023
and following the publication of the revised SLSLW guidance.

Page 95



Road classification

2.2.6 Most exceptions are expected to be made on A and B classified roads.
These generally form the main routes carrying traffic through urban areas.

2.2.7 C class and unclassified roads typically carry mostly local traffic and
serve only residential properties. They are usually important routes for people
walking and cycling, and will be sharing the carriageway with motor vehicles. It
is expected that exceptions should therefore not normally be made for such
roads, but authorities may choose to do so, based on this guidance and taking
into account local factors.

Place criteria

2.2.8 The following ‘Place’ criteria have been developed to guide highway
authorities to determine, in a consistent way across Wales, which sections of
roads may have significant demands for people walking and cycling:

1. Within a 100m walk of any educational setting (e.g. primary, secondary,
further education and higher education)

2. Within 100m walk of any community centre

Within 100m walk of any hospital

4. Where the number of residential and/or retail premises fronting a road
exceeds 20 properties per km.

w

2.2.9 Sections of road which meet any of these Place criteria should be
considered to positively answer principal question A as set out above in 2.1.3.

2.210 However, highway authorities continue to have the flexibility to set local
speed limits that are right for individual roads, reflecting local needs and
considerations.

Page 96



2.2.11  Where their decision deviates from this guidance highway authorities
should have a clear and reasoned case.

Applying local factors to the place criteria

2.2.12 Highway authorities can apply relevant local factors when interpreting
the Place Criteria to determine the need for exceptions.

2.2.13 Examples as to how this may be done are provided below. These are
purely illustrative to demonstrate how evidence-based local decisions could be
made.

2.2.14 Local facilities: Local facilities such as community centres or medical
facilities may be located on the road in question, but people may access them
on foot and cycle via a different route entirely. They may cross the road via a
subway or bridge and so not have to encounter motor traffic. In such cases the
highway authority may consider place criteria 1 to 3 are not met.

2.2.15 Residential and retail: Residential and retail premises may be one side
of the road, but if there is open land on the other side of the road, it could mean
there is little need for pedestrians and cyclists to cross the road. The properties
may not be accessed on foot or cycle directly from the road — people may use a
separate service road for example. In such circumstances the local authority
may consider Criterion 4 is not met, although the needs of cyclists travelling
along the road will still need to be considered, in line with the Active Travel Act
guidance (ATAG) (https://gov.wales/active-travel-act-guidance), published by the
Welsh Government in July 2021.

2.2.16 Conversely there may be sections of road where there are significant
demands, or potential demands, for walking and cycling which do not meet any
of the place criteria, but where a 20mph speed limit may be appropriate, such
as:

Page 97


https://gov.wales/active-travel-act-guidance
https://gov.wales/active-travel-act-guidance

* land on either side of the carriageway is open parkland and/or sports fields in
regular use by people on foot and/or cycle

 regularly used accesses to schools or hospitals are along the road, even
though this may be more than 100m from their main entrances

 there is a designated active travel route on the carriageway

» where the number and/or type of collisions occurring along the road means
that the road users and the local community would gain significant road
safety and other benefits from a speed limit of 20mph.

2.2.17 Attention is drawn to para 2.2.21 regarding the minimum length of
speed limits.

Protected facilities for pedestrians and cyclists

2.2.18 Exceptions may be appropriate where there is significant demand (or
potential demand) for walking and cycling so long as the highway authority is
satisfied that the answer to Principal Question B is ‘no’ (see 2.1.3) —i.e. that
people on foot and cycle are not required to mix with motor traffic.

2.2.19 This would require protected facilities to be provided for pedestrians
and cyclists which meet the ATAG, in particular:

+ there are footways in accordance with Section 9.6 of the ATAG on the
side(s) of the road fronted by development or to provide necessary
connectivity.

« any demand for pedestrian and cycle crossing movements mainly takes
place at defined locations, which are provided with facilities in accordance
with Section 12.3 of the ATAG,; or alternatively there is no requirement for
people on foot or cycle to cross the road (e.g. development is only on one
side).

« cycle provision along the route is ‘suitable for most people’, based on Table
11.1 of the ATAG. This will usually require physical protection from motor

Page 98



traffic.

Minimum lengths of speed limits

2.2.20 Where applying this guidance would result in short sections of 30mph
speed limits, no exception should be made.

2.2.21 SLSLW recommends the minimum length of a speed limit, in
exceptional circumstances, should be 300m on roads with a local access
function.

Part time speed limits

2.2.22 Where a highway authority considers that an exception is appropriate at
some times but not at others it may derestrict the road and set a part time speed
limit by Order.

2.2.23 Variable message terminal signs will be required at the start and end of
the section of road. Depending on its length it may also be necessary to erect
variable repeater signs, which would show blank faces during the periods when
a 20mph speed limit applies.

This document may not be fully accessible.

For more information refer to our accessibility statement (https://gov.wales/
accessibility-statement-govwales).

Page 99


https://gov.wales/accessibility-statement-govwales
https://gov.wales/accessibility-statement-govwales

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Appendix 3 - Councillor and Statutory Consultation Responses

Objections to Proposals

TNT '\RY\ ]
LUL 9Yvtqa

western cottages.

From Manmoel crossing ARGOED to Past the rock
villas. This is a built up area children of both villages
have to cross the busy A4048 to catch the school bus,
there isn’'t a crossing point. Also there have been many
accidents, And cars damaged by speeding cars.

Wards Road Comment Rationale / Response
Camerasurveys were undertaken during school term time
in April and May 2023. Pedestrian and cycle flows are
based on the average hourly flow over the 12 hour survey
period (7amto 7pm).

Argoed A4048 An email was received from Clir W Williams on the 15" | The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Hollybush June 2023 stating the following: Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
The area that needs to change to 20 mph s from the numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
Argoed A4048 Argoed | old school Hollybush A4048 Through the village to travelling along or across the road. Whilst it is recognised

that there are Community Centres within 100m of each
Exception, surveys have shown that pedestrian and cycle
activity along the routes are low. In both areas, although
the property density is in excess of 20 per km, the majority
of the frontage development is situated on one side of the
road only and significant numbers of pedestrians and cycles
do not mix with traffic.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the
route which have shown the following:

Northern end of Argoed
Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.3 pedestrians, 1.9 cycles per hour

Near Argoed Village Hall

Crossing road — 0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road —no pedestrian data, 0.2 cycles per
hour

Southern end of Argoed
Crossingroad — 1.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3 pedestrians, 1.8 cycles per hour

Northern end of Hollybush




20T ’\RY\ ]
cUl 9vted

Crossing road — 2.9 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrian, 1.6 cycles per hour

Southern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.4 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road are not considered to be significant at this
location.

Council records confirm that during the last 3-year period for
which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one
personal injury collision in each of the affected lengths of
road in Hollybush and Argoed.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic
speeds. Regrettably, even where speed reducing measures
are in place, there will always be a minority of motorists who
ignore the rules set out in the highway code and drive
inappropriately for the conditions. Road safety education
initiatives are undertaken within the County Borough by the
Council's Road Safety Project Officers in conjunction with
the emergency services. However, police enforcement has
a primary role to play in this regard, as the Council does not
have any powers to address moving traffic offences. The
A4048 through Argoed is a police mobile safety camerasite
and receives regular enforcement from GoSafe.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of
the strategic highway network with frontage development
mainly limited to one side of the road. There are limited
roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists
and the route is not within 100m walk of any educational
setting or hospital.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,in light of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway treatments (coloured




oNT ’\RY\ ]
cUl Yyvtqa

surfacing, road markings and signs on yellow backing
boards) and speed limit repeater road marking roundels
be provided along the length of the Exception. It is
considered that these additional measures will help to
raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.

Bedwas and
Trethomas /
Machen and
Rudry

Machen and
Rudry

A468 Newport
Road,
Trethomas
from east of its
junction with
Ridgeway to a
point west of
the fuel station

A468 Newport
Road and
Wesley Hill,
Machen from a
point
approximately
150m west of
the Ffwrwm
Road junction
to the existing
30mph signs
to the west of
the village

An email was received from Community Councillor
Kevin Ingram of the Bedwas, Trethomas and Machen
Community Councillor on 10t May 2023 objecting to
the stretch of the A468 east of the Ridgeway junction to
the west of the filling station being an exception to the
proposed 20mph.

Having lived on this estate for years entering and
exiting the estate has been problematic with people
accelerating before the 40mph limit towards fountain
bridge. | myself have nearly on several occasions been
rear ended when turning into the lower Graig-yr-Rhacca
estate coming from Trethomas. Many residents have
had accidents when turning in coming from Machen
resulting in a right-hand turn box and traffic island.
There have been many accidents on this stretch of road
which not only is a busy junction for traffic entering and
exiting the estate but also has a very busy Esso garage
and Greggs as well as a crossing point for the cycle
track.

To me it makes even more sense that this road is made
a 20mph area and not an Exception.

Gwent police have had numerous speed monitoring
campaigns but there are no easy solutions to locate a
mobile speed camera and the only viable solution
proposed was rumble strips from CCBC.

The road is a race track most weekend evenings as |
can hear it from my living room and the 20mph would
be a welcome deterrent and important for the safety of
residents entering and exiting the estate.

A468 Newport Road, Trethomas from east of its junction
with Ridgeway to a point west of the fuel station

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has
shown the following:

Refuge island outside petrol station

Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.9 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 11.2 pedestrians, 3.5 cycles per
hour.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road are not considered to be significant at this
location.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of
the strategic highway network and the limited frontage
development is mainly limited to one side of the road
resulting in little requirement for pedestrians to cross the
road. There are limited roadside amenities/attractors for
pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not within 200m
walk of any educational setting or hospital. A pedestrian
refuge is provided to aid crossing manoeuvres for
pedestrians and cyclists. However, consideration will be
given to the provision of warning signs to raise drivers’
awareness of the crossing point. The 20mph speed limit will
apply where there is increased frontage development further
into the village. The proposed 30mph Exception will provide




e\ T ’\RY\ ]
vyl vvtd

| would urge you to reconsider and remove this stretch
from the exception list in the interest of safety of
residents, cycle track users and patrons of the Garage.

| also think the whole of Machen should be 20mph with
no Exceptions such as mentioned as we have had
multiple accidents in the last few months.

a buffer zone on the approach to the village and help to
encourage compliance with the new 20mph speed limit.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period
for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there have been
two slight personal injury collisions in the affected length of
road.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic
speeds. Regrettably, even where speed reducing measures
are in place, there will always be a minority of motorists who
ignore the rules set out in the highway code and drive
inappropriately for the conditions. Road safety education
initiatives are undertaken within the County Borough by the
Council's Road Safety Project Officers in conjunction with
the emergency services. However, police enforcement has
a primary role to play in this regard, as the Council does not
have any powers to address moving traffic offences. A
static speed camerais provided in the village of Trethomas.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,in light of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway features, road marking
repeater speed limit roundels and pedestrian/cycle
warning signs be provided. Itis considered that these
additional measures will help to raise driver’s
awareness of the speed limit and have a positive impact
on vehicle speeds.

A468 Newport Road and Wesley Hill, Machen from a
point approximately 150m west of the Ffwrwm Road
junction to the existing 30mph signs to the west of the
village

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.




CNT '\RY\ ]
UL vvtd

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has
shown the following:

Near White Hart junction

Crossing road — 0.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.9 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour
Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road are not considered to be significant at this
location.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period
for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there have been
no personal injury collision in the affected length of road.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of
the strategic highway network and the limited frontage
development is mainly limited to one side of the road
resulting in little requirement for pedestrians to cross the
road. There are limited roadside amenities/attractors for
pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not within 2700m
walk of any educational setting or hospital. The 20mph
speed limit will apply where there is increased frontage
development further into the village. The proposed 30mph
Exception will provide a buffer zone on the approach to the
village and help to encourage compliance with the new
20mph speed limit.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,inlight of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway treatments (coloured
surfacing, road markings and signs on yellow backing
boards) and road marking repeater speed limit roundels
be provided. Itis considered that these additional
measures will help to raise driver’s awareness of the
speed limit and have a positive impact on vehicle
speeds.

Aberbargoed
and Bargoed

A4049
Pengam Road

An email was received from Clir T Heron on 19t April
2023 indicating that she had noted that the road A4049

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to




laVals '\RY\ ]
JUL YvEtqa

Cefn Fforest
and Pengam

from Britannia
roundabout to
south of
Britannia
Terrace

is going to be 30mph as shown on the Exception table
as Pengam Road from Aberbargoed Roundabout to
south of Britannia Terrace.

This is an extremely fastroad that runs adjacent to
Bedwellty Fields, a recent new housing development
and Britannia Housing estate. Please see the attached
images attached.

The issues that car users have and residents are:

e Car users leaving Britannia Fields, blind bend from
their right.

e Pedestrians leaving Britannia Fields run across the
road to avoid the speeding cars from the blind
bend.

e Pedestrians leaving Britannia to access the bus
stops on the opposite side need to run across the
road to avoid speeding cars.

e Carsleaving Britannia Ter onto the highway also
have a blind spot from the south end.

These issues have been highlighted to me since
becoming a councillor. Many times | have witnessed
children and the elderly trying to cross the road as
safely as possible only to see them struggling to avoid
the speed of cars, often resulting in missing buses.
There has been one death on the roads lower down
near Ffynnon Wen Cottages on the A4049.

The link to this tragic accident
https://www.walesonline.co.uk/news/wales-news/cole-
roper-aberbargoed-cefn-fforest-

16884875?utm source=linkCopy&utm medium=social
&utm campaign=sharebar.

This particular stretch of road has had many issues with
bumps from cars, as we all know car users will share
their insurance information reducing the need for the
Police to attend. This is not giving accuracy on accident
statistics. | will also acknowledge that Gwent Police
have been very pro-active in speed cameras in the

whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.

This route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the strategic
highway network and the limited frontage development is
mainly limited to one side of the road. There are limited
roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists
and the route is not within 100m walk of any educational
setting, community centre or hospital.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic
speeds. Regrettably, even where speed reducing measures
are in place, there will always be a minority of motorists who
ignore the rules set out in the highway code and drive
inappropriately for the conditions. Road safety education
initiatives are undertaken within the County Borough by the
Council's Road Safety Project Officers in conjunction with
the emergency services. However, police enforcement has
a primary role to play in this regard, as the Council does not
have any powers to address moving traffic offences.

Consideration will be given to the provision of warning signs
to raise drivers’ awareness of the proximity of the
playground and junctions at Bedwellty Fields and Britannia
Terrace. Proposed vegetation clearance will also help to
improve visibility for drivers when exiting Bedwellty Fields.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period
for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been
one personal injury collision in the affected length of road
(not associated with turning manoeuvres at the junctions).
The Council is only provided with personal injury collision
data to work with, as there is no requirement for damage
only collisions to be reported, resulting in under-reporting of
this dataset. Where they are reported, the information
necessary to understand the circumstances of the collision
are not always available. Consequently, prioritising sites
based on damage only collisions would be inappropriate. It
is however widely recognised that for every personal injury



https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.walesonline.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fwales-news%2Fcole-roper-aberbargoed-cefn-fforest-16884875%3Futm_source%3DlinkCopy%26utm_medium%3Dsocial%26utm_campaign%3Dsharebar&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7Cdb80c34cda8e467ea3e608db40ba13c9%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638174940206057720%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zi%2FGknzUHABzB7lU917P2ivHKcV7XBIXOiiMZ6znDEA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.walesonline.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fwales-news%2Fcole-roper-aberbargoed-cefn-fforest-16884875%3Futm_source%3DlinkCopy%26utm_medium%3Dsocial%26utm_campaign%3Dsharebar&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7Cdb80c34cda8e467ea3e608db40ba13c9%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638174940206057720%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zi%2FGknzUHABzB7lU917P2ivHKcV7XBIXOiiMZ6znDEA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.walesonline.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fwales-news%2Fcole-roper-aberbargoed-cefn-fforest-16884875%3Futm_source%3DlinkCopy%26utm_medium%3Dsocial%26utm_campaign%3Dsharebar&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7Cdb80c34cda8e467ea3e608db40ba13c9%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638174940206057720%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zi%2FGknzUHABzB7lU917P2ivHKcV7XBIXOiiMZ6znDEA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.walesonline.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fwales-news%2Fcole-roper-aberbargoed-cefn-fforest-16884875%3Futm_source%3DlinkCopy%26utm_medium%3Dsocial%26utm_campaign%3Dsharebar&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7Cdb80c34cda8e467ea3e608db40ba13c9%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638174940206057720%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zi%2FGknzUHABzB7lU917P2ivHKcV7XBIXOiiMZ6znDEA%3D&reserved=0

vicinity, unfortunately cars “flash” other drivers as the
drive past the police vehicle to warn other speeding
motorist, again this is not giving an accurate figure
sadly.

I would like to ask you to consider this request to review
the speed on this stretch of road.

collision recorded, there will be a number of damage-only
collisions. The use of personal injury collisions only for
analysis is a nationally recognised approach.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,inlight of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway treatments (coloured
surfacing, road markings and signs on yellow backing
boards), road marking repeater speed limit roundels
and junction warning signs be provided. Itis
considered that these additional measures will help to
raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and the
junctions and have a positive impact on vehicle speeds.

I N\T ’\RY\ 1

Blackwood /
Cefn Fforest
and Pengam

ootd

-y

aalackwood /
Cefn Fforest
and Pengam

Cefn Fforest
and Pengam

Bryn Road
from the
Highfields Way
Roundabout to
its junction
with Twyn
Gardens

B4254
Highfields Way
from the
roundabout to
the west of the
junction with
Montclaire
Avenue

B4254 from a
point approx.
100m east of
the school side
gate to the
Highfields Way
roundabout

Following analysis of survey data which identified
significant pedestrian activity in the vicinity of the
Highfields Way roundabout, Councillors views were
sought on 15" and 16" June 2023 on a
recommendation to amend the proposed 30mph
Exception to make the roundabout and it’s
approaches 20mph (The 20mph speed limit will
extend approximately 25 metres from the
roundabout on Bryn Road and Oak Terrace Bypass
and 140 metres on Highfields Way to cover the
access road that leads to Tesco Express, Parc Plas
etc).

On 16" June 2023 ClIr M Chacon-Dawson stated the
following:

| not sure why the 20mph needs to extend that
distance. In my experience of crossing that road,
people tended to cross at the drop kerb near the
roundabout.

| had a lot of negative comments about the whole idea
of dropping to 20 miles an hour. | know how | feel about
road safety as | walk a lot even though | have a car. |
am not here to put my view forward but that of my
constituents and they are mostly discontent. So a little
give is welcome.

Highfields Way has been assessed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road. Where there are
significant numbers of pedestrians and cyclists who mix with
traffic, an Exception should not apply and the road should
default to 20mph.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the
route which have shown the following:

Bryn Rd arm of roundabout

Crossing road — 6.9 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.6 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per
hour

Highfields Way arm of roundabout

Crossing road — 7 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.7 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per
hour

Oak Terrace Bypass arm of roundabout

Crossingroad — 6.1 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 12.3 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per
hour




ONT ’\RY\ ]
oUl Yyvtqg

Is 25 metres the standard measure, and why 140metres
on the other road?

On 16" June 2023 ClIr S Williams stated the
following:

| wonder if the roundabout exclusion, as suggested is
really necessary? Isn't it the case that vehicle drivers
slow down as they approach the roundabout, and
indeed exit it? | appreciate the proximity to Tesco
express but that is barriered off. Given the bus stops
and pavements on Bryn Road and Highfields Way,
there has always been pedestrian activity there.
Significant pedestrian activity is cited, but what time
periods is this recent pedestrian activity compared to? |
don’t know if there are any records, but have there
been many accidents recorded at these locations
before and since the original exception was suggested?
| doubt that shortening the length of the 30mph
exception in this way, is likely to change drivers’
behaviour, but as | said, given the way the roundabout
is approached now, and exited, drivers already slow
down to under 20mph, so this amendment to the
planned exception seems unnecessary.

On 16" June 2023 ClIr T Heron stated the following:
Unfortunately, | have to agree with both my colleagues.
| cannot understand how altering speed either side of a
roundabout, especially as enforcement will be
extremely hard to implement, will keep residents safe,
as most residents will use the drop down kerbside. The
nature of a roundabout will always encourage drivers to
reduce speed for obvious reasons.

On 17" June 2023 ClIr K Etheridge stated the
following:

| remember a number of years ago submitting a petition
on Highfields Way because of the speed and children to

Heol y Dderwen arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 4.6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 26.3 pedestrians, 1 cycle per hour

The surveys have identified significant pedestrian activity in
the vicinity of the roundabout.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic
speeds.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period
for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been
one slight personal injury collisions in the affected length of
road.

There is no set distance from a junction for which a speed
limit should commence. The recommendation has been
made based on what is considered to be appropriate for the
location in order to achieve the desired speed reduction.
The start/end points also need to be able to physically
accommodate the signs on the ground taking into account
site constraints such as adjacent properties, presence of
street furniture and visibility of the new terminal signs.

Recommendation - In order to improve safety, it is
recommended that the proposed 30mph Exception be
amended to exclude the roundabout and the approach
roads. The default 20mph will therefore apply to the
roundabout and the following sections of road:

Bryn Road — from the roundabout to a point
approximately 25m north.

Oak Terrace Bypass — from the roundabout to a point
approximately 25m south.

Highfields Way - from the roundabout to a point
approximately 140m east (to cover the access road to
Tesco Express, Parc Plas).




and from Libanus Primary School. | have no problems
with this.

My concerns are you aware is the enforcement of these
issues which | appreciate are not within your remit.

LT '\RY\ ]
OUlL Yvta

Hengoed

St Cattwg

Ystrad Mynach

A469 New
Road, Tir-y-
Berth from
south of
William Street
to southern
end of village

B4254 Church
Road,
Gelligaer and
Gelligaer Road
between the
junction with
Aneurin Bevan
Avenue and
west of its
junction with
Penywrlod

AAT2
Caerphilly
Road from
west of its
junction with
Maes-y-coed
Terrace to
west of its
junction with
Station Road
(including
Tredomen
roundabout)

An email was received from Gelligaer Community
Council on the 4" May 2023 highlighted three areas on
the Exception list, which members agreed at a recent
meeting, whereby 20mph zones would be preferable to
30mph.

e Hengoed - New Road, Tir-y-Berth from south of
William Street to southern end of village

e St Cattwg - B4254 Church Road, Gelligaer and
Gelligaer Road between the junction with Aneurin
Bevan Avenue and west of its junction with
Penywrlod

e Ystrad Mynach - A472 Caerphilly Road from west of
its junction with Maes-y-coed Terrace to west of its
junction with Station Road (including Tredomen
roundabout)

A469 New Road, Tir-y-Berth from south of William
Street to southern end of village

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.

The route has no frontage development and no roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The
Exception is not within 100m walk of any educational
setting, community centre or hospital. A 20mph speed limit
is therefore not deemed appropriate. A pedestrian refuge
island is provided to aid crossing manoeuvres. The
proposed 30mph Exception will provide a buffer zone on the
approach to the village and help to encourage compliance
with the new 20mph speed limit.

Recommendation - It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,in light of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway treatments (coloured
surfacing, road markings and signs on yellow backing
boards), road marking repeater speed limit roundels be
provided. Itis considered that these additional
measures will help to raise driver’s awareness of the
speed limit and have a positive impact on vehicle
speeds.

B4254 Church Road, Gelligaer and Gelligaer Road
between the junction with Aneurin Bevan Avenue and
west of its junction with Penywrlod




DT T ’\RY\ ]
Ull 9vtd

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has
shown the following:

Near bus stop
Crossing road — 0.4 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road are not considered to be significant at this
location.

The route is a ‘B’ class road and forms part of the strategic
highway network. The affected length of road is not within
100m walk of any educational setting, community centre or
hospital. There is limited frontage development on one side
of the road only and few roadside amenities/attractors within
the extents of the Exception. The 20mph speed limit will
apply where there is increased frontage development further
into the village. The proposed 30mph Exception will provide
a buffer zone on the approach to the village and help to
encourage compliance with the new 20mph speed limit.

A 20mph speed limit is therefore not deemed appropriate.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the
Exceptionis taken forward. However,inlight of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway treatments (coloured
surfacing, road markings and signs on yellow backing
boards) and road marking repeater speed limit roundels
be provided. Itis considered that these additional
measures will help to raise driver’s awareness of the
speed limit and have a positive impact on vehicle
speeds.




TT T '\RY\ ]

L1 9Y9td

A472 Caerphilly Road from west of its junction with
Maes-y-coed Terrace to west of its junction with Station
Road (including Tredomen roundabout)

The exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether
there are significant numbers (or potential numbers, if
speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists travelling
along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have
shown the following:

Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossingroad — 1.7 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour

Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, O cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting

Crossingroad — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per
hour

Recommendation — Following complaints received,
further investigation has concluded that due to
significant traffic flows, lack of continuous footways on
both sides and concerns about difficulty for drivers
turning in and out of Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen
Villas and Maes-y-Coed Terrace, it has been determined
that the 30mph Exception should be removed from the
Order. This section of road will therefore default to
20mph.




Machen and
Rudry

Bedwas and
Trethomas/
Machen Rudry

=TT ’\RY\ ]
cll9ved

A468 Newport
Road and
Wesley Hill,
Machen from a
point
approximately
150m west of
the Ffwrwm
Road junction
to the existing
30mph signs
to the west of
the village

A468 Newport
Road,
Trethomas
from east of its
junction with
Ridgeway to a
point west of
the fuel station

An email was received from Community Councillor
Steve Aicheler representing the Machen Ward on 25t
April 2023.

Firstly, the proposed exception on the A468
(Newport Rd) in Machen. | do not support an
exception to the 20mph limit for this stretch of road.
This stretch of road represents the entrance to the
village, and as such drivers entering Machen from
the direction of Trethomas should be clear that they
are entering a residential area and should be driving
at the 20mph limit throughout the whole village. The
stretch of road is fairly steeply downhill when
travelling in an easterly direction, and directly after
the end of the proposed exception are busy
junctions with The Crescent and Dranllwyn Lane,
and the entrance to Machen Primary School. Traffic
speed needs to be reduced prior to these areas to
ensure that the benefits of the 20mph limit are felt.
Within the proposed exception zone are a number
of residential properties which open directly onto the
road, and these residents should be treated no
differently to other residents who will benefit from
the new 20mph limit. There are also junctions with
White Hart Drive and White Hart which give further
access toresidential areas. To access the rest of
the village facilities by use of active travel, residents
in these areas will make use of the A468, and
should also benefit from the reduced speed limit.

Secondly | also do not support the proposed
exception located in Trethomas which includes the
junction with Ridgeway. Again, this section of road
represents the entrance to the village, and therefore
sets the precedence for the acceptable speed
throughout the whole community. The section also
includes a busy junction with Ridgeway, a very busy
garage and the crossing of the Route 4 cycle route
over the A468. These factors make this an
inappropriate section of road to be excepted from
the new 20mph limit.

A468 Newport Road and Wesley Hill, Machen from a
point approximately 150m west of the Ffwrwm Road
junction to the existing 30mph signs to the west of the
village

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has
shown the following:

Near White Hart junction
Crossing road — 0.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.9 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road are not considered to be significant at this
location.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period
for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there have been
no personal injury collision in the affected length of road.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of
the strategic highway network and the limited frontage
development is mainly limited to one side of the road
resulting in little requirement for pedestrians to cross the
road. There are limited roadside amenities/attractors for
pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not within 2700m
walk of any educational setting or hospital. The 20mph
speed limit will apply where there is increased frontage
development and schools further into the village. The
proposed 30mph Exception will provide a buffer zone on the
approach to the village and help to encourage compliance
with the new 20mph speed limit.

Welsh Government has indicated that speed limits of 40mph
and above should not generally be changed at this stage,




CT T ’\RY\ ]
clLl Yvea

The gradual reduction argument - there is an argument
to gradually reduce traffic speed at the entrance to
communities 40 > 30 > 20 rather than a more direct
reduction 40 > 20. If this argument is being used for
these sections, | would suggest that the more effective
solution would be to reduce the limit on the A468
between Trethomas and Machen from the current
40mph to 30 mph. This section of road has regular
RTC's so a reduction in the limit will both reduce the
risk of these and encourage active travel in a safe
environment between the communities of Machen and
Trethomas.

but their limits may need to be reviewed after 17 September
2023 following the publication of the revised Setting Local
Speed Limits in Wales (SLSLW) guidance.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,in light of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway treatments (coloured
surfacing, road markings and signs on yellow backing
boards) and road marking repeater speed limit roundels
be provided. Itis considered that these additional
measures will help to raise driver’s awareness of the
speed limit and have a positive impact on vehicle
speeds.

A468 Newport Road, Trethomas from east of its junction
with Ridgeway to a point west of the fuel station

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has
shown the following:

Refuge island outside petrol station

Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.9 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 11.2 pedestrians, 3.5 cycles per
hour.

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road are not considered to be significant at this
location.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of
the strategic highway network and the limited frontage
development is mainly limited to one side of the road
resulting in little requirement for pedestrians to cross the




T T ’\RY\ ]
Vil ovcd

road. There are limited roadside amenities/attractors for
pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not within 2700m
walk of any educational setting or hospital. A pedestrian
refuge is provided to aid crossing manoeuvres for
pedestrians and cyclists. However, consideration will be
given to the provision of warning signs to raise drivers’
awareness of the crossing point. The 20mph speed limit will
apply where there is increased frontage development further
into the village. The proposed 30mph Exception will provide
a buffer zone on the approach to the village and help to
encourage compliance with the new 20mph speed limit.

Our records confirm that during the latest 3-year period for
which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there have been
two slight personal injury collisions in the affected length of
road.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic
speeds. Regrettably, even where speed reducing measures
are in place, there will always be a minority of motorists who
ignore the rules set out in the highway code and drive
inappropriately for the conditions. Road safety education
initiatives are undertaken within the County Borough by the
Council's Road Safety Project Officers in conjunction with
the emergency services. However, police enforcement has
a primary role to play in this regard, as the Council does not
have any powers to address moving traffic offences. A
static speed camerais provided in the village of Trethomas.

Welsh Government has indicated that speed limits of 40mph
and above should not generally be changed at this stage,
but their limits may need to be reviewed after 17 September
2023 following the publication of the revised Setting Local
Speed Limits in Wales (SLSLW) guidance.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,inlight of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of gateway features, road marking
repeater speed limit roundels and pedestrian/cycle
warning signs be provided. Itis considered that these




additional measures will help to raise driver’s
awareness of the speed limit and have a positive impact
on vehicle speeds.

CT T '\RY\ ]
gl 9vved

Van

Lansbury Park
Distributor
Road from a
point approx.
100m south-
east of
Bedwas Bridge
Roundabout to
north of the
junction with
Pen-y-Cae

An email was received from ClIir E Forehead on 18
April 2023 who considered that this road should be
reduced to 20mph due to the pedestrian footpaths, the
2 schools that are next to it and the densely populated
housing estates. She advised that she had discussed
her comments with ClIr Chris Forehead and confirmed
that she was in agreement.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with
Welsh Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to
whether there are significant numbers (or potential
numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has
shown the following:

Near ramp leading to Pen-Y-Cae
Crossing road — 5.3 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

Refuge island to the north of Pen-Y-Cae
Crossing road — 0.4 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road are not considered to be significant at this
location.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic
speeds. Regrettably, even where speed reducing measures
are in place, there will always be a minority of motorists who
ignore the rules set out in the highway code and drive
inappropriately for the conditions. Road safety education
initiatives are undertaken within the County Borough by The
Council's Road Safety Project Officers in conjunction with
the emergency services. However, police enforcement has
a primary role to play in this regard, as the Council does not
have any powers to address moving traffic offences.

The route has no frontage development and no roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The
Exception is not within 100m walk of any educational
setting, community centre or hospital. A shared




cycleway/footway is provided alongside some of the route.
A 20mph speed limit is therefore not deemed appropriate.

Recommendation - It is recommended that the
Exception is taken forward. However,inlight of the
concernsraised, additional speed management
measures in the form of road marking repeater speed
limit roundels be provided. It is considered that these
additional measures will help to raise driver’s
awareness of the speed limit and have a positive impact
on vehicle speeds. Itis also recommended that
consideration be given to extending the 30mph speed
limit beyond the Pen-y-Cae junction as part of a future
programme or works.

_Seneral comments / queries
)
@ Wards Road Comment Rationale / Response
Aberbargoed Angel Way An email was received on 24" May 2023 from Bargoed | All restricted roads within the Borough have been assessed
t:and Bargoed Link Road Town Council who were extremely concerned about the | in accordance with Welsh Government’s guidance. The
» from blanket reduction in the speed limit in the urban areas rationale relates to whether there are significant numbers
Commercial across Aberbargoed, Bargoed and Gilfach. They (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians
Street, strongly felt that the 3 Exceptions listed on the and cyclists travelling along or across the road.
Aberbargoed consultation document of:

Aberbargoed
and Bargoed

to Morrisons
traffic signals
(including
roundabout
and A469
approach
arms)

Angel Way
Link Road
between
Aberbargoed
roundabout
and Britannia

e Angel Way Link Road from Commercial Street,
Aberbargoed to Morrisons traffic signals (including
roundabout and A469 approach arms);

e Angel Way Link Road between Aberbargoed
roundabout and Britannia roundabout (including
both roundabouts);

e Pengam Road from Aberbargoed Roundabout to
south of Britannia Terrace

to be insufficient and that a large proportion of the

community should also be included for Exceptions.

They asked how the council would like to proceed with
this feedback. Would the council like Members to do
any more work in identifying other areas they feel need




Aberbargoed
and Bargoed
Cefn Fforest

roundabout
(including both
roundabouts)

A4049
Pengam Road
from Britannia

to be looked at? They are really unhappy with the
20mph proposed reduction.

] T T '\RY\ ]

Ystrad Mynach

to Tredomen —
Introduce new
40mph speed
limit between
Nelson
roundabout
(B4255
Caerphilly
Road junction)
and the
existing 30mph
speed limit at
Tredomen.

and Pengam roundabout to
south of
Britannia
Terrace
Morgan Jones | All An email was received from CliIr J Pritchard on 19" April | A reply was sent to Clir Pritchard on 19" April 2023 advising
2023 queried if Welsh Government were covering the him that Welsh Government were meeting the full cost of
costs associated with delivering the 30mph Exceptions | these works across Wales.
for signage in the areas.
Nelson A472 Mafon An email was received from ClIir S Morgan on 9" May A reply was sent to Clir Morgan on 9" May 2023
0 Road westof | 2023 confirming his support for the proposed 30mph acknowledging his support for the proposed Exceptions and
5 the Railway Exceptions in the Nelson area and the reduction of the | 40mph speed limit.
D Inn PH to the Caerphilly Rd, Nelson to Ystrad Mynach to 40mph.
p Nelson
R roundabout
N
Nelson / A472 Nelson

Nelson

A472 Mafon
Road west of
the Railway

An email was received from Clir B Miles on 2
February 2023 confirming that she was reasonably

A reply was sent to Clir Miles on 2" February 2023
confirming that the extents of this Exception on the plan
indicates the area that is currently subject to a 30mph speed




oT T ’\RY\ 1

Ystrad Mynach

to Tredomen —
Introduce new
40mph speed
limit between
Nelson
roundabout
(B4255
Caerphilly
Road junction)
and the
existing 30mph
speed limit at
Tredomen.

from Nelson Town Council on 9" May 2023 indicating
that most of the residents would totally agree with the
speed reduction on the Caerphilly Rd, Nelson to Ystrad
Mynach. Having spoken a few times with the business
owners/workers and daily commuters, they have
indicated that the road is too fast at the moment. What
is happening now is that drivers leaving Collier's Farm
have to turn left - doing so from a standing hill start onto
a 60mph road, but will then turn into the mouth of the
carpark 50m down the road and turn around. We have
seen so many accidents on the corner further up from
Heol Las and before Tredomen - one being fatal, | think
that its paramount that this road sees a change in its

Inn PH to the content with the Exception area identified in Nelson due | limit, and it is proposed that the existing arrangements will
Nelson to the need to keep traffic flowing along the A472. remain on this section of road.
roundabout

Clir Miles asked for confirmation if the Exception ends

where it does because it is the end of the built-up area

and, essentially, current speed limits would not

change?

Nelson More road An email was received on 8" May 2023 from Town A reply was sent to the Town Councillor on 24" May 2023
exceptions and | Councillor Eifion Dafydd from Nelson Town Council stating that all restricted roads within the Borough have
gradual speed | indicating that these were his own thoughts and have been assessed in accordance with Welsh Government’s
reductions been sent to other Council members for their guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are

information. significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were
e As ageneral comment, there needs to be more road | lower) of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across
exceptions based on road safety principles. As an the road.
example, housing estates could be 20mph, where
other roads would be 30mph. It is not appropriate to introduce frequent transitions of
e Considering the main road A472 through Nelson speed limits along a relatively shortlength of road as this
and on towards Ystrad: could lead to confusion amongst drivers.
DU o Use gradual speed reductions signs (derestricted
D road to 30mph road) from 60 to 30 using 50 & 40 | The proposed 40mph speed limit is considered appropriate
P signs; or 30 warning signs from 300/200/100 due to the number of side road junctions, traffic volumes
R yards away. and the alignment of the route.
o) o 40mph (blue section) along the whole length is
too slow; 50mph would be a more appropriate
change.
Nelson A472 Nelson An email was received from Town Councillor A John A reply was sent to the Town Councillor on 9t May 2023

acknowledging his support for the proposed 40mph speed
limit.




speed, and be reduced to 40mph before we have
another fatal accident.

Twyn Carno

60 to 50mph

An email was received from Clir C Cuss on 4" May
2023 indicating that he thought that further
consideration should be given to the road from
Butetown to the roundabout bottom of Carno Street
Rhymney due to the residential area of Butetown
nearby. It is currently a 60mph and feels that this
should be 50mph. A lot of people use this road to cross
to the pond and to work up the factories.

A reply was sent to Clir Cuss on 24" May 2023 indicating
that the Welsh Government has indicated that speed limits
of 40mph and above should not generally be changed at
this stage, but their limits may need to be reviewed after 17"
September 2023 following the publication of the revised
Setting Local Speed Limits in Wales (SLSLW) guidance.

6TT obed




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



Appendix 4 - Objections and Comments for 30mph Exceptions

T2T abed

village of Argoed. You have stated that there are low
numbers of pedestrians or cyclists which suggest that those
of us who have to cross the road or walk along it do not
matter. Residents on Woodland Terrace risk an accident
most days having to pull out in their cars on to the main
road with traffic coming from Blackwood speeding up over
the brow of the hill and down the hill coming from Tredegar.
Traffic moving through the village do not keep to the 30mph
limit and | am sure you are aware that there have been
several deaths on this road already. | would like some of the
councillors to come and walk through this village and
experience how frightening it is for those of us who can’t
sprint across the road when cars appear at high speeds.
Have there been any traffic surveys to monitor the speed of
cars through the village? A police presence does not reflect
a true picture as drivers warn each other that they are there.
If we can’t have a 20mph restriction, can the council at least
do more to enforce the 30mph restriction?

Wards Road Comment / Objection Rationale / Response
Camera surveys were undertaken during school term time in April
and May 2023. Pedestrian and cycle flows are based on the
average hourly flow over the 12 hour survey period (7am to 7pm).
Argoed A4048 | wish to raise objections to the decision made by CCBCto | The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Argoed maintain a 30mph speed limit on the A4048 through the Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are

significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the route
which have shown the following:

Northern end
Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.3 pedestrians, 1.9 cycles per hour

Near Village Hall
Crossing road — 0 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road —no pedestrian data, 0.2 cycles per hour

Southern end
Crossingroad — 1.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3 pedestrians, 1.8 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

A speed survey was carried out near the Penylan Road junction in
2017 which established that the mean speed was 31.0mph.
However, Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds.
Regrettably, even where speed reducing measures are in place,
there will always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set
out in the Highway Code and drive inappropriately for the
conditions. Road safety education initiatives are undertaken within
the County Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers




in conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences. The A4048 through Argoed is a police mobile safety
camera site and receives regular enforcement from GoSafe.

Council records confirm that during the last 3-year period for which
data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one personal
injury collision on the affected length of road.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the
strategic highway network with frontage development mainly limited
to one side of the road. There are limited roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not
within 100m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concernsraised,
additional speed management measures in the form of

for a few hundred yards in the village. In fact, driving at
more the 20mph in this 30mph zone is unsafe in any case.
The house side pavement is always covered in wheelie bins
and the on the other side pavement the hedge is overgrown.
What chance have residents got with 40tonne HGV lorries
pushing their speeds outside the front doors. Quite often |
have to walk down the street in the carriageway due to
wheelie bins on pavement and cars wheels on the kerbs (so
they don't get their mirrors smashed off). Could you please

g-? gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
(o) signs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road
@ marking roundels be provided along the length of the
= Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
B help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.
Argoed A4048 1st Email Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period for
Hollybush | was disappointed to find out that the A4048 between which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one
Hollybush to Blackwood will not be reduced to 20mph in the | personal injury collision in each of the affected lengths of road in
Argoed A4048 villages of Hollybush and Argoed. This road is a death trap. | Hollybush and Argoed. The data does not support the view that
Argoed It would be no hardship at all for drivers to reduce to 20mph | both approaches to the village of Hollybush are dangerous. The

Council is only provided with personal injury collision data to work
with, as there is no requirement for damage only collisions to be
reported, resulting in under-reporting of this dataset. Where they
are reported, the information necessary to understand the
circumstances of the collision are not always available.
Consequently, prioritising sites based on damage only collisions
would be inappropriate. It is however widely recognised that for
every personal injury collision recorded, there will be a number of




c¢T abed

pass my comment on to the relevant officers. Perhaps you
could also let me know who the road safety officer is. There
have been a succession of parked cars being smashed up
around nr 20 Liwynbach Terrace and Glenview. Could you
please find out if these regular collisions have been taken
into account before the decision to exempt Hollybush from
the 20mph reduction was made.

2" email

| do not think that the A4048 in Hollybush should be exempt
from the 20mph reduction. Yes, | know it is a trunk road
used by many commuters, lorries, vans, articulated lorries
etc. but it is also a residential street with some 40 houses on
it. Cars are parked on the pavements, wheelie bins are left
on the pavements and | quite often have to walk on the
carriageway to simply get to the bus stop. There is a
community centre and rugby club in close proximity. There
have been numerous RTA's in recent years and there is a
regular collision around nr 20 Liwynbach terrace, and also
regular accidents opposite Springfield terrace by the bus
stop. And the junction with Banalog terrace. There are
school children picked up at both bus stops. The south
entrance to the village is a hazardous bend. The north
entrance to the village has a bad junction whichis used as a
turning point. | could go on. This road should be reduced to
20mph. Let’s face it a lot of drivers ignore the 30mph

and it simply is not safe to take your children anywhere near
the A4048 in Hollybush these days with 40ton lorries
whizzing past you like they were on a dual carriageway.

3rd emalil

Photograph shows cars parked on pavement and wheelie
bins on pavement. The bus stop is about six cars down
from where | took the photo. The cars park on the
pavement so they don’t get their wing mirrors smashed off.
Some years ago, a parked car was written off by a lorry that
didn’t even bother stopping. Another residents has had
several cars written off by passing vehicles colliding with
them. I think there is a strong argument for the road to be
downgraded to a B road. Clearly the presence of parked
cars on one side makes it impossible for buses and lorries

damage-only collisions. The use of personal injury collisions only
for analysis is a nationally recognised approach.

Due to data protection laws, detailed information relating to the
collisions cannot be provided.

Wheeled bins are a universally approved system of collection.
Whilst it is acknowledged that such containers can prove
challenging in certain urban settings the environmental benefits of
the system compare favourably with the alternative form of
collection (i.e. black bags). All areas remain subject to routine
monitoring together with visits in response to complaints.

It is an offence for a vehicle to drive along a footway or park
causing an obstruction to pedestrians for which the police are able
to take enforcement action. The Council currently have no powers
to deal with these offences.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road. Whilst
it is recognised that there is a rugby club in Hollybush and
Community Centres within 100m of each Exception, surveys have
shown that pedestrian and cycle activity along the routes are low.
In both areas, although the property density is in excess of 20 per
km, the majority of the frontage development is situated on one
side of the road only and significant numbers of pedestrians and
cycles do not mix with traffic. The accesses to the Active Travel
route and the playing field are in excess of 100metres from the
affected length of road.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the route
which have shown the following:

Northern end of Argoed
Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.3 pedestrians, 1.9 cycles per hour

Near Argoed Village Hall
Crossing road — 0 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road —no pedestrian data, 0.2 cycles per hour




2T obed

to pass one another halfway along. There have been
situations where the traffic has been at a standstill in both
directions due to ambulances having to block the road
because they cannot park alongside the kerb. When this
happens cars sometimes mount the pavement on the other
side to drive by. | have been walking on the pavement
when this has happened and have had to turn sideways
with my back to the fence for them to pass me.

4th email

Pedestrians, cyclists, animals are all road hazards and
drivers need to slow down when they are around.
Unfortunately, many drivers passing through Hollybush do
not slow down, in fact some have speeded up when | have
crossedthe road. Thisis why | believe WAG have taken
the decision to slow down out of the driver’s hands and
introduced the 20mph limit. Certainly, the residents have
not been consulted and many of the WAG criteria for not
reducing the limit have not been considered. Finally, would
you be able to forward me the collated data to RTAs along
this section of road over that past few years. | have
contacted GOSAFE but they are only able to provide me
with details of speeding fines issued. | am trying to collect
some evidence to allow me to request average speed
cameras to be fitted between Hollybush and Blackwood.

| was very impressed by the installation of average speed
cameras by MTBC between Treharris and Pentrebach and
think these should be more widely adopted.

5th email

Please find attached photo taken last night of pavement
along Liwynbach Terrace and Glenview. | appreciate It is a
difficult subjectto resolve. But ultimately pedestrian safety
needs to be the priority. When | go to the Rugby Club or the
bus stop | have to walk down to number 7 or 8 and turn up
the gulley between the two rows of houses. Currently to do
this | need to walk on the 30mph carriageway as the
pavement is blocked by bins, cars and telegraph posts etc.
This is the same for the whole length of the main road. |
understand that the local authority are in the process of
being given powers to deal with parking on the pavements.

Southern end of Argoed
Crossingroad — 1.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3 pedestrians, 1.8 cycles per hour

Northern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrian, 1.6 cycles per hour

Southern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.4 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences. The A4048 through both Argoed and Hollybush are
police mobile safety camera sites and receive regular enforcement
from GoSafe. Welsh Government has provided a guidance/best
practice document for the assessment of sites for average speed
cameras. The primary considerations are collision history along the
route and an evidenced speeding issue (based on 85" percentile
speeds). In addition, analysis into the causes of the collisions must
have demonstrated that camera enforcement is the correct
solution, and there is no other cost-effective engineering measure
that would be more appropriate.

As part of the proposals, it is also intended to reduce the national
speed limit on the northern approach to the village to 40mph which
will act as a buffer zone and help to encourage compliance with the
30mph speed limit.




GeT obed

Clearly this situation need to be dealt with. It is not wholly
the fault of the residents, there is nowhere to store the
multiple bins especially for persons with mobility issues. And
cars parked fully in the carriageway tend to have their
mirrors smashed off by passing vehicles that have failed to
recognise the hazard.

6th email

| have read the WAG guidance on the granting of
exceptions. Could you please add the attached to my
previous observations. | have read the documentissued by
the WAG which is available from the following link.
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-
limit-restricted-roads-html (https://gov.wales/setting-
exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html)
| understand that Caerphilly Council have proposed the
A4048 in Hollybush is not deemed appropriate for the lower
20mph speed limit. | have listed below reasons why | do not
agree with the exception, most of which are referred to in
the above guidance document.

1. a20mph speed limit should be set where
pedestrians and/or cyclists and motor vehicles mix
in a frequent manner:

a. Liwynbach Terrace, Glenview and Springfield residents
park cars and vans kerbside overnight.

b. Residents vehicles need to stop to park outside their
homes, this sometimes agitates other drivers.

c. Passengers have to exit vehicles into oncoming traffic,
residents need to unload shopping and other goods
kerbside.

d. Numerous bins are left on the pavement as residents do
not have room for them on their properties or are
disabled.

e. Residents have to walk on the carriageway to get down
the street due to bins and cars parked on kerbs.

f. Cars park on kerb in an attempt to protect their vehicles
from damage by passing vehicles that are going too fast
to avoid the hazards.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the
strategic highway network and there is currently no scope to
downgrade its classification as there is no viable alternative route.
The frontage development is mainly limited to one side of the road
resulting in little requirement for pedestrians to cross the road.
There are limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and
cyclists (ice-cream vans, refuse lorries, post vans, food deliveries
are not deemed to be roadside amenities for the purpose of this
exercise) and the route is not within 100m walk of any educational
setting or hospital.

The presence of parked vehicles along the road can have a
positive impact on traffic speeds and they serve as a natural
inhibitor. It is recognised that through traffic may need to
stop/reduce speed to allow residents to manoeuvre their vehicle
into a parking space or access their vehicle and to enable buses to
pick up and set down passengers. This is a common occurrence
along many routes.

On street parking is prevalent throughout the country and
emergency service vehicles will park wherever necessary to carry
out their duties. This can often result in vehicles being double-
parked.

The proposals were advertised in accordance with the Local
Authorities’ Traffic Orders Procedures Regulations. The Notice
detailing the proposals was advertised in the Western Mail for
public comment on 25" May 2023. Copies of the notice were
erected on site, and plans showing the extents of the proposed
Exceptions were available on the Council’'s website and
DataMapWales. Public comments were invited until 16" June
2023.

Concerns regarding overgrown vegetation have been passed to the
Parks Department.

The Council is in the process of introducing parking restrictions on
A4048 Newport Road near the junction with Banalog Terrace in
order to prevent obstructive parking and improve road safety at the
southern end of the village.



https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html

9¢T obed

. There are significant numbers of pedestrians and

cyclists travelling along across the road.

. Hollybush is a point of entrance and exit to the Sirhowy

Valley cycle track SUSTRANS route 467.

. Ramblers groups start their walk from the junction with

Railway terrace.

. There are three bus stops in Hollybush on the A4048 two

of which do not have pull-ins and buses need to stop in
the carriageway.

. The bus stops are used by local schoolchildren who

have to cross the road daily.

. Many local residents all walk along the road to walk

dogs, take children to the park and access the valley
walk.

. The hedgerow on the opposite pavement is sometimes

left uncut causing prams difficulty passing.

. Within 100m walk of any community centre
. The Hollybush Rugby Club warm hub is within 200m of

the highway.

. The Hollybush Community centre is approx. 100m from

the highway.

. Residents from the bottom of the village all have to cross

the road to access the above centres.

. Where the number of residential and/or retail

premises fronting a road exceeds 20 properties per
km.

. This is true, the houses on the A4048 have bin

collections, food delivery vans, ambulances many of
which have difficulty parking safely.

. Larger delivery lorries have to block the road.
. There are several disabled persons in the street who

need to get in their vehicles safely.

. The local company Lectogic now have many more

workers and vans all of which are in close proximity to
the main road for loading in the mornings.

. Where the number and/or type of collisions

occurring along the road means that the road users
and the local community would gain significant road

The widened footway at the northern end is provided to improve
visibility for drivers exiting Railway Terrace and the Council has not
received any previous concerns regarding the road layout.

The Council utilises vehicle activated signage which displays a
reminder of the speed limit (and SLOW/ARAF) if a vehicle
approaches in excess of that limit. Speed indicator devices (which
display the actual approach speed of a vehicle) are not used within
the Borough as they can encourage poor driver behaviour.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concernsraised,
additional speed management measures in the form of
gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
sighs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road
marking roundels be provided along the length of the
Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.




/2T 9bed

safety and other benefits froma speed limit of
20mph.

a. The number of accidents in recent years is too numerous
to list, the worst spots are the bad junctions at the north
and south entrances to the village and the area in front of
Glenview / Liwynbach.

b. The approach from the south of the village is dangerous
due to the bus stop and cars parked opposite causing a
bottleneck with oncoming vehicles.

c. The north because the junction with Railway terrace it is
used as a turning circle and it is a difficult lefthand turn if
you are turning left coming from Tredegar.

6. And on either side of the carriageway is open
parkland and/or sports fields in regular use by
people on foot and/or cycle

a. Rugby ground and children’s park is on one side of the
road and the Sirhowy walk and mountain walks are on
the other side of the road.

| hope you will take the above points into consideration prior
to your final decision.

7th email

| have found the attached on the Caerphilly website.

| do not think it is correct. Very Low Pedestrians? There are
42 dwellings with occupants of all ages fronting the road,
potentially 100 -200 persons all pedestrians plus persons
visiting. No roadside amenities - 3 bus stops, ice cream
van, bin lorry, post van, food deliveries, Lectogic solar
panels. Access to Sirhowy valley walk. Not within 100m -
Hollybush Village warm hub, Rugby club, Hollybush
community centre, playground at end of Banalog .

8th email

Considering the A4048 is classed as a strategic route surely
the situation shown is unacceptable. Cars are coming from
the south and are completely unaware of the park cars on
their right until they come around the bend into the path of
oncoming vehicles. The problem is that occasionally a
vehicle will come around the bend having failed to reduce its




speed to 30mph. Lorries have to cross the white lines into
the junction to negotiate the hazard.

9th email

My observations are

1) auto speed sign is ineffective, it is partially covered in
foliage and is not very bright. It flashes occasionally but it
does not appear to tell drivers their actual speed.

2) There were two scaffold lorries parked outside 1 & 2
Liwynbach. A little earlier there was also a telecom road
gang wagon parked near the auto speed sign.

3) There were 4 scaffolders (pedestrians) unloading in the
road.

4) Vehicles were passing the scaffold lorry into oncoming
traffic.

5) Two lorries or a bus arriving at this point at the same time
from opposite directions would have been an issue.

6) There is a pedestrian refuge island on the left which
forces larger vehicles towards one another. This is a

Q_? problem if they haven’t slowed down.
(@) 7) It was very difficult for me to cross the road at this
@ location as there was not a clear view up the road looking
B south from the Liwynbach pavement side.
(0 0]
Argoed A4048 | understand that Caerphilly Council have proposed the The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Hollybush A4048 in Hollybush is not deemed appropriate for the lower | Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are

20mph speed limit.

| have listed below reasons why | do not agree with the
exception, most of which are referred to in the above
guidance document.

A 20mph speed limit should be set where pedestrians
and/or cyclists and motor vehicles mix in a frequent
manner :

Liwynbach Terrace, Glenview and Springfield residents
park cars and vans kerbside overnight.

Residents vehicles need to stop to park outside their
homes, this sometimes agitates other drivers.

significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road. Whilst
it is recognised that there is a rugby club and a Community Centre
within 100m, surveys have shown that pedestrian and cycle activity
along the route is low. Although the property density is in excess of
20 per km, the majority of the frontage development is situated on
one side of the road only and significant numbers of pedestrians
and cycles do not mix with traffic. The accesses to the Active
Travel route and the playing field are in excess of 100metres from
the affected length of road.

Surveys have been undertaken along the route which have shown
the following:




6¢T abed

Passengers have to exit vehicles into oncoming traffic,
residents need to unload shopping and other goods
kerbside.

Numerous bins are left on the pavement as residents do not
have room for them on their properties or are disabled.
Residents have to walk on the carriageway to get down the
street due to bins and cars parked on kerbs.

Cars park on kerb in an attempt to protect their vehicles
from damage by passing vehicles that are going too fast to
avoid the hazards.

There are significant numbers of pedestrians and
cyclists travelling along across the road.

Hollybush is a point of entrance and exit to the Sirhowy
Valley cycle track SUSTRANS route 467.

Ramblers groups start their walk from the junction with
Railway terrace.

There are three bus stops in Hollybush on the A4048 two of
which do not have pull-ins and buses need to stop in the
carriageway.

The bus stops are used by local schoolchildren who have to
cross the road daily.

Many Local residents all walk along the road to walk dogs,
take children to the park and access the valley walk.

The hedgerow on the opposite pavement is sometimes left
uncut causing prams difficulty passing.

Within 100m walk of any community centre

The Hollybush Rugby Club warm hub is within 200m of the
highway.

The Hollybush Community centre is approx. 100m from the
highway.

Residents from the bottom of the village all have to cross
the road to access the above centres.

Where the number of residential and/or retail premises
fronting a road exceeds 20 properties per km.

This is true, the houses on the A4048 have bin collections,
food delivery vans, ambulances many of which have
difficulty parking safely.

Larger delivery lorries have to block the road.

Northern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrian, 1.6 cycles per hour

Southern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.4 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period for
which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one
personal injury collision in the affected length of road.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences.

As part of the proposals, it is also intended to reduce the national
speed limit on the northern approach to the village to 40mph which
will act as a buffer zone and help to encourage compliance with the
30mph speed limit.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the
strategic highway network. The frontage development is mainly
limited to one side of the road resulting in little requirement for
pedestrians to cross the road. There are limited roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not
within 100m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

The presence of parked vehicles along the road can have a
positive impact on traffic speeds and they serve as a natural




There are several disabled persons in the street who need
to get in their vehicles safely.

The local company Lectogic nhow have many more workers
and vans all of which are in close proximity to the main road
for loading in the mornings.

Where the number and/or type of collisions occurring
along the road means that the road users and the local
community would gain significant road safety and other
benefits from a speed limit of 20mph.

The number of accidents in recent years is too numerous to
list, the worst spots are the bad junctions at the north and
south entrances to the village and the area in front of
Glenview / Liwynbach.

The approach from the south of the village is dangerous due
to the bus stop and cars parked opposite causing a
bottleneck with oncoming vehicles.

The north because the junction with Railway terrace it is
used as a turning circle and it is a difficult left-hand turn if

inhibitor. It is recognised that through traffic may need to
stop/reduce speed to allow residents to manoeuvre their vehicle
into a parking space and access their vehicle and to enable buses
to pick up and set down passengers. This is a common occurrence
along many routes.

On street parking is prevalent throughout the country and
emergency service vehicles will park wherever necessary to carry
out their duties. This can often result in vehicles being double-
parked.

Concerns regarding overgrown vegetation have been passedto the
Parks Department.

The Council is in the process of introducing parking restrictions on
A4048 Newport Road near the junction with Banalog Terrace in
order to prevent obstructive parking and improve road safety at the
southern end of the village.

https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-
limit-

restricted-roads-html (https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-
20mph-default-speed-limit-

restricted-roads-html)

| understand that Caerphilly Council have proposed the
A4048 in Hollybush is not deemed appropriate for the lower
20mph speed limit.

Q-? you are turning left coming from Tredegar. Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
o) taken forward. However,inlight of the concerns raised,
@ And on either side of the carriageway is open parkland | additional speed management measures in the form of
[ and/or sports fields in regular use by people on foot gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
8 and/or cycle signs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road
Rugby ground and children’s park is on one side of the road | marking roundels be provided along the length of the
and the Sirhowy walk and mountain walks are on the other | Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
side of the road. help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.
| hope you will take the above points into consideration prior
to your final decision.
Argoed A4048 | have read the document issued by the WAG which is The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Hollybush available from the following link Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are

significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road. Whilst
it is recognised that there is a rugby club and a Community Centre
within 100m, surveys have shown that pedestrian and cycle activity
along the route is low. Although the property density is in excess of
20 per km, the majority of the frontage development is situated on
one side of the road only and significant numbers of pedestrians
and cycles do not mix with traffic. The accesses to the Active



https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fsetting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C46009e1185b74e88afb208db6e37edcd%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638224958711699275%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2Bohj9LWYE5O9TfJxLCx3mhKw9MM%2BQ%2B3XwUsFKYN8oto%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fsetting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C46009e1185b74e88afb208db6e37edcd%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638224958711699275%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2Bohj9LWYE5O9TfJxLCx3mhKw9MM%2BQ%2B3XwUsFKYN8oto%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fsetting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C46009e1185b74e88afb208db6e37edcd%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638224958711699275%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2Bohj9LWYE5O9TfJxLCx3mhKw9MM%2BQ%2B3XwUsFKYN8oto%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fsetting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-&data=05%7C01%7CGODSAT%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C46009e1185b74e88afb208db6e37edcd%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C638224958711699275%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2Bohj9LWYE5O9TfJxLCx3mhKw9MM%2BQ%2B3XwUsFKYN8oto%3D&reserved=0

TET abed

| have listed below reasons why | do not agree with the
exception, most of which are referred to in the above
guidance document.

A 20mph speed limit should be set where pedestrians
and/or cyclists and motor vehicles mix in a frequent
manner :

Liwynbach Terrace , Glenview and Springfield residents
park cars and vans kerbside overnight .

Residents vehicles need to stop to park outside their
homes, this sometimes agitates other other drivers.
Passengers have to exit vehicles into oncoming traffic,
residents need to unload shopping and other goods
kerbside.

Numerous bins are left on the pavement as residents do not
have room for them on their properties or are disabled.
Residents have to walk on the carriageway to get down the
street due to bins and cars parked on kerbs.

Cars park on kerb in an attempt to protect their vehicles
from damage by passing vehicles that are going too fast to
avoid the hazards.

There are significant numbers of pedestrians and
cyclists travelling along across the road.

Hollybush is a point of entrance and exit to the Sirhowy
Valley cycle track SUSTRANS route 467.

Ramblers groups start their walk from the junction with
Railway terrace.

There are three bus stops in Hollybush on the A4048 two of
which do not have pull-ins and buses need to stop in the
carriageway.

The bus stops are used by local schoolchildren who have to
cross the road daily.

Many Local residents all walk along the road to walk dogs,
take children to the park and access the valley walk.

The hedgerow on the opposite pavement is sometimes left
uncut causing prams difficulty passing.

Within 100m walk of any community centre

Travel route and the playing field are in excess of 100metres from
the affected length of road.

Surveys have been undertaken along the route which have shown
the following:

Northern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrian, 1.6 cycles per hour

Southern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.5 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.4 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period for
which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one
personal injury collision in the affected length of road.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences.

As part of the proposals, it is also intended to reduce the national
speed limit on the northern approach to the village to 40mph which
will act as a buffer zone and help to encourage compliance with the
30mph speed limit.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the
strategic highway network. The frontage development is mainly
limited to one side of the road resulting in little requirement for




Z<T obed

The Hollybush Rugby Club warm hub is within 200m of the
highway.

The Hollybush Community centre is approx. 100m from the
highway.

Residents from the bottom of the village all have to cross
the road to access the above centres.

Where the number of residential and/or retail premises
fronting a road exceeds 20 properties per km.

This is true, the houses on the A4048 have bin collections,
food delivery vans, ambulances many of which have
difficulty parking safely.

Larger delivery lorries have to block the road.

There are several disabled persons in the street who need
to get in their vehicles safely.

The local company Lectogic now have many more workers
and vans all of which are in close proximity to the main road
for loading in the mornings.

Where the number and/or type of collisions occurring
along the road means that the road users and the local
community would gain significant road safety and other
benefits from a speed limit of 20mph.

The number of accidents in recent years is too numerous to
list, the worst spots are the bad junctions at the north and
south entrances to the village and the area in front of
Glenview / Liwynbach .

The approach from the south of the village is dangerous due
to the bus stop and cars parked opposite causing a
bottleneck with oncoming vehicles.

The north because the junction with Railway terrace it is
used as a turning circle and it is a difficult left hand turn if
you are turning left coming from Tredegar.

And on either side of the carriageway is open parkland
and/or sports fields in regular use by people on foot
and/or cycle

Rugby ground and childrens park is on one side of the road
and the Sirhowy walk and mountain walks are on the other
side of the road.

pedestrians to cross the road. There are limited roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not
within 100m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

The presence of parked vehicles along the road can have a
positive impact on traffic speeds and they serve as a natural
inhibitor. It is recognised that through traffic may need to
stop/reduce speed to allow residents to manoeuvre their vehicle
into a parking space and access their vehicle and to enable buses
to pick up and set down passengers. This is a common occurrence
along many routes.

On street parking is prevalent throughout the country and
emergency service vehicles will park wherever necessary to carry
out their duties. This can often result in vehicles being double-
parked.

Concerns regarding overgrown vegetation have been passedto the
Parks Department.

The Council is in the process of introducing parking restrictions on
A4048 Newport Road near the junction with Banalog Terrace in
order to prevent obstructive parking and improve road safety at the
southern end of the village.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concerns raised,
additional speed management measures in the form of
gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
signs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road
marking roundels be provided along the length of the
Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.




| hope you will take the above points into consideration prior
to your final decision.

Argoed

c¢T abed

A4048
Argoed

| am writing in reference to the Speed Limits Traffic
Regulation Order 2023 and wish to object to Caerphilly
County Borough Council’s proposal to retain the 30mph
speed limit on road A4048 — Argoed.

Having read the rationale for setting exceptions to the
20mph speed limit https://www.gov.wales/setting-
exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html,
| would like to make the following observations:

1. | appreciate that the A4048 is a Class A road, but that
does not appear to be reason enough for an exception to be
made. Argoed is a small section of this road, and reducing
the speed limit in this residential area should not
significantly impact the flow of traffic along that road — I refer
to Welsh Government’s response to the following FAQ:

Q. What effect will the speed limit have on journey times?
A. In many cases lowering the speed limit to 20mph will
have little or no impact on journey times. Where there is an
impact, our analysis showed us that most journeys would
only be around 1 minute longer, but this would make the
roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists.

https://www.gov.wales/introducing-20mph-speed-limits-
frequently-asked-questions

2. | would suggest that the response to Question A - Are
there significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds
were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or
across the road? - in the Setting Exceptions... guidance
should be “Yes”.

The Argoed stretch of the A4048 is a residential area, and
within easy walking distance of a cycle path and a primary
school, and a village hall is situated on the A4048, in the
centre of Argoed village. There are children who live in the
area who walk from Cwm Argoed (as well as those who live

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road. Whilst
it is recognised that there is a Community Centre along the route,
surveys have shown that pedestrian and cycle activity is low.
Although the frontage property density is in excess of 20 per km,
the majority of the frontage development is situated on one side of
the road and significant numbers of pedestrians and cycles do not
mix with traffic. The access to the Active Travel route is some
distance from the affected length of road.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the route
which have shown the following:

Northern end
Crossing road — 3.6 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.3 pedestrians, 1.9 cycles per hour

Near Village Hall
Crossing road — 0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road —no pedestrian data, 0.2 cycles per hour

Southern end
Crossing road — 1.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3 pedestrians, 1.8 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the
strategic highway network with frontage development mainly limited
to one side of the road. There are limited roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not
within 100m walk of any educational setting or hospital.




ycT obed

on the main road) to the primary school in Markham or to
the nearest bus stop/s, who must navigate a dangerous
junction at the bottom of Penylan Road daily. There have
been several car accidents (including fatalities) along this
road and as a resident living on the A4048 | know all too
well how frequently drivers move at high speed as they
career past my house. Residents drive their children to the
bus stop on Penylan Road to catch the school bus, for fear
of them having an accident, even though it’s less than a 5-
minute walk. There was also a car accident on this junction
recently when a vehicle ran into the side of a car.

Both the village hall and cycle path have seen an upsurge in
use since the Covid pandemic, and with more people
working from home, spending time in and around their local
community is of increasing importance to them. If the road
was safer, even more people would feel confident to walk
and cycle along this road. | refer again to Welsh
Government’s FAQs, where they provide evidence of lower
speed limits positively impacting people’s decision to walk
or cycle more. Evidence too of the reduction in pollution and
“pollution neutral” areas in 20mph zones, which is hugely
important now that the world is faced with a climate
emergency. Making positive change is critical to wellbeing in
current times, and for the wellbeing of future generations.

As there is a centrally situated community centre in Argoed,
could you please outline your rationale with regards to the
above, and when considering points 2.2.8 and 2.2.9 of
Setting exceptions to the 20mph default speed limit for
restricted roads? The rationale also, please, in relation to
point 2.2.16 where examples are provided of how the place
criteria can be interpreted.

I am copying in my local county councillor, Walter Williams,
as | have had email and telephone conversations with him
over recent months regarding traffic issues on the A4048 in
Argoed, and | would be more than willing to share details of
my communication with him. | have also cc’d Rhiannon
Passmore, MS for Islwyn.

Council records confirm that during the last 3-year period for which
data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one personal
injury collision on the affected length of road.

A speed survey was carried out near the Penylan Road junction in
2017 which established that the mean speed was 31.0mph.
However, Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on
Exceptions should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds.
Regrettably, even where speed reducing measures are in place,
there will always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set
out in the highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions.
Road safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences. The A4048 through Argoed is a police mobile safety
camera site and receives regular enforcement from GoSafe.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concernsraised,
additional speed management measures in the form of
gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
signs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road
marking roundels be provided along the length of the
Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.




Argoed

GeT abed

A4048
Hollybush

| have read the documentissued by the WAG which is
available from the following link.

https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-
limit-restricted-roads-html(https://gov.wales/setting-
exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html)

| understand that Caerphilly Council have proposed the
A4048 in Hollybush is not deemed appropriate for the lower
20mph speed limit.

| have listed below reasons why | do not agree with the
exception, most of which are referred to in the above
guidance document.

a 20mph speed limit should be set where pedestrians
and/or cyclists and motor vehicles mix in a frequent manner:

Liwynbach Terrace, Glenview and Springfield residents park
cars and vans kerbside overnight.

Residents vehicles need to stop to park outside their
homes, this sometimes agitates other drivers.

Passengers have to exit vehicles into oncoming traffic.
Residents need to unload shopping and other goods
kerbside.

Numerous bins are left on the pavement as residents do not
have room for them on their properties or are disabled.
Residents have to walk on the carriageway to get down the
street due to bins and cars parked on kerbs.

Cars park on kerb in an attempt to protect their vehicles
from damage by passing vehicles that are going too fast to
avoid the hazards.

There are significant numbers of pedestrians and cyclists
travelling along across the road.

Hollybush is a point of entrance and exit to the Sirhowy
Valley cycle track SUSTRANS route 467.

Ramblers groups start their walk from the junction with
Railway terrace.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road. Whilst
it is recognised that there is a rugby club and a Community Centre
within 100m, surveys have shown that pedestrian and cycle activity
along the route is low. Although the property density is in excess of
20 per km, the majority of the frontage development is situated on
one side of the road only and significant numbers of pedestrians
and cycles do not mix with traffic. The accesses tothe Active
Travel route and the playing field are in excess of 100metres from
the affected length of road.

Surveys have been undertaken along the route which have shown
the following:

Northern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrian, 1.6 cycles per hour

Southern end of Hollybush
Crossing road — 2.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.4 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period for
which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one
personal injury collision in the affected length of road.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the



https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html(https:/gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html)
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html(https:/gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html)
https://gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html(https:/gov.wales/setting-exceptions-20mph-default-speed-limit-restricted-roads-html)

9¢T abed

There are three bus stops in Hollybush on the A4048 two of
which do not have pull-ins and buses need to stop in the
carriageway.

The bus stops are used by local schoolchildren who have to
cross the road daily.

Many Local residents all walk along the road to walk dogs,
take children to the park and access the valley walk.

The hedgerow on the opposite pavement is sometimes left
uncut causing prams difficulty passing.

Within 100m walk of any community centre.

The Hollybush Rugby Club warm hub is within 200m of the
highway.

The Hollybush Community centre is approx. 100m from the
highway.

Residents from the bottom of the village all have to cross
the road to access the above centres.

Where the number of residential and/or retail premises
fronting a road exceeds 20 properties per km.

This is true, the houses on the A4048 have bin collections ,
food delivery vans , ambulances many of which have
difficulty parking safely.

Larger delivery lorries have to block the road.

There are several disabled persons in the street who need
to get in their vehicles safely.

The local company Lectogic nhow have many more workers
and vans all of which are in close proximity to the main road
for loading in the mornings.

Where the number and/or type of collisions occurring along
the road means that the road users and the local community
would gain significant road safety and other benefits from a
speed limit of 20mph.

The number of accidents in recent years is too numerous to
list, the worst spots are the bad junctions at the north and
south entrances to the village and the area in front of
Glenview / Liwynbach.

The approach from the south of the village is dangerous due
to the bus stop and cars parked opposite causing a
bottleneck with oncoming vehicles.

Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences.

As part of the proposals, it is also intended to reduce the national
speed limit on the northern approach to the village to 40mph which
will act as a buffer zone and help to encourage compliance with the
30mph speed limit.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the
strategic highway network. The frontage development is mainly
limited to one side of the road resulting in little requirement for
pedestrians to cross the road. There are limited roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not
within 100m walk of any educational setting or hospital.

The presence of parked vehicles along the road can have a
positive impact on traffic speeds and they serve as a natural
inhibitor. It is recognised that through traffic may need to
stop/reduce speed to allow residents to manoeuvre their vehicle
into a parking space and access their vehicle and to enable buses
to pick up and set down passengers. This is a common occurrence
along many routes.

On street parking is prevalent throughout the country and
emergency service vehicles will park wherever necessary to carry
out their duties. This can often result in vehicles being double-
parked.

Concerns regarding overgrown vegetation have been passedto the
Parks Department.

The Council is in the process of introducing parking restrictions on
A4048 Newport Road near the junction with Banalog Terrace in
order to prevent obstructive parking and improve road safety at the
southern end of the village.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concernsraised,
additional speed management measures in the form of
gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
signs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road




The north because the junction with Railway terrace it is
used as a turning circle and it is a difficult left-hand turn if
you are turning left coming from Tredegar.

And on either side of the carriageway is open parkland
and/or sports fields in regular use by people on foot and/or
cycle Rugby ground and children’s park is on one side of
the road and the Sirhowy walk and mountain walks are on
the other side of the road.

| hope you will take the above points into consideration prior
to your final decision.

marking roundels be provided along the length of the
Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.

Bedwas and
Trethomas

/€T abed

A468
Newport
Road,
Trethomas
from the
western
side of Clos
Pantglas to
the existing
30mph
signs to the
west of the
village

Please find attached two maps detailing the proposed
30mph limit that my objection relates to and a suggestion
that shows how the intended 30mph section could be
amended to offer a safer alternative and the location of a
much used lane that is usually accessed by crossing the
busy A468 and the location of The Box Cafe.

Trethomas &

Possibly <~
Make this
section 20mph.

T
ue /\;\::21.5‘:21:?.‘::.#"'
\ Proposed 30mph zone

that is the subject of
my objection. .

Firstly, let me state that | am fully in favour the 20mph
speed limits in particular through Trethomas village where |
reside and | greatly support the CCBC implementation of
said speed limits and | thank for all your hard work
regarding this matter. However | respectfully request that
you make an amendment to your plans to Implement a
30mph limit in the manner that you propose on the western
side of the village by either shortening the 30mph section so

The entrance gates to the school are located in excess of 100m
from the A468. However, a traffic signal controlled pedestrian
crossing facility is available to aid crossing movements.

Recommendation — In light of the concernsraised, it is
recommended that the proposed 30mph Exception by reduced
in length by approximately 60m at its Eastern end. This minor
amendment to the extent of the Exception will help to improve
safety on the approach to the village.




g¢T abed

that the 20mph limit section is longer and so covers the
whole of Trethomas village, move it further west or
preferably dispense with it completely, there are other
40mph to 20mph transitions without a buffer being
proposed. The proposed downhill location of the transition
between 30mph and 20mph will not have the desired effect
of offering the full protection that a 20mph limit will offer the
village and if retained would be better placed further west,
where drivers will fully recognise the start of the community
and take appropriate action to reduce their speed. My
suggested amendments to your proposal will have minimal
effect on the progress of motor vehicles but will have a large
positive benefit to the community as a whole. The 30mph
section of road that | have objections to is within 100m of
Bedwas High School, Bedwas Workmens Hall, Bedwas
Library, Bedwas Bowls club, Bedwas Leisure Centre and
the recently opened Civic taxi office on old Newport Road
and also only just over 100m from Bedwas Community
Centre, so is a busy hub of local activity. Also, there is a
busy eatery (The Box Cafe) located on the A468 Newport
Road itself, adjacent to the car wash, slightly set off from the
road that is regularly accessed by locals on foot. Next to
the eatery on the A468 Newport Road, there is a car dealer
and then a row of factory units that are all regularly
accessed by people on foot from the village. Opposite the
Box Cafe on the opposite side of the road in your proposed
30mph section, there is a small green area that children
regularly use to play, that | would hope you would agree
would benefit greatly from the safety aspects of a 20mph
limit, as there is regular interaction by vulnerable
pedestrians with traffic at this point. | cannot find reference
in the Welsh Gowvt. process for setting exceptions, place
criteria, that allows an exception where a school or
community centre is ‘set back from a road’ merely that the
road in question has to be ‘Within 100m walk of any
educational establishment’ or community centre and the
30mph section you propose is measurably within that
distance. Please take into account that not everyone uses a
motor vehicle to access the school, in fact the majority of
pupils are from Trethomas village and nearby locality and a
significant number can visibly be seen regularly frequenting




6ST obed

the narrow pavement alongside part of your proposed
30mph section on the A468 Newport Road on the way to
and from school and lunchtime to access local food
establishments in the village including The Box Cafe. What
applies to the school also applies to the other
establishments referenced near to the school and whereas
in the past large numbers would be seen to be using their
motor vehicles, an increasing number of people can now be
seen to be accessing the local facilities on foot, which is
predicted to increase as sustainable means of transport
become more frequently used, which will even more
increase the numbers using the narrow pavement alongside
the A468 Newport Road within your proposed 30mph
section as part of their journey. Not forgetting those that
regularly walk to the Box Cafe etc on the A468 Newport
Road itself and even a slight extension of the 20mph limit as
suggested will further encourage people to experience the
mental and physical benefits that walking have been proven
to offer. Other local factors are also important, so please
note that according to records, even in just the small section
of the A468 Newport Road that | have suggested could
possibly be changed to 20 mph from your proposed 30mph,
a number of pedestrians have sustained serious injuries in
recent years involving collisions with vehicular traffic, at
least one of which was a child of high school age.

Ref:
https://bikedata.cyclestreets.net/collisions:field%3Acasualtie
s=Cyclist%2CPedestrian%2CCar%20occupant&field%3Asp
eed limit=30/#15.28/51.589568/-3.18824

In addition, within your proposed 30mph section there is a
footway that allows access to the Pantglas Industrial estate
from the A468 Newport Road that is not only used by
workers going to and from their place of employment, but
also by others such as people walking their dogs and
children going to the riverside walk and cycle path. The safe
way to cross the road and use the lane is to walk up the hill
and use the pedestrian crossing, but human nature being
what it is, a significant number choose to cross the busy
road directly opposite the lane at either the end of Bevan
Close or the green area and interact with the traffic and so
this area would benefit greatly if it was 20mph and not



https://bikedata.cyclestreets.net/collisions:field%3Acasualties=Cyclist%2CPedestrian%2CCar%20occupant&field%3Aspeed_limit=30/#15.28/51.589568/-3.18824
https://bikedata.cyclestreets.net/collisions:field%3Acasualties=Cyclist%2CPedestrian%2CCar%20occupant&field%3Aspeed_limit=30/#15.28/51.589568/-3.18824
https://bikedata.cyclestreets.net/collisions:field%3Acasualties=Cyclist%2CPedestrian%2CCar%20occupant&field%3Aspeed_limit=30/#15.28/51.589568/-3.18824

30mph as it will be with your exception. | have marked on
the attached maps the location of this lane for your
consideration. So, to sum up, common sense and the
Welsh Government guidelines would dictate that the whole
of the village that is frequently used by pedestrians/cyclists
should be offered the full protection of a 20mph limit, which
will not occur with your present proposal. | thank you for
giving time to consider my objection, please give serious
consideration to what could potentially amount to only a
slight amendment to your plans, that will have a large
positive effect on the community and so as ensure that the
much busier west end of Trethomas village, that is a
veritable hive of activity, is fully protected by 20mph as
intended and ultimately encourage more people to walk or
cycle.

Blackwood

ot T abed

B4254
Highfields
Way from
the
roundabout
to the west
of the
junction
with
Montclaire
Avenue

We are writing to object to the proposal to apply for an
exemption to the new 20mph speed limit for the above road.
In my view many cars/vehicles exceed the current speed
limit of 30 mph on Highfields Way. In terms of road safety
and road crossing, this has created a higher risk of an
accident for both primary school children and pedestrians.
This could be mitigated by the introduction of a lower speed
limit. At peak times there is always a queue of traffic at the
traffic lights close to Libanus Primary school, with a
detrimental impact on air quality. Reducing the speed limit
to 20 mph will reduce the volume of cars waiting at the lights
at peak times and reduce the impact on air quality. In
addition, the current speed of many cars/ vehicles has
created severe noise pollution. If the exception to the
20mph limit is granted, the introduction of speed bumps
along Highfields Way would help to mitigate the risks
discussed above.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences. The site has previously been assessed in accordance
with the Council's Speed Management Strategy and does not meet
the criteria for the consideration of traffic calming measures.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the route
which have shown the following:

Highfields Way near St Andrews Drive junction
Crossingroad — 1.2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 9.4 pedestrians, 0.4 cycles per hour




T T obed

Highfields Way near Ash Grove junction
Crossing road — 6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 13.4 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Bryn Rd arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 6.9 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.6 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per hour

Highfields Way arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 7 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.7 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour

Oak Terrace Bypass arm of roundabout
Crossingroad — 6.1 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 12.3 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

Heol y Dderwen arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 4.6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 26.3 pedestrians, 1 cycle per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across
Highfields Way are not considered to be significant at this location.
However, the surveys have identified significant pedestrian activity
in the vicinity of the roundabout.

Recommendation - In order to improve safety, it is
recommended that the proposed 30mph Exception be
amended to exclude the roundabout and the approach roads.
The default 20mph will therefore apply to the roundabout and
the following sections of road:

Bryn Road — from the roundabout to a point approximately
25m north.

Oak Terrace Bypass — from the roundabout to a point
approximately 25m south.

Highfields Way - from the roundabout to a point approximately
140m east (to cover the accessroad to Tesco Express, Parc
Plas).




In light of the concerns raised, it is also recommended that
additional speed management measures in the form of
gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
signs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road
marking roundels be provided along the length of the
Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.

Blackwood

2T abed

B4254
Highfields
Way from
the
roundabout
to the west
of the
junction
with
Montclaire
Avenue

| would like to object to the proposed retention of the 30mph
limit in Highfields Way, Blackwood. Your proposal makes no
sense considering the residential nature of the area the road
runs through. There are 5 roads that lead off Highfields Way
all leading to residential properties. A primary school at the
bottom of the road at the traffic lights and a shop at the top.
There is a small car park at the junction of Highfields Way
and Montclair Avenue. There is no doubt this is an entirely
residential area. There are no traffic calming measures on
this road meaning cars rarely abide by the current speed
limit. There is no evident enforcement of the current speed
limits. The road is quite steep meaning that cars gain speed
when approaching the Montclair Avenue junction. This
makes the situation dangerous for pedestrians using the car
park before walking the last stretch to school. Your well-
being plan is about making communities safer for citizens,
this road is currently dangerous due to the speed the traffic
travels and will remain that way unless the speed limit is
dropped. It also requires effective speed enforcement. Air
quality is also a concern. There is no chance of securing
safer routes to school that involve Highfields Way, as a
parent | would not allow a primary school aged child to walk
alone on this road. There is also little chance of this road
forming part of an active travel route, as an adult | find
walking on Highfields Way dangerous due to the current
speed of vehicles travelling. It is also dangerous for vehicles
to pull into and out of the roads that lead off Highfields Way.
Please consider this objection before making your final
decision.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences. The site has previously been assessed in accordance
with the Council’'s Speed Management Strategy and does not meet
the criteria for the consideration of traffic calming measures.

The Council’s records confirm that during the latest 3-year period
for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one
personal injury collision in the affected length of road.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the route
which have shown the following:

Highfields Way near St Andrews Drive junction
Crossingroad — 1.2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 9.4 pedestrians, 0.4 cycles per hour

Highfields Way near Ash Grove junction




et T abed

Crossing road — 6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 13.4 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Bryn Rd arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 6.9 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.6 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per hour

Highfields Way arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 7 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 23.7 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour

Oak Terrace Bypass arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 6.1 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 12.3 pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour

Heol y Dderwen arm of roundabout
Crossing road — 4.6 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 26.3 pedestrians, 1 cycle per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across
Highfields Way are not considered to be significant at this location.
However, the surveys have identified significant pedestrian activity
in the vicinity of the roundabout.

The route is a ‘B’ class road and forms part of the strategic highway
network, and has very limited frontage development. There are
limited roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists.
The Exception is not within 100m walk of any educational setting,
community centre, hospital. A 20mph speed limit is therefore not
deemed appropriate.

Highfields Way has been identified in the Active Travel Network
Map. Detailed proposals will be developed in due course.

The section of road near Libanus Primary School has not been
included as an Exception and will default to 20mph.

Recommendation - In order to improve safety, it is
recommended that the proposed 30mph Exception be
amended to exclude the roundabout and the approach roads.




The default 20mph will therefore apply to the roundabout and
the following sections of road:

Bryn Road — from the roundabout to a point approximately
25m north.

Oak Terrace Bypass — from the roundabout to a point
approximately 25m south.

Highfields Way - from the roundabout to a point approximately
140m east (to cover the access road to Tesco Express, Parc
Plas).

In light of the concerns raised, it is also recommended that
additional speed management measures in the form of
gateway treatments (coloured surfacing, road markings and
signs on yellow backing boards) and speed limit repeater road
marking roundels be provided along the length of the
Exception. It is considered that these additional measures will
help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a
positive impact on vehicle speeds.

B4251

Kendon
Road from
east of Main

Street

junction to
the A467

A467 from
the junction

with

Crumlin
Road to a
point south
of the fuel

station

As a resident of Crumlin I think this is a perfect time to
guestion the speed limits around our area, we are the most
polluted area in Caerphilly from past results, you knocked
the houses down on a472 to improve lives BUT made ours
more noisier | would like to put my proposal/concerns
forward to improve our lives and air quality in our area one
of many good reason for the 20mph new law. Looking at
the map you seem to be waiving about the A467 lights in
Crumlin and area. | think this is a very dangerous junction
and to improve on noise levels also safety and pollution, not
forgetting speed. | am asking can all the roads to this set of
lights stay new 20mph under the new law. As a resident we
live in a very noisy area - trains, doctors, 999 sirens, the
speed of road etc all roads around us eg north roads. At
night it’s like a race track up and down Kendon Hill and up
Hafodyrynys Hill with cars racing up and down, loud, excess
speed, disobeying law at lights, now 30mph going in to
national 60mph. | would like to see the 60mph scrapped to

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken at various points along the route
which have shown the following:

B4251 Kendon Road from east of Main Street junction to the
AAGT

Crossing road — 1.9 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour

Travelling along road — 3.4 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour

A472 Hafodyrynys Road from the A467 junction to a point east
of the newly demolished properties

Lawn Terrace junction

Crossing road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Travelling along road — O pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour




G T abed

A4T2
Hafodyryny
s Road from
the A467
junction to a
point east of
the newly
demolished
properties

A4T2
Hafodyryny
s Road from
west of the
Swffryd
junction to a
point east of
the former
fuel station.

40 or 50 mph on the hills, the 30 to new 20mph to help law
enforcements and make clear signs, as for the lights | would
like to see it 20mph but realistically 30 if the surrounding
area was 20mph as you turn off the road and the national
speed limit reduced on hills.

| think this new 20mph would improve safety and our lives
with noise who lives in the area especially walking north
road to take children to school and you know this is a hot
spot for enforcement. Even though we don't live on the
lights the noise and pollution is constantly loud day and
night. as the train lines double with no real benefit (no
station), residents are going to see even more. This is a
great chance to make our lives safer and quieter for all that
live in our area, also for all the travellers cars trucks taxi
trains just who pass us and use Crumlin like a junction and
rat run with no regards to the safety and noise or the speed
limit. Thanks for this opportunity to have a say Please keep
me updated | think this 20mph could be the best thing for
Wales if done correctly not a blanket ban 20mph all the best
time will tell.

East of Lawn Terrace junction
Crossing road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour

Near junction with Gladstone Road
Crossing road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

East of recently demolished properties
Crossing road — 0.1 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.6 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across any
of these proposed exception sites are not considered to be
significant.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences.

Welsh Government guidance states that speed limits of 40mph and
above should not generally be changed at this stage, but their limits
may need to be reviewed after 17 September 2023 and following
the publication of the revised Setting Local Speed Limits in Wales
guidance.

It is acknowledged that 20mph speed limits can offer a range of
benefits including noise pollution reduction, promoting cleaner air,
and environmental improvements, however, the Exceptions have
been developed in accordance in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The routes are ‘A’ and ‘B’ class roads and
form part of the strategic highway network, and have no/limited




frontage development and a 20mph speed limit is not deemed
appropriate.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,in light of the concerns raised,
additional speed management measures in the form of
gateway treatments (road markings and signs on yellow
backing boards) be provided. Itis considered that these
additional measures will help to raise driver’s awareness of
the speed limit and have a positive impact on vehicle speeds.

Crumlin

ot T abed

B4251
Kendon
Road from
a point east
of Ty
Brachty
Terrace
playground
toits
junction
with
Woodview
Terrace

| write to confirm my objection to the Exception. The
reasons for my objection relate to the dangerous junction
between the Trinant road and the B4251 which s in the
middle of this length, | cannot understand the logic of the
proposed exception, most drivers who use this junction feel
they are taking their lives in their hands when exiting the
Trinant Road due to the excessive speeds that many drivers
achieve coming down Kendon Hill. Drivers find this junction
the most difficult to safely use of any in the area, for many
months always turning left out of the Trinant Road
irrespective of where they were going. Clearly the risk could
be mitigated by a junction visibility improvement but unless
that is done, | see no reason to permit drivers to increase
their speed as they come down past this junction. | do not
necessarily agree with the new 20mph blanket speed limits
but do believe great care needs to be exercised in the
exemption process to ensure that existing risks are not
exacerbated.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken near the Trinant junction which has
shown the following:

Crossing road — 0.2 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.3 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

The route is a ‘B’ class road and forms part of the strategic highway
network, and has very limited frontage development. There are no
roadside amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The
Exception is not within 100m walk of any educational setting,
community centre, hospital. A 20mph speed limit is therefore not
deemed appropriate.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,in light of the concernsraised, it is
recommended that new ‘junction ahead’ warning signs and
gateway treatments (road markings and signs on yellow
backing boards) be provided on the approaches to the Trinant
junction. Itis considered that these additional measures will
help to raise driver’s awareness of the junction and have a
positive impact on road safety.




Penyrheol

/T abed

Hendreden
ny Drive
from St
Cenydd
Roadto a
point east of
Chester
Court

| strongly object to this proposal. | had a meeting with the
police and local councillors about 4 years ago regarding the
continual speeding both up and down Hendredenny Hill.
There is a 30mph illuminated sign informing drivers flouting
the law on the uphill direction but not the downhill direction.
| walked up the hill this evening, just by the signal unit, and
saw 6 cars drive up the hill, but only 1 car did not activate
the abode 30mph sign. Maintaining the 30mph sign will not
improve road safety. If it was setto 20mph, perhaps speeds
will decrease to more like 30mph. Having "Your Speed'
signs telling drivers their actual speeds would help with
compliance. Please think very carefully before deciding to
continue with your course of action.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has shown the
following:

Crossing road — 5.8 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 7.1 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council’'s Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences.

The route has very limited frontage development and few roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The Exception is

not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre,
hospital. A 20mph speed limit is therefore not deemed appropriate.

The Council utilises vehicle activated signage which displays a
reminder of the speed limit (and SLOW/ARAF) if a vehicle
approaches in excess of that limit. Speed indicator devices (which
display the actual approach speed of a vehicle) are not used within
the Borough as they can encourage poor driver behaviour.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concerns raised,
additional speed management measures in the form of road
marking repeater speed limit roundels be provided. ltis




considered that these additional measures will help to raise
driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a positive
impact on vehicle speeds.

Van Lansbury Lansbury Park Distributor Road from a point approx. 100m | Recommendation - It is acknowledged that it would be
Park south-east of Bedwas Bridge Roundabout to north of the beneficial to consider extending the 30mph speed limit beyond
Distributor | junction with Pen-y-Cae. To take advantage of the changes | the Pen-y-Cae junction. It is recommended that this request
Road from | to boundaries, please would you give serious consideration | will be included in a future programme or works.
a point to extend the above to a suitable point south of the junction
approx. with Pen-y-Cae (Perhaps at the south-east corner of the St
100m James School where it meets the highway). This would
south-east | enhance the safety of traffic emerging from Pen-y-Cae onto
of Bedwas | a 30mph section of road rather than the present 40 mph.
Bridge As a local resident very rarely does one see traffic travelling
Roundabout | within either of the present speed limits on the above road.
to north of
the junction
with Pen-y-
_— Cae
Q‘;‘nysddu B4251 | write in response to your notice to retain the 30mph. speed | The proposed 30mph Exception would apply to the section of
QQ Ynysddu limit on the B4251 road through Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu. | B4251 through the village of Ynysddu only. The section of B4251
® from the As | understand, the original aim of the Welsh Government | through the village of Cwmfelinfach will become 20mph due to
'_E‘ northern was to reduce the speed limit to 20 m.p.h. in all residential there being an increased level of frontage development and
00 end of the areas in order to improve safety. Cwmfelinfach and roadside attractors and amenities for pedestrians and cyclists.
village to Ynysddu are clearly residential areas and children regularly
the northern | cross this road. To my knowledge, there has been one Historically, the Council have only considered 20mph speed limits
end of fatality on this road and several collisions of road vehicles. or zones in those roads surrounding schools. The 20mph zone on
Cwmfelinfac | By making an exception to the 20mph limit on this road you | High Street was implemented due to the presence of Ynysddu
h are sending out a message that children and others in these | Primary School.

villages are of less value than those in other areas such as
Cardiff. Large areas of Cardiff have already introduced
these lower speed limits. The setting of speed limits has
been arbitrary in this area. As an example, the High Street
in Ynysddu has been 20 m.p.h. for several years but
Alexandra Road (where many children play in the road) is
30 m.p.h. This anomaly would be remedied by the ruling of
the Welsh Government to impose the lower speed limit in all
residential areas. | would be grateful if you would
reconsider your proposal and impose the lower speed limit
on the B4251.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys has been undertaken on the route through Ynysddu which
have shown the following:

Northern end of village
Crossing road — 2.7 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.8 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour




61T abed

North of High Street junction
Crossing road — 0.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.7 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

South of High Street junction
Crossing road — 0.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.4 pedestrians, 0.4 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

Council records confirm that during the latest 3-year period for
which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22) there has been one slight
personal injury collision in the affected length of road.

The route has limited frontage development and limited roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The Exception is
not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre
or hospital and is subject to a 7.5tonnes weight restriction (except
for access). Asignal-controlled pedestrian crossing facility is
provided to aid crossing movements. A 20mph speed limit is
therefore not deemed appropriate.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concernsraised,
additional speed management measures in the form of road
marking repeater speed limit roundels be provided. lItis
considered that these additional measures will help to raise
driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a positive
impact on vehicle speeds.

Ystrad
Mynach

A472
Caerphilly
Road from
west of its
junction
with Maes-
y-coed

| am writing to object to the decision to exempt a stretch of
the A472 from the new lower limit. | can see no sensein
allowing 30 mph limit from the junction with Station Rd,
Ystrad Mynach to that point beyond the junction into
Tredomen west of the Ty Penallta roundabout. The road at
the entrance to Brynmynach is dangerous and encouraging

The Exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:




roundabout)

turning left can be a challenge at times. Turning out of the

Terrace to people to accelerate from the Station Rd area is entirely
west of its unjustified. There a number of junctions along the way. Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
junction Surely it would be clearer and fairer to avoid speed limit Crossingroad — 1.7 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
with Station | changes until the national speed limit sign west of Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour
Road Tredomen. Travelling from Nelson east would also benefit
(including from lower speeds before the Tredomen junction and on the | Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Tredomen approach to the roundabout. Pedestrians crossing that road | Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
roundabout) | would benefit from lower speeds. The stretch under the Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour
railway tunnel is very dangerous as people walk on the road
where there is no real pavement. A number of these are Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
people working in the Council offices. What are the gains Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
from allowing 30 mph on this half a mile stretch? How do Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
you make these calculations?
Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossingroad — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour
Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
g-? flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
Q concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of
@ Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
= Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
g should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.
Ystrad AAT2 | am writing in relation to the proposed new 20mph limiton | The Exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Mynach Caerphilly the A472 between the Tredomen roundabout and the Royal | Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
Road from Oak roundabout. This newer lower speed limit is to be significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
west of its greatly welcomed, especially around the schools, but why pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.
junction not take this opportunity to extend the 20mph zone all the
with Maes- | way from the Royal Oak to the national speed limit sign just | Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
y-coed beyond the turning for the Tredomen estate? Turning out of | following:
Terrace to Brynmynach Avenue or the Tredomen estate is a real
west of its challenge as the traffic is currently moving too fast in both Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
junction directions at both junctions. Making it 20mph further down Crossing road — 1.7 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
with Station | the hill won’t improve this situation. People living in the Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour
Road Brynmynach estate regularly turn left in order to go right,
(including because the traffic coming up the hill is travelling too fast Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Tredomen and can’t be seen until it comes around the corner. Even Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, O cycles per hour

Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour




Tredomen estate has more visibility but traffic coming from
Nelson is often approaching at 60mph and again, it can take
a long time to find a gap to exit safely. | also often walk
along this stretch of road to either go into town or to Parc
Penallta, and as a pedestrian would find the road much
easier to cross if the traffic was slower moving. The stretch
near the railway bridge where there is no pavement can be
particularly scary. Why not prioritise local residents over
through traffic for this short section, and improve this section
of road for everybody's safety? It would only add a minute to
through traffic transit but could improve life for local
residents living in the Brynmynach and Tredomen estates
beyond measure.

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossing road — 1.0 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour

Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of
Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.

AAT2
Caerphilly
Road from
west of its
junction
with Maes-
y-coed
Terrace to
west of its
junction
with Station
Road
(including
Tredomen
roundabout)

'm writing in regards to the notice given to residents on the
AA472 road from Station Road up towards Ty Penallta
roundabout/Maes-y-Coed Terrace stating that a 30mph will
be retained from Station Road onwards following the
implementation of Welsh Governments default 20mph
speed limit on restricted roads from 17th September. Why
on earth does the proposal of 20mph stop at Station Road?
School children are dropped off school buses just below
Tredomen Roundabout and the speed in which the traffic
travel along this road is unacceptable. It's incredibly difficult
to cross this road at any time of the day due to heavy
speeding traffic. Residents of Tredomen Villas have liaised
with Dean Smith, Principal Engineer and Councillor Martyn
James on the issues we experience exiting our properties
and the abuse we receive off some drivers. We requested at
the time for a ‘slow’ sign to be erected but this was refused
as there would be too much traffic furniture along this route.
A survey in 2016 was carried out for speeding and the
results shown were proved to be acceptable, in the words of
the council representative, does this mean that all
accidents, injuries and deaths related to speed on the road
of 30mph, since 2016 are an acceptable loss. There have
been numerous accidents, last being 6th June 2023 which

The Exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossingroad — 1.7 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour

Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossing road — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour




was on Tredomen Roundabout. 'm hoping that person is
ok. On 1%t October 2017 a car speeding down from
Tredomen Roundabout towards Tredomen Villas lost control
and fortunately had no contact with any pedestrians,
spinning off the road onto the pavement straight through a
boundary wall causing thousands of pounds of damage.
People at the scene were flabbergasted nobody was killed,
just the driver of the vehicle sustained injuries. | have video
evidence to support this. Martyn, please can you contact the
residents of Brynmynach and Tredomen to start immediate
action in support of this application to reduce this 300metre
stretch of road to a 20mph zone to save lives to the families
and children of Brynmynach and Tredomen who should not
be discriminated in this way. (20mphis plenty, speed kills as
proven by recent tragedies on this section of road).

Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of
Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.

Ystrad
Mynach

ZST obed

A472
Caerphilly
Road from
west of its
junction
with Maes-
y-coed
Terrace to
west of its
junction
with Station
Road
(including
Tredomen
roundabout)

| am writing to object to the decision to exempt a stretch of
the A472 from the new lower limit. | can see no sensein
allowing 30 mph limit from the junction with Station Rd,
Ystrad Mynach to that point beyond the junction into
Tredomen west of the Ty Penallta roundabout. The road at
the entrance to Brynmynach is dangerous and encouraging
people to accelerate from the Station Rd area is entirely
unjustified. Exiting Tredomen Villas is dangerous, with cars
travelling at 30mph (often in excess) around a blind bend.
There a number of junctions along the way which are also
affected. Surely it would be clearer and fairer to avoid speed
limit changes until the national speed limit sign west of
Tredomen. Travelling from Nelson towards Ystrad Mynach
east would also benefit from lower speeds before the
Tredomen junction and on the approach to the roundabout.
Pedestrians crossing that road would benefit from lower
speeds. The stretch under the railway tunnel is very
dangerous as people walk on the road where there is no
real pavement. There is no safe way for me and my family
to walk to the nursery and school. What are the gains from
allowing 30 mph on this half a mile stretch? A fatal traffic
accident yesterday and this is not the first. Please
reconsider for the safety of your community.

The Exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossingroad — 1.7 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour

Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossingroad — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour




Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of
Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.

Ystrad
Mynach

€GT abed

A4T2
Caerphilly
Road from
west of its
junction
with Maes-
y-coed
Terrace to
west of its
junction
with Station
Road
(including
Tredomen
roundabout)

I'm writing with regard to notices posted on the A472 road
stating that a 300m section of the road will be exempt from
the nationwide reduction of the speed limit to 20mph. | am
acutely aware of how busy this section is, with constant but
obscured traffic and pedestrians walking along and across
the road at all times of day and night. The area around
Tredomen Roundabout is particularly busy as a point of
convergence for people walking to Penallta Park. The
unfortunate events that took place yesterday, 7 June 2023,
have left the many people living on this section very
unsettled and even more disturbed by the exemption in
question. | firmly believe that this exemption undermines
the Welsh Government’s goal of enhancing road safety.
Allow me to outline some key points:

Inadequate consideration of local residents and amenities:

e Contrary to the council's assertion, numerous
residences and businesses are situated along or
adjacent to this section of road, for example,
Brynmynach Avenues and the Tredomen estate, and
many people rely on it for daily commuting.

e The absence of proper footpaths, under the railway
bridge for example, a lack of crossings, and the
presence of blind bends further compound the risks
pedestrians face, compelling them to share the road
with vehicles.

e Pedestrians frequently traverse this road to access
essential destinations such as work (including the
council’'s own HQ) and Penallta Park, which serves as
a vital amenity for the community.

Substantial safety benefits outweigh minimal time savings:

The Exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 1.7 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour

Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossingroad — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour

Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of
Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.




e Including this section of road within the new 20mph
limit will enhance safety for all road users and expand
the safer area around Ystrad Mynach Primary School
beyond the bare minimum.

e While some drivers passing through may experience a
minor time saving of less than a minute, it is crucial to
prioritize the safety and well-being of the community
over such limited benefits.

Concerns about the decision's alignment with the spirit of
the new speed limit:

e This exemption contradicts the progressive nature of
the nationwide decision to reduce the speed limit,
which aims to prioritize the safety of all road users.

e Local councils should actively support and uphold this
important initiative, rather than seeking reasons to
avoid its implementation.

| kindly request that you consider revisiting the decision and

g-? re-evaluating the inclusion of this stretch of road within the

Q new speed limit. Doing so would demonstrate a commitment

@ to the safety and well-being of the community, aligning with

G the overarching goal of enhancing road safety nationwide.

D

Ystrad AAT2 m writing in regards to the notice given to residents on the | The Exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh

Mynach Caerphilly AA472 road from Station Road up towards Ty Penallta Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are

Road from roundabout/Maes-y-Coed Terrace stating that a 30mph will | significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
west of its be retained from Station Road onwards following the pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.
junction implementation of Welsh Governments default 20mph
with Maes- | speed limit on restricted roads from 17th September, this Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
y-coed stretch of road needs to be reduced to 20mph in line with following:
Terrace to | the aforementioned section, this will undoubtably save lives
west of its whilst causing no extra inconvenience to the motorist, this Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
junction is a quick win for the council that needs to be applied asap, | Crossingroad — 1.7 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
with Station | if not implemented | can only assume the council see all the | Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour
Road resident and their children of Brynmynach and Tredomen as
(including acceptable losses in the event of any of their deaths by the | Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Tredomen motorist, come in Caerphilly Council do the right thing Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
roundabout) | before anyone else gets hurt or killed. Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout




Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossing road — 1.0 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour

Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of
Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.

Ystrad

AAT2
Caerphilly
Road from
west of its
junction
with Maes-
y-coed
Terrace to
west of its
junction
with Station
Road
(including
Tredomen
roundabout)

I'm writing in regard to the new urban speed limits due to be
introduced in the autumn. Specifically, where it affects
Nelson Road in Ystrad Mynach. Though | have not seen the
plans myself, | have been led to believe that Nelson Road
will have its speed limit reduced from 30 to 20mph, but only
to a point just above the Station and Station Road junctions.
| would respectfully ask that this might be reconsidered as
there is a strong case for continuing the 20mph limit to the
point where the current 30mph limit ends (above the
entrance to the Tredomen housing estate). Residents of
Brynmynach Avenue find it quite hazardous trying to join
Nelson Road at the junction due to the speed and volume of
traffic. If the speed limit on Nelson Road were to be 20mph
then it would be safer to emerge at that point. The same
safety concerns relate to the Tredomen Villas and also to
the Tredomen housing estate. The Tredomen roundabout
too would be safer if negotiated at a slower speed. In
addition to this, there would be considerable safety benefits
for cyclists and pedestrians having to use this section of
road (it can be very unnerving walking the, in places, narrow
pavement when the frequent large lorries pass too quickly).
| would urge you therefore to consider extending the 20mph
zone as far as possible.

The Exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossingroad — 1.7 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour

Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossing road — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour




Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of
Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.

Ystrad
Mynach

9GT abed

Maesycwmm
er

Maesycwmm
er

A4T2
Caerphilly
Road from
west of its
junction
with Maes-
y-coed
Terrace to
west of its
junction
with Station
Road
(including
Tredomen
roundabout

A472 from
Ystrad
Mynach
Roundabout
to east of
Gellideg
Heights

A472 from
east of
Shappelles
access to
Ystrad
Mynach
Roundabout
(including

I've had a look at the maps. I'm of the opinion that the
following 30mph short exceptions should also be changed
to 20mph to avoid confusion and aid safety.

a)
b)

c)
d)

Tredomen area

Maesycwmmer - it not often you can do over 20mph any
way and a built-up area.

A472 outside of Shappelles Dance Centre, Ystrad
Mynach - Often used for crossing.

South Entrance to Llanbradach - An often-used area for
people crossing the road

| also know the following roads well and also think they
should have their speed limit reduced to 20 mph:

Lansbury Park Distributor Road from a point approx.
100m south-east of Bedwas Bridge Roundabout to north
of the junction with Pen-y-Cae.

Rudry Road from its junction with Lansbury Park
Distributor Road to east of its junction with Rudry Close
Van Road from the roundabout at the junction with
Lansbury Park Distributor Road to its junction with Cefn
Carnau Lane

| live in the area so know these routes well.

A472 Caerphilly Road from west of its junction with Maes-y-
coed Terrace to west of its junction with Station Road
(including Tredomen roundabout

The exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

Nelson Road north west of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 1.7 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 5.4 pedestrians, 2.2 cycles per hour

Nelson Road south east of Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 3.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.5 pedestrians, 2.8 cycles per hour

Access to Council offices off Tredomen Roundabout
Crossing road — 2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour

Outside Lunar Lighting
Crossing road — 1.0 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 17.6 pedestrians, 3.6 cycles per hour

Recommendation — Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows, lack of continuous footways on both sides and
concerns about difficulty for drivers turning in and out of




Llanbradach

Van

/ST abed

Van

the
roundabout)

Coed-y-
Brain Road
from Coed-
y-Brain
roundabout
for approx.
250metres
ina
northerly
direction.

Lansbury
Park
Distributor
Road from
a point
approx.
100m
south-east
of Bedwas
Bridge
Roundabout
to north of
the junction
with Pen-y-
Cae

Rudry Road
from its
junction
with
Lansbury
Park
Distributor
Road to
east of its
junction

Brynmynach Avenure, Tredomen Villas and Maes-y-Coed
Terrace, it has been determined that the 30mph Exception
should be removed from the Order. This section of road will
therefore default to 20mph.

A472 from Ystrad Mynach Roundabout to east of Gellideg
Heights

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

Near car sales at Western end
Crossing road — 0.5 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 2.2 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour

Near The Boot junction
Crossing road — 5.2 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0.3 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

In addition, this route is an ‘A’ class road that forms part of the
strategic highway network. The frontage development is mainly
limited to one side of the road only resulting in little requirement for
pedestrians to cross the road. There are limited roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists and the route is not
within 100m walk of any educational setting or hospital. Signalised
pedestrian crossing facilities and a subway are provided to aid
crossing movements along the route.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concerns raised,
additional speed management measures in the form of speed
limit repeater road marking roundels be provided along the
length of the Exception. It is considered that these additional




Van

gGT abed

with Rudry
Close

Van Road
from the
roundabout
at the
junction
with
Lansbury
Park
Distributor
Road to its
junction
with Cefn
Carnau
Lane

measures will help to raise driver’s awareness of the speed
limit and have a positive impact on vehicle speeds.

AA472 from east of Shappelles access to Ystrad Mynach
Roundabout (including the roundabout)

The exception was proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

Crossing road — 0.6 pedestrians, 0.1 cycles per hour

Travelling along road — 4.8 pedestrians, 1.9 cycles per hour

Recommendation - Following complaints received, further
investigation has concluded that due to significant traffic
flows and concernsregarding visibility for pedestrians and
cyclists crossing the A469, it has been determined that the
30mph Exception should be removed from the Order. This
short section of road will therefore default to 20mph.

Coed-y-Brain Road from Coed-y-Brain roundabout for approx.
250metres in a northerly direction.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has shown the
following:

Crossing road — 5.6 pedestrians, 0.8 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — O pedestrians, 0.7 cycles per hour




6GT obed

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

The route has no frontage development and no roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The Exception is
not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre
or hospital. There is a footway present on one side only and a
pedestrian refuge is provided to aid crossing manoeuvres near the
roundabout. A 20mph speed limit is therefore not deemed
appropriate.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward.

Lansbury Park Distributor Road from a point approx. 100m
south-east of Bedwas Bridge Roundabout to north of the
junction with Pen-y-Cae

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has shown the
following:

Near ramp leading to Pen-Y-Cae
Crossing road — 5.3 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 0.3 cycles per hour

Refuge island to the north of Pen-Y-Cae
Crossing road — 0.4 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.6 pedestrians, 1.6 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

The route has no frontage development and no roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The Exception is
not within 100m walk of any educational setting, community centre




09T abed

or hospital. A shared cycleway/footway is provided alongside some
of the route. A 20mph speed limit is therefore not deemed
appropriate.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concernsraised,
additional speed management measures in the form of road
marking repeater speed limit roundels be provided. Itis
considered that these additional measures will help to raise
driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a positive
impact on vehicle speeds. Itis also recommended that
consideration be given to extending the 30mph speed limit
beyond the Pen-y-Cae junction as part of a future programme
or works.

Rudry Road from its junction with Lansbury Park Distributor
Road to east of its junction with Rudry Close.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has shown the
following:

East of junction with Lansbury Park Distributor Road
Crossing road — 2.3 pedestrians, 0.6 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 1.3 pedestrians, 0.5 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

The route has no frontage development and no roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. There is a partial
footway present on one side of the road only. The Exception is not
within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre or
hospital. A 20mph speed limit is therefore not deemed appropriate.




T9T abed

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward.

Van Road from the roundabout at the junction with Lansbury
Park Distributor Road to its junction with Cefn Carnau Lane.

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

Surveys have been undertaken on the route which have shown the
following:

West of Cwrt Ty Mawr
Crossing road — 4.9 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 8.2 pedestrians, 1.3 cycles per hour

East of Cwrt Ty Mawr
Crossing road — 5.8 pedestrians, 0 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 4.9 pedestrians, 1.1 cycles per hour

Near Wernddu Court
Crossing road — 0.8 pedestrians, 0.2 cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 3 pedestrians, 1.3 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

The route has no frontage development and no roadside
amenities/attractors for pedestrians and cyclists. The Exception is
not within 200m walk of any educational setting, community centre
or hospital. A 20mph speed limit is therefore not deemed
appropriate.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,inlight of the concernsraised,
additional speed management measures in the form of road
marking repeater speed limit roundels be provided. ltis
considered that these additional measures will help to raise




driver’s awareness of the speed limit and have a positive
impact on vehicle speeds.

St Cattwg

29T abed

B4254
Gelligaer
Road from
its junction
with
Llancaiach
Fawr to the
county
boundary

We live on the affected length of road. We have read the
road speed notices and were really disappointed to learn
that, despite opportunities to reduce the speed limit, the
opportunity was passed by the local authorities. This seems
like a slap in the face as we have raised concerns over
speeding vehicles, including HGVs and article so many
times. Our road is treated like a racetrack going from
Trelewis to Gelligaer. There are daily near-misses with boy
racers, HGVs and the white vans. Just the other day my
family had a near-miss and had to jump off the road when
they were crossing due to a speeding vehicle which must
have still been going at 60mph even within 20m of the
roundabout. We also have racers coming from Gelligaer,
wheel spinning around the roundabouts and racing back to
Gelligaer. The racers and their loud exhausts are even
waking us multiple times per week as they're so loud. Not
only does the speed need reducing but we need traffic
control for the safety of all. | say this is with absolute
certainty, someone will be killed or seriously hurt if
something isn’t done to sort this. A speed camera and
simple ‘priority way’ system would work fine. Please can
you look into this as soon as you can!? It cannot be ignored
by the local authorities any longer

The Exception has been proposed in accordance with Welsh
Government’s guidance. The rationale relates to whether there are
significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of
pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road.

A survey has been undertaken on the route which has shown the
following:

Crossing road — 0.2 pedestrians, O cycles per hour
Travelling along road — 0 pedestrians, 1.5 cycles per hour

Numbers of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the
road are not considered to be significant at this location.

Welsh Government guidance states that decisions on Exceptions
should not be influenced by existing traffic speeds. Regrettably,
even where speed reducing measures are in place, there will
always be a minority of motorists who ignore the rules set out in the
highway code and drive inappropriately for the conditions. Road
safety education initiatives are undertaken within the County
Borough by the Council's Road Safety Project Officers in
conjunction with the emergency services. However, police
enforcement has a primary role to play in this regard, as the
Council does not have any powers to address moving traffic
offences.

The route is a ‘B’ class road and forms part of the strategic highway
network. The section of road has no frontage development and no
footway provision. There are limited roadside amenities/attractors
for pedestrians and cyclists. The Exception is not within 2700m walk
of any educational setting, community centre or hospital. A 20mph
speed limit is therefore not deemed appropriate.

Council records indicate there have been no recorded personal
injury collisions along this section of road during the last 3-year
period for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22). As such, the
location would not meet the criteria for safety camera enforcement




or traffic calming measures such as a priority give-way
arrangement.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the Exception is
taken forward. However,in light of the concerns raised,
additional speed management measures in the form of road
marking speed limit roundels be provided. Itis considered
that these additional measures will help to raise driver’s
awareness of the speed limit and have a positive impact on
vehicle speeds.

Objections and Comments for 40mph Proposals

Wards Road Comment / Objection Rationale / Response
Aberbargoed | A469 | wish to object to the lowering of the existing speed limitto | In response to complaints received regarding inappropriate vehicle
and Bargoed | Bargoed to | 40mph. You just seem to be jumping on the bandwagon on | speeds and lack of forward visibility due to the horizontal and
/ Darren Brithdir — the impending speed limit reductions to 20 mph from 30 vertical alignment of the route, it is considered that a 40mph speed
lley / New | New 40mph | mph on nearby roads. As you state road safety as the main | limit is appropriate for this section of road. The new 40mph limit
;}é?edegar speed limit | reason for this reduction in speed limit, can you clarify the will also help to reduce vehicle speeds on the approach to the
Q between the | number of accidents (both fatal and non-fatal) attributed to Puzzle House junction.
® existing excessive speed in excess of the national speed limits there
lc_D\ 40mph have been in the last 5 years? If road safety is your major Council records indicate that there have been two recorded
W speed limits | concern, why isn'tthere a pedestrian footway linking Brithdir | personal injury collisions along this section of road during the last
at Factory to Bargoed? Similarly, there is no pedestrian footway linking | 3-year period for which data is available (1/7/19-30/6/22). The
Road, Brithdir to Coedcae to Tirphil either? Council are unable to provide detailed information relating to the
Bargoed collisions due to data protection laws.
and Brithdir
Unfortunately, the route has insufficient width to provide a
continuous footway link.
Recommendation — It is recommended that the 40mph speed
limit is taken forward.
Aberbargoed | A469 | object to reducing other roads to 40mph which again is The proposed 40mph speed limits were considered necessary in
and Bargoed | Bargoed to | unnecessary and will increase emissions. order to improve road safety along the routes.
/ Darren Brithdir
Valley / New Recommendation — It is recommended that the 40mph speed
Tredegar / A4048 limit is taken forward.
Ystrad North of
Mynach / Hollybush




Argoed / St
Cattwg

B4254
Gelligaer
Road
(between
Gelligaer
and Nelson)

AAT2
Nelson to
Tredomen

Aberbargoed
and Bargoed
/ Darren
Valley / New
Tredegar /
Ystrad
Mynach /
goed / St
attwg

9T ab

A469
Bargoed to
Brithdir

A4048
North of
Hollybush

B4254
Gelligaer
Road
(between
Gelligaer
and Nelson)

AA4T2
Nelson to
Tredomen

| object to reducing other roads to 40mph which again is
unnecessary and will increase emissions.

The proposed 40mph speed limits were considered necessary in
order to improve road safety along the routes.

Recommendation — It is recommended that the 40mph speed
limit is taken forward.




4

Agenda Item 7

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY

CABINET - 26™ JULY 2023

SUBJECT: A ROUTEMAP TO INFORM OUR RESOURCE AND WASTE

STRATEGY

REPORTBY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1.

11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

PURPOSE OF REPORT -

To seek Cabinet approval on the Council’s draft Routemap that sets out the principles
of an emerging waste strategy.

To seek the approval on the proposed immediate interventions to improve recycling
performance in Caerphilly.

To set out a timeframe and associated milestones for Member engagement and
scrutiny in developing the Council’'s Resource and Waste Strategy.

SUMMARY

We are globally in a climate emergency and members are fully aware and committed
to doing all the Authority can, to reduce the impact of climate change, declaring a
climate emergencyin 2019 and pledging to become net zero by 2030.

Unsustainable consumption of precious resource and waste disposal has a significant
impact on our environment and cannot be decoupled from its impact on our climate.
Taking steps to reduce consumption and move away from traditional linear resource
models of make, buy, dispose, to a sustainable circular model. As we transition to a
Circular Economy, precious resources are kept in use for longer, maximising material
guality and offering social and economic opportunities.

As a public body we will ensure we work with our communities to protect the long-term
impact of our decisions in line with the Well-Being and Future Generations Act (2015)
and the Environment Act (2021). It is clear we cannot make the required step changes
alone and a collective effort from residents, the workforce and the wider community
will be essential to reduce consumption and improve waste and recycling in Caerphilly.
A community education plan will be developed.

We will be guided by the Welsh National Waste Strategy, Towards Zero Waste (2010)
and the Beyond Recycling - A Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality

Page 165



2.5

(2021) as well as the forthcoming Workplace Recycling Regulations. The Welsh
Government has set an overall zero waste target by 2050 and challenging recycling
targets for councils in the interim period. These are statutory targets and an Authority
can be fined if they are not achieved. The current target of 64 percent is already in
place and stretches further to 70 percent from next year (2024-25). The recycling rate
in Caerphilly, was 59.70 percent in 2021-22 and projected at 60.7% for 2022/23 which
is well below the levels required to achieve the current and future targets.
Consequently, the Authority continues to be at risk of significant fines. Dialogue with
the Minister for Climate Change and senior Welsh Government officials has led to the
development of a Resource and Waste Route Map to address the performance of the
Authority.

The Route Map sets out the plan to ensure Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory
performance targets, whilst being realistic about the timescales and resources required
to meet these ambitions. It has been developed in line with the waste hierarchy (Image
1), supporting the principles of waste prevention and minimisation, supporting re-use,
recycling and finally residual recovery and landfill for items not suitable for re-use or
recycling.

Image 1 — Waste Hierarchy

2.6

The Waste Hierarchy

Stages Includes

Using less material in
design and manufacture.
Prevention Keeping products for

longer. Using less
hazardous materials.

Checking, cleaning, repairing,

Prepal’ing for re-use refurbishing, whole items or spare

parts.

Turning waste into a new substance
&> or product. Includes composting if it
meets quality protocols.

h Including anaerobic digestion, incineration with
Ot er energy recovery, gasification and pyrolysis which
recovery produce energy (fuels, heat, etc.) and materials

from waste; some backfilling operations.

Disposal &———>  Landfill and incineration without energy recovery.

In developing the route map a number of early interventions for the period 2023-
2025, have been identified. Collectively, it is anticipated these will contribute to an

Page 166



2.7

2.8

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

51

5.2

initial uplift in recycling performance starting the journey for long term change.

The route map builds upon previous work and sets out the long-term plan to ensure
Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory performancetargets. It sets out the anticipated
timescales and resources required to deliver a high-quality service that maximises
material quality and supports the transition to a Circular Economy offering social and
economic opportunities.

The route map was considered by Joint Scrutiny on June 28™, 2023, a full summary is
included in 10.5. Joint Scrutiny recommended to remove 2 interventions namely the
introduction of a trial booking system at HRC and the roll out of food waste liners.

RECOMMENDATIONS
To approve the principles of the draft Routemap.

To consider and approve the proposed early interventions, anticipated to increase
current recycling performance, along with approval to establish a specific reserve of
£2.347m funded from uncommitted capital earmarked reserves.

To note the agreement by Joint Scrutiny to establish a Member task and finish group
to assist in the development and delivery of the draft Routemap and associated
Strategy thereafter.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Council pledged to become net zero by 2030, reducing consumption and
decarbonising the waste and recycling services, is a key part of reaching this pledge.

The Route Map sets out the strategic direction to reduce waste and exceed Welsh
Government statutory recycling targets, including short term interventions aimed at
increasing performance by 2025-26.

The Authority is at risk of circa £2m per annum fines for not reaching statutory recycling
targets, the Minister previously took the decision not to fine Caerphilly subjectto a root
and branch review and to take actions to meet its targets. The Resources and Waste
Route Map sets out the long-term ambitions from which the new strategy will be
developed and provides evidence to the Minister of Caerphilly's commitment to make
change.

THE REPORT

In responding to the Climate emergency, Caerphilly has pledged to become net zero
by 2030. Addressing consumption and decarbonising the waste service is a key
component of this challenge.

The Welsh Government, Towards Zero Waste strategy (2010), set out a series of
challenging recycling targets for Local Authorities and through the Waste (Wales)
Measure (2010), made the targets from 2012-13 and beyond, statutory. This status
allows Welsh Government to levy financial penalties against Council’s that fail to
achieve them. The statutory targets are weight based and have increased gradually
over time. These are outlined below:

Page 167



5.3

54

Recycling Rate [%)

Table One: Welsh Government Recycling Targets 2010 - 2025

201012 | 12/13 | 15/16 | 19/20 | 24/25
Min. levels of reuse & |40% 52% 58% 64% 70%
recycling/composting (or
AD)
Min. proportion of | 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%
reuse/recycling/composting
from source separation*
Max. level of landfill - - - 10% 5%
Max. level of energy from | - - 42% 36% 30%
waste
Min. levels of preparing for | - 0.4% 0.6% 0.8% 1.0%
reuse (excluding Waste
Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE))

Caerphilly has historically performed well against these targets, achieving 66.7 percent
in 2017-18, significantly higher than the then target of 58 percent. However, over the
last three years recycling performance has declined and since 2019-20 has performed
below the 64 percent target. Caerphilly’s recycling performance is outlined below.

Graph One Caerphilly Recycling Performance and Statutory targets

Recycling Trends

B

7 57.61%
55,013 U 20

65.50%

£1.90%

54.60%

32.34%

12013/12 2002713 201314 2014/15 20

15/160 2016/17 2017/

66.70%

B4%

05.10%

Financlal Year

18 2018/19 2

b61.52%

2 cgge BOTEH
59.58% 6%

019/20 2020/21 2021/22 202223 2003/24 2004/25

In the current national Welsh Government waste strategy, Beyond Recycling - A
Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality (2021), the Welsh

Page 168




Government has stated they will work with Local Authorities and other key partners to
develop further future recycling targets in line with their pathway to zero waste, with
the ultimate aim of achieving 100 percent recycling by 2050. Welsh Government
indicate that they will put in place further minimum statutory recycling targets for Local
Authorities beyond 2025, potentially at a level of 80 percent by 2033.

55 The 2021/22 recycling level 59.7 percent and the projected level of 60.7% for 2022/23
are well below the levels required to achieve the 70 percent statutory target by next
year (2024-25) and the Authority is at risk of significant fines. Decisions to fine an
Authority are considered on its own merits and the Minister for Climate Change, took
the decision for the period 2019-20, not to fine Caerphilly, subjectto a root and branch
review of the services and a commitment to take action.

5.6 In reviewing performance and seeking to address the issues, the following challenges
have been identified:

Table 2 Key Challenges

Evidence (2021-
Challenge % §‘2 pe:?fzg;:ﬁzs Opportunity
2 | O | review)
o | X
¥ | T
¢ Residents in 368kg/hh/yr which
AR 4 Caerphilly are is 91kg/hh/yr
2N producing 7 v higher than the cRoer?:Lfri tion overall
comparatively more national average P
— residual waste of 277kg/hh/yr for
2022/2023.
There are high waste Compositional
arisings at Household analysis confims
Recycling  Centres that more than
(HRCs), especially half, 58.5 percent
residual waste. v of the residual
kerbside stream
contained material
that could be
recycled, using
existing services.
Material Reuse at Reported dry
Household Recycling reuse for 2021/22
/\ Centres (HRCs) has was 250.22 tonne, | Maximise reuse
been historically low which is 167.84 | opportunities to
\ / but a reuse shop at v | tonnes less than | move towards a
Penallta was opened the national | Circular Economy in
Reuse in October 2022 average of 418.06 | Wales
tonne.

Page 169




o
&

Recycle

There are high levels
of contamination in
the existing co-
mingled kerbside
collection of
recyclable material

20-23 percent of
all waste collected
at the kerbside for
recycling is not

able to be
processed as
recycling. This
consists of
untargeted

materials eg

Tetrapak and
contaminants e.g

Improve material
quality to move
towards a Circular
Economyin Wales.

food waste

HRC on site recycling .

yields are low Reliance on lrrgf;gl\llr'%g g}?erH%%
sec_ondary sort of site through a user
residual waste

containers which
is costly and over
recent years
recovery rates
have declined.

friendly,  recycling
first provision with
opportunities to
maximise reuse

o

Recover

Caerphilly has the
highest quantity
residual waste per
person in Wales

368kg/hh/yr which
is 91kg/hh/yr
higher than the
national average
of 277kg/hhl/yr for
2022/2023

Reduce overall
residual waste

There are high levels
of recyclable material
in the residual
stream.

Compositional

analysis confirms
that more than
half, 58.5 percent
of the residual
kerbside stream
contained material
that could be
recycled, using
existing services.

Move materials from
residual to recycling
streams

There are high levels
of food waste in the
residual stream.

Highest
percentage of
recyclable waste
in the residual bin
was food, 30.9
percent

Reducing avoidable
food waste and
moving food waste
from residual bin to
existing food waste
service.

Infrastructure

The HRC network is
under pressure and
access to the Trehir
site is challenging

Ensuring user
friendly, modern,
efficient HRC
provision is

important to support

Page 170




and requires a long-
term investment plan.

wider service
changes

The current Waste
Transfer Station at

The future Resource
and Waste strategy

Full Moon requires cannot be
significant investment considered in
and there are isolation, developing
concerns about compliant, efficient
suitability/capacity at and effective
this site for future infrastructure  that
requirements supports a safe
working
environment and is
suitable for  our
environmental
aspirations must be
delivered alongside
the future strategy.

5.7 The Routemap (Appendix 1) builds on previous work and sets out the long-term plan to
ensure Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory performance targets. It sets out the
anticipated timescales and resources required to deliver a high quality service that
maximises material quality and supports the transition to a Circular Economy offering
social and economic opportunities.

Page 171



5.8
been set:

Draft Route Map to a Net Zero Caerphilly County Borough

Uhtra Lovw
Erniesian
Vehacles

-l

Indfrastructure

® <t

Food Waste
Campaign %

Commaunity
Recyding

A

Minirmize
Landiil

Tawards Net
Zera 2030

&

Table Two: Resource and Waste Route Map Objectives

To link to Waste Hierarchy, the following key objectives and associated actions have

Objective One Objective Two Objective Three | Objective Four
Prevention Reuse Recycling Recovery

Reduce the overall waste | Maximise repair and | Increase quality and | Optimise contribution
arisings reuse proportion of recycled | to renewable energy

material

e Promote minimisation
messages alongside
targeted campaigns

e Develop and promote a
network of library of
things

e Reduce use of single
use items including
plastic and encourage
others to follow

e Develop and promote
home composting

e Expand reuse at HRC
including making it
easy to donate items

e Promote network of
repair and reuse

e Increase opportunities
for ~community to
recycle e.g. separate
litter and pop up events

¢ Increase participation
in food waste

e Develop HRC to
capture as  much
recycling as possible

¢ Introduce pre-sort
requirements at HRC

e Reduce residual
waste arisings sent
to recovery through
residual
capacity/frequency
reductions

e Review the garden
waste  collection
service

e Enhance recovery
of methane from
organic waste

Page 172




Introduce HRC booking
system — subject to trial
and positive outcomes

Work together with
wider public sector to
tackle hard to recycle

Optimise
collections and
move to ultra-low

e Support Extended streams
Producer Responsibility e Expand trade recycling | o
and Deposit Return collections to comply to landfill
Scheme with new legislation
implementation to e Improve HRC
comply  with new operations
legislation e Expand the range of

materials collected for
recycling at HRCs and
the kerbside, to further
improve performance
and meet future
legislative
requirements

emission vehicles
Reduce waste sent

Objective Five — Helping our residents.

Wide ranging communication, engagement and behavioural campaign
Digitalise the service making it as easy as possible for residents to engage whilst maximising service
efficiencies by providing robust performance data
Clear, consistent messaging and signposting
Making desired behaviours as easy as possible
Prepare a community education programme

5.9

5.10

To support the development of the route map, a transformation programme will be
mobilised consisting of five “pillar projects” and five “enabling themes”. Each project
and theme will be delivered by project teams.

Pillar projects

Household Recycling Centres — There are six HRCs managing circa 22,000 tonnes
of material. A full review of sites will be undertaken, to ensure they are fit for purpose,
increasing re-use and recycling opportunities and reducing residual waste. This will
include a review of future site provision, developing a business case for change and
implementing the recommended changes.

Kerbside Dry Recycling — Undertake a review of kerbside recycling to improve the
capture and quality of material collected. Using best practice and taking an evidence-
based approach, this pillar project will utilise data gathering and modelling to inform
the business case for the future service and will also include the mobilisation of any
service changes.

Kerbside Organic Recycling — Promote and improve existing service offers for
organic kerbside collection including increasing food waste participation and
developing long term plans for garden waste.

Kerbside Residual — Kerbside residual waste capacity and frequency will be
reviewed. A detailed Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken to assistin the
development of support services to assist any future changes.

Page 173




5.11

5.12

Trade Waste Services - This project pillar will seek to meet the new regulations for
business, third and public sector organisations across the county borough by
mobilising trade waste services that include the separate collection of in scope
recyclable materials.

The Enabling themes will run across all five pillars and support the delivery of the
transformation route map.

Communication and Engagement - Following stakeholder mapping, a detailed,
comprehensive and multipronged communication and engagement plan will be
developed to support the delivery of the strategy. This enabling stream will permeate
across the whole programme. Behavioural insight, participation mapping and nudge
theory will form the foundation for the various campaigns and they will adapt and
evolve as we move through the stages of the route map.

Workforce Engagement - The workforce is a key enabler to the overall success of
this new approach. These changes will directly impact them and should not be
underestimated. This workstream will support ongoing staff engagement, staff training,
workforce consultation, health and safety and the development of new policies. This
will include engagement with the workforce and their Trade Unions throughout.

Infrastructure - Building upon previous work undertaken, develop and deliver a
comprehensive infrastructure strategy that supports the strategy. This will include the
consideration of a Waste Transfer Station, depot requirements as well as a long-term
plan for HRC provision.

UltraLow Emission - Develop a strategy to deliver long term aspirations for an ultra-
low emission fleet including procurement and required infrastructure.

Digital Offer — In line with the Council’s corporate Customer and Digital strategy, the
digital capability of the service is essential to drive efficiencies and to provide end to
end service information to help monitor, measure and review the service continually to
ensure it meets citizen requirements. Digital deliverables include: route optimisation,
front end systems and in cab devices and this work will seek to maximise opportunities
to work smarter. This vital data will form a key element in understanding community
behaviour changes at a hyper local level.

In developing the Route Map, a number of priority interventions for the period 2023-
2025, have been identified, some of these are anticipated to increase recycling
performance in the short term which prompts the beginning of the journey for long term
change.

Page 174



Table Three, Priority Interventions to increase recycling for delivery between 2023-

2025

Pillar /
theme

Enabling

Activity

Projected
Percentage
point
increase

Pillar 1,
provision

HRC

Implement recommendations from the recent
WRAP observational study in relation to signage
and site layout, to move focus to recycling rather
than waste disposal.

Introduce recycling pre-sort requirement across the
HRC network. This will require site users to bring
waste to the site segregated into its various material
fractions.

Improve customer engagement across the Network
through the introduction of additional customer
trained operatives on site.

Introduce a trial booking system on one site (Trehir),
followed by a roll out to the remaining sites if the
trial proves successful. It is proposed that the trial is
undertaken at Trehir due to it being the busiest site
with the highest concentration of population and the
options to reassign to an alternate site will be
lessened.

1%

Pillar 2, Kerbside
Dry Recycling

A widespread informational campaign will be
launched, supported by WRAP’s well established
“‘Be Mighty” campaign to reinforce messages of
acceptable materials.

The information campaign will be further supported
with a behaviour change campaign. The campaign
will run alongside the informational campaign and
will focus on the "why recycle?” designed to evoke
an emotional response and focus on the impacts of
non-participation. To support the behaviour change
campaign, engagement and education staff will
directly engage with residents on the doorstep to
promote and maximise recycling opportunities. This
will include an ongoing campaign within our schools
to ensure our younger people are engaged.

Additional capacity requirements will be discussed
on an individual basis and extra containers provided
on a case by case basis.

1%

Pillar 3, Kerbside
Organic Recycling

Campaign 1 and 2 will have a significant focus on
food waste participation messages, both
informational and emotive to evoke a behaviour
change. To support the behaviour change

1%

Page 175




campaign engagement and education staff will
engage with residents on the doorstep.

This will include an ongoing campaign within our
schools to ensure our younger people are engaged.

This will be further supported by the introduction of
free caddy liners for 1 year. 6 month supply of liners
will  be delivered to properties with an
accompanying information booklet. The impact of
this intervention will be reviewed thereafter.

The team will continue with the “Mash for Cash”
food waste incentivisation campaign and consider
rebranding and relaunching the campaign to align
with the behaviour change campaign.

Additional capacity requirements will be discussed
on an individual basis and extra containers provided
on a case by case basis.

Pillar 4, Kerbside
Residual

Engage with residents to maximise recycling
through the enforcement of existing residual waste
policies, that include for top hatting (bags stacked
on top of the bin) and side waste.

Pillar 5, Trade
Service

Review existing service to ensure the residual trade
waste service is competitive and has a focussed
customer base.

Develop business case for future trade recycling
services and implement new service in line with the
new commercial waste regulations.

1%

Enabling Theme 1,
Communication
and Engagement

Extensive and continuous communication is an
essential ingredient throughout this programme of
change. It is therefore weaved throughout each
pillar, forming a vital part of service change and
increased participation.

The multipronged approach will see the delivery of
two campaigns running alongside one another, the
first will focus upon reinforcing information about
how to recycle effectively and the second will focus
upon the theme of behaviour change, focussing on
the “why recycle?”.

The campaigns will be delivered across various
media channels in order to ensure we reach all
segments of the community and will feature a range
of key messages tailored to the audience, including
our schools.

The bespoke campaigns will be further supported
by WRAP’s highly recognised “Be Mighty"
campaign which focuses on a sense of teamwork
and togetherness.

Page 176




Combined together all 3 campaigns will ensure we
communicate the How, Why and Teamwork
required to achieve success.

Enabling Theme 2, | Initial meetings have held with the Trade Unions
Workforce and workforce on the route map and its priority
Engagement interventions. This engagement will continue
throughout the programme of change and in the
development of the waste strategy

Identify key training requirements necessary to
implement the interventions. This has already
commenced with additional customer service
training for HRC operatives.

Engage with collection crews on the transition to
digitisation and round configuration

Enabling Theme 3, | Consideration of future requirements for waste

Infrastructure transfer station and depot requirements

Enabling Theme 4, | Consider opportunities for ULEV when reviewing
Ultra Low | the vehicle replacement strategy. Explore issues
Emissions around charging infrastructure at Tiryberth depot.

Extend the roll out of electric small supervisor vans

Enabling Theme 5, | Introduce a digital mobile solution for waste [ 1%
Digital Offer collection rounds to improve efficiencies and
enhance the customer experience. Linking to the
back office it will enable officers to respond
proactively and develop a targeted and individual
approach to education and communication as well

improve customer interactions and journeys.

5.13 The engagement and support of elected members is crucial in shaping the policies and

5.14

procedures that will be necessary to support the delivery of the Resource and Waste
Route Map and the Strategy that will be developed thereatfter. It is therefore proposed
that a scrutiny task and finish group is established consisting of a maximum of 10
members, will all scrutiny committee members invited to express an interest. The group
will report to the Housing and Environment Scrutiny Committee or a Joint Scrutiny
Committee meeting, with its findings and recommendations.

It is clear we cannot make the required step changes alone and a collective effort is
required. It is important that residents, and our communities have the opportunity to
shape proposals and it is proposed that as the strategy is developed, a far-reaching
consultation process is undertaken. Returning to Scrutiny in the Autumn a fully drafted
Resource and Waste Strategy will be presented in advance of seeking approval from
Cabinet to commence public consultation. The consultation will utilise a range of
channels to ensure the process is fair, equitable and representative. Undertaken over
an extended period in early 2024, and a further report will be considered by the Council
joint scrutiny and cabinet thereafter.

Page 177




5.15

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

Conclusion

The Council's Waste and Recycling service needs to improve to support the transition
to Net Zero by 2030 and meet current and future statutory recycling targets. The
resource and waste route map presented sets out the long-term ambitions for the
service, structured around the waste hierarchy and with decarbonisation and reducing
consumption at its heart. It includes immediate interventions that are intended to
support behaviour change and achieve an initial uplift against current baseline
recycling performance. It also sets out a longer-term programme of change structured
with five pillar projects and five enabling themes.

The challenges to deliver such wide-ranging change should not be underestimated
and the route map sets out realistic timescales to deliver the step change required. To
do this, the Council and its residents are going to need to work differently and together,
as it is clear we cannot do this alone.

Our Team Caerphilly approach will help us deliver our ambition of being an exemplar
Resource and Waste Council and importantly taking positive action now to preserve
the Caerphilly of tomorrow for our future generations.

ASSUMPTIONS

The Authority remains at risk of a fine being levied for not meeting statutory recycling
targets. It is assumed that by demonstrating commitment to the Resource and Waste
Route map and development and delivery of the new Strategy, the Authority will be
able to demonstrate its commitment and make the progress required to avoid future
fines.

The immediate interventions to deliver an increase to baseline recycling performance
have been reviewed and are assumed they will be achievable within the timescales
detailed.

It is assumed that resource from WRAP Cymru will be made available as part of the
Welsh Government funded Collaborative Change Programme to support the
immediate interventions identified.

It is assumed that subject to the five-case business model and approvals, Welsh
Government funding and future Cabinet approvals will be made to support the
investment needed to deliver the Resource and Waste Route Map.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The respective lIA forms have been drafted and are attached in Appendices 2 and 3
and provide contingency arrangements to meet the needs and aspirations of our
residents with protected group characteristics and special requirements. These will
be further refined following consideration of the public consultation feedback.

Link to 1A Form Waste Strategy Report

Link to 1A Form HRC Booking System

Page 178


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-form-waste-strategy-report
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-form-hwrc-booking-system-a-pre-sort

8.1

8.2

8.3

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are considerable financial implications associated with the full strategy, these
will be fully considered when the strategy is brought forward to Cabinet, following
consultation. At the same time a full five case business model will be developed and
an understanding of Welsh Government funding support to deliver the full strategy will
be provided.

It is important to highlight that the Council faces potential Welsh Government financial
penalties for not achieving recycling targets, equating to £200k for each percentage
point below target. The current recycling performance for 2021-22 (last full year of
ratified data) is 59.67 percent, against a target of 64 percentand 70 precent from next
year. At 10 percent below target the Authority is at risk of a £2m fine per annum unless
it acts.

The following table highlights the work needed to be undertaken in the short term. The
estimated costs are £2.347m for an initial two-year period and cover the development
of the strategy, consultation, and the immediate interventions identified to improve
recycling performance in the short term and demonstrate progress towards targets
whilst a full strategy is developed.

Pillar / Theme Activity

Additional 2 year fixed-term appointments within the
waste team to support the implementation of the
actions detailed below: -

Information Liaison Officer x 1 (£69Kk)
Technical Assistant x 1 (£86k)

Data Entry Administrator x 1 (£63k)
Recycling Advisors x 6 (£462k)
Health & Safety Officer x 1 (£97k)

Pillar 1, HRC provision Sites improvements to include new signage, new
branded uniforms, and site reconfiguration (£20k)

Implementation of a Digital Booking system (cost
included in Enabling Theme 5 below)

Nine additional staff at HRCs to implement service
changes and improve customer engagement
(£567k)

Pillar 2, Kerbside Dry | Provision of Extra Bins - Based on a projected
Recycling additional 8,000 bins (£180k)

Pillar 3, Kerbside Organic | Provision of free food waste liners for 12 months
Recycling only (£255k)

Extra caddies to respond to any increases in
participation - Based on a projected additional
10,000 caddies (£52k)

Pillar 4, Kerbside Residual | Stickers for top hatting/side waste (£18k)

Page 179



8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.

10.1

Pillar 5, Trade Service A business case will be developed

Enabling Theme 1, | Communication costs to support the delivery of the
Communication and | interventions including advertising, design costs,
Engagement events, and leaflets (£128k)

Enabling Theme 2, | Continue discussions with TU’s and the workforce

Workforce Engagement

Enabling Theme 3, | Review and develop proposals
Infrastructure

Enabling Theme 4, Ultra | Review and develop proposals
Low Emission

Enabling Theme 5, Digital | Complete end to end waste digital solution (£350k)
Offer

It is proposed that the initial short-term costs of £2.347m are funded through the
establishment of a specific reserve funded from current uncommitted capital
earmarked reserves.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The proposals in the Resource and Waste Route Map and immediate interventions to
increase recycling would mean changes to the waste service and working practices.
None of the changes will result in a reduced number of staff within the services but will
require an increase in staffing levels as identified in 8.3, albeit that the initial increase
in posts will be funded on a fixed-term basis as part of the proposed establishment of
a £2.347m reserve.

The workforce has a key role to play to making the step changes required and will be
engaged in the development of this strategy.

The future strategy that will be developed as part of the route map, will be subject to
full consultation in 2024 and a workforce plan to support future service delivery will be
developed, which will be fully costed and included in future Cabinet reports. HR and
the Trade Unions will be fully engaged in this process.

The scale of changes within the route map and subsequent strategy are wide ranging
and support will be required from across the Council to deliver the changes. The
programme of projects detailed within this report will be managed and delivered
through a robust project management process which will involve all key service areas
from across the Council.

CONSULTATIONS

In November/December 2022, the Council commenced a phase of engagement called
‘What matters to you?'. This highlighted:

Page 180



10.2

10.3

104

10.5

e 93 percent of respondents agreed that waste collection and recycling services
should continue to be a priority when planning council services and budgets
for 2022/23 and beyond.

e 86 percent of respondents felt that waste collection and recycling services was
as important or more important to them than 12 months ago. Insight

An online ‘quick poll’ sought additional views on waste and recycling during January
2023, with 2,632 responses, insights included:

e 79% of respondents said they recycle food waste at the kerbside.
From those respondents who don’t currently recycle food waste, their
reasons for not doing so were primarily that they compost any food waste,
they don’t waste any food, they don't like the smell/feel its unclean or they
don’t have any liners to place inside the caddy.

e 99 percent of respondents said they regularly recycle using their brown
bin/recycling box/recycling bags at the kerbside.

e 73 percent of respondents said they regularly make use of the
green/garden waste recycling service.

e From those respondents who don't, their reasons for not doing so were
primarily that they don’t have any garden waste/a garden or that they use
the service but seasonally (not year-round).

Meetings with Trade Union colleagues have taken place and the proposals were
broadly accepted on the understanding that changes did not reduce the workforce,
although it was understood some repurposing of existing roles may be required. As
the workforce plan and draft waste strategy is developed, Trade Union colleagues will
be fully engaged throughout the process.

Meetings with the operational workforce have taken place and the proposals were
broadly accepted. There was unanimous acceptance and understanding of the need
to change, with an expectation that operational challenges associated with the current
operating model would be addressed. Specific concerns were raised around the
increase of physical and verbal abuse incidents from the public. This matter will be
explored further with the workforce and Trade Union colleagues with appropriate
interventions put in place thereatfter.

A joint meeting of the Scrutiny Committees was held on the 28" June 2023 to
consider the Routemap to Inform Our Resource and Waste Strategy report. Members
raised a number of issues and comments during the meeting which are summarised
below:

Top Hatting/Enforcement

Members asked if enforcement would lead to more fly tipping and assurance was
sought that enforcement will only apply to residual waste bins and not recycling bins.
The scrutiny committee highlighted that there are several properties in the county
borough that don’t have rear access and secure places to keep their bins, resulting in
difficulties in retaining bins to sort waste appropriately and members asked how the
Authority will engage and assist these households. Concerns were raised about
possible enforcement action where people who are disabled/ elderly or perhaps have
dementia and cannot sort their waste and don’t have the support to do this.

Page 181



Officers advised that enforcement will not necessarilylead to more fly tipping but needs
to be aligned to engagement, education and awareness raising. We need to work with
the small minority and use enforcement only if necessary. Assurance was provided
that Top Hatted only applies to residual waste, there is no intention to enforce
additional recycling in clear bags.

Communication and Engagement

Members requested further detail on how this will be approached and queried if every
household receive an officer visit. The scrutiny committee asked how people with
special needs such as learning disabilities, will be included. A Member asked if it is
intended to work with the Business Forum and stated there is a need to engage in
social housing areas. Members were supportive of the proposals to communicate and
engage with residents to change people’s mindsets regarding recycling. It was
suggested that there should be particular focus on contamination of recycling and the
implications and costs involved. The scrutiny committee also highlighted examples
where bins are currently not emptied and asked how communication could be
improved so this information could be shared with them to answer complaints raised
by residents.

Officers advised that it is not intended for every household to have an officer visit, but
the proposal is to use digital technology to gather data and target households. The use
of face to face as well as digital methods of communication will seek to break down
barriers to participation. In respect of access to HRC sites outside current working
times it was stated that the reason for the proposed pilot is together evidence which
will help determine what would be successful. The committee were advised that the
Integrated Impact Assessment includes information on how we will address the
equalities aspects of communications and engagement and future reports will have
updated lIA’'s. Members were advised that the digital technology should also assistin
providing updates on missed collections.

Trehir HRC Booking System Trial

A number of concerns were highlighted which included whether a booking system at
the HRC would increase fly tipping, and if yes, what would be done to address this.
Concerns about how a booking system will respond to the needs of people who work
and have limited time, is there a proposal to extend the opening times to early
evenings. People may decide to go to a different HWRC to avoid booking at the Trehir
site and is it possible to measure this? Concerns were expressed if tonnage at Trehir
reduces during the trial that this data could be used to suggest closure of the site. More
detail/breakdown requested on the £350k costs for the trial. There was scepticism of
how atrial could be measured as it is not just tonnage processed and if any evaluation
will include feedback from residents. Members wondered if a trial would give an
accurate reflection of how a booking system could be rolled out across other sites,
would the resources available during the trial be replicated if it is rolled out and are all
the sites suitable with sufficient capacity. Members sought clarification if the Authority
is intending operate a similar system as Cardiff with a Cap on the number of visits per
annum and commented that a simple version is better. Members expressed concerns
that people who cannot read and write and those people that are digitally excluded or
that are economically disadvantaged would find an online booking system difficult to
access, sowould the contact centre be available on weekends. Clarity was sought on
how long the trial would run if it were to go ahead. The scrutiny committee also
highlighted the land adjacent to the site which could be utilised.

Page 182



Officers advised that the purpose of the trial was to gather evidence and inform future
proposals. It is not intended to introduce a cap on number in the trial. It was confirmed
that the trial is proposed to run for 6 months.

Additional staff

The scrutiny committee queried if the financial costs for staff included on-costs and
will the posts be fixed term. Members asked if the £567k for additional staff will need
to continue if the pilot booking system does not proceed.

Officers advised that the on-costs were included and the posts are fixed term with the
draft strategy then able to include all the financial information including staff costs.
Members were assured that the new staff are not dependent on the booking scheme
proceeding.

Recycling

The recycling contamination issues were recognised and members asked if the
proposed RD scheme for glass and cans, where financial reimbursementis proposed
to be introduced, will be built into the proposals. The question of why our recycling
results have worsened over recent years. The table at 5.12 shows these proposals
should make up about 5%, and we have to make our recycling target up to 70%, so
how will the other 5% be achieved?

Members were assured that the legislation on the RD scheme will be taken into
account. In terms of our recycling performance the committee were advised that dry
recycling has been maintained but we are producing more residual waste, 368kg per
household whichis 91kg higher than other LA areas. Modelling is being looked at and
will be brought back in future reports.

Officers advised that the Minister has said she will look on us favourably if we can
demonstrate improvements in our recycling performance.

Residual Waste

Members discussed waste items that cannot currently be recycled such as plastic
wrappers and Tetra Pac items and asked why we don’t currently have an option to
recycle these items. Members also commented that at the previous meeting there was
the proposal to move to a 3 or 4 weekly residual waste collection and wanted to make
sure that this is still going to be considered.

Members were advised that markets are being explored in this area with a trial run at
Full Moon HRC. Unfortunately, this service was pulled by the merchants, we are
governed by the end points. It is important that we look at the area not currently
accepted by current contractors. The scrutiny committee were assured that the 3 or 4
weekly collection is not off the table but we now have more timeto develop the strategy.

Climate Emergency
Members agreed that it needs to be acknowledged that we are in a climate emergency

with a wider view taken. The emphasis needs to be upon consuming less and the
waste review needs to include analysis of what all waste is made up of. The scrutiny

Page 183



committee stated that more needs to be done to reduce single use plastics and action
on a national level to engage with food suppliers and supermarkets. A Member stated
that they were not convinced by the 2030 net zero carbon target.

Officers agreed that there is a need to address this urgently, we have access to a
detailed waste analysis which will be available for the task and finish group to consider.
The waste hierarchy included the report the need to reduce waste and confirmed that
food waste is more expensive to deal with compared to composting. In respect of the
messaging on Single Use Plastics the authority is looking at how the messaging will
work and has advice from WRAP.

Caddy Bags

Members queried the proposal to introduce free caddy bags for 12 months at a cost of
£300k at a time when we must make significant costs savings. Comments on how
plastic bags and paper can be used in the food waste bins or food can be deposited
loose, improved communications could help increase participation.

Members were advised that CCBC is the only Welsh LA that does not provide free
caddy liners and discussions with WG have suggested that this may be barrier to
people depositing food waste and by offering the bags it could boost participation and
reduce residual waste.

Household Recycling Centre’s

Members gave examples of centres in other Authorities that allow items deposited to
be sold and re-used.

Task and Finish Group

Members felt it was important to look at the previous recommendations made by the
waste task and finish group.

It was also commented that CCBC needs to not just aim to catch up with other local
authorities but supersede them and look at initiative such as nappy collection and pet
waste in order to improve.

Members were assured that the recommendations from the previous task and finish
group will be made available to the new group.

Recommendations

A motion was proposed to amend Pillar 1 of the Routemap and remove the proposal
to run a pilot booking system at Trehir and not proceed with a HRC booking system.
This was moved and seconded and agreed by the majority present.

A motion was proposed to amend Pillar 3 and remove the provision of free caddy bag
liners for one year, this was moved and seconded and agreed by the majority present.

A final amendment was proposed to recommendation 3.3 to change the beginning ‘To
agree to establish a Member task and finish group’, instead of ‘To consider the
proposed member task and finish group’, this was moved and seconded and
unanimously agreed.

The recommendations were therefore:

Page 184



3.1 Through critical questioning, Members scrutinize the principles of the draft
Routemap.

3.2 To consider and offer comments regarding the proposed early interventions,
anticipated to increase current recycling performance, along with the proposal to
establish a specific reserve of £2.347m funded from uncommitted capital earmarked
reserves.

3.3 To agree to establish a Member task and finish group to assistin the development
and delivery of the draft Routemap and associated Strategy thereatfter.

3.4. The trial at Trehir and HRC booking system is removed from Pillar one of the
Routemap

3.5. The provision of free caddy liners for 12 months be removed from Pillar 3 of the
Routemap.

The recommendations were moved and seconded and agreed by the majority present.

10.6 As previously stated we cannot do this alone, and it will take a collective effort of our
residents, communities and workforce working together. As such it is important that
residents help shape the future strategy and proposals. Officers propose to present
the draft waste strategy to a future Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet during the Autumn
period where approval will be sought to launch an extensive consultation process
beginning in early 2024, following which the strategy will be finalised and approved as
Council policy.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 The following statutory powers, relevant to the Resource and Waste Rout Map are
identified:

e Environment Protection Act (2010)
¢ Revised Waste Framework Directive (r2018)
e Environment Act (2021)
e Waste (Wales) Measure (2010)
Author: Hayley Jones Waste Strategy and Operations Manager / Marcus Lloyd,
Head of Infrastructure
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive

Clir. Chris Morgan, Cabinet Member for Waste, Leisure and Green Spaces
Clir Sean Morgan, Leader of Council

Sue Richards, Head of Education, Planning and Strategy

Ben Winstanley, Head of Land and Property Services

Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

Dave Roberts, Principal Group Accountant

Cath Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager

Liz Lucas, Head of Customer and Digital Services

Rob Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure
Services

Page 185



Appendices:

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Sarena Ford, Communications Manager

Stefano Jefferson, Transformation Manager — Commercial Investment
Councillor. D. Tudor Davies MBE, Chairman, Environment and
Sustainability Committee

Councillor. Adrian Hussey, Vice Chairman, Environment and Sustainability
Committee

Councillor. Gary Johnston, Chair, Joint Scrutiny Committee

Councillor. Brenda Miles, Deputy Chair, Joint Scrutiny Committee

Appendix 1 — Resource and Waste Routemap
Appendix 2 - Integrated Impact Assessment (Informational Campaign

Behaviour Change)
Appendix 3 — Integrated Impact Assessment (HRC Booking System and

Pre-Sort)

Page 186



APPENDIX 1 — Resource and Waste Routemap

Page 187



RESOURCEAND
WASTE ROUTE MAP

b}

by
-~

Page 188



CONTENTS

Intreduction

Backgrownd

Approach

The Programme

Delivery Approach
Resources

Condclusion and Next Steps

Page 189



RESCUSCE AND WASTZ A0UTE NP

7 1 \ INTRODUCTION

following transfoemation route map

outlings a credibie plan that Casephily
Coundil are committed to deliver, with support

from Welsh Govemnment 10 transiorm the
county borough's resource and waste service.

The route mag sets out the plan 10 ensure
Caerphily meots and excoeds statutory
perfcemance targets, whilst being realistic about
the timescales and resources reguired. It seeks
to debver a high-quality service that maximises
material quality and supports the tansitiontoa
Circutar Econonmy, offering social and economic

oppontunitios.

LR RRR

PR RV R R ER e

Howewer, 1o do this both the Coundil and its
regdents ae going 1o need 10 work differently
and together The route map cutines how this
koo term change will be achieved.

The next decade will seo significant policy
changes to the resousce and waste sector

0 Wales, with econamic levers (o reduce
consumption and improve material quality
and security, including Workplace Recyding
Reguiations, Extended Producer Respons bilty
|EPR), Deposit Retum Scheme (DRS) and Digitad
Waste Tracking.

Page 190



D

Carpulrp had histerically performed well,

ng 66.7 pancent recycing in J017-18,
bt ha since dedined, and perfommance sver
B past Ehinda yoaes has baen balow tanget with
i Aarthonity a1 fisk of 3 penalty Ame.

Thiie cursen s yoling rate is vl Do tha levels

raquined to achieve the statuiony tanget of 20
by 2024-25 and tha Suthesity contiress

to b at risk of significant fess.

BACKGROUND

Thiis FOULE P P 5215 0o Thie plan 10 ensame
Caarphilly meets and excesds SOy
pesformance tangets, whilst being realistic
abezit thic Gimascakls and eSOUNNES Fguisod b
et dhesie ambitions. I has boen deviskoped

i lired wifth ther veaste hisrechy supporting the
principles of wasie pereeniion and minimisation,
BuppOting se-use, secycling and finally residual
rocoway and LandiSl for i s et Dot bl for i
SR oF recycineg.

Table 1: Caerphilly recyding performance against targets 200192022

Actual % Pamalty lisbality
2 8-20 % 6251 EX72.000
rErdinel | 61.92 £4&01 200
n21-13 5070 £838.300
200333 6076 [penjcind)

TheWaste Hierarchy

St Irecl s
Uing bric mabarial in diigr and manulaclure.

g Mg priochets for langu. Liing less hazardeas

rra bl

£ Chucking, chismireg, ripsirineg, mifurbhing whele
Freparlng for re-use — P —
Turmireg waite info s nees webitanse o produt inchales
e compadting il il meets quality prolocels

I'ﬂl.li'qln-lﬂll digaritian, incineration with sremgy
Oy S
[Fesebi, Feaak e} dradl rmabariak from washi; s Backiling

o al
4 ¥ Laradfll and incirma on with oul snengy Moy

Page 191



Table 1 : Challenges

FEETLET I & bl WS T BOUT T AR

In P ernineg pariormancs Jnd seoking 1o adde-s
e bcues identifed, the following challenges
hiate s bt fliesd:

Challenge
Reidanits in Taskg by which
Carphilly 28 s F1Rg by highear
prodiucing trean Thee natio nal
companativily Feers of 37T kghih
oy | TR e ] W e 201003,
W
1 W
Theia ars Fukgh Cimacetd tonal
I I WOED IS ralysis oo
-l 3 Housedobkd trat e tham hal,
Rt i Rixcycding SES pancen of ther
Contras (HRCL), residual kirbside
wrp=rcially sirgam corta e
negichal wasoe. manedial that coukd
b pecyched, using
existing sarvices
Matatial Reise Reponed dry reuse for
H ai HACs has BOHII2T weas T503T
st hisrically ‘toarire, witich s 16784
‘ b BN 3 PRAEE ‘oS s thain thee
ahop at Panalita national Jwarage of
— W P i AT EDS T
Thwdisd aisd: 20- 3 pescent of
bk leswiks ol Al vaccta colkcied
£ LT TN a1 thie ke for
O TG recycliog is nod able
co-wringled to b procemad
ﬂ b it i recyclie This
oo lkecticn of consists of untaegeted
necyclable materias &g Tetragak
miatedial. el COMETENSITIS £ug.
T write
Ryl
HRC o SR
recyching yiokl Ridfiafncn on secondary
i o sor of residual warie
contaneds which is
Costly and e FaDie
W FRDONOTY Fales
hiztew doclingsd

Ruconfigune HR S
b facilitabe & shift of
e Froen residual

b0 mecycling sreams.

Imroaee marta all
uality o e
bovaeds o Ciecular
Ecoaumy in Wales.

Imprording tha HRC
racycling offer on
siter Thinougin  uses
feianadly, recycing
first pecrisioen with

PR Tl L

Page 192



}
a]

Rz rwir
Infrastruciure

-~ w
Casrphily has - v | ZeEkgmhhye

Reduce owerall
tha highast rasidual warte.
quanitity residual
WD PO pEEEOn
nWales
Thaia are Mo miaterials feam
high lewek rasiduall o necyClng
of ecyclabke SCFEams.
miatesial imthis
rthichoia | SEFE e
Theara ara Figih Raeducing asscadabile
kawais of Fioad food waste and
WAt in the i food washs
neshchual steeaim feomi residisal bin 1o
existing food vweaste
SRIEL
Tha HFIC Ensuring woar
nieteork & undoer Ferbanudl y, mecharm,
pEressune and efficient BHRC
WOCEEE o tha perreisicm i5
Trahir S is important i
challengireg and SUpRt widar
mequiFes a long senvicn changes
T AR @t
Pl
Thae LB Thie Fuibuna
Wiste Trarlar R ounce 5 Wa st
Srak o ot Full SEERTETY Cafe
MOGOn Mgengs b cosnishdarad in
siagrafi canit isalation, developing
e coenpBant, eMcient
il theava 2 and effectie
0N ek 0 infrastruchur e
sutitadil ity that suppeets
Capacity af this a safe working
e for fuburs envirorersnt and
NEGUIF G i% sl table for our
enviroreTsencal
SED TS MUSE b
ditlrerred abonerics
thir fubure stratagy

Page 193



&

wmmwmmm
G4 T and thiel aoginal o dvisors,
an avidencs M & pEroech Thal ima e e

prorrioa beaiming and best practaos will snduns
i lomeg-term holiEtic srarbegy & devedl opshd

and delvered, laking the service to 3030 and
Barypnridl. Wi il Tk Seocoisnt o curment and

Scheame, and Watte Tracking, to developa
sarwice Tt Tor the fubune and supported by the

residends of Casrphly.

It s claar that dhe Coundl cannot do this

sl and 2 Col kctive @Mort Troen nesidents,
el RGO 2] Ofel WA DO SO LTy

wiill B s skt i BTN ] SUSTIING
succass. Reddents will be ot the keart of the
teaireal o TNAThoin jounmery and whise possible
Incramanial change will b used bo immied by
imiprosse poriormiance and to help ambsd g
taien behavioural change The drangss need 1o
rasiilt in 2 highly engaged population who e
recyclineg effoctivedy.

W ane in a dirrate emangency and the Coundil
declasaticn in 2019, coenmitted o becoming
nest zeen by 3030 Chimate changs b significantly
impacted by unsustainable conumEation and
wasts dispodal Th ne mag and a5sociaed

T T T—_—

APPROACH

chamge progeenene will develop a strong

naTative 1o the dimate emeegency, creating
& golden theead Trom climnabs T reesu K

CONSLTHEE R, FEROUFTEE AN Was e IMaia Qoiment
across thie county borougi. This mist hawva,
dincarbon imthon a1 it heart, seeling 10 Maduce
tha amiount of erengy and eenbsion s nduding
uhra-loee enission velhicies and the production of
T MR gy,

Ther appenadn aligns with, and miust st within,
‘thas e tional conteot and paolicy framerson. As
& pubdic ket s il ensure v wiork with our
COTWTI Gt DO perbact the boerey Danen imipact
ol oo dacisions in Ene with the Well-bsing
aid Futung Caneeatiors ACT [2015]) and tha
Ervsirnnim et AT 20210 W il also B guidisd
by thee Wiaksh Maticnal Wame sEatisgy. Tosaeds
Zero Waste, The Beryond Recyding strategy ax well
2 the forthcomiing Business, Thied and Publkc
Riscycling begisati on.

e prcagramima vl B prasonied in Eng with
thas veaale hisranchy, supporting the peind ples of
WA PR RN and Frindmisal o, SunDonineg
ne-Usa, recycing ard Anally resdual recoverny
|l Fow | bems neort st able for Poars o
recycling. Using this approach whik dess oping
tha stranedqy, will provide a famesork that brings
TeShdanis Wil LS On Chis joumey 1o net 2680
T

Page 194



Route Map to a Net Zero Caerphilly County Borough

Hig "'
i '.-": ,. ._‘ Zero 2030

Towrards Net

Page 195



Table Tesn: Resowrce and Waste Strategy Ohbjectives

Oisjiective O

Promoie
minErisation

TR 5
dongside
tangeted
T PGS,
Digvwedop e

netwacerk of Hbrany
of things.

Rindbscin i off
Siregl e e
rechodie] plantic
e T &
arthars to Foliow.

Digvwedop e
POMaE o
T
rinosdhice HRC
booking sysbem
- subjesct totrial
aired positive

ared Deposit
Retuimms Schiasrie
i b L tns
i cmpdy vt
v By beliartion.

OEjective Tisd

Expand Fosura at
HRC including
making it aaky to
donate items.
Promats
Nt ol
repair and Feus.

Dibjeciive Thres

Inecraase gualicy
amad propostion of
recycliod matosial

InCrease
oEpoftunities for
CORTITILINITY LD
recyche 2.9 Saparate
littad and o un
avants

| M e
panicipatioe in
Pioeced svas s

Drrvalop HRC ©o
capburn as masch

racycling as
peociai Bl

hjective Four

et uliras oy
e vahichen

Rirdiidi s St
b0 laareciRill.

Digitalise the
s@rece making i
A DAY 3% P bl
foe residents o

en garge whilst
Masimisineg
afficiorcies by
peowiding eobust
perlomance data.
Chaas, cons et

signiposting.
Making desined
berhariowins a5
earky a5 P ble
Frapan: a

CORTETILNITY
d cati o

Page 196



&AY

FpE the disvalopmsnt of the fouts
miap, & el ormation pnoegmms will b
bl gl condEcting of Tive “Fillar Projecs” and
fire TEmabdineg T

PILLAR PROJECTE

Hizusaledld Racycling Contres: Thane aie D
HRCs rranagire circa 22,000 1onnes of mateial.
A Tull resvia of siiss will ba wndertalken, o enaes
ey i 1L FoF Psr POk, iNCPOasife i-Lisd 3ifed
reCycling opporiunities and red ucing nesidal
wiasta. This vl include a revicw of hutun site

P S, chelop N & DS eSS Cace fof Chags:
ared | @miediting Chi recomersnded ohangis

Esrbsids Dy Recsclineg: Undomake a iovios
iof lrbeiche FeaCycling 10 imgEoe the capius

ared gpiality of nabarial collected. Using bact
practice and Cakine] an evidenoe-Dased approach,
i, pll o it weill witil ke daka gak hawing

e esechi lireg) 00 irvieaimy T VLIS IFRRSS S

T dred Turbuie Sosnacs: nd will i nchedo the
e |t o o Qimy S Chiafeg i

Esrbaids Drganit Becycling: Fromote and
imiprose exiing sarvice offers Tor organic
kit gk collsction including incFeasing Sood
weasio participation and developdng borg tenm
plarc for garden wasts.

Esrbsbde Risldual: Korbaide v dual wasts
capacity and feegquency will be revievwsed, &
detaied Equalities mpact Assesment will be
undamalien 0o st in the development of
SUPPOTT SEFECes 10 355BT any Tubuee dhan ges.

PROGRAMME

Tirdetls Wasts Servioss: This peojo gllar waill
sk o miset thi new regulations for busimess,
‘i e el © SRaTTON ONQENESIE I 2IT0SE

the county boeough by sobiising trade wasie
sarvicEs that includke The sepate collection of in
soopae recyciablke mateFials

Thi fodloewing Enabdiing thommes willl run across
alll v pillass to suppoet the delivery of the
T ST o norhe e

Commanicatisn and Engegement “olcwng
Hakeholder mapping. & deialed, comgeehenave
e st picaitegied COFTME RN Loy 2ied
ergagamicnt plan will be dovlopsd bo support
Tha dhliveny of e Siraiegy. Thi erabling sSream
ol pErmaEtE 20ross This Wil Dinogra mimas.
BeFrawioural insight, pamicipatin mapping

] nisdige thisry will fem thie feundation for
Tha wasrioas cam pabgre 2med Chay will adapt and
ervnhie a0 val move Thiough ohe stages ol the
TR L

‘Werlolercs Engagemant: The workloroe is a
by emabder o the ovserall sucoess of This ns
appenech. These changes will directly imgac
thaain and shigukd ot b undefemtisnabed, Thic
worksiream will Sumno LT engagemant, LT
rainineg, workdornce consulation, healih 2md
wafeiy and the deselo prmait of fesw policies. This
will include angaeJamant with o workdonos Jnd

Page 197



Infrastrecture: Building upon previous

work undertaken, develop and deliver a
compeelensive infrastructure strategy that
supports the strateqy. This will indude the
considoration of a Waste Transfer Station, depot
requirements as well a5 2 long term plan for HRC
provigon

Ultra Low Emission: Dovelop a strategy to
debver long tem spirations for an ultra-low
emisdon feet inchuding procurement and
required iInSastrnucture.

RESOURCE AN WASTI ROUTE mApP

Digital Offer: In ine with the Councis
Customer and Digitad strategy, the digital
capability of the service is essential 10 drive
effickencies and 10 provide end 10 end sarvice
indormation to help monitor measure and
review the senvice to ensure it meets ctizen
roquisemnents. Digital deliverables include:
route aptimisation, tront end systemns and in
calb devices and this work will ook 10 maximise

opportunitios to work smarter. This vital data will

form 2 key clement in understanding Comimenity
beraviowr changes at a hypar local leved.

Page 198



=% DELIVERY
{3 APPRoACH

TERERREER R R R e

n developing the route map, a sumber These are 2ntiCipated 10 INCreade recyding performance,
of immediate interventions for the thesely demonatrating our imenedi ate foous upon

period 2023- 2025, have been identified. Daginning cwr journey for long term change.

Projected %
point InCroase

Pillar Enabling theme Activity

Allac 1 Impl ement recommendations from the recent WRAP 1%
HRC provision observational study in siation to signage and site layout,
to move focus to secycing rather than waste dispoal.
Introduce 3 pre SO requiFeeant across the HRC Network.
This will require site users to bring waste 10 the site
segregated into its vasious material fractions.

IMpecwe OUSTomMes eNgIGemMent aCrons the Network
through the introduction of additional customer trained
operatives on site.

Introduce a trial booking system an one site, followed by 2
roll 0wt 10 the remaining sites if the trial proves successiul

Pillar 2 A widespread informational campaign will be Lunched, %%
Kerbside Dry supportad by WRAPS woll establiched “Bo Mighty”™
Recycling cameaign to einforce mesages of acceptabie materials.

The information carpaign will be further supported
with a behaviour change campaign. The campaign will

To support the behavicur change campaign, engagement
and education staff will directly engage with reddents

on the doorstep 1o promote and maximise recycling
cpportunities. This will inclade an ongoing camgaign
within our schools 10 eNSUNe OUr YOUNGer people aee
engaged.

Additional capacity requisements | will be discussed oo an
Iindividual bags and extea containers provided on a case by
case basis

10

Page 199



Fillar Emabling theme

RISOURCE ANS WAS TEAOUTT MA»

Activity

Projected %

Pllar 4

Pllar 5
Trade Service

Enabling Theme 1

Campaign 1 and 2 will have a significant focus on food
waste participation messages, both informational and
emotive 10 evoke 2 behaviour change. To suppoet the
behaviour change campaign engagement and education
staff will engage with residents on the doorstep.

This will include an ongoing Gampaign within our schools
L0 RNSUNS O YOUNGEr Peopie e engaged.

This will be further supported by the introduction of free
caddy liners foe | year. & month supply of liners will bo
deliverad to properties with an accomnpanying information
booklet. The impact of this intervention will be reviewed
thereattar.

The team will continue with the "Mash for Cash” food waste
incontivisation camgaign and consider sebeanding and
relaunching the campaign to align with the behaviour
cdhange camgaign.

Engage with residents to maximise recycing theough

the endorcement of existing resickal waste policies, that
include for top hatting (bags stacked on top of the bin)
and side waste.

Review exiLing senvice 10 encure the residual trade waste
service is competitive and has a focussed oustomer base.

Develop business case for future trade recycding services
and imploment new service in line with the new
commescial waste requlations.

Extorsive and continvuous commanication & an essential
ingredient throwghout this peogramme of change. It is
thesefore woeaved theoughout each pillar, forming a vitad
part of service change and increased participation.

The multipronged approach will see the delivery of two
Campaigns nunning dongside one anothes, the first will
foous upon reinforcing information about how to recycle
effoctively and the secand will focus upon the theme of
behaviour change, focussng on the “why recycke?”

The campaigns will be delivered across various media
channoks in ceder 10 ensure we reach all segments of

the comumenity and will faature a range of kiy messages
tikved to the audence, iInduding our schools.

The bespoke campaigns will be further supported by
WRAP highly recognised “Be Mighty” campaign which
focuses on a sense of teamwork and togetherness.
Combined together all 3 campaigns will encuse we
communicate the How, Wy and Teamrwork reguired 1o
achieve success.

poimt increase

1%

1%

Page 200



Enabling Theme 2
Workforce
Engagement

Enabling Theme 3
Infrastructure

Enabling Theme 4
Ultra Low Emissions

Enabling Theme 5
Digital Offer

Initial meetings have held with the Trade Unions and
workforce on the route map and its priority interventions.
This engagement will continue throughout the
programme of change and in the development of the
waste strategy.

Identify key training requirements necessary to implement
the interventions. This has already commenced with
additional customer service training for HRC operatives.

Engage with collection crews on the transition to
digitisation and round configuration.

Consideration of future requirements for waste transfer
station and depot requirements.

Consider opportunities for ULEV when reviewing the
vehicle replacement strategy. Explore issues around
charging infrastructure at Tiryberth depot. Extend the roll
out of electric small supervisor vans.

Introduce a digital mobile solution for waste collection
rounds to improve efficiencies and enhance the customes
experience. Linking to the back office it will enable officers
to respond proactively and develop a targeted and
individual approach to education and communication as
well improve customer interactions and journeys.

12

Projected %
point increase

1%

Page 201



L@A RESOURCES

LLLLLLLRRRRRRE

TR R R e

programme will require additional
staff and Anancial resource to enswre R is
delivered efectively. A Hoad of Waste post will
be created to provide additional capacity and
expertise alongside the Head of Infrastructure.

The existing waste toam will be reviewed, and
addional capacity and skill sets will be required
o suppoct the development and delivery of the
route mag, whilst ensuring the exiting service

is not compromised. Furthermore, an integrated
Programene team, supported by the corporate
sl Cemation rescurce has boen convened
which will include ICT, Health and Safety, Fimance,
Peopie Services, Communications, etc. Froject
Managers will be required to lead the work pilass
and enabling Streams.

Additionally, Weich Government will continue 0
provide support.

13

Page 202



P by
¥— s CONCLUSION
V".‘?‘ f? ‘;"\‘S
o" . p "‘,‘Z\
] NI,
g / Y & NEXT STEPS
W B
el R LT
DL Ry
@ Coundl remains committed to During this financial year we will undertake
addressing s recyding performance and sevenal service interventions across Al fve
the route map outlined is fully supported pilars and begin development towards the
by the Leader, Cabinet Membar and Chief free enabling streams in eamest, to begin 0
Executive to deliver long term sustainable rprove our parformance. A compreherdive
change, that aligns 10 our dimate declaration communi cation and engagement Camgaign
and meets statutory recycling targets. buiking on behavicural insights, will heip

regdents fully understand and engage with
exkiting services in the first instance. This focus
will inizially be upon addressing food waste,
reducing contamination in the recyding steeam
and reducing resichal waste.

In paralel work will be undertaken aver the
Sumener period to develop an updated draft
rategy, that will indlude future recycling service
changes and timescakes forimplementation for
considenation by a Joint Scruting comerétiee and
decizion by Cabinet late Autumn 2023 witha
view of commencing pubiic consultation at the

begineing of 2024

Page 203



Maer doogien hon ar gael yn Gymraeq, ac mewn ieithoedd a ffoomatau erad ar gais
This document Is avallabie in Welsh, and in other languages and formats on request

Page 204



Appendix 2

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment

This integrated impact assessment (llA) has been designed to help support the Council
in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance with a range of
relevant legislation, including:

Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011

Socio-economic Duty — Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010

Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning
rinciples

UVVVVYVY

PLEASE NOTE: Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if
proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic
decisions.

See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic
Duty Welsh Government Guidance.

PROPOSAL DETAILS

Lead Officer:- Rhodri Lloyd, Nicole White

Head of Service:- Marcus Lloyd

Service Area and Department:- Waste Management
Date:- 15" June 2023

What is the proposal to be assessed? Provide brief details of the proposal and
provide a link to any relevant report or documents.

Caerphilly Council's transformation route map outlines a credible plan that the
Authority is committed to deliver, with support from Welsh Government to transform
the resource and waste service and ensure Caerphilly meets and exceeds statutory
performance targets. It seeks to deliver a high-quality service that maximises material
quality and supports the transition to a Circular Economy, offering socialand economic
opportunities. However, to achieve this both the Council and its residents are going to
need to work differently. The route map outlines how this long-term change will be
achieved.

A widespread informational campaign will be launched, supported by WRAP’s well
established Be Mighty campaign to reinforce messages of acceptable materials.

The campaign will be further supported by a behaviour change campaign. The
campaign will run in tandem with the informational campaign and will focus on the
‘why’ designed to evoke an emotional response and focus on the impacts of non-
participation. To support the behaviour change campaign engagement and education

Page 205


https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf

staff will be required to engage with residents on the doorstep to promote and
maximise recycling opportunities.

The campaigns will be delivered across various media to ensure that we reach all
segments of the community and will feature a range of key messages tailored to the
audience. The information will be available in Welsh and other languages on request
including different formats — digital and non-digital.

Information Campaign will include:

e Video

e Branding collection vehicles

e 12 month social media campaign
o Kerbside guide

e Resource Hub (Libraries)

e Waste Newline special

e Community gamification

e Community Events

e Bin personification stickers

Behaviour Campaign will include:
e Launch video
e 12 month social media campaign
e Video series
e Local art piece
e Waste Newsline special
e Large scale print campaign
e Community Events

Supplementing the informational campaign there are offers proposed that will help to
facilitate increased participation and capture of recyclable material collected from the
kerbside services in the form of additional recycling containers (dry recycling) and
supplies of bioliners (food waste).

Page 206



2a

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

2b

EQUALITY ACT 2010 (STATUTORY DUTIES) (WALES) REGULATIONS 2011
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the
need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassmentand victimisation; advance
equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between
different groups). Please note that an individual may have more than one protected
characteristics.

Age (people of all ages)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral — Communication will be aimed at reducing the confusion surrounding the
materials that can and cannot be recycled, providing people with more confidence in
participating in the recycling service. The campaign will be delivered door-to-door so
residents can benefit from receiving this information on their doorstep.

Neutral — some residents, especially the elderly may not be comfortable answering
the door. A calling card/recycling information will be posted along with the telephone
number of the contact centre if they wish to contact us for further information. If a
resident has a ‘no cold caller’ sticker on their door staff will not knock.

The information will be available in a variety of different formats and
languages upon request.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Disability (people with disabilities/long term conditions)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral — Communication will be aimed at reducing the confusion surrounding the
materials that can and cannot be recycled, providing people with more confidence in
participating in the recycling service. The campaign will be delivered door-to-door so
residents can benefit from receiving this information on their doorstep.

Neutral — some residents may find it difficult in getting to the door in time. A calling
card/recycling information will be posted along with a telephone number and email
address if they wish to contact us for further information. If a resident has a ‘no cold
caller sticker on their door staff will not knock. We will adopt best practice and
Implement appropriate mitigation measures to deal with ability specifics.

The information will be available in a variety of different formats and
languages upon request.

Page 207


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

(i) If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
(i) What evidence has been used to support this view?

2c Gender Reassignment (anybody who's gender identity or gender expression is
different to the sex they were assigned at birth)

Page 208



(i)

(i)

(iii)

2d

(i)

(iii)

2e

(i1)

(iii)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral impact

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Marriage or Civil Partnership (people who are married or in a civil partnership)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral impact

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Pregnancy and Maternity (women who are pregnant and/or on maternity leave)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral impact. Residents will also be able to notified about the nappy collection
service.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 209



2f

(i)

(i1

29

()

(i1)

(iii)

2h

()

(i1)

(iii)

2i

()

Race (people from black, Asian and minority ethnic communities and different racial
backgrounds)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neuitral
If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
What evidence has been used to support this view?

Religion or Belief (people with different religions and beliefs including people with
no beliefs)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Sex (women and men, girls and boys and those who self-identify their gender)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral
If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
What evidence has been used to support this view?

Sexual Orientation (lesbian, gay, bisexual, heterosexual, other)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral

Page 210



(i) If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

(i) What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 211



3a

()

(i1

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY (STRATEGIC DECISIONS ONLY)

(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put
tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making. Socio-economic
disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little
or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater material deprivation, restricting the
ability to access basic goods and services)

Please consider these additional vulnerable group and the impact your
proposal may or may not have on them:

Single parents and vulnerable families

People with low literacy/numeracy

Pensioners

Looked after children

Homeless people

Carers

Armed Forces Community

Students

Single adult households

People misusing substances

People who have experienced the asylum system

People of all ages leaving a care setting

People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)
People involved in the criminal justice system

VVVVVVYVYVVVVVYVYY

Low Income / Income Poverty (cannot afford to maintain regular payments such as
bills, food, clothing, transport etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

(iii) What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 212


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx

3b

(if)
(iii)

3c

()

(i1)

(iii)

3d

(i)

Low and/or No Wealth (enough money to meet basic living costs and pay bills but
have no savings to deal with any unexpected spends and no provisions for the
future)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Material Deprivation (unable to access basic goods and services i.e. financial
products like life insurance, repair/replace broken electrical goods, warm home,
hobbies etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Area Deprivation (where you live (rural areas), where you work (accessibility of

public transport) Impact on the environment?

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

(iii) What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 213



3e

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

3f

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Socio-economic Background (social class i.e. parents education, employmentand
income)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Socio-economic Disadvantage (What cumulative impactwill the proposal have on
people or groups because of their protected characteristic(s) or vulnerability or
because they are already disadvantaged)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view?

Page 214



4a.

CORPORATE PLAN — COUNCIL’S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES

(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being
Objectives? Whichin turn support the national well-being goals for Wales as
outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Are there any
impacts (positive, negative or neutral? If there are negative impacts how have these
been mitigated?) Well-being Objectives

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all

Educational campaigns for kerbside dry recycling and kerbside organic recycling will
help reduce confusion surrounding what can and cannot be recycled. The campaign
will be supported by WRAP’s well established ‘Be Mighty campaign and a behaviour
change campaign, whereby education staff will engage with residents face to face on
the doorstep.

Objective 2 - Enabling employment

The proposal will likely result in additional staff being required to deliver the
campaigns. Additional resources will be required as currently there are insufficient
resources to undertake the campaign. Current staff are committed to delivering
existing service provisions.

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout
the county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s
well-being

Effective recycling supports a positive living environment for all residents living in the
county borough which will ensure positive well-being.

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that
increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impact on the
environment

N/A

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy lifestyle in accordance with
the Sustainable Development principle with in the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015

Effective recycling supports people to live a healthy lifestyle by ensuring positive well
being and managing waste sustainably.

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being

Effective recycling supports people to live a healthy lifestyle by ensuring positive well-
being and managing waste sustainably.

Links to any other relevant Council Policy (How does your proposal deliver against
any other relevant Council Policy)

Page 215


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx

Waste Strategy
Decarbonisation
Well-being Plan
Corporate Plan

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — The Five Ways of Working
(ALSO KNOWN AS THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES. THE ACT
REQUIRES THE COUNCIL TO CONSIDER HOW ANY PROPOSAL IMPROVES
THE ECONOMIC, SOCIAL, ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL WELL-BEING OF

Page 216



WALES USING THE FIVE WAYS OF WORKING AS A BASELINE)

How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the
proposal?

Long Term

The proposal will support and encourage better waste and recycling practices inthe
long term and change people’s way of thinking for future generations. The
overarching aim is to reduce the total volume of residual waste collected by
encouraging people to recycle more of their waste. Ultimately this will allow us to
work towards a Circular Economy, reduce carbon footprint and become more
resource efficient.

Prevention

The proposal will support and encourage better waste and recycling practices and
change people’s way of thinking for future generations. The intention of the proposal
is to prevent recyclable materials (including food waste) being placed into the general
waste bin.

Integration

Working with all partners in the waste management sector e.g. CCBC Community
Safety Wardens, Waste and Resources Action Programme, WLGA, Welsh
Government, external consultants, NRW, neighbouring Local Authorities, digital
providers.

This supports our ambition to work ‘Towards Zero Waste’ the Welsh Government’s
strategy.

Collaboration

Working with all partners in the waste management sector e.g. CCBC Community
Safety Wardens, Waste and Resources Action Programme, WLGA, Welsh
Government, external consultants, NRW, neighbouring Local Authorities, digital
providers.

This supports our ambition to work ‘Towards Zero Waste’ the Welsh Government’s
strategy.

Involvement

Page 217


https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working

Every effort will be made to ensure all residents are able to access the
necessary information. The information will be available in a variety of different
formats and languages upon request.

Page 218



WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015
Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goals and how?
A Prosperous Wales

The proposal will support Wales in being a ‘prosperous society’ by encouraging more
sustainable waste management and recycling practices. This will be achieved through
the encouragement of recycling and reducing reliance on residual disposal methods
such as Energy from Waste/Landfill. Supporting the Welsh Government's Circular
Economy, reducing carbon footprint and becoming more resource efficient.

Resilient Wales

The proposal will support and help us work towards a Circular Economy by
increasing recycling and reducing the volume of general waste. Initiating this project
now is the beginning of us working towards Zero Waste by 2050 and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions through the reduction in resource use. This in turn will
support biodiversity, which is significantly impacted during the extraction of
resources for the products we consume.

A Healthier Wales

The proposal will encourage and provide employment opportunities, which in turn will
benefit people’s lifestyles and their mental and physical well-being. It will also provide
training for staff to increase their knowledge and provide them the tools they need for
potential career progression in the future.

A More Equal Wales

The proposal will support people and our communities by providing employment for
people from all backgrounds. Everyone will have the opportunity to speak to an officer
on the door-step, receive information. If they are not home they will receive information
through their door providing a telephone number, email address and information will
be available in a number of different formats and languages on request.

Page 219


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB

A Wales of Cohesive Communities

The proposal will help connect the Authority with the local community through
collaborative working, face to face engagement, education etc, whilst also providing
additional employment opportunities.

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language

The proposal will comply with the Welsh Language Measure 2011 in all aspects of
education, engagement, communication etc. The proposal is fully compliant with the
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and associated Welsh Language Standards.
The proposal will encourage any service users to speak their first language (Welsh,
English or any other).

- We have staff within the department who are able to converse in Welsh whether
that be by telephone, text or email
- All leaflets and information will be available in both English and Welsh

A Globally Responsible Wales

The proposal will support and help us work towards a Circular Economy and become
a more globally responsible Wales. Initiating this project now is the beginning of us
working towards Welsh Government's Towards Zero Waste Strategy, which aims to
achieve zero waste by 2050 and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through the
reduction in resource use and increasing recycling. This in turn will support
biodiversity, which is significantly impacted during the extraction of resources for the
products we consume.

Page 220



7a.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

7b.

()

(i)

WELSH LANGUAGE (WALES) MEASURE 2011 AND WELSH LANGUAGE

STANDARDS

(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the
Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or negative impact a proposal may have
on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is
treated no less favourably than the English language) Policy Making Standards -
Good Practice Advice Document

Links with Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s Five Year
Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027 and the Language Profile

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Neutral - Communication through social media platforms, internet, council website,
leaflets, telephone systems etc will all be bilingual.

The department is committed to complying with the requirements of the Welsh
Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and as a matter of course issues, all its
communications bilingually. The department has a significant proportion of Welsh
speakers across all tiers and can communicate both verbally and in the written form
to queries and service requests. The department supports all the Welsh Government
sustainable waste campaigns, all of which include bilingual narrative and branding.
The Waste team supports the National ‘Be Mighty campaign, which is aiming for
Wales to become the top recycling nation in the world.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

There will be no negative impact on the Welsh language.

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

N/A
Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards. Specifically Standards 88—93

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Communication through social media platforms, internet, council website, leaflets,

telephone systems etc will all be bilingual.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

Page 221


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/appendix-b-menter-iaith-caerffili-welsh-language-p.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx

(iif) What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20, LDP,
Pupil Level Annual School Census

7c. Opportunities to promote the Welsh language e.g. status, use of Welsh language
services, use of Welsh in everyday life in work / community

(i) Doesthe proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

We will ensure that those requiring support to be delivered in Welsh are in no way
discriminated against. The service will always be delivered using the service users
preferred language.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7d. Opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language e.g. staff, residents
and visitors

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Staff will be able transverse in both English and Welsh.If there are negative
impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7e. Treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English
language

(i) Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

All communication and information on the website will be available in English and

Welsh. This will allow the service user to read/access information in their chosen
language.

Page 222



()

(i)

7f.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed
so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on (a)
opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and (b) treating the
Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.

The service will be fully compliant with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure
2011/Welsh language standards which will allow and encourage our service users to
access information in their preferred language, whether that be English or Welsh.

DATA AND INFORMATION

(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the
proposal? Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, existing
databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or
other service user feedback, national and regional data, academic publications and
consultants’ reports eftc.)

Data/evidence (Please provide link to report if appropriate)

In November/December 2022, the council ran a phase of engagement called ‘What
matters to you?" 93% of respondents agreed that waste collection and recycling
services should continue to be a priority when planning council services and budgets
for 2022/23 and beyond. Through that same engagement activity, 86% of respondents
felt that waste collection and recycling services was as important, or more important
to them than 12 months ago. Insight from the ‘What matters to you?’ phase also
suggested that residents appreciate the simplicity of our current recycling system.

In addition, an online ‘quick poll' sought additional views on waste and recycling during
January 2023. Key insights from this poll, which received 2,632 responses included:

e 79% of respondents said they recycle food waste at the kerbside. From those
respondents who don’t currently recycle food waste, their reasons for not doing
so were primarily that they compost any food waste, they don’'t waste any food,
they don’t like the smell/feel its unclean or they don’'t have any liners to place
inside the caddy.

e 99% of respondents said they regularly recycle using their brown bin/recycling
box/recycling bags at the kerbside.

e 73% of respondents said they regularly make use of the green/garden waste
recycling service. From those respondents who don't, their reasons for not
doing so were primarily that they don’t have any garden waste/a garden or that
they use the service but seasonally (not year-round).

Page 223



Summary reports for the ‘What matters to you?” November/December 2022
engagement phase and the ‘Caerphilly Conversation — budget setting 2023/24
engagement programme can be found at
www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

Key relevant findings

Overall, the findings suggest that the public do not want change. The service is easy
and convenient for a large majority of our residents and they are happy with the way
things are. However, we are always looking at ways to improve our services and we
need change to ensure the Authority remains financially stable now and in the future.
Making changes now will secure this for the Authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The Welsh National Waste Strategy, Towards Zero Waste was launched on 21 June
2010. The strategy set out a series of challenging statutory recycling targets for
Local Authorities to deliver. These are as outlined below:

201012 | 1213 | 1516 | 19/20 | 24/25

Min. levels of reuse & 40% 52% 58% 64% 70%
recycling/composting (or

AD)

Min. proportion of 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

reuse/recycling/composting
from source separation*

Max. level of landfill - - - 10% 5%
Max. level of energy from - - 42% 36% 30%
waste

Min. levels of preparing for | - 04% |0.6% 0.8% 1.0%

reuse (excluding Waste
Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE))

Caerphilly’s recycling performance is outlined below alongside the Welsh
Government statutory targets. As Graph 1 illustrates, Caerphilly has historically
performed well against Welsh Government targets however, over the last 3 years
recycling performance has declined. Performance for 2019/20 of 62.51%, 2020/21 of
61.90%, and 2021/22 of 59% al fell below the statutory target of 64%.

Page 224


http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

Recycling Trends

80.00% 64%

70.00% 65.50% 6:70% g5 105

61.90% 61.90% 59.67% ®
60.00% s5.91% 57.07% 57.61% 54.60% v C 70%
X 51.38% ° 62.50%
3 50.00% 44.03% ®
& 58%
o
&nzw.o% 22.30% 2%
S 30.00%
o)
Q
& 20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
& » N g > N o ) P o D > U D > >
RO R I MR S S A (O GRS GG
) A DR U N ) S S A S S M S S
Financial Year
==@==Statutory Target Recycling Rate

Through the Waste (Wales) Measure 2010, the Welsh Government (WG) made
recycling targets from 2012-13 and beyond, statutory targets. This status allows
Welsh Government to levy financial penalties against Council’s that fail to achieve
them. The statutory targets are weight based and increased gradually over time. In
the current national Welsh Government waste strategy “Beyond Recycling - A
Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality’, the Welsh Government
has stated they will work with Local Authorities and other key partners

to develop further future recycling targets in line with their pathway to zero waste,
with the aim of achieving 100% recycling by 2050. Welsh Government

indicate that they will put in place further minimum statutory recycling targets for
Local Authorities beyond 2025, potentially at a level of 80% by 2033.

Page 225



How has the data/evidence informed this proposal?

The results of the survey reflect that the service is of high importance and the public
recognise this. This initiative facilitates better performance and supports the financial
stability of the authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The data/evidence has shaped the strategy and this proposal in its entirety.

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this
proposal and how will these gaps be filled? Details of further consultation can be

included in Section 9.

An external consultant has worked alongside the council to develop a series of
behaviour change proposals with the aim of identifying gaps in current levels of
understanding amongst the community. This has shaped the communication strategy
for this proposal.

CONSULTATION

(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult. In others, even where
there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation from people that a
consultation will take place. Where it has been determined that consultation is
required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to. Consider the Consultation
and Engagement Framework. Please note that this may need to be updated as
the proposal develops and to strengthen the assessment.

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular
attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles.

Who was consulted?
See above — insight gathered to date through the Caerphilly Conversation and recent
quick poll.

When they were consulted did the consultation take place at the formative
stage and was adequate time given for consultees to consider and respond?

Yes

Was sufficient information provided to consultees to allow them to make an
informed decision on the proposal?

Page 226


https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx

Yes
What were the key findings?

See above — insight gathered to date through the Caerphilly Conversation and recent
quick poll.

How have the consultation findings been taken into account?
The findings have been fed back to senior managers and members through the

decision making process. In addition, the insight gathered has formed the basis for
the Scrutiny/Cabinet report being considered in June and July 2023.

Page 227



10.

MONITORING AND REVIEW

How will the implementation and the impact of the proposal be monitored,
including implementation of any amendments?

Speaking to residents face -to-face allows us to gather information on the demographic
profile, allows us to assess age, residential location and other customer information
that could also help us to shape and improve the service we provide as well as
planning resources to assistthose residents who may require special assistance. The
proposal could also ultimately help us with planning sustainable waste management
initiatives. The information will be provided by the resident either at the door step or
via a telephone conversation at a later date if they wish to speak with us via telephone
following the visit. This could for example be that they require an assisted collection is
they are elderly and/or disabled, require a new/additional food waste caddy etc.

Such monitoring will allow us to target resources and provide bespoke solutions for
respective groupings in our communities and help make the waste department
become a smarter, more responsive and more citizen focussed service provider. This
could mean providing extra support for those persons that are less digitally focussed.

Key to the successful monitoring will be engagement with residents to gather
feedback on behaviour change and whether they have indeed altered their
behaviour as a result of the information campaign. Simple tonnage figures, for
example, could be attributed to a variety of sources.

What are the practical arrangements for monitoring?

The overarching aim of the proposal is to improve our services for users, secure the
financial stability of the authority, increase recycling/recovery rates and reduce the
overall volume of residual waste collected. Recycling figures and recovery tonnages
can be monitored based on data captured in Waste Data Flow.

Key to the successful monitoring will be engagement with residents to gather
feedback on behaviour change and whether they have indeed altered their
behaviour as a result of the information campaign. Simple tonnage figures, for
example, could be attributed to a variety of sources.

How will the results of the monitoring be used to develop future proposals?

Any monitoring measures that are introduced will be revisited on a regular basis to
ensure the implementation is successful or not, as well as capturing any data needed,
or improving the service delivery. Data will be captured through Waste Data Flow

Information/data received will be analysed and used to form future commissioning
decisions.

Key to the successful monitoring will be engagement with residents to gather
feedback on behaviour change and whether they have indeed altered their
behaviour as a result of the information campaign. Simple tonnage figures, for
example, could be attributed to a variety of sources.

Page 228



11.

12.

Depending on the outcomes of the monitoring, alternative methods and
messages will need to be considered as the campaign progresses.
When is the proposal due to be reviewed?

The proposal will be reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure the proposals are having
the desired effect. Data will be collected through Waste Data Flow.

Who is responsible for ensuring this happens?
Rhodri Lloyd

RECOMMENDATION AND REASONING (delete as applicable)

e Implement proposal with no amendments
e Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined

e Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and
socio-economic disadvantage

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance? (delete as
applicable)

e Yes

REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment. This summary should be
included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” section of the Corporate
Report Template. The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the
Report proposal).

To ensure Caerphilly is able to achieve the required Welsh Government statutory
recycling target of 70% in 2024/25.

To ensure Caerphilly is best placed to move beyond the required 2024/25 recycling
target of 70% in subsequent years and be best placed to work towards the zero
waste.

Welsh Government aspiration.

Page 229



13.

VERSION CONTROL

(The 1A should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process.
The llA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the proposal. The
Version Control section will actas an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been
developed over time) (Add or delete versions as applicable)

Version 1

Author:- Nicole White
Brief description of the amendments/update: -

Revision Date:- 19t" June 2023

Page 230



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT AUTHOR
Name:-RhodriLloyd
Job Title:-Principal Waste Management Officer
Date:-19'" June 2023

HEAD OF SERVICE APPROVAL

Name:-Marcus Lloyd
Job Title:-Head of Infrastructure & Waste Management

Signature:-

W W\

Date: 19t" June 2023

Page 231



14.

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Appendix 3

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact
Assessment

This integrated impact assessment (IlA) has been designed to help support the Council
in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance with a range of
relevant legislation, including:

> Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011

> Socio-economic Duty — Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010

> Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011

> Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

> Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning
Principles

PLEASE NOTE: Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if
proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic
decisions.

See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic
Duty Welsh Government Guidance.

PROPOSAL DETAILS

Lead Officer:-RhodriLloyd, Nicole White

Head of Service:-Marcus Lloyd

Service Areaand Department:-Waste Management
Date:-19"June 2023

What is the proposalto be assessed? Provide brief details of the proposal and
provide a link to any relevant report or documents.

The proposal is to introduce a booking system for residents to gain access to the
network of the Council's Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC)
complimented by sort stipulations for waste and recycling materials.

A booking system would provide the opportunity for our residents to have a
dedicated timeslot at the facility whereby they can dispose and recycle their
household waste, in a controlled and safe environment. We anticipate that this will
provide a much more pleasant experience than what happens presently,as the sites
currently receive traffic on a sometimes chaotic and “free for all’ basis where
impatience, tension and conflict are consequences of residents turning up
unannounced. A booking system offers residents the opportunity to use tipping
facilities in a more controlled and safer manner and benefit from preplanned
assistance (to be provided by our site attendants). Such an offer has the potential to

Page 232


https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

eradicate traffic build ups outside of the facilities too. Traffic flows should be much
more fluid and time slots will enable more sustainable vehicle movements to and
from our network of facilities.

A booking system will also help control the misuse of our sites. At present we
suspect a significant proportion of site users are traders/builders/landscape
gardeners and many other trades people that arrive in unmarked vehicles due to the
type of waste they present at site and the frequency of their visits. Currently, staff
turn away people on a daily basis if they are not CCBC residents using the pproof of
residency checking system A booking system should be able to control this level of
misuse significantly which in turn provides more tipping opportunities for our
householders. In addition, and despite our endeavour on checking proof of
residency with the resource we have available, there are a significant number of non
CCBC residents slipping through the net. Moreover, given the decision by many of
our neighbouring Councils to implement 3 and or 4 weekly collections we anticipate
a considerable influx of cross border traffic at our HWRC’s especially those sites
bordering Blaenau Gwent (Rhymney, Penmaen & Full Moon) who have confirmed a
four-weekly residual waste (refuse) collection. A booking system will help us ensure
we are not taking household waste from other council areas, and in turn help
improve our recovery rate performance against other local authorities using data
evidenced and collected through Waste Data Flow.

In deflecting the rogue commercial element from our sites (these groups will be
politely directed to more appropriate private sector outlets/skip hire providers) we
anticpate that the Authority’s residual waste tonnage will decrease. The requirement
to pre-sort will reduce residual waste tonnage and increase recycling, which will ve
evidenced in our quarterly Waste Data Flow. Presently, our waste composition
contains a significant amount of difficult to recover/reprocess i.e. material which is
not of a household nature and this is increasing the risks of the Authority failing to
achieve government recycling targets. Controlling misuse by introducing a booking
system will help inthis regard whilst at the same time increasing the opportunities for
our residents.

It is proposed that Residents will be able to book a slot in one of the following ways:
i) on-line
i) making an appointment to visit a Customer Service Centre by telephoning 01443
866571.

Customer Service Centre opening hours:

Monday - Hanbury Chapel — 09:30 — 15:15 last appointment
Tuesday - Caerphilly — 09:30 — 15:45 last appointment
Wednesday - Ty Penallta - 09:30 — 16:15 last appointment
Thursday - Blackwood - 09:30 — 15:45 last appointment
Friday - Risca - 09:30 — 15:15 last appointment

Residents will need to use these facilities during normal opening hours (Monday-
Friday) if they wish to book a slot for the weekend.

Page 233



N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Local Authorities across the country operate booking systems for access to their
HWRC facilities and more have implemented such systems in 2020 and many
Authorities in the region all have heaped praise on this method.

The introduction of a booking system would ensure greater control over site usage. If
a site was closed for essential maintenance this could be reflected in the system and
if the site must close unexpectedly, we would be able to contact residents and offer
alternative options. It would also provide the Authority with the opportunity to
communicate with residents prior to their arrival on site. This could include informing
residents of the latest site rules/safety measures and advise them on good recycling
and sorting practice. In the same way as assisted kerbside collections operate, the
booking system would allow the service teams to identify those protected groups
who may require additional support. In turn, our sites can be pre-notified of residents
in need of assistance with unloading, especially for people with protected
characteristics. Residents would be communicated with in their preferred language
which they would have advised during the initial booking and only if they gave
permissions initially to be contacted regarding their booking.

The Authority has received requests and recommendations from service users for a
booking system. The general consensus of this feedback is that a booking system
would alleviate queue times, ease congestion and enhance the user experience.

Residents that are not digitally enabled or unable to make a booking online for any
reason will still be able to call the contact centre to make a booking using their
language preference. Our team of customer service advisors will be able to process
their information

Pre-sort requirements at the HWRC
In order to improve our performance, we recognise that we have to reconfigure the
layouts of our HWRC sites to make it:

) easier to recycle and

i) i) more difficult to throw everything into the general waste skip.

Providing more skip containers for a wider range of recyclable materials (carpets,
mattresses etc.) will help to facilitate more recovery activity. In tandem with this
refinement, implementing a policy for pre-sorting waste will help us achieve better
recovery rates. Pre-sorting requirements would be stipulated at the appointment
booking stage and site attendants would verify that residents, on arrival, had pre-
sorted their waste before being allowed to proceed to the HWRC tipping points. If
residents have not pre-sorted their waste they will be asked to return at another time
once their waste has been sorted as the time slot will not allow for sorting of waste.
The length of time slots will be monitored and adjusted if needed. Also worth noting
that following a recent review of the service by WRAP options are being considered
whereby sorting facilities are installed at the sites (as offered by sites in other
Council areas in the region).

Page 234



15.

2a

(iv)

(vi)

2b

(iv)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

EQUALITY ACT 2010 (STATUTORY DUTIES) (WALES) REGULATIONS 2011
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the
need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance

equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between
different groups). Please note that an individual may have more than one protected
characteristics.

Age (people of all ages)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Positive:-

The booking system offers a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are able
to use the facility in a safe and user-friendly environment.

The booking system also enables the Authority to alert the waste team to any older
people needing assistance with unloading at the facility which can then allow our site
staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

The requirement to pre-sort waste could have a negative impact on older residents
who have never been required to do this before. However, this would be stipulated at
the booking stage. This will ensure the waste team are alerted prior to the resident
attending the site allowing our site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their age. Assistance from site
staff will be provided to users regardless of their age as required

Disability (people with disabilities/long term conditions)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Positive:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment

Page 235


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

(v)

(vi)

2C

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

2d

(iv)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

The booking system also enables the Authority to alert the waste team to any
residents with a disability needing assistance with unloading at the facility which can
then allow our site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?

The requirement to pre-sort waste could have a negative impact on those with a
disability if they are physically unable to do this. However, this would be stipulated at
the booking stage. This will ensure the waste team are alerted prior to the resident
attending the site allowing our site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of their
disability.

Gender Reassignment (anybody who's gender identity or gender expression is

different to the sex they were assigned at birth)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-
The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.

Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of their
gender reassignment.

Marriage or Civil Partnership (people who are married or in a civil partnership)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment

Page 236



(v)

(vi)

2e

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of
marriage/civil partnership.

Pregnancy and Maternity (women who are pregnant and/or on maternity leave)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system offers an opportunity for an individual to book a timeslot
whereby they are able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

The system also enables the Authority to alert the waste team to any residents in this
grouping needing assistance with unloading at the facility which can then allow our
site staff to be ready to help the resident on arrival.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.

Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of
pregnancy and maternity.

Page 237



2f

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

29

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

2h

(iv)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Race (people from black, Asian and minority ethnic communities and different racial
backgrounds)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of race.

Religion or Belief (people with different religions and beliefs including people with no

beliefs)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their age. Assistance from site
staff will be provided if required to users regardless of religion or belief.

Sex (women and men, girls and boys and those who self-identify their gender)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

Page 238



(v)

(vi)

2i

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristics.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of sex.

Sexual Orientation (lesbian, gay, bisexual, heterosexual, other)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

Neutral:-

The booking system provides a dedicated timeslot for an individual whereby they are
able to use the facility in a safe and user friendly environment.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to all users regardless of their protected characteristic.
Assistance from site staff will be provided if required to users regardless of sexual
orientation.

Page 239



16.

3a

(iv)
(v)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY (STRATEGIC DECISIONS ONLY)

(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put
tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making. Socio-economic
disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or
no accumulated wealth, leadingto greater material deprivation, restricting the ability
to access basic goods and services)

Please consider these additional vulnerable group and the impact your
proposal may or may not have on them:

» Single parents and vulnerable families

» People with low literacy/numeracy

» Pensioners

» Looked after children

» Homeless people

» Carers

» Armed Forces Community

» Students

» Single adult households

» People misusing substances

» People who have experienced the asylum system

» People of all ages leaving a care setting

» People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)
» People involved in the criminal justice system

Low Income / Income Poverty (cannot afford to maintain regular payments such as bills,
food, clothing, transport etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

The service offer is designed to have significant positive benefits for our service
users, and whilst the facilities are not currently used by a significant portion of our
population, all residents will experience an indirect positive impact as the financial
burden on the department and the Authority lessens. Ultimately, leading to
improvements in more efficient disposal operations. This will be achieved through
the authority avoiding fines from Welsh Government for not achieving recycling
targets. As state above we anticipate recycling to increase which will allow us to
avoid substantial financial penalties.

Page 240


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx

(Vi)

(vii)

3b

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

3c

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of their income. Although
residents must be aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local Libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council’'s customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Low and/or No Wealth (enough money to meet basic living costs and pay bills but have no
savings to deal with any unexpected spends and no provisions for the future)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of their wealth. However,
residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Material Deprivation (unable to access basic goods and services i.e. financial products like
life insurance, repair/replace broken electrical goods, warm home, hobbies etc.)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
NA

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to any individual regardless of material deprivation. Although
residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a

booking can be made in person at one of the council's customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Page 241



3d

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

3e

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

3f

(iv)

(v)

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Area Deprivation (where you live (rural areas), where you work (accessibility of public
transport) Impact on the environment?

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the following and
how?

As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of area deprivation. Although
residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive t0’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council's customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Socio-economic Background (social class i.e. parents education, employment and
income)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the following and
how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

What evidence has been used to support this view?
The service is available to any individual regardless of socio-economic background.
Residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council’'s customer first outlets or by
telephone.

Socio-economic Disadvantage (What cumulative impact will the proposal have on people
or groups because of their protected characteristic(s) or vulnerability or because they are
already disadvantaged)

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the following and
how?
As above

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A

Page 242



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

(vi) What evidence has been used to support this view?

The service is available to any individual regardless of socio-economic
disadvantage. Residents must be made aware that these are ‘drive to’ sites.

Local libraries can be used for internet access to make a booking. Alternatively, a
booking can be made in person at one of the council's customer first outlets

Page 243



cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CORPORATE PLAN — COUNCIL’S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES

(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being
Objectives? Whichin turn support the national well-being goals for Wales as
outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Are there any
Impacts (positive, negative or neutral? If there are negative impacts how have these
been mitigated?) Well-being Objectives

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all

The requirement to pre-sort will educate people how to sustainably manage their
waste rather than placing everything into a black bag and taking it to site

Objective 2 - Enabling employment

The proposal includes a new staffing structure, which will look at appointing
additional staff who will focus on digitalisation, health and safety and performance in
recovery rates.

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout
the county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s
well-being

N/A

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that
Increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impact on the
environment

N/A

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy lifestyle in accordance with
the Sustainable Development principle within the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015

This will be achieved by an education campaign to advise residents of the need to be
sustainable in the way they deal with their products that would previously have been
considered waste by promoting reduce, reuse and recycle.

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being

A booking system offers the opportunity to use HWRC facilities in a more controlled
and safer manner and benefit from preplanned assistance (to be provided by our site
attendants).

In the same way as assisted kerbside collections operate, the booking system would
allow for the service teams to identify those protected groups who may require
additional support. In turn our sites can be pre-notified of those in need of assistance
with unloading especially for those groups with protected characteristics notably the
elderly, infirm, pregnant categories and other persons who have highlighted a specific
need.

Page 244


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx

4a.

18.

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Links to any other relevant Council Policy (How does your proposal deliver against
any other relevant Council Policy)

Waste Strategy
Decarbonisation
Well-being Plan
Corporate Plan

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — The Five Ways of Working (ALSO
KNOWN AS THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES. THE ACT
REQUIRES THE COUNCIL TO CONSIDER HOW ANY PROPOSAL IMPROVES
THE ECONOMIC, SOCIAL, ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL WELL-BEING OF
WALES USING THE FIVE WAYS OF WORKING AS A BASELINE)

How have you used the Sustainable Development Principlesin forming the proposal?

Long Term

Long term, the proposals will have a positive impact on service users. A booking
system gathers information on the demographic profile allowing us to assess details
such as protected characteristics if they will impact on the way we deliver the service
in the future, and residential location of the service users, that will allow us to shape
our facilities, refine and improve site layouts as well planning resources to assist
those residents who may require special assistance. It could ultimately help us with
profiling waste compositions and planning sustainable waste management initiatives.
We regularly undertake independent compositional analysis surveys and report
regularly using the statutory Waste Data Flow collection which will help us achieve
this.

Such monitoring will allow us to target resources and provide bespoke solutions for
different groups of people in our communities and help make the waste department
become a smarter, more responsive and more citizen focussed service provider.
This could mean providing extra support for people who are digitally excluded,
monitoring trends and gaging feedback, tailoring the service to allow staff to help
people on site.

The proposal will support and encourage better waste and recycling practices inthe
long term, and change people’s way of thinking for future generations. The
requirement to pre-sort will educate people in better waste management practices and
encouraging them not to put everything in the general waste. The volume of waste
coming into the sites will be reduced through reduction in footfall and discouraging
traders and commercial enterprises from using the sites. Ultimately, this will allow us
to work towards a Circular Economy, reduce carbon footprint and become more
resource efficient. More enforcement presence will tackle fly tipping issues.

Page 245


https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Prevention

The benefit of a booking system is that service users can inform staff prior to their visit
of any assistance they may require. Assistance can then be provided immediately
when the service user arrives at the site avoiding any unnecessary stress/anxiety that
may have occurred if staff were unaware prior to the visit.

Integration
All the relevant waste services will become more integrated with the use of
appropriate technology becoming a more responsive and resident focussed.

Collaboration
The system will work closely with our customer services/contact centre. The customer

services department will be the initial point of contact for the service user where the
relevant information will be obtained in order to create the booking.

Involvement
As part of the waste strategy consultation process (see section 9)

Page 246



19.

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

Does the proposal maximiseour contribution to the Well-being
Goals and how?

A Prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of the global
environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately (including acting on
climate change); and which develops a skilled and well-educated population in an economy
which generates wealth and provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take
advantage of the wealth generated through securing decent work

The proposal will support Wales in being a ‘prosperous society’ by encouraging more
sustainable waste management and recycling practices. This will be achieved
through the encouragement of recycling and reducing reliance on residual disposal
methods such as Energy from Waste/Landfill. Supporting the Welsh Government’s
Circular Economy, reducing carbon footprint and becoming more resource efficient.

We anticipate a booking system will greatly reduce congestion and the volume of
traffic inand around the sites by controlling the number of visitors at any given time.
This will allow us to avoid an influx of people at the site time. Thus, reducing
localised air pollution and reducing Carbon Dioxide emissions through queuing
vehicles.

The proposal will support and provide good quality jobs, inturn supporting the local
economy through the development of local skills and providing training.

Resilient Wales

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment healthy
functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological resilience and
the capacity to adapt to change (for climate change.

The pre-sort proposal will support and help us work towards a Circular Economy by
increasing recycling and reducing the volume of general waste entering the sites .
Initiating this project now is the beginning of us working towards Zero Waste by 2050
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through the reduction in resource use. This
in turn will support biodiversity, which is significantly impacted during the extraction
of resources for the products we consume.

A Healthier Wales

A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in
which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood

The proposal will encourage and provide employment opportunities, which in turn will
benefit people’s lifestyles and their mental and physical well-being. It will also
provide training for staff to increase their knowledge and provide them the tools they
need for potential career progression in the future.

Page 247


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

By providing controlled and safe facilities reducing tension, conflict and queuing will
hopefully provide a less stressful experience for residents.

A More Equal Wales

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their background
or circumstances (including their socio-economic background and circumstances)

The proposal will support people and our communities by providing employment for
people from all backgrounds. Everyone has the opportunity to book a slot, whether
that be in person, over the telephone or online. We can then offer special assistance
to those who require it by assisting them when they’re on site, ultimately leading to an
equal service for all.

A Wales of Cohesive Communities
Aftractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities

The proposal will help connect the Authority with the local community through
collaborative working, face to face engagement, education etc, whilst also providing
additional employment opportunities.

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, and
which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and recreation

The proposal will comply with the Welsh Language Measure 2011 in all aspects of
education, engagement, communication etc. The proposal is fully compliant with the
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and associated Welsh Language Standards
and encourages any service users to speak their first language (where Welsh, English
or any other).

- The booking system will be bilingual and residents will have the opportunity to
state their language preference

- We have staff within the department who are able to converse in Welsh
whether that be by phone, text or email

- The paperwork (booking confirmation) will be available in both English and
Welsh.

A Globally Responsible Wales

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, environmental
and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may
make a positive contribution to global well-being

The booking system and supplementary pre-sort requirement will support and help
us work towards a Circular Economy and become a more globally responsible
Wales. Initiating this project now is the beginning of us working towards Welsh
Government’'s Towards Zero Waste Strategy, which aims to achieve zero waste by
2050 and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through the reduction in resource use

Page 248



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

and increasing recycling. This in turn will support biodiversity, which is significantly
impacted during the extraction of resources for the products we consume.

Page 249



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

20. WELSHLANGUAGE (WALES) MEASURE 2011 AND WELSH LANGUAGE

Page 250



7a.

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

7b.

(iv)

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

STANDARDS

(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the
Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or negative impact a proposal may have
on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is
treated no less favourably than the English language) Policy Making Standards -
Good Practice Advice Document

Links with Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s Five Year
Welsh Language Strategy 2022-2027 and the Language Profile

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Neutral - All signage at Household Waste Recycling Centres will be bilingual. In
addition to communication through social media platforms, internet, council website,
leaflets, online booking systems, telephone booking systems etc which will all be
bilingual.

The department is committed to complying with the requirements of the Welsh
Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and as a matter of course issues, all its
communications bilingually. The department has a significant proportion of Welsh
speakers across all tiers and are able to communicate both verbally and in the
written form to queries and service requests. The department supports all the Welsh
Government sustainable waste campaigns all of which are include bilingual narrative
and branding. The Waste team supports the National Be Mighty campaign, which is
aiming for Wales to become the top recycling nation in the world.

The booking system service will be communicated through all media platforms in
Welsh and thereby support the above commitments.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
There will be no negative impact on the Welsh language.

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,
LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards. Specifically Standards 88—93

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

Positive - All signage at Household Waste Recycling Centres will be bilingual. In
addition to communication through social media platforms, internet, council website,
leaflets, online booking systems, telephone booking systems etc which will all be
bilingual.

Page 251


http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/five-year-welsh-langauge-strategy-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/appendix-b-menter-iaith-caerffili-welsh-language-p.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx

(v)

(vi)

7c.

(i)

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
There will be no negative impacts on the Welsh language.

What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20, LDP,
Pupil Level Annual School Census

Opportunities to promote the Welsh language e.g. status, use of Welsh language
services, use of Welsh in everyday life in work / community

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

The service once in place will need to be communicated, making it clear that the
service is available in Welsh. This will encourage Welsh speakers to actively
engage in their preferred language should that be Welsh.

We will ensure that those requiring support to be delivered in Welsh are in no way
discriminated against. The service will always be delivered using the service users
preferred language.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,

LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7d. Opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language e.g. staff, residents
and visitors

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

As above
If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,

LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

7e. Treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English
language

Page 252



(iii)

(iv)

(v)

21.

cCou. BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral impacts on the
following and how?

All communication, signage and information on the website will be available in
English and Welsh. This will allow the service user to read/access information in their
chosen language.

If there are negative impacts how will these be mitigated?
N/A
What evidence has been used to support this view? e.g. the WESP, TAN20,

LDP, Pupil Level Annual School Census

Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed
so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on (a)
opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and (b) treating the
Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.

The service will be fully compliant with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure
2011/Welsh language standards which will allow and encourage our service users to
access information in their preferred language, whether that be English or Welsh.

DATA AND INFORMATION

(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the
proposal? Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, existing
databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or
other service user feedback, national and regional data, academic publications and
consultants’ reports eftc.)

Data/evidence (Please provide link to report if appropriate)

In November/December 2022, the council ran a phase of engagement called ‘What
matters to you?’. 93% of respondents agreed that waste collection and recycling
services should continue to be a priority when planning council services and budgets
for 2022/23 and beyond. Through that same engagement activity, 86% of
respondents felt that waste collection and recycling services was as important or
more important to them than 12 months ago. Insight from the ‘What matters to you?’
phase also suggested that residents appreciate the simplicity of our current recycling
system in place.

In addition, an online ‘quick poll' sought additional views on waste and recycling
during January 2023. Key insights from this poll, which received 2,632 responses
included:

Page 253



COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

e 79% of respondents said they recycle food waste at the kerbside. From those
respondents who don't currently recycle food waste, their reasons for not
doing so were primarily that they compost any food waste, they don’'t waste
any food, they don't like the smell/feel its unclean or they don’t have any liners
to place inside the caddy.

o 99% of respondents said they regularly recycle using their brown bin/recycling
box/recycling bags at the kerbside

e 73% of respondents said they regularly make use of the green/garden waste
recycling service. From those respondents who don't, their reasons for not
doing so were primarily that they don’t have any garden waste/a garden or
that they use the service but seasonally (not year-round)

Summary reports for the ‘What matters to you?’ November/December 2022
engagement phase and the ‘Caerphilly Conversation — budget setting 2023/24’
engagement programme can be found at
www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

In 2021 a corporate Snap survey was conducted with the public to introduce a trial
booking system for the HWRCs.

Key relevant findings

Overall, the findings suggest that the public do not want change. The service is easy
and convenient for a large majority of our residents and they are happy with the way
things are. However, we are always looking at ways to improve our services and we
need change to ensure the Authority remains financially stable now and in the future.
Making changes now will secure this for the Authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The Welsh National Waste Strategy, Towards Zero Waste was launched on 21 June
2010. The strategy set out a series of challenging statutory recycling targets
for Local Authorities to deliver. These are as outlined below:

201012 [ 1213 | 15116 | 19/20 | 24/25

Min. levels of reuse & 40% 52% 58% 64% 70%
recycling/composting (or

AD)

Min. proportion of 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

reuse/recycling/composting
from source separation*

Max. level of landfill - - 10% 5%

Max. level of energy from - - 42% 36% 30%
waste

Page 254


http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation

R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

Min. levels of preparing for | - 0.4% 0.6% 0.8% 1.0%
reuse (excluding Waste

Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE))

5.2  Caerphilly’s recycling performance is outlined below alongside the Welsh
Government statutory targets. As Graph 1 illustrates, Caerphilly has
historically performed well against Welsh Government targets however, over
the last 3 years recycling performance has declined. Performance for 2019/20
of 62.51%, 2020/21 of 61.90%, and 2021/22 of 59% al fell below the statutory
target of 64%.

Recycling Trends

80.00% 64%
70.00% 65.50% 6670% 65.10%
61.90% 61.90% 50.67%
57.07% 57.61% 54.60% R 70%
55.91%
— 60.00%
x 51.38% 62.50%
3 50.00% 44.03%
< 58%
o
;1:040'00%’ 32.34% 52%
g_ 30.00%
Q
& 20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
& » N g > A $ o ) o2 o D > v W > "
RO R I MR S S A (O S G AR
) A D I I A S U A S O
Financial Year
Statutory Target Recycling Rate

Through the Waste (Wales) Measure 2010, the Welsh Government (WG) made
recycling targets from 2012-13 and beyond, statutory targets. This status allows
Welsh Government to levy financial penalties against Council’s that fail to achieve
them. The statutory targets are weight based and increased gradually over time. In
the current national Welsh Government waste strategy “Beyond Recycling - A
Strategy to make the Circular Economy in Wales a reality’, the Welsh Government
has stated they will work with Local Authorities and other key partners

to develop further future recycling targets in line with their pathway to zero waste,
with the aim of achieving 100% recycling by 2050. Welsh Government

indicate that they will put in place further minimum statutory recycling targets for
Local Authorities beyond 2025, potentially at a level of 80%

by 2033.

Page 255



22.

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

How has the data/evidence informed this proposal?

The results of the survey reflect that the service is of high importance and the public
recognise this. This initiative facilitates better performance and supports the
financial stability of the authority.

The survey was undertaken during the Covid-19 pandemic, the context has now
changed and we are in a different situation now to what we were at the time of the
survey.

The data/evidence has shaped the strategy and this proposal in its entirety.

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this
proposal and how will these gaps be filled? Details of further consultation can be
included in Section 9.

An external consultant has worked alongside the council to develop a series of
behaviour change proposals with the aim of identifying gaps in current levels of
understanding amongst the community. This has shaped the communication
strategy for this proposal.

CONSULTATION

(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult. In others, even where
there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation from people that a
consultation will take place. Where it has been determined that consultation is
required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to. Consider the Consultation
and Engagement Framework. Please note that this may need to be updated as
the proposal develops and to strengthen the assessment.

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular
attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles.

Integral to the above service options is the undertaking of a public consultation on
the proposals. It is proposed that this will be delivered within a 6 week timescale and
will utilise a range of systems to ensure that the consultation process is fair,
equitable and representative. It is proposed that this will commence shortly after
Cabinet have considered and made decisions based on the report

recommendations. The public consultation is proposed to run January 2024.
Residents will be invited to give their views in a variety of ways:

e A survey will be available onthe council’'s website www.caerphilly.gov.uk. It will
be available online and in printed copy. Hard copies will be available from all
libraries across the county borough and returned via libraries or through the
post.

Page 256


https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

e A series of informal face-to-face drop-in sessions for residents will be arranged
at libraries across the borough. Three online face-to-face sessions will also be
scheduled. As far as possible, these sessions will be held on different days of
the week and different times of the day, including early evening, to enable as
many people as possible to attend. They will also be planned to coincide with
times of highest footfall at individual libraries.

e A dedicated meeting of the Viewpoint Panel. The Viewpoint Panel is a group of
residents who are regularly invited to get involved in the council’s engagement
and consultation activities. Anyone who is a resident of the county borough can
join.

¢ Online engagement opportunities through the council’s new digital engagement
platform

e Targeted engagement with stakeholders and seldom heard groups -
identification of these was supported through the development of in-depth
integrated impact assessments (llAs) for the draft proposals.

The Authority has been in active dialogue with the waste sector about booking
systems. A communications plan has been drafted to compliment the proposed offer
and it follows that we envisage that the new service offer would follow the same
process as that of the proof of residency initiative.ie. pre-communications on all media
platforms, issue of literature at sites, site signage notifying of pending service initiative
complimented by face-to-face dialogue between users and waste officers at the
network of facilities.

It is important to note that approximately only one fifth of the population use our “drive
to” sites. Most residents rely on the range of regular recycling and refuse collections
and the bulky collection by request services. A significant number of residents also
employ the services of private waste contractors and skip hire operators to manage
their wastes generated from construction DIY and gardening projects. Undertaking a
site user survey at this moment would not be reliable as it would be very susceptible
to bias because of the amount of “non-householder” traffic having a say where they
are not entitled. In the same vein consulting the majority of the public on facilities they
do not benefit from is of litte relevance or use to us in this particular service
development. However, a survey at a subsequent time when we have gathered
information on residents booking contact details would enable us to consult more
effectively and garner more accurate and relevant feedback for us to use and reshape
the service.

Who was consulted?
When we talk about engaging our communities and stakeholders we make a
commitment to engage, as appropriate, with:

¢ Residents — people from every part of the county borough and from every

community and of all ages, making a particular effort to encourage those not
currently engaged/seldom heard including:

Page 257



N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

o Community groups and clubs including those on our various panels,
community, voluntary and special interest groups
o Users of specific council services
o Vulnerable groups and those with protected characteristics as identified
within the Equality Act (2010) and the Public Sector Equality Duty
(Wales)
o Children and young people including those on the Youth and Junior
Forums
Employees of the council
Relevant trade unions
Business owners/business forums
Those who visit, work or participate in activities within the county borough
Our democratically elected representatives
Town and Community Councils
Members of the Senedd and Members of Parliament
Partner organisations
Welsh Commissioners (Children’s, Welsh Language, Older Persons, Future
Generations)
Specific subject forums
e Any other body or group with an interest in the work of the authority and the
future wellbeing of the area

An extensive engagement strategy has also been developed to support this proposal.

When they were consulted did the consultation take place at the formative
stage and was adequate time given for consultees to consider and respond?

Consultation is being carried out in line with the gunning principles at the formative
stage.

Was sufficient information provided to consultees to allow them to make an
informed decision on the proposal?

Consultation is being carried out in line with the gunning principles at the formative
stage.

What were the key findings?

These will be identified during the period of consultation.

Page 258



23.

N
AERPHILL

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

How have the consultation findings been taken into account?

Following the 6 week consultation period, the findings wil be analysed and reported
back to members and the public.this will enable members to make an informed
decision on the basis of what our residents have told us.

MONITORING AND REVIEW

How will the implementation and the impact of the proposal be monitored,
including implementation of any amendments?

It is important to reiterate that the HWRC sites are “drive to & drive through” facilities
and thus they automatically exclude a major proportion of the County Borough's
populace. A booking system though gathers information on the demographic profile
and we will be able to assess age, residential location and other customer information
that could also help us to shape facilities, refine and improve site layouts as well
planning resources to assist those residents who may require special assistance. It
could ultimately help us with profiling waste compositions and planning sustainable
waste management initiatives. The information will be provided by the resident at the
time of booking if they wish to disclose this, for example they may wish to disclose
they are elderly and need special assistance.

Such monitoring will allow us to target resources and provide bespoke solutions for
respective groupings in our communities and help make the waste department
become a smarter, more responsive and more citizen focussed service provider. This
could mean providing extra support for those persons that are less digitally focussed.

What are the practical arrangements for monitoring?

The overarching aim of the changes is to improve the facilities for service users,
secure the financial stability of the authority, increase recycling/recovery rates and
reduce the overall volume of residual waste entering the HWRCs. The introduction of
an appointment service to access the HWRC sites complimented by the introduction
of pre-sort requirements is estimated to achieve an increase in recovery rates of up
to 3%. This figure will be monitored based on data captured in Waste Data Flow.

How will the results of the monitoring be used to develop future proposals?
Any monitoring measures that are introduced will be revisited on a regular basis to
ensure the implementation is successful or not, as well as capturing any data
needed, or improving the service delivery. Data will be captured through Waste Data
Flow

Information/data received will be analysed and used to form future commissioning
decisions.

Page 259



24.

25.

R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

When is the proposal due to be reviewed?

The proposal will be reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure the proposals are
having the desired effect. Data will be collected through Waste Data Flow.

Who is responsible for ensuring this happens?
Rhodri Lloyd
HRC Supervisors

RECOMMENDATION AND REASONING (delete as applicable)

e Implement proposal with no amendments

e Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined

e Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and
socio-economic disadvantage

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance? (delete as

applicable)
e Yes

REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment. This summary should be
included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” section of the Corporate
Report Template. The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the
Report proposal).

To ensure Caerphilly is able to achieve the required Welsh Government statutory
Recycling target of 70% in 2024/25.

To ensure Caerphilly is best placed to move beyond the required 2024/25 recycling

target of 70% in subsequent years and be best placed to work towards the zero waste
Welsh Government aspiration.

Page 260



26.

R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

VERSION CONTROL

(The 1A should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process.
The IlA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the proposal. The
Version Control section will actas an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been
developed over time) (Add or delete versions as applicable)

Version 1

Author:-Rhodri Lloyd & Nicole White
Brief description of the amendments/update: -

Revision Date:-19t" June 2023

Page 261



R Y
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILY
4

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT AUTHOR
Name:-RhodriLloyd
Job Title:-Principal Waste Management Officer
Date:-19'" June 2023

HEAD OF SERVICE APPROVAL

Name:-Marcus Lloyd
Job Title:-Head of Infrastructure & Waste Management

Signature:-

W W\

Date: 19t" June 2023

Page 262



4

Agenda Iltem 8

R\
CAERPHILLY

QUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY

CABINET - 26THJULY 2023

SUBJECT: COVID 19, ECONOMIC RECOVERY FRAMEWORK -

MONITORING REPORT

REPORTBY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report provides the Cabinet with an update on our economic recovery framework
prior to consideration by Cabinet. The recovery framework comprises three distinct
phases as follows:

e The Restart phase.
e The Revive phase.
e The Renew phase.

The focus of this report is the Revive and Renew Phases which follow on from an initial
‘Government led’ response (the Restart Phase) that delivered financial and employer
support at pace in response to the pandemic.

SUMMARY

The Covid-19 pandemic and Brexit caused unprecedented disruption to our
communities and the local economy which has been further compounded by the
inflationary pressures in the economy as a consequence of Russia’s invasion of
Ukraine which has increased the cost of energy and contributed to the cost-of-living
crisis.

‘Delivering Prosperity after Covid’ was prepared in 2021 in response to the pandemic
and Brexit and this set out the key actions to progress over the first 12 months i.e.
2021/2022 and then the actions for the following 3 to 5 years in order to deliver the
strategic objective of Supporting Business as a key driver for the Council’'s Economic
Recovery Framework.

Welsh Government emergency financial support effectively ended during August 2021
and their response moved to a growth phase which the economic recovery framework
sought to complement based on the following key objectives:

e To build a more resilient and diversified economy for the county borough.
e To support economic growth, innovation and enterprise.

Page 263



2.4

3.1

4.1

51

5.2

5.3

To create an environment that nurtures business.

To enhance the competitiveness of the county borough.

To boost business support.

To identify key business investment sites.

To improve the links between business, schools and training providers.

As evidenced in Appendix 1, the Council’s localised actions have clearly served to
sustain our businesses through a period of unprecedent turmoil. The current
regeneration strategy A Foundation for Success 2018-2023 has made a positive
impact, however much of its focus was predominantly on physical regeneration. In
order to further grow our economy and maximize job sustainability and creation, there
is now a need to develop a new economic regeneration strategy that aligns with the
Cardiff Capital Region’s growth agenda. The new strategy will create and further
develop skills in the local workforce, which align with the buoyant job market in the
County Borough and in the CCR, in order to improve the prosperity of our
communities in the longer term.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to acknowledge the progress made against the agreed action plan
for economic recovery as set out at Appendix 1.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To provide an update on progress in the implementation of the Council’'s action plan
for economic recovery.

THE REPORT
Background

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused unprecedented disruption to our communities and
the local economy that has been exacerbated by the transition from being a part of the
European Union and the Russianinvasion of Ukraine combined have created logistical
challenges and supply chain disruption for local businesses and has increased the cost
of energy and contributed to the cost-of-living crisis. This Monitoring Report has been
prepared to report to Cabinet progress made against the approved economic recovery
framework, ‘Delivering Prosperity after Covid' (December 202).

The Covid crisis has reinforced the fundamental role of the foundational economy to
the well-being of our citizens as it provides the infrastructure of everyday life, serving
our essential daily household needs, and keeping us all safe and civilised, providing
jobs at the heart of our communities in healthcare, childcare, food, housing, energy,
construction, waste and recycling. Looking forward innovation will be of key importance
to the foundational economy and will be critical to the levelling up agenda.

The impact of the combination of Coronavirus, Brexit, the war inflation and thus rising
energy costs on the local economy is becoming clearer, with industries that rely on
personal interactions suffering more than others, such as the hospitality and leisure
industries. The longer-term impacts on structural changes to industry and the service

Page 264



54

5.5

5.6

5.7

economy are still to be understood but it is evident that we will be living with the effects
of these combined world events for some considerable time.

Research conducted during the height of the pandemic confirmed that the majority of
businesses in the county borough were negatively impacted by coronavirus and also
Brexit through operational limitations to their business, loss of staff and reductions in
turnover. 31% of businesses surveyed felt their staffing requirements would decrease
in the long term but on a more positive note, 12% of businesses surveyed had been
able to diversify their offer bringing new services or products to the market and to
communities in the county borough.

The research identified that 42% of firms felt they needed specific business support to
help with the challenges presented by Brexit. In response to this research, the
Caerphilly Enterprise Fund was reconfigured to provide targeted support to business
to help them innovate and grow, and where appropriate to help businesses to
understand and meet new requirements as a consequence of Brexit. The International
Trade Support Officer has been fundamental in helping businesses across the county
borough to support their overseas trading requirements and aspirations.

A number of geo-political tensions have emerged in the period post-pandemic: Inflation
is at a forty-year high; interest rates are increasing; energy, food and cyber security
are pronounced risks. These macro-economic changes are temporary, but reinforce
the commitmentand focus to the ‘levelling-up’ agenda. Against this context, the Cardiff
Capital Region has revised the CCR Regional Economic and Industrial Plan. This sets
out the region’s response to these challenges, and provides a roadmap to becoming a
proud, connected, and resilient region. The revised plan outlines how as an integral
part of the CCR, Caerphilly CBC together with its partners will:

e Tackle the specific challenges associated with those areas experiencing
potentially declining populations, which the Census seems to indicate is the
case in Caerphilly if left unaddressed.

e Stimulate the economy and encourage more people of working age to stay and
return to the region and indeed in Caerphilly.

e Attract a range of companies and increase productive capacity by growing the
employment base in key competitive clusters.

¢ Reinforce the important partnerships forged across local political and business
leadership.

e Focus on liveability and inclusivity, as well as productivity.

Overview of progress against actions

This section of the report provides an overview of the progress made in meeting the
actions outlined in the economic recovery framework, ‘Delivering Prosperity after
Covid’ in the first 18 months of its implementation. It focuses on the Renew Phase
which includes policy interventions, financial support and the delivery of major
construction projects, to create opportunities to provide a diverse range of
employment and training opportunities and opportunities for local business supply
chains as follows:

e Renewing policy interventions through the preparation of the Second
Replacement Local Development Plan (LDP) — working from home, reducing the
need to travel, provision of suitable land for development, town centre first

principles, diversification of town centres, facilitating Active Travel and modal
shift.

Page 265



5.8

5.9

5.10

511

5.12

¢ Understanding future industrial growth as influenced by Brexit and the pandemic,
and ongoing work with business to strengthen Caerphilly’s place in the CCR
regional economy.

e Expediting delivery of major construction projects through the Council’s
PlaceShaping Programme as a catalyst for growth.

e Accelerating Caerphilly Town 2035 projects.

e Ensuring maximum social impact and social value from public sector investment.

Critical to the delivery of the objectives of the Renew and Restart Phases of the
economic recovery framework are the following areas identified in the regeneration
strategy: Implementation of strategic masterplans, innovation, cluster networks and
skills that will be addressed through the following priority areas with each priority
having a series of actions identified in the framework:

Development of the Foundational Economy.

Homes for the Future.

Development of cluster and innovation opportunities.

Improving resilience through education training and careers advice.
Transport Infrastructure and connectivity.

Town Centre Regeneration & Diversification.

Tourism Recovery.

Reconfiguration of existing employment sites and identifying new sites.

Long-term investments in infrastructure such as that proposed within the Council’s
Approved Well Being and PlaceShaping Framework, hold the potential to rebalance
the local economy, enhance productivity and create jobs and opportunities across
Caerphilly County Borough, which is of great importance as we support our
communities to rebuild a sustainable and resilient future post Covid. The opportunity
exists to work together to create a better and more prosperous Caerphilly for
everyone, further embedding the Council’s TeamCaerphilly collective community and
civic leadership model of delivery.

Strategic improvements that are necessary to further drive local economic growth in
the Renew Phase for example are:

e Improving access tothe digital front door and addressing digital poverty as a barrier
to employment.

¢ Influencing regional and Welsh policy and programme development as a member
of CCR Regeneration Group, WG regional town centre group etc. through a
continued dialogue with the WLGA.

¢ Building on developing relationship with WG Business Wales, WG Regeneration
Team and WG Task & Finish Groups so we can dovetail support packages.

e Developing a coherent marketing strategy for the county borough to attract in new
investment.

e Preparing and finalising the 5th Masterplan for the Greater Blackwood (Mid Valleys
East) Area.

The UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) is a central pillar of the UK government’s
ambitious Levelling Up agenda and a significant component of its support for places
across the UK and within Caerphilly County Borough.

Underneath the overarching aim of building pride in place and increasing life
chances, there are three UKSPF investment priorities: communities and place;

Page 266



5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

7.1

supporting local business; and people and skills. The SPF aligns and compliments
the Levelling Up Fund and in this respect, Caerphilly County Borough has a SPF
allocation of £28,272,298, and an allocation of £5,901,499 for *Multiply (*UK Gov
Adult numeracy programme) up to March 2025. Further the Council has been
successfulin securing £20m Levelling Up Funding for one of its key Placeshaping
Projects, namely the proposed Caerphilly Leisure and Well Being Hub.

The UKSPF Caerphilly Local Investment Plan comprises an overview of the
Caerphilly specific proposed interventions via the SPF which seek to build pride in
place and increase life chances across the whole county borough. Underneath these
overarching aims there are three UKSPF investment priorities: communities and
place; supporting local business; and people and skills, all of which are priority
themes for the Council’s Economic Recovery.

Conclusion

The Councll, in partnership with the Welsh Government, was at the forefront of
responding to the immediate and short-term needs of local businesses as both
coronavirus and Brexit unfolded. As we emerge from the challenges faced as a
consequence of world events the Council continues to provide appropriate support to
help businesses thrive, grow, modernise and innovate within the county borough.

This report gives an overview of the progress made to drive economic recovery and
provides a summary of the work that has been undertaken over the last 18 months.
The detailed actions are included in Appendix 1.

As evidenced in Appendix 1, the Council’s localised actions have clearly served to
sustain our businesses through a period of unprecedent turmoil. The current
regeneration strategy A Foundation for Success 2018-2023 has made a positive
impact, however much of its focus was predominantly on physical regeneration. In
order to further grow our economy and maximize job sustainability and creation, there
is now a need to develop a new economic regeneration strategy that aligns with the
Cardiff Capital Region’s growth agenda. The new strategy will create and further
develop skills in the local workforce, which align with the buoyant job market in the
County Borough and in the CCR, in order to improve the prosperity of our
communities in the longer term.

ASSUMPTIONS

At the time of writing it is assumed that there will be no further emergency government
support through both UK and Welsh Government in response to Brexit and the
pandemic, whilst limited support may be given in response to the Cost-of-Living Crises.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

An initial Equality Impact Assessment and Post consultation Integrated Impact
Assessment (llA) for this proposal was undertaken alongside the original report
entitled Delivering Prosperity after Covid’ which is published on the Council’'s
website. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on its implementation in

Page 267



8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.2

10.3

10.4

the first year.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATIONS

The Report was considered by Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny on the 18" July
2023. The following paragraphs summarise the discussion held in respect of the
report:

Members enquired if there are plans to hold similar events to the recent Unleashed
Conference held in Bargoed through the Cardiff Capital Region. It was confirmed that
this was the first regional Unleashed event and Bargoed was chosen to support
businesses in the heads of the valley area. It is intended to hold more events across
the Cardiff Capital Region and more events in Caerphilly County Borough are
anticipated.

The Scrutiny Committee sought further information on the Covid business rates
grants and the research particularly on whether any follow up research had been
done on how it was used andthe effectiveness and impact. Members were advised
that research was carried out during the Pandemic to understand how likely it was
that businesses would survive. The Covid grant support was rolled out at a significant
rate via the NNDR officers, with a 100% take-up. This sustained businesses through
a challenging period and although there has not been a subsequent research, it is
understood that a National Audit was carried out.

Members asked for further information on the proposed hotel development in
Caerphilly, which was initially proposed for Park Lane but is now intended for the
Leisure quarter, specific information on where the Leisure quarter is and if the land is
already owned by the council was requested. The Scrutiny Committee were advised
that Park Lane was the first site identified but through the Caerphilly Town 2035
process, however a multidisciplinary team has now been established which includes
hotel experts. The advice received is that Park Lane site is not large enough and
after considering other sites the properties along Cardiff Road were considered the
best fit. In terms of acquisition of properties, further to Cabinet Approval officers have
secured a property acquisition fund of £5.6 million. This fund will be used to acquire
the properties along Cardiff Road overlooking the Castle. The Programme Manager
is in discussion with property owners along the road. Further clarity was sought on
whether Compulsory Purchase powers would be used, and it was stated that this is
one of the options but initially the council would negotiate with the property owners,
not the tenants. There is still significant work needed to see which properties would
actually be required and in terms of governance Cabinet would need to agree use of
Compulsory Purchase Powers if necessary.

The Scrutiny committee asked how the Caerphilly Enterprise Fund can be accessed
and how much has been distributed to businesses. Members were informed that

Page 268



10.5

10.5

10.6

11.

111

£2.36million has been distributed to businesses across the county borough that
provide employment and services in a very difficult period. It has been well used and
is liked by businesses.

Members stated that much of the regeneration is in the south of the county borough
and asked what is being done to improve the transport links between the north and
south. It was acknowledged that Bus Emergency Scheme Welsh Government
funding has been renewed and it was acknowledged that the public transport network
particularly from east to west remains difficult. Further reference was made to the
Unleashed Conference at Bargoed and the effort to regenerate the north of the
county borough. The transport issue needs to be Cardiff Capital Regional Approach
as it cannot be solved by Caerphilly alone.

Following the debate it was moved and seconded that the recommendations be
approved. By way of Microsoft Forms voting this was agreed by the majority present.

All consultation responses are reflected in the report.

STATUTORY POWER

The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003.

Appendix 1: FOUNDATION FOR SUCCESS: DELIVERING PROSPERITY after COVID
(Approved 8 December 2021) - First Annual Monitoring Report

Author: Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning

Consultees:

Clr James Pritchard, Cabinet Member for Prosperity, Regeneration and
Climate Change.

Councillor Andrew Whitcombe, Chair Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny
Committee.

Councillor Patricia Cook, Vice Chair Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny
Committee.

Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive.

Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment.

Dave Street, Corporate Director for Social Services and Housing.

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services.
Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer.

Lynne Donovan, Head or People Services.

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services / Monitoring Officer.

Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure.

Nick Taylor-Williams, Head of Housing.

Liz Lucas, Head of Customer and Digital Services.

Sue Richards, Head of Transformation and Education Planning and Strategy.
Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager.

Page 269



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 270



T/ ¢ abed

Appendix 1
FOUNDATION FOR SUCCESS: DELIVERING PROSPERITY after COVID (Approved 8 December 2021)
Monitoring Report — 31 March 2023

The Covid-19 pandemic and Brexit caused unprecedented disruption to our communities and the local economy, which has been further
compounded by the inflationary pressures in the economy as a consequence of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine.

‘Delivering Prosperity after Covid’ was formally approved by Cabinet on 8 December 2021 in response to the pandemic and this Annual
Monitoring Report sets out what progress has been made over the first 18 months against each Priority Theme to deliver on the strategic
objective of Supporting Business.

The progress in the first 18 months of the plan against each of the theme has been afforded a RAG status as follows:

Very Good or Excellent progress

Good Progress but more to be done

|- Very Little or No progress

The AMR provides an interesting insight into the implementation of the Economic Recovery Framework over the monitoring period which
clearly illustrates that considerable progress has been made during in its implementation in the first 18 months.

1|Page



2/ ¢ abed

PRIORITY THEME: IMPROVE RESILIENCE THROUGH THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE FOUNDATIONAL ECONOMY

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023)
Strengthening e Use Business Support to help local o Supplier Relationship Officer has supported 48
local supply SMEs register with procurement. contractors/suppliers via weekly Procurement Clinic

chains through
cultivational
procurement

appointments providing information, advice and guidance on
registering on the Counci's e-Sourcing platform to access
procurement opportunities.

e Map supply chain voids to ensure that
local companies are used where
practicable.

o Supply chain mapping and void identification is

progressing, an interactive interface using PowerBI is being

developed which wil faciitate the interrogation of data and
ensure long term value.

e Develop the capabiities of indigenous
business to compete for contracts
and fill supply chain voids.

e Work with partners to support local e Working in conjunction with Simply Do to leverage their
jobs through the use of procurement | expertise and to enrich the background data and widen the
measures that support local supply scope of the interrogable data. The aim of this is to increase the
chains. scope of capturing local micro-businesses within the database to

glean a more holistic view of potential local supply chains.

o Toidentify the chalenges we are facing in relation to
Covid Recovery, and embedding decarbonisation inttiatives, we
have adopted a challenge-based procurement approach.

. Working with SimplyDo, we are undertaking a series of
Chalenge Hacks to identify problems that could be resolved
through supply chain innovation or reengineering.

. Working with WLGA and WG with the development of a
forward work programme of collaborative procurement
opportunities on an all Wales National and Southeast Wales
delivery group basis. This information is avaiable on the
Sel2wales webstte.

o Representation at Centre for Local Economies Strategies
(CLES) Gwent Cluster working groups for Construction &
retrofit, Simplifying and sharing best practice; and Food

2|Page



Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023)
procurement. Key focus areas include Increasing knowledge of
the potential local supplier base, standardisation of
documentation and processes and developing better
relationships between procurement and business support
functions.

) Procurement team continue to work in-conjunction the
Business Enterprise & Renewal team to support local supply
chains in delivering social value commitments including creation
and retention of jobs.

¢/ ¢ abed

Improve e Consider bespoke support for services | e Business Enterprise & Renewal Team have supported 12
support for targeted at micro and small new start-ups thereby assisting the creation of 23 Jobs.
business businesses, business start-up and

o Business Support Clinics held bimonthly to offer 30-minute
sessions of face to face (via Teams at present) support to
businesses and their specific requirements, held with Business

self-employment within the County
Borough by reinvigorating and

resourcing bocal busi_ne_ss support to Wales and Development Bank Wales.

coordinate and maximise the

opportunities arising at the regional . Revived the Account Manager’s Meeting bringing together
level through City Deal. representatives from WG, Development Bank of Wales, Business

Wales, Business in Focus, Business Associates, DWP, Careers
Wales, Princes Trustand others to share knowledge and intel
for business around the borough.

e Work with partners to provide
training and support for ctizens to

become self-employed.
o Meetings with other support agencies re: support and

grants funding avaiable e.g. Welsh Government COVID and
other grant support.

e Re-configure grant spend to ensure
that it is more effective and targeted
more closely at supporting economic
outputs. o International Trade Officer supporting with new export

import requirements post Brexit -over 100+ SMEs contacted to

date provide support.

o Caerphily Enterprise Fund Grants reconfigured. 89 (23
CEF and 66 CEF UKSPF) business Supported — creating 269

3|Page



/¢ abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG

jobs, safeguarding 640 Jobs with a Capital Investment by
businesses supported of £2,360,609.76
Exploitfunding | ¢ Targetkey premises within the o £1m WG Transforming Towns fund targeting businesses /
opportunities to strategic hubs of Caerphily and premises in Caerphily in 2021/22 was approved (schemes need
ensure premises Ystrad Mynach in addition to Principal to be supported by placemaking plans).
are available for Town Centres throughout the County o 114 businesses supported with £1,130,094.76 investment
business Borough in order to ensure that there | via the Caerphily Enterprise Fund, Caerphily Start Up Fund and
development are suitable premises avaiable to Caerphily Development Fund.
and growth for faciitate commercial growth (retail & o Opportunity for redevelopment of Pentrebane Street
SMEs business). through Caerphilly Town 2035 plan to provide commercial
e Workwith the ICE Regional space.

Enterlgris?r Hu? tobideptify ?]e\év . . Support for 2 businesses equating to £30,000 each
85‘3; uan rtslesof tflfe (L:'S'Sr(?ss B(l)JI‘OSU 'nh relocating from the Caerphily Indoor Market provided through
P ty an. CEF SPF (£25,000 each) and SPF start up (£5,000 each) to

*  Exploit opportuntties to bring enable redevelopment of Pentrebane Street.
employment back to the centre of our

towns as part of a wider offer of o CCBC business team meet regularly with the Welsh Ice
activities and uses and re-purpose Community manager to support their outreach service to the
buildings to create co-working spaces | wider Caerphily borough business community. WG currently
and encouraging new green skils and | fund the Enterprise Hub and we have suggested further growth

opportunities such as repair cafes, through a review of the offer they provide. Satelite hubs has
reuse and refil retail and been suggested and Officers are working with Welsh Ice to
remanufacturing innovation. identify key locations around the Caerphilly County borough.

o Leveling Up Fund bid prepared, submitted and £20m
awarded by UK Government to support the development of a
new Wel Being Centre in Caerphily Town adjacent to the
proposed new transport Interchange.

Work with local | ¢ Workin partnership with the private o Cardiff Capttal Region, with support from economic
Businesses to sector to develop foundational development consultancy Steer Economic Development, are
progress economy chalenge bid schemes developing a forward-looking Challenge Strategy for the region.

innovation in

4|Page



G/ ¢ abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
the
Foundational
Economy.
PRIORITY THEME: ZERO CARBON HOMES FOR THE FUTURE
Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
Welsh Housing = Currently 10448 properties out of All of the current housing stock of 10,672 properties are
Quality our total stock of 10654 have been fully compliant with WHQS standard as of 31 December
Standard upgraded and are fuly compliant with 2021.

Investment to
upgrade 10,822
homes.

Unlocking public
sector land for
self-build
development,

5|Page

WHQS standard. It is anticipated that
the majority of those remaining will
be upgraded within the next 12
months with many only awaiting
external works. Target to complete all
internal and external works by
December 2021.

Explore opportunities to work with
other housing partners on a
Challenge Fund to retrofit existing
dwelings to faciltate
decarbonisation.

Identify plots of land in Council
ownership that are suitable for seff-
buid development; apply for outline
planning permission and ensure
infrastructure is in place (where
appropriate) to ensure sites are ‘oven

Working to explore the opportunities by following the
Pathways Ratings System to discover the full costs of
bringing policy voids up to Standard Assessment Procedure
rating of “"A” whilst helping to faciitate decarbonisation
moving forward.

Several sites in Council ownership were inttially identified as
being potentially suitable for inclusion in the Self Build
Wales scheme. However, upon undertaking further
investigation it was determined that the costs of bringing
plots forward on single plot or very small sites would exceed
any likely capital receipt.




9/ ¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

RAG

through a 'Plot
Shop’ initiative

Construction of
new council
housing stock

6|Page

ready.’ Faciitate the sale of plots to
eligible applicants.

Explore and develop energy efficient
housing that reduces energy costs
significantly and / or generates
energy that can be supplied into the
grid.

Secure planning permission on
Council owned sites identified within
the Council's Programme
Development Plan (PDP).

Seek opportunities to secure
additional Council stock through
Section 106 agreements.

Set up partnership agreements with
developer partners including where
appropriate RSLs for the delivery of
Council units.

Caerphily Homes have commenced work on the Council's
development programme. 18 new energy efficient homes
have been delivered and certified to Passivhaus Standard
using the Calendan steel primaframe solution which is
manufactured locally on Penallta Industrial Estate.

e Llanfabon Drive Trethomas, 12
homes complete.

e Former 49 Club, Trecenydd, 6
homes complete.

Outline consent secured for Oakdale Comprehensive and Ty
Darren, Risca (126 new homes likely to be delivered)

S106: A number of S106 homes have been secured via local
developer, Llanmoor Homes. 6 in the first phase (including
2 LCHO homes) and 7 wil be secured in the 2™ phase of
their development.

A report seeking approval that a PCSA (Pre-Construction
services Agreement) be signed with Construction Partners
Willmott Dixon to begin the enabling and demolition works
on Ty Darran is scheduled to be considered by Cabinet
shortly. A PCSA has already been signed in relation to the
development of the former Oakdale School Site.

The Council signed an MOU with partner HA’s in October
2021 which promotes collaboration between the
organisations in relation to all housing services.




/¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

Progress being made towards delivering the 400 new home
ambition that was agreed by Cabinet in January 202.
Cabinet agreement to move to the next stage of the
development process thereby undertaking detailed site
investigation work to determine whether 5 identified sites
are deliverable and viable.

Examine the

potential to pilot

Secure funding to unlock 2
problematic stalled sites at

3 Bids Submitted to Cardiff Capital Region City Deal for
Housing Investment Fund:

loans / funding
to bring vacant
properties and
sites back into
beneficial use.

Government loans to upgrade and
bring properties back into beneficial
use.

Secure Welsh Government Land to
bring 1 brownfield site back into
beneficial use for a mixed-use
development including mixed tenure
housing.

initiatives mfgjyﬁvfmemgragigbsggnﬁ Windsor Coliery, Abertridwr — Funding Secured, planning
through the I % tF ity q 9 permission secured, scheme progressing with RSL partner
Housing nvestment Func. for 109 homes.
Investment Seggéﬁ:gg'zget% lfc?]lgcﬁe; de of the Gelideg Heights, Maesycwmmer — Funding approved but
Fund as part of b ! . . not being taken up by the RSL partner, who is funding the
the Cardiff Valleys through the City Deal Housing ) ) )

e Lardit Investment Fund. site through an alternative mechanism, scheme to progress;
Capital Region and
City Deal
workstream. Land at Heol Ddu Grove, Bargoed - Reserve site.
Utilise Welsh Faciltate and assist owner occupiers £1m Transforming Towns allocation — pipeline of projects
Government and landlords to access Welsh awatting funding.

Due Diigence proceeding to determine the risks associated
with progressing a significant brownfield site in Caerphily
Basin for development.

7|Page



8/ ¢ abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023)
Secure money to Pentrebane Street Caerphily, funding Pentrebane Street, Funding secured, site assembly
deliver secured for the development of a progressing.
innovative mixed-use scheme on this site.

homes suitable
for the future

Ty Pontlanfraith, funding secured
from the Innovative Housing Fund for

Land at Former Pontllanfraith House, Pontllanfraith being
developed by Pobl, 123 homes under construction.

Ty Du, site acquired by United Welsh Housing. Layout and

(i.e., carbon the redevelopment of this site and : . '
y the creation of a ‘Garden Vilage'. design being progressed
neutral, zero . .
. Work with RSL Partners to deliver new carbon neutral
carbon) Ty Du, funding secured from the . .
. . homes is ongoing through the Development Management

Innovative Housing Fund for the Process

development of this site. )

Work with our RSL partners to deliver

new carbon neutral homes to meet

housing need across the county

borough.
Set up empty Prepare an Enforcement Action Plan Empty Property Action Plan prepared with a list of targeted
homes team to for Vacant Town Centre Properties properties supported to be brought back into beneficial use.
target empty and act using relevant statutory £1m WG Transforming Towns allocation obtained — good

town centre
properties and

empty
residential
properties to
bring them back
in to beneficial

use.

powers to bring premises back into
beneficial use.

Provide grant support via the
Transforming Towns Intiative to
bring town centre properties back
into beneficial use.

pipeline of projects awaiting funding which seek to bring a
number of prominent empty buildings back into beneficial
use.

8|Page




6/¢ abed

PRIORITY THEME: DEVELOP CLUSTER AND INNOVATION OPPORTUNITIES

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

RAG

Develop cluster | o
opportunities.

9|Page

Work with City Deal/Welsh
Government to deliver key sites

including Capital Valley, Rhymney, Ty
Du Nelson, Caerphilly Business Park
and Oakdale Business Park (plateau

1,2 and 4).

Work with WG to secure £3m
investment for the provision of
infrastructure at Oakdale Business
Park.

Work with the private sector to
faciitate their growth plans.

Whitebeam Court, Ty Du Nelson - comprises 11 new high
quality business units ranging from 105 sq m (1,130 sq ft)
to 338 sq m (3,637 sq ft). Complete and near to being
fuly ket.

Siverbirch Court - this is a new development comprising
15 high qualty business units in Rhymney ranging from
50m2 to 98m2, all have WC, IT outlet (fibre broadband
accessible) associated parking and easy access. Complete
and near to being fully let.

Caerphily Business Park — Leveling Up Fund Bid
Submitted to UK Government for the provision of a new
Wel-being Centre.

Oakdale Business Park Plateau 1 — Cabinet approval
obtained to sell residual land to Welsh Government.
Ongoing dialogue with Welsh Government and the
solicitors acting for IG Doors to resolve various legal
issues.

Oakdale Plateau 2 — Working with CCR and WG to prepare
relevant site investigation reports to faciitate development
of the residual land. RIBA Stage 2. Discussion underway
with prospective developers.

Oakdale Plateau 4 - Relevant site investigation reports
prepared to faciitate development of the residual land.
Discussion ongoing with WG and prospective developer.



08¢ abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023)
Createand Work with Caerphily Business Club to o Monthly Networking events being held by Caerphily
strengthen programme business networking Business Club supported by BERT staff.

official lines of
communication.

Target
innovation and
business set up.

10|Page

opportuntties at a local level and
make connections to enhance local
supply chain activity.

Continue to work closely with
businesses in the county borough to
address their training needs in
association with Further and higher
Education partners.

Gain a better understanding of the
skils requirements in respect of the
compound semiconductor, life
sciences sectors and electric
automotive sectors.

Continue to roll out the Caerphily
Business Productivity Enhancement
Programme to encourage SMEs with
more than 10 employees to:

o Future proof business through
becoming more efficient,

o Introduce new technology,
Diversify and broaden the
customer base,

o Develop new products.

Following a productivity diagnostic of

the company, a comprehensive
support package wil provide
implementation support, skills
development, research &

Officers work continuously with the local colleges through
the Caerphily Business Club and link businesses with the
CCBC employabiity teams to provide training, work trials
and upskiling opportunities for the unemployed and
employed members of staff across the borough. Each
business is made aware of the full range of training
services made available through CCBC and further and
higher education partners.

Caerphily Business and Productivity Enhancement
Programme. This provides a free productivity diagnostic
for companies with a support package which ranges from
hands on implementation support, skils development,
research & development, export and GRANT SUPPORT for
capital expenditure and any other specialist interventions
that are required. 11 companies supported to date
through the programme.

Cardiff Capttal Region, with support from economic
development consultancy Steer Economic Development,
are developing a forward-looking Challenge Strategy for
the region.

RAG




Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
development, export, GRANT
SUPPORT for capital expenditure and
any other specialist interventions that
are required.
e Bring together public, private and third
sector organisations in the County
Borough to respond to societal
chalenges and drive posttive change
through innovation via the CCR
Challenge Fund Programme and
Innovate UK.
g-? PRIORITY THEME: DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY
Q
@ Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
8 Work with e Promote initiatives to increase the Progressing work with a number of Broadband providers.
= Partners to availabiity of SFBB (Super-Fast Broad
Increase Band) and UFBB (Ultra-Fast
broadband Broadband).
speed.
Providedigital |« Workwith WG to offer digital Officers are working alongside WG and Ogi Pro Services to
support and infrastructure support services to local offer businesses in historically poor broadband areas of the
advice to businesses / enhance digttal borough the chance to connect to high-speed broadband -
business. connectivity / promote the role of Hengoed & Blackwood exchanges scheduled for upgrades.
artificial inteligence in business. Officers also regularly work with WG to promote their BPEP
offer delivering new technologies to SME businesses and wil
continue to support them going forward.
Promote the e Roll out Free Wi Fi in all Principal Risca, Ystrad Mynach, Bargoed and Rhymney Free Wi Fi
concept of Towns and Rhymney and Newbridge implemented and available. Caerphily, Blackwood and .
Regional / Newbridge pending.

11|Page




28¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

Community Wi-
Fi as the
potential for
enabling a
functional and
connected
future.

Explore the
opportunity to
roll-outa 5G

Support the work of the CCR Digital
Strategy.

CCR have released a digttal series magazine, an apprentice
scheme and an appointment has been made to the Digital
Lead.

Network across Continue to work with private sector Ongoing.
the CCR. providers engaged in roling out their
5G network across the CCR and
County Borough.
Ensure Work with developers to ensure the A condttion is now attachedto all planning consents for
it““zvaltiv? itnCC;IrDOkr)at_bn v:{f:fmovatw: _ major housing development requiring provision of 1gigabyte
echnologies echnologies in new housing . .
through the developments in ine with national of broadband connectivity for each dweling.
use of planning policy.
broadband are
incorporated
within new
housing
developments.
Improve Completion of SuperfFast Broadband Following the Edtech project, an independent review and
Broadband Installations in Schools in line with the health check of the school's network has taken place. The
gcpﬁgglssin Learning in Digital Wales Programme findings of the independent review are being discussed and

Seek funding opportuntties through
WG and work with schools to improve
network infrastructure

an action plan wil follow

Funding secured and procurement underway for review of
corporate infrastructure in preparedness for analogue switch
off.

12|Page



€8¢ abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
Coding for e Work with partners in WG & Consortia | e Coding sessions are currently run at the following public
Younger to promote the use of coding in line libraries:
People to with the Digital Competence Caerphily Library

enable young
people to have
the relevant
skills for the
future.

Assess the .

potential
development of
Wi-Fi analytics
and digital
towns.

Assess the .

ability of town
centre traders
to offer
increasingly
popular digital
services such
as clickand
collect and look
to share best

13|Page

Framework

Utiise Wi Fi analytics to inform Town o

Centre Strategies.

Work with ‘NearMeNow' to piot a new | e
digital platform for use by business in
Principal Towns throughout the County
Borough.

Code Club every Wednesday during term-time
Advanced Code Club every Friday during term-time
Library staff teach/facilitate all sessions

Risca Library
Weekly sessions will resume after October 2022 Half-Term

Library staff teach/faciitate all sessions

Bargoed Library
Weekly sessions for 8-14 year old.
Library staff teach/faciitate all sessions

Risca, Ystrad Mynach, Bargoed and Rhymney Free Wi Fi
available, Caerphily, Blackwood and Newbridge pending. The
new wi fi will provide the data for the analytics to inform Town
Centre Strategies in future.

NearMeNow with the support of Welsh Government,
Caerphilly, Rhondda Cynon Taf, Blaenau Gwent,
Monmouthshire and Carmarthenshire Local Authorities
and the Treorchy town and business community have
played an active part over the last two years in helping to
build this software. The new digital platform VZTA
launched in October 2022 and gives high streets and the
organisations that support them the tools they need to
help them in the fight-back against high street chains and



Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
practice where online giants, by bringing them together as one
this has community of small businesses.

worked well.

PRIORITY THEME: IMPROVING RESILIENCE THROUGH EDUCATION, TRAINING & CAREERS ADVICE

8¢ abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
Develop a Continue to deliver the Caerphily With the support of the Caerphily Academy, the Kickstart
skilled Academy - training, work placement scheme supported 8 (out of possible 10 placements).
workforce and and apprenticeship programme to Intensive support at all stages was provided, including
tackle support the needs of business. laison with managers to identify suitable placements and
unemployment

to respond to
the needs of
business both
locally and
regionally.

Work with
partners, in the
private, public
and third
sector, utilising
labour market
intelligence to
identify future

14| Page

Assist the CCR project team in the
delivery of its “graduate” programme
by working with the Caerphily
Business Club to identify opportunties
for business to take part and benefit.

Engage with the DWP Kickstart
scheme and Restart Scheme at an
authority-wide level, with a
commitment to host 10 Kickstart work
placements across various service
areas.

Align skils and employment support
provision to meet the needs of future
employment.

recruit, supporting individuals to complete new starter
process, liaising with DWP, working with individuals and
managers to resolve any issues once in employment. Out
of these 8, 5 are likely to progress into employment with
CCBC; 3 are being supported to find employment
elsewhere.

Academy mentor provides support to individuals at all
stages of these paid placements within the Council 11 staff
supported.

Skils and employabilty survey has been sent to local
businesses via CCBC business team and CBC

Links with local JCPs to access skils shortages data for
county borough.



Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
growth demand Officers liaise with WG key account managers and CBC to
and skill promote cluster groups and industry specific recrutment

requirements.

Explore
opportunities
for targeted
career advice
aligned to
current and
future job
opportunities.

Gg8¢ abed

15|Page

Work with Welsh Government and
CCR to pilot career advice inttiatives.

drives through employabiity teams.

Continuation of our employabiity programmes covering all
age ranges with unimited access and support

Skils and Employabiiity group to be formed with JCP,
colleges, CCBC employabilty programmes to identify
employment issues specific to the county borough.

Regular case studies are undertaken and submitted to WG
to showcase their successes and provide evidence for
project continuation.

Employment Manager attends monthly CCR Regional Skills
Partnership to discuss regional approach to priority areas
(green energy, FinTech etc)

Acted on national understaffing of HGV drivers. Insights
into sector provided, including driving a HGV vehicle.
Linked with local employers providing targeted
recruitment. 10 individuals have attended sessions. 1 has
completed the process and gained employment.
Remaining participants still undertaking training owing to
national delay with DVLA and testing centres.

Focussed recruitment supporting Caerphily CBC priority
recrutment, including sector specific recrutment days
collaboratively working with the local Job Centres.
Insight/recruitment sessions provided in cleaning and



98¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG

Formalise links
between
businesses,
schools, FE and
HE

establishments.

Ensure training
and skills
provision
enables those
currently in
employment to
upskill.

16|Page

Seek funding opportunties through
WG and work with schools to improve
network infrastructure

Work with local business and training
providers to support those in
employment to have access to in work
training and progression opportuntties.

catering. 11 individuals engaged with 7 receiving direct
support into these roles.

Pathways delivered included training, work placements
and employment. Construction event supported 12
individuals - 11 so far have found.

Senior Business Liaison Officer attends regular regional
meetings with counterparts. Best practice and targeted
regional recruitment inttiatives identified

Partners from each sector attend twice yearly live vacancy
events. Schools are supported to attend via Welsh
Government grant funding for transport. The sectors all
also attend schools regularly via formal links with the
Careers Wales business engagement team. Funding is also
being used to provide work experience opportunities for
year 11 pupils.

Officers work continuously with the local colleges through
the Caerphily Business Club and link businesses with the
CCBC employability teams to provide training, work trials
and upskiling opportunities for the unemployed and
employed members of staff across the borough. Each
business is made aware of the ful range of training
services made available through CCBC and further and
higher education partners.

Through the Shared Prosperity Fund the Council is using
the Regional Employment Programme to jointly
commission FE, ACL and locally procured bespoke courses
which address skils gaps, address recrutment issues
linked to skils gaps, and focus on growth areas in the
local labour market for those in employment to develop



/8¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

RAG

Work with
partners to
upskill the
workforce and
expand the
workforcein
green sectors.
Investment in
low carbon
housing at
scale and
upgrading
housing stock
particularly
Council
housing, is
likely tobe a
central plank of
recovery to
increase energy
efficiency of
Council homes,
reduce fuel
poverty and
create jobs in
the green
economy.

17|Page

Work with local business and training
providers and developers to support
those in the construction sector to
have the necessary training and skills
to meet the decarbonisation ambitions

of the Council and Welsh Government.

and progress in their careers. Digtal, creative,
manufacturing sector skils targeted.

Officers work continuously with the local colleges through
the Caerphily Business Club and link businesses with the
CCBC employabiity teams to provide training, work trials
and upskiling opportunities for the unemployed and
employed members of staff across the borough. Each
business is made aware of the full range of training
services made available through CCBC and further and
higher education partners.

Through the Shared Prosperity Fund the Council is using
the Regional Employment Programme to jointly
commission FE, ACL and locally procured bespoke courses
which address skils gaps and recruitment needs in relation
to ‘green’ skils and green industries. Supporting those
who are both unemployed and employed.

o Caerphily Homes have commenced work on their
own zero net carbon housebuiding programme as follows:

o Llanfabon Drive Trethomas, 12 homes
complete.

o Former 49 Club, Trecenydd, 6 homes
complete.

o Outline consent secured for Oakdale
Comprehensive and Ty Darren Risca, potential for 145
homes.

. Working with RSLs on multiple zero carbon homes
developments at Pentrebane Street Caerphily, Windsor



88¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

Coliery Abertridwr, Former Police Station Caerphily,
Gelideg Heights, Maesycwmmer, etc.

o Links formed with Nearly Zero Centres of
Excelence in Ireland alongside Coleg Y Cymoeddin order
to share best practice in order to faciitate the
development of a centre which can be utiised by
establishments delivering construction skils training in
South East Wales.

Continue to
provide crucial
assistance to
people who
might have lost
their job or
training
opportunity
because of the
pandemic or
Brexit, and help
people develop
new skills fit for
the future and

Work with individuals to provide
appropriate employment support
through the existing employment
support programmes including CfWw,
CfW+, CfW++, Inspire 2 Work,
Inspire 2 achieve, Bridges into Work
and Nurture Equip and Thrive to
ensure participants are given the
support that is required to support
them into employment.

Cfw, CfW+, CfW++ have undertaken 379 engagements
which have resulted in 142 job outcomes for participants.

Inspire 2 Work, Inspire 2 achieve, Bridges into Work and
Nurture Equip and supported 218 participants, 77 of which
gained a qualification as a result, 38 participants have
been supported into work, and a further 33 participants
have been supported to improve their employment
situation.

to find new

employment

opportunities.

Upskilling Continue to deliver Essential Skills Courses delivered Pan-Caerphily including Oxford House AEC
residents’” courses through Caerphily Adult (Risca), Libraries (Abercarn, Bargoed, Blackwood, Caerphily,
Essential Skills Communtty Learning (through Coleg | Nelson, New Tredegar, Newbridge, Rhymney, Risca), Schools
(Literacy Gwent Franchise) (Graig-Y -Rhacca/Markham), Blackwood Job Centre, Blackwood
Numeracy,

18| Page



68¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

Digital Skills,
ESOL)

\(Essential Skills)
support the

development of
skills needed for
education, work

Miners’ Institute, Cefn Fforest Community Centre, Caerphily
Miners (The Beeches), White Rose Resource Centre, St.Teilo’s
(high dependency inpatient rehabiltation centre for women).

Total courses: Literacy (24), Numeracy (8), Digital Skils (30),
ESOL - English for Speakers of Other Languages (21)

and life...”

Continue to Ensure opportunities are available for | Courses delivered:

deliver Adult resident to take part in Aduk

Community Community Learning provision (mainly | ICDL x 4 (International Computer Driving Licence)

Learning funded through Welsh Government . ) )

provision Community Learning Grant) 20+ courses for ESF Employabiity team (including Customer
(Employability, Service, Food Safety, Health and Safety, Emergency First Aid at
ILS, Hobby & Work, Basic Life Saving/AED, Teamwork, Customer Service,
Interests) Confidence Buiding)

30+ courses for other groups such as Youth Service, Early Years,
Penalta RFC, New Tredegar Rugby Club, POBL, Parent Network
(including Food Safety, Basic Safeguarding, Emergency First Aid
at Work, Basic Life Support/AED, Paediatric First Aid, Confidence
Building,

Other courses (open to the general public) include: Safeguarding
Chidren & Young People, Award in Education &Training,

Managing Conflict, Introduction to Classroom Assistant x 1

Engagement/Hobby activities include — Pottery, Cake Decorating,
Music Therapy, Junk to Joy, Art, Print Making, Spanish, Wilow

19|Page




06¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

craft, Seasonal Wreath Making (some sessions funded by Welsh
Government Engagement Grant)

ILS provision (Courses for adults with additional learning needs
funded by Coleg Y Cymoedd) includes — Pottery, Art & Craft,
Cooking, Drama, Singing, Employability, Gardening, Sewing,
Relationships, Health and Welbeing

Clubs (run independently of Caerphily ACL) include Crochet,
Wood carving and Patchwork.

Develop and
Deliver Multiply
Programme

(Initial funding
£5.9 million)

Set up an appropriate Multiply
numeracy programme to ensure
the hardest-to-reach resident have
access to numeracy learning
opportunities.

Staff recrutment to date x 2 project officers, 1 x communications

Ongoing staff recruitment (tutors, admin & accreditation officer,
monitoring and compliance officer, engagement officers)

Various groups/projects attended e.g. schools, Parent Network
groups, Employabiity teams, Careers Wales, Job Centre Plus.

Various events attended and marketing materials purchased.

1 course started — Cooking on a Budget (as a folow on from
CCBCs Cooking Champion programme)

20|Page




PRIORITY THEME: TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE & CONNECTIVITY

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

Improve the
resiience of the
strategic highway
network of the
A469 to Rhymney.

¢ Progress Design and Feasibiity stage
in preparedness for Leveling Up Fund
Submission in 2022

No LUF bid submitted.

Awaiting the outcome of Welsh Governments Roads
Funding Review (expected Autumn 2022) for CCBC's
Resilient Roads Fund bid.

WelT AG Stage 1 report being finalised.

Leader issued a posttion statementand arranged a site
meeting with the WG Minister, MP, MS & Cabinet
Member(s).

Improvement to
the strategic
highway network.

e Undertake initial feasibiity and design
for Bedwas Bridge Highway
Improvements.

WelT AG Stage 1 study undertaken. Draft report to be
reviewed.

Implementation of
METRO proposals
in relation to
Capital Valey, the
wider Rhymney

T6¢ 9bed

area and the A465.

¢ Undertake Options appraisal and
feasibiity work to establish the
optimum location for a new A465
interchange.

The Central Rhymney WelT AG Stage 2 study looked at this
and ruled this out (i.e., no strong business case).

Awaiting progress on the TfW led commission for the mid
valeys Metro Study.

Implement further
key transport
improvements
including park and
ride.

¢ Design and prepare a business case for
a park and ride in Twyn Carno ward
for 100 spaces.

¢ Design and prepare a business case for
a new park and ride in Llanbradach
ward for 250/500 spaces (Phase 1).

No Progress to date.

The Central Rhymney Strategic P&R WelT AG Stage 2 study
completed. Final report awatted. No funding awarded to
progress this in 2022/23.

21|Page




26¢ abed

Improve
connectivity along
the A472 Corridor.

e Secure funding for a feasibility study to
identify how connectivity can be
enhanced along the A472 Corridor.

Being undertaken by Transport for Wales as part of the
ongoing work on Metro.

Caerphily Metro
Transport and
Investment Hub.

e Progress the Caerphily Interchange to
Weltag stage 2.

Completed and Leveling Up Bid submitted to UK
Government. Awatting funding announcement.
Stakeholder engagement in respect of the WelT AG2 Study
and emerging designs prepared by Grimshaws Architects
has started with meetings held with various groups.

Digital Stakeholder Engagement on the design of the
Interchange has started which has provided support to the
LUF application.

Electric hub.

e Roll out Electric Vehicle Charge Points
at key locations across the County
Borough.

7 Twin 7kW chargers at Tir y Berth old Meals on Wheels
site; 15 Twin 7KW Chargers at Ty Penalta; 2 Twin 7kW
chargers and 2 x 50kW chargers at Tir y Berth Housing
Offices.

On Street Charging facilities being rolled out when funding
allows.

Implementation of
key infrastructure
projects

e Provision of cycle facilties at all
transport hubs together with key
employment and retail destinations.

Ongoing as part of Metro improvements.

PRIORITY THEME: TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION AND DIVERSIFICATION

22|Page




Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
Assess the suitability e Undertake initial Assessment. e Initial assessment of the suitability undertaken for pilot
of Local inttiative in Risca. Needs updating post Covid.

€6¢ abed

Development Orders
/ Town Centre
Enterprise zones in
South Eastarea
towns.

Consider the
Strategic Acquisition
of key sites and
premises in our
prioritised town
centres.

Prepare an
enforcement action
plan for town centres
- targeting statutory
action on target
properties where
necessary.

Investigate and
encourage all
opportunities to
locate public sector/
third sector
commercial
occupation in town

23| Page

Secure Funding to acquire key
sites and premises.

Target problematic premises
with statutory action to
encourage property owners to
invest in their premises.

Take action in default if
necessary. Initial focus on
Bargoed Town Centre.

Liaise with Health Board to
establish their requirements for
facilties in town centres.

Work with other public sector
and third sector bodies to locate
in town centres.

Acquisition Fund agreed for Caerphily Town.

Enforced first enforced sale of a significant listed
property (Tabor Chapel) utiising the Council Approved
Enforced Sale Policy. Working with new owner to bring
premises back into beneficial use.

Ongoing as part of the preparation of the 2™
Replacement Local Development Plan.
A new Health and Well Being centre is proposed for

Caerphily Town Centre.




v6¢ obed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

RAG

centres. To include
service hubs, health
and well-being
provision etc.

Undertake a review
of the current town
centre offer for
incubation space,
start up space,
managed space, live
workspace and
graded office

space and an
assessment of future
demand in light of
changing ways of
working accelerated
by

the Covid pandemic.

Assess need and
potential for housing
provisionintown
centres, to include
standards, tenure
mix, access

24| Page

o Progress the Acquisition of
Pentrebane Street, Caerphily for mixed
use development including mixed

tenure housing.

Feasibiity Assessment for offices for Park & Ride Site in
Caerphily Town prepared.

Assessment of future demand underway as part of the
preparation of the 2" Replacement Local Development
Plan.

Pentrebane Street, Funding secured, site assembly
progressing.

Transforming Towns funding grant criteria supports
mixed schemes that include residential development
above ground floor commercial space. An example of
support under this scheme incudes the former ‘Store
21’ outlet in Blackwood where grant support enabled



G6¢ abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
arrangements, client | o Work with the private sector to the development of an empty building to accommodate
groups etc. secure new residential accommodation 5 retail units on the ground floor below 9 residential

above retail units in town centres. flats on the upper floors. A pipeline of simiar schemeis

being promoted for further funds to support similar
development in Bargoed Town Centre.

Establisha . Identify town centre premises e SPF allocation to progress meanwhie use opportunties

meanwhile use suitable for meanwhile uses and pop- established.

programme to up provision.

encourage

community use and

pop-up provision.

PRIORITY THEME: TOURISM RECOVERY
Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG

Develop a positive
narrative/reputation
for tourismiin
Caerphilly County
Borough as a go to
destination for
Activity and Heritage
holidays focusing on
those areas of
competitive
advantage such as
mountain biking,

25|Page

» Engage with virtual and digital
travel trade to identify
opportunities for Activity and
Heritage trips/holidays in
Caerphily with UK and
international tour operators.

= Develop a marketing plan to
reinvigorate and reinforce the
attractiveness of the county
borough to domestic tourism
and increase awareness of what
is on offer in the county

e Activity and heritage promotions are ongoing, using social
media, printed word and attendance at national events.
Examples include:

o Articles included in The Voice magazine
periodically.

o Attendance at national tourism shows, such as the
Birmingham eventin autumn 2021 and
Twickenham in January 2022.

o Inclusion in regional promotions organised by the
Southern Wales group and by Vistt Wales.



96¢ abed

Project 18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

RAG

cycling, walking,
heritage and activity
tourism all of which
are particular
strengths in
Caerphilly.

borough to encourage visitors
to Vist Caerphily when they are
visiting other attractions in the
region.

» Update the Visit Caerphily
Webpage and utiise social
media platforms to ensure that
the Visit Caerphilly Brand is
effective and recognised by
prospective visitors to the
region.

» Promote the Valleys Regional
Park Discovery Gateways at
Caerphily Castle, Cwmcarn
Forest and Penallta Parc in
partnership with the VRP/WG
and CCR.

Work with partners to
develop new high-
quality attractions
and activity products,
particularly those
providing distinctive |«
and unique

experiences that can

e Heritage — Work with Cadw on
proposals to elevate Caerphily
Castle from a Tier 1 tourism
attraction to a Tier 2 tourism
attraction.

Heritage — Expand the events
and tourism offer at Llancaiach
Fawr Manor and explore the
feasibility of developing
accommodation at the site.

26|Page

o Social media coverage, including the incredibly
successful visit from Y outubers Sam and Colby,
which has achieved 4 milion hits to date.

¢ A marketing plan wil be developed by the Marketing
Officer, early in 2023.

e The Marketing Officer is working with destination
managers to update the websites regularly and ensure
consistent and regular social media content.

e The VRP intiative reinvigorated by the project leads and
the first meeting in several years took place on 27t
October 2022.

» Work has commenced on Cadw’s £5milion project to
transform Caerphily Castle. The plans include improved visitor
faciities in a new reception buiding at the entrance,
refurbishment of the current shop, and access improvements
to paths throughout the castle to ensure visitors of all abilties
can enjoy the site.



Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
attractvisitors all Hertage — Expand the cutural | " Central to the project is a £1milion overhaul of site
year round. events on offer at the New interpretation including new state-of-the-art digital techniques,

/6¢ abed

27 |Page

Tredegar Winding House.

Activity — Work with NRW to
promote and develop Cwmcarn
Forest Drive as a destination
activity and explore
opportunities to expand the
network of legal bike trails within
the Forest.

Activity — Work with Tomorrow
Tourism to prepare a long-term
plan to develop Cwmcarn as a
national visitor attraction
through the provision of new
activties and attractions to
complement the existing offer.

presenting the stories of the men and women who buit and
ived in Caerphilly Castle. The plans also include proposals to
re-dress the Great Hall, the largest of its period in the country,

to recreate the ambience and grandeur of its medieval heyday.

» Llancaiach Fawr Manor Accommodation Feasibiity Study
prepared by PSL 2022 which concluded that the site is suitable
for accommodation and provided a recommended way forward
on the scale and type of accommodation which should be
sought. Funding has not been secured to date for this £0.5m
project.

» Theinstalation of the park at Llancaiach Fawr Manor has
increased the number of families onsite and also increased the
duration of their vist.

e Workis ongoing to develop the offer at the Winding House,

including regular exhibttions in the galery and an art
competition involving local schools in autumn and winter
2022-23.

e The Winding House has put on a range of themed children’s

craft activities throughout the last twelve months.
Art photographic exhibitions have run throughout the year
with the galery space booked up unti the end of 2023

e Cwmcarn Forest Masterplan has been prepared and was

approved by Cabinet in June 2022. The long-term plan for the



86¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG

Work with
accommodation
providers to
diversify the range
and type of
accommodation

28| Page

Work with the Council's
preferred developer partner to
develop proposals for a new
boutique hotel in Park Lane,
Caerphily.

destination has therefore been developed and is now being
progressed.

MACE - chosen consuttant have developed the scheme for

Cwmcarn and the Council have submitted a bid for £12 milion
to the UK Government leveling up fund. This is supported by
over £1 milion match fund from CCBC. The scheme includes:

e Treetop coaster
e Raised wakways
e Wrap around extension
e Art trail
e Bungee jump
Leveling Up Bid submitted to UK Govenrment.

An ongoing working relationship is in place with NRW at both
operational and strategic levels to ensure that visitors continue
to receive an enjoyable, high quality and safe experience.

Work is progressing to secure Planning Permission for a new
hotel in Caerphily as part of the Leisure Quarter Proposal.



66¢ 2bed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023)

provided in the
county borough.

Undertake a feasibiity study to
ascertain what type of
accommodation should be
provided at Llancaiach Fawr
Manor.

» Llancaiach Fawr Manor Accommodation Feasibility Study
prepared by PSL 2022 which concluded that the site is suitable
for accommodation and provided a recommended way forward
on the scale and type of accommodation which should be
sought. Funding has not been secured to date for this £0.5m
project.

Work with
partners to
maximise existing
assets and further
develop new
leisure
establishments to
drive the night-
time economy and
increase dwell
time in the
Principal Town
Centres to
encourage visitors
to take weekend
breaks in the
county borough.

Blackwood Miners’ Institute and
the Caerphily Workmens’Hall
are both important historic
assets in their respective town
centres. Vibrant and successful
theatres play an important role
as an economic driver for
developing employment and for
the night-time economy.
Officers will work with the
management of both venues to
buid on their existing offerand
encourage both venues to
harness opportuntties for
greater networking with, and
involvement of local businesses
in their activities particularly
those that operate in the
‘experience’ and evening and
night-time economy.

e Blackwood Town Council meetings with BMI team have

e Blackwood Miners’ Institute is working with the Town Council

e Theatre and Arts Service Manager and Marketing Officer have

e The BMI Advisory Group, comprised of people from a diverse

resumed.

to rethink the ‘History of Blackwood’ event that was
postponed due to the pandemic this is now scheduled to be
delivered in 2023.

been meeting with local businesses to discuss opportunities
for collaboration.

range of backgrounds, including the private sector, has been
established and held its first meeting on 6™ October 2022.
This group wil provide advice and guidance to the
management team on key operational and strategic issues.

29| Page




00¢ abed

Project

18 Months

Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG

Ensure that there
is a sufficient
variety of quality
food and drink,
leisure,
entertainment,
cultural activities
and
accommodation in
our Principal
Towns to attract
and hold
visitor/customers
in town centres to
develop their
Night-time
economy and
make them more
successful.

30|Page

= Work with the Council's
preferred developer partner to
develop proposals for a new
boutique hotel in Park Lane,
Caerphily.

= Caerphily Town 2035, funding has been secured from WG to
acquire properties along Pentrebane Street, including the current
Indoor Market, to facilitate development of up to 64 new Net Zero
Carbon apartments by Linc Cymru, 50% of which wil be
affordable. To mitigate the loss of the current Indoor Market,
plans have been prepared for the creation of a new Market on
land owned by the Council on Park Lane, which means in the
short to medium term this site could not accommodate a hotel.

= In paralel with this work CBRE have been looking at the options
for a hotel in the Town Centre and they have concluded that:

oThe town should and would support a 60-80 Bed 3-4*
Hotel with associated function space (weddings, Business
etc) and F&B provision.

oThe Castle is key and provides the USP for the proposal.

olIt is essential that the Hotel has to be close and have
good views of the Castle.

= CBRE considered 8 Town Centre sites with the two best sites
being Cardiff Road (LQ Devt) and Park Lane. Their
recommended site for the hotel is now Cardiff Road as they
consider Park Lane is too constrained as follows:

olnttial plans for the Park Lane site (prepared by Strides)
indicates the site cannot accommodate the scale of
development required



TOg abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) RAG
oIt has poor access and wouldn't provide adequate on-site

parking

oHaff the Hotel rooms would have views (albeit imited) of
the Castle, with the remainder having views of Park Lane
& the rear of Peacocks

= Cardiff Road (LQ site) could accommodate the scale and quality
of development required and would provide the best view of the
Castle. Work is progressing to secure Planning Permission for a
new hotel in Caerphilly as part of the Leisure Quarter Proposal.

= Provide fina_ncial support = Transforming Towns Secured for Caerphily for 2021/22-
(Transforming Towns Grant) to | aquates to £166,507. A further £550,000 for 2023/24 and
businesses looking to locate in £200,000 for 2024/25 has been offered that can include
Caerphily and Blackwood Town | piects in Blackwood and Bargoed upon the development of

Centres. specific placemaking plans in relation to the additional towns.
Reintroduce local = Prepare and agree a = The events staff work extremely hard to deliver on the current
and major events programme of Covid safe programme, which includes 2 major events which are deemed to
when restrictions events for the Autumn of 2021. be of regional significance in terms of attracting tourism to the
permit to County Borough (The Big/Little Cheese Summer event and the
encourage people Caerphily Food Festival).
to visit town
centres and to e The Big Cheese usualy attracts between 50,000 and
showcase and 100,000 visitors from a wider catchment area and has a
encourage the social media reach of circa 500,000. In 2022 the scaled
development of down Little Cheese attracted approximately 44,000
the towns’ night- visitors.

time economy and

31|Page



20¢g abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023) ' RAG
encourage visitors e The Caerphily Food Festival which is held in the Spring
to experience the attracts between 8,000 and 12,000 visitors to the town.
towns’ food, drink,
entertainment and In addition to these regionally significant events, the Council's
accommodation events staff organise and help to support many other town centre
businesses events. Insummary for 22/23 these are:
alongside each
event. o Bargoed Winter Food and Craft Fair

. Bargoed Roller Skating Rink

. Blackwood Winter Food and Craft Fair

o Blackwood Spring Fair (TBC)

o *Caerphily Big/Little Cheese

o *Caerphily Food Festival

o Caerphily 10k

o Lantern Parade and associated workshops

. Y strad Mynach Spring Fair

. Y strad Mynach Food and Craft Fair

o Risca Beach Party (TBC)
Develop the leisure = Identification of new sites for development through the 2™
offer in Town Replacement Local Development Plan preparation process.
Centres to bridge = Work progressing to develop the leisure offer in Caerphily Town
the transition from as part of Caerphily Town 2035.
the day into the . . .
evening economy -G.ood progress being made in Blackwood via Programme of
and help retain diverse events planned for Autumn in BML.
daytime visitors,
shop workers and
employees in town
into the evening.

32|Page



€0g abed

RE-CONFIGURATION OF EXISTING EMPLOYMENT SITES & IDENTIFICATION OF NEW EMPLOYMENT SITES

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023)
Establish sites with o Identify a key list of sites that | ¢ Employment Land Review completed October 2021.
scope for offer an opportunity for

redevelopment.

Establish more robust | ¢
links with industrial
property agents,
landowners and

existing occupiers to
ensure

redevelopment meets
the needs of business
and other

stakeholders.

Prioritise the .
redevelopment of

sites that would be
beneficial in terms of
promoting the growth

of key sectors within | ¢
the County Borough.

33|Page

redevelopment /
reconfiguration, having regard
to vacancy rate trends,

quality/type of existing

premises, size and location e.g.

Capital Valey, Rhymney.

Identify wiling partners and
funding opportunities to take
forward sites for
redevelopment e.g., Capital
Valey, Rhymney.

Work with CCR on a pipeline of
strategic sites and premises to
attract funding to faciitate
employment growth.

Work with WG to unlock
employment land at Oakdale
Business Park through the
provision on the necessary

infrastructure to access the
land.

e Limited progress made with WG and Private sector in respect
of the Heads of the Valeys Industrial Estate residual land.
The owner of Capital Valley has his own plans for Capital
Valey.

e A465 sites and premises group established chaired by CCR and
including WG to buid on CCR market assessment reports to
establish funding for strategic site development. Work has
been focussed on the heads of the valleys and proximity to the
A465.

¢ Inttial work of the group includes developing a masterplan for
the undeveloped land on plateau 2 at the business park in
anticipation of leveraging funding from WG and the region.

RAG




v0g abed

Project 18 Months Progress (Up to April 2023)

Oakdale Plateaus’ 2 e QOakdale Plateaus' 2 and 4 — ¢ Oakdale Plateau 2 —Working with CCR and WG to prepare
and 4. secure a private sector partner relevant site investigation reports to faciitate development of
to redevelop vacant land for the residual land. RIBA Stage 2. Discussion underway with
private sector-led employment prospective developers.
use.

¢ Oakdale Plateau 4 - Relevant site investigation reports
prepared to faciitate development of the residual land.
Discussion ongoing with WG and prospective developer.
Identify new sites for ¢ Undertake a robust assessment | ¢ Employment Land Review completed October 2021.
Business and of land availabilty to inform
Employment use. the type and location of
employment land and premises
to be provided.
Invest in new Council | ¢ Identify wiling partners and e Working with prospective partners to deliver new starter units
owned start up units. funding opportuntties to take at Oakdale.
forward sites for
redevelopment for start-units.

e Residual land at Caerphily Business Park —is now proposed

* Prepare upto date Masterplan for the new Wel-Being Centre.

to guide the provision of new
units at Caerphilly Business
Park.

34|Page



Agenda Iltem 9

W
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CABINET -26™ JULY 2023

SUBJECT: SCRAP METAL DEALERS,DOG BREEDERS, AND
LICENSING OF ACTIVITIES INVOLVING ANIMALS
LICENSING FEES 2023/24 AND FUTURE FEE SETTING
DETERMINATION.

REPORTBY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMY AND
ENVIRONMENT

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

11 To determine the fees charged for Scrap Metal Dealer licences, Dog Breeder licences
and licences for premises / activities covered by The Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations 2021 for 2023/24.

1.2  To approve the delegation and future setting of the above fees falling under the
executive function to the relevant Director or Head of Service in consultation with the
relevant Cabinet Member.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The licensing fees for premises / activities covered by the following legislation are
determined by Cabinet rather than the Taxi & General Licensing Committee: - Scrap
Metal Dealers Act 2013, Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014
and The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales)
Regulations 2021.

2.2 The Acts and supporting Regulations are silent upon the issue of the responsibility for
exercising the function and consequently the provisions of S9(D) of the Local
Government Act 2000 are triggered and by default the function is exercised by the
Executive.

2.3 Fees for these types of licences have been reviewed alongside all Licensing fees for
2023/24. Licensing fees generally have not been reviewed for some time mainly due
to the impacts of the Covid 19 Pandemic.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That the fee structure set out at paragraphs 5.4 to 5.6 of the Report is approved for
implementation from 1.8.2023.

Page 305



3.2

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

That Cabinet approve the delegation of future fee setting arrangements for the licence
types falling within the executive function to the relevant Director or Head of Service in
consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

In order to comply with statutory guidance and to recover a reasonable level of costs
incurred by the Council in administering the licensing functions.

The majority of Licensing fees are determined by the Licensing & Gambling and Taxi
& General Licensing Committees. Delegating responsibility as per paragraph 3.2
above would result in a more streamlined and responsive process for a small number
of fees with relatively low income generation.

THE REPORT

The authority has a statutory duty to administer certain licences, registrations and
permits. The review of fees charged, involves consideration of the cost to the Authority
in providing the service. Some fees are set centrally by government, some are free of
charge and the remaining are determined locally to recover the cost of providing that
service. The underlying principle in setting fees is that Councils must not use fees to
make a profit or act as an economic deterrent to deter certain business types from
operating in an area. Charges must be reasonable and proportionate to the cost of the
processes associated with the licensing regime.

The All-Wales Licensing Expert Panel devised a fee calculator toolkit that has been
approved by the Directors of Public Protection in Wales. In principle, the toolkit
calculates two elements, which cover the costs to the authority for the provision of the
service and the cost of processing and producing a licence. The cost of provision of
the service increases proportionally dependant on the period of the licence, whereas
the licence processing costis not affected by the period of the licence.

The fee review process for 2023/24 indicated that current fee levels would not meet
the cost of providing the service and should be increased in order to achieve full cost
recovery.

It is recommendedthat fees for Scrap Metal collectors and Site operators be revised
in line with that set out in the table below. These licences are issued for a three-year
period. The fees in relation to Scrap Metal Dealer Licences were last reviewed in 2017
and since that time there have been increased salary and other related on costs.

%
Scrap Metal Licences Current Fee Proposed Fee Increase
Site Operator 3yr £436.00 £511.00 17%
licence
Collector 3yr licence £311.00 £326.00 4.8%
Change of name site £32.00 £32.00
manager -
Change of site £53.00 £53.00
manager -

Page 306




5.5

5.6

Dog breeding has increased significantly in recent years in particular the number of
larger scale breeders. As a result, the fee category structure has been changed from
Home and Commercial to the numbers of dogs kept for breeding purposes. The fee
assessment process indicated that fees for 2023/24 should be changed as follows to
achieve full costrecovery and do not include any additional fees for the inspection and
report of a veterinary surgeon which are payable as required by the applicant.

%
Dog Breeding Current Fee/ Proposed Fee Increase
Licences Comment

New application
Small breeder 3-5 £144.00
breeding bitches- £272.00 89%
Home breeding
Establishments

Renewal
Small breeder 3-5 N/A New fee type 66%
breeding bitches- £239.00
New application
Large breeder 6 or £226.00 £336.00 49%
more breeding Commercial
bitches breeding
Establishments
Renewal N/A new fee type
Large breeder 6 or £294.00 31%
more breeding
bitches

Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations

2021 (LAIA) apply to businesses or those operating on a commercial basis who are
involved in the licensable activities of selling pets. The regulations replaced and
revoked the Pet Animals Act 1951 which was formerly the responsibility of the Taxi &
General Licensing Committee. Fees have been determined based on the requirements
of the new legislation and the increased amount of time taken to inspect and complete
reports in line with Welsh Government Statutory Guidance. The proposed fees for
2023/24 are detailed below and do not include any additional fees for the inspection
and report of a veterinary surgeon which are payable as required by the applicant. The
current fees listed relate to Pet Shop fees under the previous legislation.

LAIA Fees Current Fee/Comments | Proposed %
Fee Increase

New application
Selling Animals as £224 (Pet Shop Fee) £334 49%
Pets -Single Species

Page 307



5.7

5.8

5.9

59.1

5.9.2

6.1

7.1

Renewal application | N/A New Fee £256 14%
Selling Animals as
Pets Single Species

New application £224 (Pet Shop Fee) £386 2%
Selling Animals as
Pets Multiple Species

Renewal application | £224 (Pet Shop Fee) £334 49%
Selling Animals as
Pets Multiple Species

Consultation

Information on full cost recovery levels of fees for 2023/24 were sent to all existing
Animal Breeding, Pet Animal and Scrap Metal licence holders and a consultation
survey published on the Authority’s website on 15" June 2023 and comments invited
on them for inclusion in this report. Details of the 4 responses received in respect of
fees set by Cabinet are attached as Appendix 1. 3 comments relate to Dog Breeding
licence fees and 1 relates to Scrap Metal licences. Of the 3 comments in relation to
Dog Breeding 2 state that the fee is too low whereas the other expresses concern at
increased costs. There are references to the activities of unlicensed breeders and
scrap metal collectors and Officers from Public Protection continue to act upon any
intelligence received and take appropriate enforcement action.

The majority of Licensing fees are determined by the Licensing & Gambling and Taxi
& General Licensing Committees. Delegating responsibility as per paragraph 3.2
above would result in a more streamlined and responsive process for a small number
of fees with relatively low income generation.

CONCLUSION

It is proposed that Cabinet approve the level of fees set out in this report in relation to
Scrap Metal, Dog Breeding and premises / activities covered by The Animal Welfare
(Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations 2021.

It is also proposed that future fee setting arrangements for licence types contained
within the executive function are delegated to the relevant Director or Head of Service
in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member.

ASSUMPTIONS

No assumptions have been made within this report.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The council has a duty to cost recover locally set fees. Licence fees have not increased
in most instances since 2019/20 and 2017/18 for Scrap Metal and Dog Breeder
licences. A consultation in respectof locally setfees has been undertaken with existing
licence holders. The responses have been included in the IIA and reports for Cabinet
and Licensing Committees for Member consideration. These reports contain the full

Page 308



cost recovery figures for each licence type. The full impact will be determined by the
actual fees set by Cabinet and Licensing Committees. Link to IIA

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 If the proposed fees are implemented by Cabinet it is estimated that there will be an
increased income of £1335.00 per annum based on current numbers. £795 for scrap
metal dealer licences, £380 for dog breeders and £160 for LAIA. This does not include
any new applications. Fees are determined on a cost recovery basis and current fees
do not meet the cost of delivering the service in some areas. Fees have not been
increased for several years and any delay in implementing an increase now will lead
to higher increases in future years.

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no personnel implications associated with this report.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 The views of the listed consultees have been reflected within this report.

10.2 Details of responses received in relation to the consultation referenced in 5.7 are
attached as Appendix 1.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Local Government Act 2000. Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013, Animal Welfare
(Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations 2021, Animal Welfare
Act 2006.

Author: Lee Morgan, Licensing Manager

Morgall6@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Councillor Philippa Leonard, Cabinet Member for Planning and Public

Protection

Councillor D.T Davies, Chair Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny
Councillor Adrian Hussey, Vice Chair Environment and Sustainability
Scrutiny

Dave Street, Deputy Chief Executive

streed@caerphilly.gov.uk

Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive

harrhc @caerphilly.gov.uk

Mark S Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment
willims @caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure
Services

Hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Page 309


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-licensing-fees-23-24
mailto:streed@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:Hartsr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Donovi@caerphilly.gov.uk

David Roberts, Interim Finance Manager

Roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk

Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer,
harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Jacqui Morgan, Trading Standards, Licensing and Registrars Manager

Appendices:
Appendix 1: Consultation Responses

Background Papers:

Cabinet report 26" January 2022: Animal Welfare

(Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations 2021
Cabinet report Pet animal sales.docx

Link to: Local Government Association Licensing Fees Guidance

Page 310


mailto:Roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk
file:///T:/ESTYPING/COMMITTEE/Cabinet/Public%20Protection/2022/Cabinet%20report%20Pet%20animal%20sales.docx
file:///T:/ESTYPING/COMMITTEE/Cabinet/Public%20Protection/2022/Cabinet%20report%20Pet%20animal%20sales.docx
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/open-business-lga-guidance-locally-set-licence-fees

Appendix 1

Consultation Responses Cabinet set Fees

Comments 1-3 Below relate to Dog Breeding licence fees. Comment 4 relates to Scrap
Metal.

1. The licence fee is far too low. In many cases, that fee is less than 10% of the cost of
one puppy. (Comment from a licensed boarder)

2. The increase of vets costs for " licenced breeder" have increased.
Kennel club
Health tests etc
Now licencing.
However so many " unlicensed allowed to breed. And sell pups cheap with no over
heads. Have put experienced respectful breeders out of business.
| think | speak for all. If everyone had to be licenced. Then yes. Charge respectively
per dog. However at the moment we are on the brink of closure.

3. Breeding licence: Compared with the amount of money made from breeding litters, |
feel this is just not high enough. We have a bitch and a dog on our books that have
been used for breeding and it seems that they are overworked to the extent that it
can affect the bitch's health and wellbeing. Raising the licence fee might deter
unscrupulous breeders. (Comment from a licensed boarder)

4. The system is extremely flawed. The scrap metal industry is absolutely saturated with
people buying box vans (so you can’'t see what’s inside) and collecting scrapon a
regular basis, weighing off and cashing cheque payments in Ramsdens. These are
unlicensed operators carrying out the business of collecting scrap metal on an
organised and regular basis.

There is nothing being done about it by Caerphilly council.

Anyone licensed now has tax conditionality for example however those and there are
a very large number of them; who are unlicensed are making a mockery of the
system.

The scrap dealers act 2013 that imposes licensing conditions does not prevent metal
theft as it was originally designed to do. Because Anyone can weigh in scrap metal
at a scrap yard, and anyone is free to open an account with a cheque cashing
company.

Before upping your fees, | would take a look on Facebook particularly join some local
buy and sell groups and see the number of unlicensed operators that answer to ads
for requests of scrap disposal on a regular basis. Also check Ramsdens for their
record of how many times they have cashed cheques.

| struggle to put food on the table between everything | pay out for operating as a
legitimate business and it is utterly disgusting that you charge more for licensing and
do less. I've never know a full blown investigation in to those who are unlicensed
being conducted by the Borough.

Kind regards

*kkkkkkkk trading as *xrEERRx | | B hons in Law

Page 311



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 312



Agenda Iltem 10

R
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH C

CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CABINET - 26™ JULY 2023
SUBJECT: PROVISIONAL REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN FOR 2022/23

REPORTBY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND
CORPORATE SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

11 To provide Cabinet with details of the provisional revenue budget outturn for the
2022/23 financial year prior to the completion of the annual external audit of the
accounts by Audit Wales.

1.2  To seek Cabinet approval of specific proposals for the use of General Usable Service
Reserves.

1.3 To seek Cabinet endorsement of proposals for the use of surplus General Fund
balances prior to consideration by Council.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 In advance of the 2022/23 Draft Financial Statements being audited by Audit Wales,
this report provides an overview of the Council’'s performance against the revenue

budget for the 2022/23 financial year.

2.2 Members receive detailed budget monitoring reports as part of the Scrutiny process
throughout the financial year.

2.3  The report also includes specific proposals for the use of General Usable Service
Reserves and surplus General Fund balances.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS
3.1 Cabinet is asked to: -
3.1.1 Note the provisional 2022/23 revenue budget outturn position.

3.1.2 Approve the proposed use of General Usable Service Reserves totalling £1.148m as
set out in section 5.10 of the report.

3.1.3 Endorse the proposed use of surplus General Fund balances totalling £3.455m as

detailed in section 5.11 of the report, prior to consideration by Council on 27 September
2023.

Page 313



3.14

4.1

5.1

511

5.1.2

5.1.3

514

515

Endorse a recommendation to Council to maintain the General Fund balance at
£15.166m.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
To ensure that Cabinet is aware of the provisional revenue budget outturn for the

2022/23 financial year and supportive of the proposed use of reserves.

THE REPORT
Overview

The 2022/23 provisional outturn position is attached as Appendix A and is summarised
below:-

£m
Net Service Directorate Underspends 4.201
Miscellaneous Finance Underspend 4.317
Council Tax Surplus 0.420
Schools Overspend (5.947)
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Underspend 5.340
Total Net Underspend: - 8.331

The total net underspend of £8.331m is significantly lower than in recent years (net
underspends of £38.517m and £37.815m in 2020/21 and 2021/22 respectively) and
this signifies the return of a more realistic picture of financial performance that is not
impacted by the significant levels of external grant funding received in recent years in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

After adjusting for earmarked reserves, 50% of underspends are carried forward by
Directorates and are available to meet the requirements of these service areas. The
remaining balance is transferred to the General Fund. Overspends are normally
funded from future Directorate budgets or balances brought forward from previous
years. Service reserves held by Directorates can be used to fund one-off cost
pressures or to pump-prime service reconfiguration, but they cannot be relied upon to
deliver balanced budgets in the medium to longer-term.

The Council has managed the financial challenges presented by the Cost-of-Living
crisis during the 2022/23 financial year, but the position will be extremely challenging
moving forward The 2023/24 budget proposals approved by Council on 23 February
2023 included total cost pressures of £55.4m. These pressures are being funded
through an increase in the Welsh Government Financial Settlement of £22.2m,
permanent savings of £4.9m, temporary savings of £6.9m, the one-off use of reserves
totalling £15.3m, and £6.1m from a 7.9% increase in Council Tax.

Due to the unprecedented levels of inflation, the current economic outlook, and the
range of temporary budgetary measures that were approved for the 2023/24 financial
year, the Council's Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) has been updated based on
a range of assumptions, resulting in a potential savings requirement of £48.335m for
the two-year period 2024/25 to 2025/26.

Page 314



5.1.6

5.2

521

5.2.2

5.2.3

524

5.2.5

5.2.6

The following paragraphs provide details of the more significant variations against
budget by service area for the 2022/23 financial year.

Education and Lifelong Learning (£3.089m Overspend)

Overall, the Directorate is reporting a net overspend of £3.089m, which includes an
overspend of £5.947m for schools. The schools in-year overspend is ring-fenced,
consequently school balances have reduced from £17.2m to £11.3m as of 31 March
2023.

At the end of the 2021/22 financial year there were no schools with a deficit balance.
As of 31 March 2023 there were five primary schools (E151k collectively) and three
secondary schools (£949k collectively) carrying forward deficit balances.

Excluding schools, the Education & Lifelong Learning Directorate (including Home to
School/College Transport) is reporting an underspend of £2.858m. The most
significant variances against budgets are as follows: -

Service Area (Overspend)/
Underspend
£m
Home to School/College Transport (0.219)
Covid-19 Related Expenditure (Summer Term Support for (0.227)
Schools)
Pension Costs of School Based Staff 0.390
Management and Support Service Costs 0.224
Psychological Service and Schools Based Counselling 0.421
Advisory Support Service 0.164
EOTAS, Additional Support and Out-of-County 1.056
Early Years Central Team 0.297
School Improvement (0.152)
Adult Education 0.169
Youth Service 0.237
Library Service 0.126
Net Other 0.373
Total Net Underspend: - 2.858

There is a reported overspend of £219k for Home to School/College Transport which
equates to 2.6% of the budget. Contracts are due to be reviewed during the 2023/24
financial year which may result in further cost pressures for this budget.

The Covid-19 related expenditure of £227k was incurred to support specific temporary
issues raised by Headteachers following the end of financial support on 31 March 2022
from WG through the Covid-19 Hardship Fund. The expenditure relates to an
agreement by the Authority to support an additional mid-day clean in schools to the
end of the Summer Term 2022, and additional supply cover costs for the most
vulnerable staff. This included pregnant staff (26+ weeks), supported by a risk
assessmentto the end of December 2022.

The £390k underspend on the pension costs of school-based staff follows two years

of good budget settlements for schools, which has had a positive impact on the
retention of staff.

Page 315



5.2.7

5.2.8

5.2.9

5.2.10

5.2.11

5.2.12

5.2.13

5.3

531

5.3.2

The £224k underspend for Management & Support Service costs is primarily linked to
in-year vacancies, additional income generation and savings linked to general office
Costs.

The £421k underspend for the Psychology Service and School Based Counselling
Team is linked in part to ensuring that grant funding was fully expended in the financial
year. Further underspends in the Psychology Service and Advisory Support Teams
were linked to in-year vacancies and delays in recruitment. The recruitment issues
have largely been addressed for the 2023/24 financial year.

There is a net underspend of £1.056m for the budgets supporting our most vulnerable
learners (Education Other Than at School (EOTAS), Additional Support and Out-of-
County). This is an area where budgets will need to be re-aligned as we progress the
EOTAS Strategy with the development of expanded provision at the old Pontllanfraith
Comprehensive site, and to incorporate the financial impact of the Additional Support
Review. The positive outturn position follows budget growth in recent years to support
significant financial pressure in this area, plus work to support more cost-effective
practices. An element of the underspend relates to a delay in the expansion of two
classrooms at Glan Y Nant (Pupil Referral Unit).

The £297k underspend in the Early Years Central Team is due to the success of the
Team in accessing specific grant funding to support staff related costs.

The in-year projected net underspend for the Directorate allowed for an additional level
of targeted spend totalling £152k in relation to support for school improvement.

The £169k underspend for Adult Education is largely due to expenditure being
managed within available grant funding levels, and income levels being greater than
initially projected.

The total net underspend of £363k for Youth and Library Services is largely linked to
in-year vacancies and delays in recruitment.

Social Services (£981k Underspend)

There is a net underspend of £981k for Social Services, which is summarised in the
table below:-

Service Area Revised Outturn (Over)/
Budget 2022/23 Underspend
2022/23
£m £m £m
Children’s Services 30.214 33.648 (3.434)
Adult Services 78.482 74.720 3.762
Business Support 2.314 2.210 0.104
| Social Services Transport 1.702 1.153 0.549
Totals: - 112.712 111.731 0.981

Within the Children’s Services Division increasing demand for, and the complexity of
children looked after placements, led to an overspend of £5.224m. However, vacancy
savings of £931k, other non-recurring savings of £209k and the use of £650k of
additional grant funding reduced the Division’s net overspend to £3.434m.

Page 316



5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5

5.3.6

5.3.7

5.3.8

54

5.4.1

54.2

5.4.3

The Adult Services Division experienced increased demand for long-term residential
and nursing care, with service users’ confidence in care homes beginning to recover
as we emerged from the Covid-19 pandemic. This surge in demand led to an
overspend of £1.376m.

Demand for short-term respite provision in care homes also saw a surge in 2022/23
leading to a further overspend of £528Kk, which is linked to a shortfall in capacity within
the domiciliary care market caused by a national staff shortage across the sector.

In order to enable a smoother transition into adulthood, services for children with
disabilities is managed within the Adult Services Division. As experienced in the
Children’s Services Division, there was increasing demand for, and complexity of
children looked after, resulting in an overspend of £153k for placements for children
with disabilities.

The overspends for Adult Services have been more than offset by underspends
totalling £5.819m, resulting in the net underspend for the Division of £3.762m. The
most significant areas of underspend are the following: -

e £2.107m due to a lack of staffing capacity within the domiciliary care market;

e £1.870m in respect of Day Services due to recruitment challenges, which
limited capacity in our own day centres and external provision;

e £1.335m in non-recurring savings such as vacancies, reduced demand for
casual staff to cover staff absences, and reimbursement of overpayments from
prior years; and

e £507k of additional short-term funding streams.

The £104k underspend for Business Support is due to vacant posts in the Financial
Services Team (£86k), reduced stationery and printing costs (£25k), and other
miscellaneous non-recurring underspends totalling £77k. These underspends are
partially offset by an overspend of £84k due to increased energy and cleaning costs
across the Social Services office estate.

The increasing demand for children looked after placements also resulted in an
overspend of £52k in respect of the transport costs associated with these placements.
However, the limited capacity in Day Services provision resulted in an underspend of
£601k in respect of transport to and from day centres. This resulted in a net overall
underspend of £549k in respect of Social Services transport costs.

Economy & Environment (E603k Overspend)

The overall net outturn position for the Economy & Environment Directorate is an
overspend of £603k, after adjusting for the approved earmarking of reserves.

The Regeneration & Planning Division is reporting an overall net underspend of £254k.

Regeneration is reporting an underspend of £287k, the most significant elements of
which are the following: -

e £69Kk in Town Centre Management due in the main to recruitment delays.

e £60k for Cwmcarn Visitor Centre

e £127k in Community Regeneration due to the transfer of staff to the Caerphilly
Cares Team.

Page 317



544

5.4.5

5.4.6

54.7

54.8

Planning has a net overall overspend of £33k which is primarily due to income budgets
not being achieved, partially offset with in-year salary savings while recruiting to vacant
posts.

The Infrastructure Division is reporting a net underspend of £352k, which consists in
the main of the following: -

e An underspend of £487k for Network Contracting Services (NCS) due to
additional income generated.

¢ A net underspend of £200k for the Engineering Projects Group (EPG) due to
reduced sickness levels, delays in recruiting to vacant posts, and maximisation
of grant funding.

e A net overspend of £340k for Highways Services arising from additional costs
in reactive maintenance, additional costs in respect of contractors and agency
staff, partially offset by some savings due to delays in filing vacant posts and
one-off grant income.

The Public Protection Division is reporting an overall underspend of £675k, the most
significant elements of which are the following: -

£96k in the Food Team due to delays in filing vacant posts.

£95k in Enforcement, also largely due to delays in filling vacant posts.

£73k in Emergency Planning due to vacant posts.

£120k for Community Safety Wardens due to vacant posts.

A Catering underspend of £241k due in the main to additional one-off grant
funding received from WG in March 2022.

The Community & Leisure Division is reporting a net overspend of £1.912m as
summarised in the table below: -

Service Area (Overspend)/
Underspend
£m

Waste Strategy and Cleansing Operations (0.164)
Parks, Countryside and Cemeteries (0.715)
Leisure Services (0.485)
Building Cleaning (0.077)
Vehicle Maintenance and Fleet Management (0.471)
Total Net Overspend: - (1.912)

The net overspend of £164k for Waste Strategy & Cleansing Operations consists in
the main of the following: -

Overspends

e £614k overspend for Residual Recycling mainly due to additional staffing costs
(E386k), fuel costs (£80k), vehicle hire (£122k), vehicle repairs (£88k), and
additional bins (£34k), partially offset by a net underspend of £96k on other
budgets.

e £417k overspend for Organic Recycling due in the main to additional staffing
costs (£227k), additional agency costs (£157k), fuel (£46k), additional
bins/materials (E20k), partially offset by a net underspend of £33k on other
budgets.

Page 318



£894k overspend for Dry Recycling due in the main to additional staffing costs
(E84Kk), agency costs (£45k), fuel (£48k), vehicle Hire (£409k), vehicle repairs
(E129k), and additional contractor costs (£233k). Theses overspends are
partially offset by a net underspend of £54k on other budgets.

Underspends

£189k underspend for Civic Amenity Sites due to salary savings (£141Kk),
vehicle/plant related costs (£60k), telephone charges (£30k), additional income
(E25k), partially offset by additional contractor payments.

£37k underspend for Bulky Waste due to contractor savings (E52k), offset by
additional salary costs (£15k).

£81k underspend on the Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO)
budget.

£34k underspend on Commercial Waste due to additional income.

£36k for Trehir due to reduced maintenance and effluent charges.

£138k underspend for HQ Staff due to vacant posts (£131k), transport savings
(E20k), partially offset by a net overspend of £13k on other budgets.

£1.271m underspend for Cleansing, the main elements of which are salary
underspends (£1.031m) due to staff covering other service areas within the
Division, and reduced contractor payments (£213Kk).

5.4.9 There s a net overspend of £715k for Parks, Countryside and Cemeteries, consisting
of the following: -

£493k overspend for Parks and Playing Fields due to additional fuel costs,
additional vehicle hire, vehicle repair charges, additional contractor costs,
additional agency costs and reduced income.

£37k overspend for Playgrounds due to additional contractor costs arising from
increased equipment damage at some sites, partially offset by additional
income and salary savings due to vacant posts not being filled.

£109k overspend for Outdoor Facilities due to additional utility costs and
increased contractor costs, partially offset by some salary savings and
additional income.

£34k overspend on HQ staffing costs.

£51k overspend for Countryside Services.

5.4.10 The net overspend of £485k for Leisure Services is due to the following: -

£477k overspend in Leisure Centres due to increased salary costs and income
targets not being met.

£48k overspend in Outdoor Education due to income levels not being achieved,
but partially offset with salary savings.

£28k underspend on Community Centres as non-urgent spend was held back
to support the broader budget position.

£12k underspend on Sports & Health Development due to a reduction in hours
for a member of staff.

5.4.11 The Building Cleaning overspend of £77k is due to income levels being lower than
anticipated.

5.4.12 The overspend of £471k for Vehicle Maintenance & Fleet Management is due to the
inability to recruit Fitters and consequently contracting out at an additional costto keep
the fleet mobilised. Income for the service was also at a lower level than budgeted.

Page 319



5.4.13

5.5

55.1

5.5.2

55.3

554

5.5.5

5.5.6

5.5.7

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

5.7

5.7.1

The reported overspends within Community & Leisure Services will be subject to
further review by the Corporate Management Team.

Corporate Services —(£2.327m Underspend)

The outturn position for the Directorate of Corporate Services is an underspend of
£2.327m after adjusting for the agreed earmarking of reserves. The most significant
elements of the underspend are the following: -

There is a net underspend of £474k for Corporate Finance, a significant element of
which relates to one-off funding received from WG for the administration of Cost of
Living Support Scheme grant payments and Winter Fuel payments. Underspends have
also occurred through delays in filling vacant posts.

Business Improvement Services is reporting an overall net underspend of £251k,
which is largely due to vacant posts.

There is a net underspend of £770k for Customer & Digital Services. This includes
underspends of £247k in Information Technology, £298k in Procurement and £225k in
Customer Services. The most significant elements of these underspends are delays in
appointing to vacant posts and a number of existing staff not being at the top of pay
scales.

For People Services there is a net underspend of £548k. This consists of underspends
of £77k in the Apprentice Programme, £65k for the MeUs Leadership Development
Programme, £70k in Communications, £67k in Occupational Health, £212k in Health
and Safety and £57k in Human Resources.

Legal Services is reporting a net underspend of £230k, which is due to delays in filling
vacant posts and additional income.

There is a net underspend of £27k for Property Services.
General Fund Housing & Private Housing (£1.361m Overspend)

There is a net overspend of £1.361m for Housing Services, excluding the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA).

£1.128m of the overspend is in General Fund Housing and this relates to
Homelessness and the ongoing cost pressures experienced as a direct result of
temporary accommodation (Bed & Breakfast placements). This is a legacy of Covid-
19 where these costs were fully funded by WG in 2020/21 and 2021/22, but the level
of funding has reduced significantly in 2022/23. Growth has been built into the 2023/24
budget to meet this ongoing cost pressure.

There is a projected overspend of £233k for Private Housing which is due to significant
disruption to staffing levels and contractor availability, which impacted on the ability to
generate enough income from agency fees to sustain the budget.

Miscellaneous Finance - (£4.317m Underspend)

Budgets in Miscellaneous Finance underspent by £4.317m, the most significant
elements of which are the following: -

Page 320



5.8

5.8.1

5.8.2

5.9

5.9.1

5.9.2

5.10

5.10.1

£361k underspend on debt charges due to delays in the need to borrow.

£1.424m additional investment income due to interest rate increases.

£367k underspend on City Deal borrowing.

£970k from underspends on provisions for pay awards and Housing Benefit

subsidy, along with an underspend on contributions to the Gwent Crematorium

Service.

o £322k on Free School Meals funding held centrally that was not required during
the financial year.

e £247k underspend on the Carbon Energy Tax budget.

Council Tax Collection — (E420k Surplus)

The Council Tax surplus of £420k is lower than the typical levels experienced prior to
Covid-19, and this has been further impacted by financial pressures arising from the
Cost-of-Living crisis.

The Council Tax Team encourages all residents to contact the Council as soon as
possible if they are struggling to pay their Council Tax and they actively promote
Council Tax Reduction take-up for those residents on low incomes. The Team also
supports residents to set up payment plans and residents experiencing financial
difficulty can also access support and advice from the Caerphilly Cares Team.

Housing Revenue Account (£5.340m Underspend)

The majority of the underspend for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is due to the
inability to progress fully with the Post Asset Management Strategy Programme due to
the ongoing impact of limited resources (staff and contractors). This restricted the
spend on the capital programme meaning the revenue contributions from the HRA
were not required to the extent anticipated. However, more work was directed to the
response area to address the backlog of repairs that the Team had been unable to
complete since the pandemic. There were also underspends on the Capital Financing
Requirement budget due to delays in the need to borrow and underspends also
occurred within the Strategy & Development budget where revenue provision for
investigative work (e.g. Land appraisals) towards increasing housing supply was not
fully expended.

HRA Working Balances stood at £21.5m at the start of 2022/23. However, due to the
continued restrictions throughout the year, this balance, along with the £5.3m surplus
made in year, will be carried forward to assist in funding future HRA commitments in
relation to increasing housing supply and maintaining the WHQS on our existing
properties. However, £4.5m of this balance has been earmarked separately towards
match funding the Transitional Accommodation Capital Programme (TACP), which is
helping to provide good quality transitional homes for those facing homelessness.
There is also a separate earmarked balance of £795k originally set up for welfare
reform which will be used to help alleviate the cost of living crisis for our tenants.

Impact on General Usable Service Reserves

As outlined in paragraph 5.1.3, after adjusting for earmarked reserves 50% of
underspends are carried forward by Directorates and are available to meet the
requirements of these service areas in subsequent financial years. Overspends are
normally funded from future Directorate budgets or balances brought forward from
previous years. However, in the current financial climate it is not feasible to top-slice
budgets given the potential savings requirement of £48.335m for the two-year period

Page 321



5.10.2

5.10.3

5.104

5.10.5

5.10.6

2024/25 to 2025/26.

The following table provides a summary of General Usable Service Reserves and the
closing balances as at 31 March 2023: -

Service Area Opening In-Year Closing
Balance @ Movement Balance
(01/04/22) 2022/23 (31/03/23)

£m £m £m
Education & Lifelong Learning 1.074 0.411 1.485
Social Services 5.396 (2.683) 2.713
Economy & Environment 1177 (1.671) (0.494)
Corporate Services 0.622 0.559 1.181
General Fund Housing & Private Housing 0.601 (1.604) (2.002)
Totals: - 8.870 (4.988) 3.882

Cabinet will note the deficit General Usable Service Reserves balances for the
Economy & Environment Directorate and General Fund Housing and Private Housing.
As already mentioned, itis not feasible to fund these deficits by top-slicing the 2023/24
budgets due to the scale of the financial challenge that services face moving forward.
Section 11 of this report therefore includes proposals to fund these deficits from surplus
General Fund balances.

The Education and Lifelong Learning and Corporate Services Directorates have
identified some immediate cost pressures that require consideration for funding from
General Usable Service Reserves, and Cabinet is therefore asked to consider the
following proposals totalling £1.148m: -

Description Amount
£m

Education & Lifelong Learning

- Shortfall in funding for September 2022 Teachers Pay Award 0.123
- New Demountable at Ysgol Gymraeg Trelyn 0.120
Corporate Services

- Extension of Fixed-term Contracts for Schools .T. Team 0.605
- Top-up of Earmarked Reserve for Cloud Migrations 0.300
Total: - 1.148

Shortfall in Funding for September 2022 Teachers Pay Award — WG has provided
additional one-off funding for the 2023/24 impact of the September 2022 teachers pay
award but to ensure that the full cost can be met in 2023/24 further funding of £123k
is required.

New Demountable at Ysgol Gymraeg Trelyn - Ysgol Gymraeg Trelyn is currently at
full capacity with no additional surplus places. In order to accommodate the rollout of
Universal Primary Free School Meals it is necessaryto expand both the kitchen and
dining area at the school. The Headteacher and Governing Body of the school are in
full support of this initiative, however they have evaluated the school site and the only
available option is to extend the kitchen and dining facilities into the school’s Wellbeing
room. This has created a need for the installation of an additional demountable on site

Page 322



5.10.7

5.10.8

5.10.9

5.10.10

511

5111

511.2

to compensate for the loss of the room. The only area identified to site this is away
from the main school building. Funding of £30k has been secured from WG but a
further £120k is required for this facility to be installed in readiness for the start of the
new school year in September 2023.

Extension of Fixed-term Contracts for Schools I.T. Team — Funding has previously
been set aside to support these fixed-term posts, but this is now almost fully utilised.
The Schools Support Team was established within Customer and Digital Services to
support the deployment of the Welsh Government Ed Tech funding programme. The
programme itself required a significant change in the way schools procured and
deployed technology in order to meet the WG Core Digital standards to develop better
learning outcomes for all learners within Wales.

The coreresults from the Team in the past two years are significant in terms of keeping
children safe throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, by learning through online facilities
and services. As we have emerged from the pandemic the Team has deployed digital
technology and support on a daily basis. Since September 2022 to date, the Team has
successfully closed over 5000 support calls.

In the next two years the Council is expected to continue to receive Ed Tech funding
which will see more technology deployed into the learning environments. The schools
I.T. Support Team will be critical to the successful deployment and application of this
technology. The Team will also support the wider Digital Team in supporting schools
with fit for purpose infrastructure and security provision. It is therefore proposed to

extend the fixed-term contracts for the Team for a further period of 2 years at a cost of
£605k.

Cloud Migrations — £500k has previously been set aside to fund the initial one-off
costs associated with Cloud migrations and the purchase of software as a service for
critical .T. systems. These costs include initial set-up costs and professional support,
along with the first year’s additional maintenance costs. The programme of migrations
is progressing well, but further funding is now required to meet the one-off costs of the
next planned migrations, in particular the Council's General Ledger system. It is
therefore proposed that a further sum of £300k is set aside.

Impact on the General Fund

The table in Appendix B shows the movements on the General Fund balance from 01
April 2022 to 31 March 2023, along with agreed commitments for 2023/24. The
forecast General Fund balance as reported to Council on 23 February 2023 was
£13.041m. The updated position is a balance of £18.621m, an increase of £5.580m.
The variations to the forecast are as follows: -

£m
Increased Contribution from Service Areas (including Miscellaneous 5.160
Finance)
2022/23 Council Tax Surplus 0.420
Net Increase: - 5.580

It is usually recommended by the Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer that the
minimum balance on the General Fund should be 3% of the Council’s net revenue
budget, which equates to £13.172m for the 2023/24 financial year. This results in a
surplus General Fund balance of £5.449m being available to support the Council in
the delivery of its strategic priorities.

Page 323



5.11.3

5.11.4

5.115

5.11.6

5.12

5.12.1

5122

5.12.3

There are a number of items that will require consideration for funding from the surplus
General Fund balance as summarised in the following table: -

Description Amount
£m

In-year Impact of 2023/24 NJC Pay Awards 1.959
Funding of Economy & Environment General Usable Service 0.494
Reserves Deficit

Funding of General Fund Housing and Private Housing General 1.002
Usable Service Reserves Deficits

Total: - 3.455

In-year impact of 2023/24 Pay Awards — The latest pay offer for National Joint
Council (NJC) staff is an increase of £1,925 on all pay points from April 2023. This
results in an additional funding requirement of £1.959m for the current financial year.
This position will be reviewed again once the pay awards have been finalised, and the
confirmed increases will also need to be factored into the budget setting process for
the 2024/25 financial year. It is currently assumed that the teachers pay award from
September 2023 will be fully funded by WG.

General Usable Service Reserve Deficits - As outlined in paragraph 5.10.3, there
are deficit General Usable Service Reserve balances for the Economy & Environment
Directorate, and General Fund Housing and Private Housing as at 31 March 2023.
These deficits must be funded, and it is therefore proposed that the deficits totalling
£1.496m are met from the surplus General Fund balance.

Cabinet is asked to endorse a recommendation to Council that surplus General Fund
balances totalling £3.455m are utilised as detailed in paragraphs 5.11.3 to 5.11.5 of
this report. If approved, this will reduce the General Fund balance to £15.166m, which
is £1.994m higher than the 3% minimum balance usually recommended by the Head
of Financial Services & S151 Officer. Given the significant financial challenges that we
face moving forward, Cabinet is asked to endorse a recommendation to Council that
the General Fund balance is maintained at £15.166m.

Conclusion

The overall 2022/23 net underspend of £8.331m is significantly lower than in recent
years (net underspends of £38.517m and £37.815m in 2020/21 and 2021/22
respectively) and signifies the return of a more realistic picture of financial performance
that is not impacted by the significant levels of external grant funding received in recent
years in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Council faces significant financial challenges moving forward with an anticipated
savings requirement of £48.335m for the two-year period 2024/25 to 2025/26.

The scale of the financial challenge facing the Council requires new approaches to
service delivery and this is being led by the Chief Executive, Leader, CMT, and Cabinet
and is being co-ordinated through our Transformation and Placeshaping Investment
Programmes. It is vital that required changes are developed at pace and that key
decisions are made early to ensure that the projected savings requirement for 2024/25
and 2025/26 can be delivered.

Page 324



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

Author:

ASSUMPTIONS

There are no assumptions within this report.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The 2022/23 revenue budget outturn position does not require an Integrated Impact
Assessment to be completed as it is a statement of fact and is reported for information
only.

The proposals for the use of General Usable Service Reserves are not strategic in
nature and do not require changes to policy, therefore Integrated Impact Assessments
are not required.

The proposals for the use of surplus General Fund balances relate to unavoidable cost
pressures in relation to pay awards, and the funding of deficit balances in General

Usable Service Reserves. These proposals do not require Integrated Impact
Assessments to be completed.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As detailed throughout the report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct personnel implications arising from this report other than the
proposal to fund some fixed-term posts.

CONSULTATIONS

There are no consultation responses that have not been reflected in this report.

STATUTORY POWER

Local Government Act 1972.

Stephen Harris — Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer
Tel: 01443 863066 E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees:  Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive

(Email: harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services
(Email: edmunre@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dave Street, Deputy Chief Executive

(Email: streed@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Mark S Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment

(Email: willims @caerphilly.gov.uk)

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

Page 325


mailto:harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:edmunre@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:streed@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk

(Email: trantri@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Andrew Southcombe, Finance Manager, Corporate Finance

(Email: southak@caerphilly.qgov.uk)

David Roberts, Interim Finance Manager, Corporate Services and
Communities

(Email: roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager, Education and Lifelong Learning
(Email: southj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Mike Jones, Financial Services Manager, Social Services

(Email: jonesmj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Lesley Allen, Principal Group Accountant, Housing

(Email: alleni@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Clir Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance
(Email: stenne@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Appendices:

Appendix A - Provisional Outturn Summary 2022/23
Appendix B - Movement on General Fund

Page 326


mailto:trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:southak@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:southj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:jonesmj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:allenl@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:stenne@caerphilly.gov.uk

PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2022/23

SERVICE AREA

Education & Lifelong Learning
Social Services

Economy & Environment
Corporate Services

General Fund Housing
Private Housing
Miscellaneous Finance
Council Tax Surplus

TOTALS

OTHER

Schools

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

OVERALL TOTAL SURPLUS

SUMMARY

UNDERSPEND
(OVERSPEND)
£m

2.858
0.981
(0.603)
2.327
(1.128)
(0.233)
4.317
0.420

8.938

UNDERSPEND
(OVERSPEND)
£m

(5.947)
5.340

8.331

APPENDIXA

TAKE TO GENERAL
FUND
£m

1.429

0.490

0.000

1.163

0.000

0.000

4.317

0.420

7.819

TAKE TO GENERAL

FUND

£m

N/A

N/A

7.819

Service area surpluses are subject to a 50% take to General Fund balances after specific

agreed earmarking of funds.

Miscellaneous Finance underspends and Council Tax surpluses are transferred in total to

General Fund balances.

School and HRA balances must be ring-fenced to those service areas.

Page 327



MOVEMENT ON GENERAL FUND

Opening Balance 01/04/2022
Use of Funds as Previously Agreed by Council: -

Budget Strategy Contribution 2022/23
In-Year impact of 2022/23 Pay Awards
Cost of Living Hardship Fund

Cost of Living Crisis Contingency

Home to School/College Transport

Wi-Fi Infrastructure Review

Heolddu Leisure Centre Fitness Equipment
Emporium Car Park Repairs

Highway Inspections (Covid-19 Backlog)
External Asbestos Surveys

Modern Patch Management Tool

Cloud Migrations

Canal Refurbishment

Additional RSG (Electric Vehicles/Driving Lessons)

Approved Contribution from Earmarked Reserves to
Support 2023/24 Budget

Funds Transferred into General Fund (2022/23): -

Education & Lifelong Learning — 50% of Directorate
Underspend

Social Services - 50% of Directorate Underspend
Corporate Services - 50% of Directorate Underspend
Miscellaneous Finance Underspend

Council Tax Surplus 2022/23

General Fund Closing Balance 31/03/2023

2023/24 Commitments Previously Agreed by Council: -

Budget Strategy Contribution 2023/24
Earmarked Reserves Funding Released to Support the
2023/24 Budget

Current General Fund Balance

Page 328

£m

(1.050)
(6.860)
(3.000)
(2.098)
(0.460)
(0.100)
(0.100)
(0.100)
(0.120)
(0.100)
(0.100)
(0.500)
(0.200)
(0.595)

APPENDIX B

£m

27.235

(15.383)

1.429

0.490
1.163
4.317
0.420

15.345

7.819

35.016

(1.050)
(15.345)

18.621




	Agenda
	3 Cabinet Held on 12th July 2023.
	4 Cabinet Forward Work Programme.
	5 Day Opportunities.
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	6 Caerphilly County Borough Council Speed Limits Traffic Regulation Order 2023.
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Setting exceptions to the 20mph default speed limit for restricted roads
	Contents
	1. Introduction
	1.1 Status
	1.2 Policy
	1.3 Legislation
	The Restricted Roads (20mph Speed Limit) (Wales) Order 2022
	The Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2016


	2. Exceptions to the default 20mph limit for restricted roads
	2.1 Principles
	Question A: Are there significant numbers (or potential numbers, if speeds were lower) of pedestrians and cyclists travelling along or across the road?
	Question B: If the answer to A is ‘yes’, are the pedestrians and cyclists mixing with motor traffic?

	2.2 Process for setting exceptions
	Consider existing 30mph roads only
	Road classification
	Place criteria
	Applying local factors to the place criteria
	Protected facilities for pedestrians and cyclists
	Minimum lengths of speed limits
	Part time speed limits




	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	7 A Routemap to Inform Our Resource And Waste Strategy.
	8 Covid 19, Economic Recovery Framework - Monitoring Report.
	Appendix 1

	9 Scrap Metal Dealers, Dog Breeders, And Licensing Of Activities Involving Animals Licensing Fees 2023/24 And Future Fee Setting Determination.
	Appendix 1

	10 Provisional Revenue Budget Outturn for 2022/23.

